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This document (the "Base Prospectus") constitutes a base prospectus in respect of Notes issued under the
Note, Warrant and Certificate Programme of BNP Paribas Issuance B.V. ("BNPP B.V."), BNP Paribas
("BNPP") and BNP Paribas Fortis Funding ("BP2F") (the "Programme"). Any Securities (as defined below)
issued on or after the date of this Base Prospectus are issued subject to the provisions herein. This does not
affect any Securities issued before the date of this Base Prospectus.

This Base Prospectus constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of Article 8 of the Prospectus Regulation.
"Prospectus Regulation" means Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 of 14 June 2017. This Base Prospectus received
approval no. 22-187 on 1 June 2022 from the Autorité des marchés financiers (the "AMF") and will be valid
for a period of one year following the date of its approval by the AMF. The obligation to supplement this Base
Prospectus in the event of a significant new factor, material mistake or material inaccuracy does not apply
when this Base Prospectus is no longer valid.

This Base Prospectus has been approved as a base prospectus by the AMF in France as competent authority
under the Prospectus Regulation. The AMF only approves this Base Prospectus as meeting the standards of
completeness, comprehensibility and consistency imposed by the Prospectus Regulation. Approval by the
AMF should not be considered as an endorsement of the Issuers or the Guarantors or of the quality of the
Securities. Investors should make their own assessment as to the suitability of investing in the Securities.
Upon such approval, application may be made for securities issued under the Programme during a period of
12 months from the date of this Base Prospectus to be listed and/or admitted to trading on Euronext Paris
and/or a Regulated Market (as defined below) in another Member State of the European Economic Area (the
"EEA"). Euronext Paris is a regulated market for the purposes of the Markets in Financial Instruments
Directive 2014/65/EU (each such regulated market being a "Regulated Market"). Reference in this Base
Prospectus to Securities being "listed" (and all related references) shall mean that such Securities have been
listed and admitted to trading on Euronext Paris or, as the case may be, a Regulated Market (including the
regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (including the professional segment of the regulated
market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange)) or on such other or further stock exchange(s) as the relevant
Issuer may decide. Each Issuer may also issue unlisted Securities. The applicable Final Terms (as defined
below) will specify whether or not Securities are to be listed and admitted to trading and, if so, the relevant
Regulated Market or other or further stock exchange(s).
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The requirement to publish a prospectus under the Prospectus Regulation only applies to Securities which are
to be admitted to trading on a regulated market in the EEA and/or offered to the public in the EEA other than
in circumstances where an exemption is available under Article 1(4) and/or 3(2) of the Prospectus Regulation.
The requirement to publish a prospectus under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 ("FSMA") only
applies to Securities which are admitted to trading on a UK regulated market as defined in Regulation (EU)
No 600/2014 on markets in financial instruments as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the European
Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (the "EUWA") ("UK MIiFIR") and/or offered to the public in the United
Kingdom other than in circumstances where an exemption is available under section 86 of the FSMA.

The Issuers may issue Securities for which no prospectus is required to be published under (i) the Prospectus
Regulation and/or (ii) Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 of 14 June 2017 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue
of the EUWA (the "UK Prospectus Regulation"), as the case may be ("Exempt Securities") under this Base
Prospectus. See "Exempt Securities" in the "Overview of this Base Prospectus" section below. The AMF has
neither approved nor reviewed information contained in this Base Prospectus in connection with Exempt
Securities.

Application has been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange in accordance with the Luxembourg Act dated
16 July 2019 on prospectuses for securities (Loi relative aux prospectus pour valeurs mobilieres) (the
"Prospectus Act") for Securities (including Exempt Securities) issued under the Programme to be admitted to
the Official List and admitted to trading on the Euro MTF Market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (the
"Euro MTF") (including the professional segment of the Euro MTF) during the twelve-month period from
the date of this Base Prospectus. This Base Prospectus also constitutes a prospectus for the purpose of the
Prospectus Act; however, the AMF has not verified that this is the case. The Euro MTF is not a regulated
market for the purposes of Directive 2014/65/EU.

Under the terms of the Programme, each of BNPP B.V. and BP2F (the "Issuers" and each an "Issuer") may
from time to time issue, inter alia, notes ("Notes" or "Securities") of any kind including, but not limited to,
Securities relating to a specified index or a basket of indices, a specified share (including two or more shares
which are attached to each other so that they trade as a single unit ("Stapled Shares")), global depositary
receipt ("GDR") or American depositary receipt ("ADR") or a basket of shares (including Stapled Shares),
ADRs and/or GDRs, a specified interest in an exchange traded fund, an exchange traded note, an exchange
traded commodity or other exchange traded product (each an "exchange traded instrument") or a basket of
interests in exchange traded instruments, a specified debt instrument or a basket of debt instruments, a specified
debt futures or debt options contract or a basket of debt futures or debt options contracts, a specified currency
or a basket of currencies, a specified commodity (including EU emissions allowances ("EU Allowances")) or
commodity index, or a basket of commodities (including EU Allowances) and/or commodity indices, a
specified inflation index or a basket of inflation indices, a euro fund insurance or investment policy or
capitalisation contract, a specified fund share or unit or fund index or basket of fund shares or units or fund
indices, a specified futures contract or basket of futures contracts, a specified underlying interest rate or basket
of underlying interest rates, or the credit of a specified entity or entities and any other types of Securities
including hybrid Securities whereby the underlying asset(s) may be any combination of such indices, shares,
interests in exchange traded instruments, debt, currency, commodities, inflation indices, fund shares or units,
fund indices, a euro fund insurance or investment policy or capitalisation contract, futures contracts, credit of
specified entities, underlying interest rates, an actively managed notional portfolio of shares, exchange traded
instruments and/or BNPP indices ("Actively Managed Securities") or other asset classes or types. Each issue
of Securities will be issued on the terms set out herein which are relevant to such Securities under "7Terms and
Conditions of the Notes" (the "Note Conditions" or the "Conditions"). Notice of, infer alia, the specific
designation of the Securities, the aggregate nominal amount or number and type of the Securities, the date of
issue of the Securities, the issue price (if applicable), the underlying asset, index, fund, fund index, euro fund,
reference entity or other item(s) to which the Securities relate, the maturity date, whether they are interest
bearing, partly paid, redeemable in instalments, the governing law of the Securities and certain other terms
relating to the offering and sale of the Securities will be set out in a final terms document (the "Final Terms").
Copies of Final Terms in relation to Securities to be listed on Euronext Paris will also be published on the
website of the AMF (www.amf-france.org). If Securities issued by BP2F are admitted to trading on a regulated
market in the EEA and/or offered to the public in the EEA in circumstances which require the publication of
a prospectus under the Prospectus Regulation, the minimum Specified Denomination will be EUR 1,000 (or,
if denominated in a currency other than euro, the equivalent amount in such currency).
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The specific terms of each Tranche of Exempt Securities will be set out in a final terms document for Exempt
Securities (the "Final Terms for Exempt Securities"). In respect of Exempt Securities to be admitted to
trading on the Euro MTF, the applicable Final Terms for Exempt Securities will be delivered to the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange on or before the date of issue of the Exempt Securities of the relevant Tranche
and published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu). Copies of Final Terms for
Exempt Securities will be available from the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent. Any reference in

non

this Base Prospectus to "Final Terms", "relevant Final Terms" or "applicable Final Terms" will be deemed to
include a reference to "Final Terms for Exempt Securities", "relevant Final Terms for Exempt Securities" or
"applicable Final Terms for Exempt Securities" in relation to Exempt Securities, to the extent applicable. For
the avoidance of doubt, the Final Terms for Exempt Securities does not constitute "final terms" as such term

is used under the Prospectus Regulation.

Securities will be governed by English law ("English Law Securities") or, in the case of BNPP B.V. only,
French law ("French Law Securities"), as specified in the applicable Final Terms, and the corresponding
provisions in the Conditions will apply to such Securities.

In certain circumstances at the commencement of an offer period in respect of Securities but prior to the issue
date, certain specific information (specifically, the issue price, fixed rate of interest, minimum and/or
maximum rate of interest payable, the margin applied to the floating rate of interest payable, the gearing
applied to the interest or final payout, the Gearing Up applied to the final payout, (in the case of Autocall
Securities, Autocall One Touch Securities or Autocall Standard Securities) the FR Rate component of the final
payout (which will be payable if certain conditions are met, as set out in the Payout Conditions), (in the case
of Securities which include a Snowball Digital Coupon, Accrual Digital Coupon, Digital Coupon, SPS
Variable Amount Coupon or SPS Fixed Coupon) the Rate component of the coupon rate, the value of the
barrier component of the final payout or coupon rate, the Floor Percentage component of the final payout or
coupon rate, the AER Exit Rate used if an Automatic Early Redemption Event occurs, the Bonus Coupon
component of the final payout (in the case of Vanilla Digital Securities), the Up Cap Percentage component of
the final payout (in the case of Certi-Plus: Generic Securities, Certi-Plus: Generic Knock-in Securities and
Certi-Plus: Generic Knock-out Securities), any constant percentage (being any of Constant Percentage,
Constant Percentage 1, Constant Percentage 2, Constant Percentage 3 or Constant Percentage 4) component
of the final payout or coupon rate (which will be payable if certain conditions are met, as set out in the Payout
Conditions), the Floor Percentage component of the final payout or coupon rate and/or the Knock-in Level
and/or Knock-out Level (used to ascertain whether a Knock-in Event or Knock-out Event, as applicable, has
occurred)) may not be known. In these circumstances, the Final Terms will specify a minimum and/or
maximum price, rate, level or percentage, as applicable, or an indicative range in respect of the relevant issue
price, rates, levels or percentages and the actual price, rate, level or percentage, as applicable, will be notified
to investors prior to the Issue Date. Accordingly, in these circumstances investors will be required to make
their decision to invest in the relevant Securities based on the minimum and/or maximum price, rate, level or
percentage as applicable, or the indicative range specified in the Final Terms. Notice of the actual price, rate,
level or percentage, as applicable, will be published in the same manner as the publication of the Final Terms.

Securities issued by BNPP B.V. may be secured ("Secured Securities") or unsecured and will be guaranteed
by BNPP (in such capacity, the "BNPP Guarantor") pursuant to either (a) in respect of the Secured Securities,
(i) a Deed of Guarantee for Secured Securities in respect of English Law Securities (the " BNPP English Law
Secured Note Guarantee") or (ii) a garantie in respect of Secured Securities, which are French Law Securities
(the "BNPP French Law Secured Note Guarantee" and, together with the BNPP English Law Secured Note
Guarantee, the "BNPP Secured Note Guarantees"), the forms of which are set out herein or (b) in respect of
the unsecured Securities, (i) a Deed of Guarantee for Unsecured Securities, in respect of English Law Securities
(the "BNPP English Law Unsecured Note Guarantee") or (ii) a garantie, in respect of Unsecured Securities,
which are French Law Securities (the "BNPP French Law Unsecured Note Guarantee" and, together with
the BNPP English Law Unsecured Note Guarantee, the "BNPP Unsecured Note Guarantees"), the forms of
which are set out herein. The BNPP Secured Note Guarantees and the BNPP Unsecured Note Guarantees
together, the "BNPP Guarantees".

Securities issued by BP2F may be unsecured only and will be guaranteed by BNP Paribas Fortis SA/NV
("BNPPF" and, in such capacity, the "BNPPF Guarantor") pursuant to a Deed of Guarantee (the "BNPPF
Guarantee"), the form of which is set out herein. The BNPP Guarantees and the BNPPF Guarantee, together
the "Guarantees".



The BNPP Guarantor and the BNPPF Guarantor, are together the "Guarantors" and each a "Guarantor".

Each of BNPP B.V., BNPP and BP2F has a right of substitution as set out herein. In the event that BNPP B.V_,
BNPP or BP2F exercises its right of substitution, a supplement to the Base Prospectus will be published on
the website of the AMF (www.amf-france.org) and on the website of BNPP (https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/public/LegalDocs.aspx).

Each issue of Securities will entitle the holder thereof on the Instalment Date(s) and/or the Maturity Date either
to receive a cash amount (if any) calculated in accordance with the relevant terms or to receive physical
delivery of the underlying assets, all as set forth herein and in the applicable Final Terms.

Other than in relation to the documents which are deemed to be incorporated by reference (see "Documents
Incorporated by Reference" below), the information on the websites to which this Base Prospectus refers does
not form part of this Base Prospectus unless that information is incorporated by reference into the Base
Prospectus and has not been scrutinised or approved by the AMF.

Capitalised terms used in this Base Prospectus shall, unless otherwise defined, have the meanings set forth in
the Conditions.

Prospective purchasers of Securities should ensure that they understand the nature of the relevant
Securities and the extent of their exposure to risks and that they consider the suitability of the relevant
Securities as an investment in the light of their own circumstances and financial condition. Securities
are complex financial instruments and involve a high degree of risk and potential investors should be
prepared to sustain a total loss of the purchase price of their Securities. There are significant risks
associated with holding Securities, including risks in relation to the circumstances in which Securities
(other than Secured Securities) may be written down or converted to ordinary shares and the
implications on prospective purchasers of Securities (such as a substantial loss). The circumstances in
which such prospective purchasers may suffer loss as a result of holding Securities are difficult to predict
and the quantum of any loss incurred by investors in such circumstances is also highly uncertain. For
more information, see ''Risks'' on pages 26 to 105.

Investors in Hong Kong should not purchase the Securities in the primary or secondary markets unless
they are professional investors (as such term is defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.
571, Laws of Hong Kong) and its subsidiary legislation, ''Professional Investors'') and understand the
risks involved.

In particular, the Securities and the Guarantees and, in the case of Physical Delivery Securities (as
defined below), the Entitlement (as defined herein) to be delivered upon the redemption of such
Securities have not been, and will not be, registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the ''Securities Act'') or any other applicable state securities laws and trading in the Securities
has not been approved by the United States Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the "CFTC")
under the United States Commodity Exchange Act, as amended (the '""Commodity Exchange Act").
None of the Issuers has registered as an investment company pursuant to the United States Investment
Company Act of 1940, as amended (the ''Investment Company Act''). The Securities are being offered
and sold in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act (''Regulation S'') and, until the expiry of
the period of 40 days after the completion of the distribution of all of the Notes of the relevant Tranche,
may not be offered, sold, resold, held, traded, pledged, exercised, redeemed, transferred or delivered,
directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, persons that are a ''U.S.
person'' as defined in Regulation S except in accordance with Regulation S under the Securities Act or
pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the
Securities Act.

Neither the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") nor any other applicable state
securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the accuracy of this
prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence.

The Securities to the extent they constitute ''Secured Securities' may not be sold to, or for the account
or benefit of, U.S. persons as defined in the U.S. Risk Retention Rules (''Risk Retention U.S. Persons'')
except to the extent such Risk Retention U.S. Persons have received a waiver from the applicable sponsor
and except as permitted under an exemption to the U.S. Risk Retention Rules as described under
"Risks" on page 104 and "Offering and Sale' on page 1287. "U.S. Risk Retention Rules' means



Regulation RR (17 C.F.R Part 246) implementing the risk retention requirements of Section 15G of the
U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

The Issuers have requested the AMF, in accordance with Article 25(1) of the Prospectus Regulation, to provide
the competent authorities in Belgium, Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg, Poland, Portugal, Romania and Spain with
a certificate of approval attesting that the Base Prospectus has been drawn up in accordance with the Prospectus
Regulation.

BNPP's long-term credit ratings are A+ with a stable outlook (S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited ("Standard
& Poor's")), Aa3 with a stable outlook (Moody's Investors Service Ltd. ("Moody's")), AA- with a stable
outlook (Fitch Ratings Ireland Limited ("Fitch")) (which is the long-term rating assigned to BNPP's senior
preferred debt by Fitch) and AA (low) with a stable outlook (DBRS Rating GmbH ("DBRS Morningstar"))
and BNPP's short-term credit ratings are A-1 (Standard & Poor's), P-1 (Moody's), F1+ (Fitch) and R-1 (middle)
(DBRS Morningstar). BNPP B.V.'s long-term credit ratings are A+ with a stable outlook (Standard & Poor's)
and BNPP B.V.'s short term credit ratings are A-1 (Standard & Poor's). BP2F's senior unsecured debt rating is
A+ (Standard & Poor's), BP2F's senior unsecured credit ratings are A2 with a stable outlook (Moody's) and
AA- with a stable outlook (Fitch) and BP2F's short-term debt rating is A-1 (Standard & Poor's) and BP2F's
short-term credit ratings are P-1 (Moody's) and F1 (Fitch). BNPPF's senior unsecured credit ratings are A+
with a stable outlook (Standard & Poor's), A2 with a stable outlook (Moody's) and AA- with a stable outlook
(Fitch) and BNPPF's short-term credit ratings are A-1 (Standard & Poor's), P-1 (Moody's) and F1 (Fitch). Each
of Standard & Poor's, Fitch and DBRS Morningstar is established in the European Union and is registered
under the Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended) (the "CRA Regulation"). The ratings issued by
Moody's have been endorsed by Moody's France SAS ("Moody's France") in accordance with the CRA
Regulation. Moody's France is established in the European Union and registered under the CRA
Regulation. As such each of Standard & Poor's, Fitch, DBRS Morningstar and Moody's France is included in
the list of credit rating agencies published by the European Securities and Markets Authority on its website (at
http://www.esma.europa.eu/page/List-registered-and-certified-CRAs) in accordance with the CRA
Regulation. Moody's is established in the United Kingdom and is registered in accordance with Regulation
(EC) No. 1060/2009 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018
(the "UK CRA Regulation"). Moody's is included in the list of credit rating agencies published by the
Financial Conduct Authority on its website (https://register.fca.org.uk) in accordance with the UK CRA
Regulation. None of Standard & Poor's, Fitch or DBRS Morningstar are established in the United Kingdom,
but each is part of a group in respect of which one of its undertakings is (i) established in the United Kingdom,
and (ii) is registered in accordance with the UK CRA Regulation. As such, the ratings issued by Standard &
Poor's, Fitch and DBRS Morningstar may be used for regulatory purposes in the United Kingdom in
accordance with the UK CRA Regulation. Securities issued under the Programme may be rated or unrated. A
security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension,
reduction or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.




IMPORTANT NOTICES

The securities described in this Base Prospectus may only be offered in The Netherlands to Qualified Investors
(as defined in the Prospectus Regulation).

Disclaimer statement for structured products (Securities)

In relation to investors in the Kingdom of Bahrain, Securities issued in connection with this Base Prospectus
and related offering documents must be in registered form and must only be marketed to existing account
holders and accredited investors as defined by the Central Bank of Bahrain (the "CBB") in the Kingdom of
Bahrain where such investors make a minimum investment of at least U.S.$ 100,000 or any equivalent amount
in other currency or such other amounts as the CBB may determine.

This offer does not constitute an offer of Securities in the Kingdom of Bahrain in terms of Article (81) of the
Central Bank and Financial Institutions Law 2006 (decree Law No. 64 of 2006). This Base Prospectus and
related offering documents have not been and will not be registered as a prospectus with the CBB. Accordingly,
no Securities may be offered, sold or made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase nor will
this Base Prospectus or any other related document or material be used in connection with any offer, sale or
invitation to subscribe or purchase Securities, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in the Kingdom of
Babhrain, other than as marketing to accredited investors for an offer outside Bahrain.

The CBB has not reviewed, approved or registered this Base Prospectus or related offering documents and it
has not in any way considered the merits of the Securities to be marketed for investment, whether in or outside
the Kingdom of Bahrain. Therefore, the CBB assumes no responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of
the statements and information contained in this document and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this document.

No offer of securities will be made to the public in the Kingdom of Bahrain and this prospectus must be read
by the addressee only and must not be issued, passed to, or made available to the public generally.

All offers of Securities to investors in the Kingdom of Bahrain will be made by way of private placement and
may only be offered to accredited investors in the Kingdom of Bahrain in minimum subscriptions of U.S.
$100,000 (or equivalent in other countries).

Notification under Section 309B(1)(c) of the Securities and Futures Act 2001 (2020 Revised Edition) of
Singapore, as modified or amended from time to time (the SFA) — Unless otherwise specified in the
applicable Final Terms in respect of any Securities, all Securities issued or to be issued under the Programme
shall be capital markets products other than prescribed capital markets products (as defined in the Securities
and Futures (Capital Markets Products) Regulations 2018 of Singapore) and Specified Investment Products
(as defined in MAS Notice SFA 04-N12: Notice on the Sale of Investment Products and MAS Notice FAA-
N16: Notice on Recommendations on Investment Products).

Guidance under the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (the "HKMA') circular - In October 2018, the
HKMA issued a circular regarding enhanced investor protection measures on the sale and distribution of debt
instruments with loss-absorption features and related products (the "HKMA Circular"). Under the HKMA
Circular, debt instruments with loss-absorption features, being subject to the possibility of being written-down
or converted to ordinary shares, and investment products that invest mainly in, or whose returns are closely
linked to the performance of such instruments (together, "Loss-Absorption Products"), may only be offered
to professional investors (as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
and its subsidiary legislation, "Professional Investors") in Hong Kong. Unless otherwise specified in the
applicable Final Terms in respect of any Securities, all Securities (other than Secured Securities) issued or to
be issued under the Programme contain loss-absorption features and may be considered Loss-Absorption
Products under the HKMA Circular. Investors in Hong Kong should not purchase such Securities with
loss-absorption features unless they are Professional Investors and understand the risks involved. Such



Securities are generally not suitable for retail investors in Hong Kong in either the primary or the
secondary markets.

IMPORTANT - EEA AND UK RETAIL INVESTORS - If the Final Terms in respect of any Securities
specifies the "Prohibition of Sales to EEA and UK Retail Investors — Legend" as applicable, the Securities are
not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise
made available to any retail investor in (i) the EEA, unless a key information document will be made available
(if required) in the EEA jurisdiction(s) in which the Securities are offered, sold or otherwise made available to
such retail investor(s) or (ii) the United Kingdom (the "UK"), unless a key information document will be made
available (if required) in the UK. If the Final Terms in respect of any Securities specifies the "Prohibition of
Sales to EEA and UK Retail Investors — Legend" as not applicable, the Securities may be offered, sold or
otherwise made available to any retail investor in the EEA or in the UK, provided that, where a key information
document is required pursuant to the PRIIPs Regulation or the UK PRIIPs Regulation (each as defined below)
as the case may be, the Securities may only be offered, sold or otherwise made available to retail investors in
(i) the EEA in the jurisdiction(s) for which a key information document will be made available or (ii) in the
UK if a key information document will be made available in the UK. For these purposes, a retail investor
means a person who is one (or more) of:

(a) in the case of retail investors in the EEA:

1) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended,
"MIFID IT");

(i) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (the "Insurance Distribution
Directive"), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point
(10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or

(iii))  not a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Regulation; or
(b) in the case of retail investors in the UK:

1) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms
part of UK domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 ("EUWA");

(ii) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000 ("FSMA") and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA to implement Directive
(EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client, as defined in
point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of domestic law by
virtue of the EUWA; or

(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part
of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA.

Consequently, no key information document required by:

(a) Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (the "PRIIPs Regulation") for offering or selling the Securities or
otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared, other than in respect
of the jurisdiction(s) for which a key information document will be made available, and therefore
offering or selling the Securities or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA
may be unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation; and

(b) Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA (the "UK
PRIIPs Regulation") for offering or selling the Securities or otherwise making them available to retail
investors in the UK has been prepared, and therefore, offering or selling the Securities or otherwise



making them available to any retail investor in the UK may be unlawful under the UK PRIIPs
Regulation.

EU BENCHMARKS REGULATION

Amounts payable under the Notes may be calculated by reference to one or more "benchmarks" for the
purposes of Regulation (EU) No. 2016/1011 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 8 June 2016
(the "EU Benchmarks Regulation"). In this case, a statement will be included in the applicable Final Terms
as to whether or not the relevant administrator of the "benchmark” is included in ESMA's register of
administrators under Article 36 of the EU Benchmarks Regulation. Certain "benchmarks" may either (i) not
fall within the scope of the EU Benchmarks Regulation by virtue of Article 2 or (ii) transitional provisions in
Article 51 of the EU Benchmarks Regulation may apply to certain other "benchmarks", which would otherwise
be in scope, such that at the date of the applicable Final Terms, the administrator of the "benchmark” is not
required to be included in the register of administrators.

MiFID II product governance / target market — The Final Terms in respect of any Securities may include
a legend entitled "MiFID II product governance/target market assessment" which will outline the target market
assessment in respect of the Securities and which channels for distribution of the Securities are appropriate.
Any person subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Securities (a "distributor") should take into
consideration the target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to MiFID II is responsible for
undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Securities (by either adopting or refining the
target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels.

UK MiFIR product governance / target market — The Final Terms in respect of any Securities may include
a legend entitled "UK MiFIR product governance/target market assessment” which will outline the target
market assessment in respect of the Securities and which channels for distribution of the Securities are
appropriate. Any person subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Securities (a "distributor")
should take into consideration the target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to the FCA
Handbook Product Intervention and Product Governance Sourcebook (the "UK MiFIR Product Governance
Rules") is responsible for undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Securities (by either
adopting or refining the target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels.
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OVERVIEW OF THIS BASE PROSPECTUS

OVERVIEW OF THIS BASE PROSPECTUS

The following overview does not purport to be complete and is taken from, and is qualified in its entirety by, the
remainder of this Base Prospectus and, in relation to the terms and conditions of any particular Tranche of Securities,
the applicable Final Terms.

This overview constitutes a general description of this Base Prospectus for the purposes of Article 25(1) of Commission
Delegated Regulation (EU) No 2019/980 of 14 March 2019 (the "Delegated Regulation").

Words and expressions defined in the "Form of the Securities" and "Terms and Conditions of the Securities" shall have
the same meanings in this overview.

Issuers
BNP Paribas Issuance B.V. ("BNPP B.V.") — Issuer Legal Entity Identifier (LEI): 7245009UXRIGIRYOBR48.
BNP Paribas Fortis Funding ("BP2F") — Issuer Legal Entity Identifier (LEI): 549300J2UEC8CUFW6083.

Guarantors
BNP Paribas ("BNPP" and, together with its consolidated subsidiaries, the "Group").
BNP Paribas Fortis SA/NV ("BNPPF").

Risk Factors

There are certain factors that may affect the relevant Issuer's ability to fulfil its obligations under Securities issued under
this Base Prospectus. There are also certain factors that may affect the relevant Guarantor's ability to fulfil its obligations
under the relevant Guarantee. In addition, there are certain factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the
market risks and legal risks associated with Securities issued under the Programme, risks relating to the structure of a
particular Series of Securities and risks relating to the Underlying Reference or the disruption and adjustment provisions
of a particular Series of Securities issued under the Programme. All of these are set out under "Risks". Additional
considerations associated with an investment in the Securities are also set out under "Investment Considerations".

Description of the Securities under this Base Prospectus
Notes issued under the Note, Warrant and Certificate Programme.

Certain Restrictions

Each issue of Securities denominated in a currency in respect of which particular laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions
or reporting requirements apply will only be issued in circumstances which comply with such laws, guidelines,
regulations, restrictions or reporting requirements from time to time (see " Offering and Sale").

Form of Securities
The Securities will be issued in either bearer or registered form as described in "Form of the Notes". Registered Securities
will not be exchangeable for Bearer Securities and vice versa.

Securities
Securities may be issued as:

(a) Index Securities, where the interest (if any) payable on and/or the amount payable, or assets deliverable, on
redemption of the Securities is determined by reference to an Index or a Basket of Indices (or index futures or
options contracts);

(b) Share Securities, where the interest (if any) payable on and/or the amount payable, or assets deliverable, on
redemption of the Securities is determined by reference to a Share (or a Stapled Share) or a Basket of Shares
(which may be comprised of one or more Stapled Shares);
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(©) ETTI Securities, where the interest (if any) payable on and/or the amount payable, or assets deliverable, on
redemption of the Securities is determined by reference to an ETI Interest or a Basket of ETI Interests;

(d) Debt Securities, where the interest (if any) payable on and/or the amount payable, or assets deliverable, on
redemption of the Securities is determined by reference to a Debt Instrument or a Basket of Debt Instruments
(or debt futures or options contracts);

(e) Commodity Securities, where the interest (if any) payable on and/or the amount payable, or assets deliverable,
on redemption of the Securities is determined by reference to a Commodity (including an EU Allowance) or a
Commodity Index or a Basket of Commodities (including EU Allowances) or a Basket of Commodity Indices;

®) Inflation Index Securities, where the interest (if any) payable on and/or the amount payable, or assets deliverable,
on redemption of the Securities is determined by reference to an Inflation Index or a Basket of Inflation Indices;

(2) Currency Securities, where the interest (if any) payable on and/or the amount payable, or assets deliverable, on
redemption of the Securities is determined by reference to an FX Rate or a Basket of FX Rates;

(h) Fund Securities, where (i) unless the Fund is a Euro Fund, the interest (if any) payable on and/or the amount
payable, or assets deliverable, on redemption of the Securities is determined by reference to a Fund or a Basket
of Funds or a Fund Index or a Basket of Fund Indices or (ii) if the Fund is a Euro Fund, the interest (if any)
payable on and/or the amount payable on redemption of the Securities is determined by reference to the gross
rate of return in respect of a Euro Fund;

@) Futures Securities, where the interest (if any) payable on and/or the amount payable, or assets deliverable, on
redemption of the Securities is determined by reference to a Futures Contract or a Basket of Futures Contracts;

Q)] Underlying Interest Rate Securities, where the interest (if any) payable on and/or the amount payable, or assets
deliverable, on redemption of the Securities is determined by reference to a single Underlying Interest Rate or a
basket of Underlying Interest Rates; and

&) Credit Securities, where the interest (if any) payable on and/or the amount payable, or assets deliverable, on
redemption of the Securities is determined by reference to a single Reference Entity or a basket of Reference
Entities.

The relevant Issuer may also issue Secured Securities as described in "Security and Collateral in respect of Secured
Securities" or "Security and Collateral in respect of Secured Securities which are Nominal Value Repack Securities", as
the case may be.

Redemption

The terms under which Securities may be redeemed (including the maturity date and the amount payable or deliverable
on redemption as well as any provisions relating to early redemption) will be determined by the Issuer at the time of issue
of the relevant Securities, specified in the applicable Final Terms and, if applicable, summarised in the relevant issue
specific summary annexed to the applicable Final Terms.

Securities may be redeemed early for tax reasons or if the performance of the Issuer's obligations under the Securities has
become illegal or by reason of force majeure or act of state it becomes impossible or impracticable for the Issuer to
perform its obligations under the Securities and/or any related hedging arrangements. If specified in the applicable Final
Terms, Securities may be redeemed early at the option of the Issuer or at the option of the Holders at the Optional
Redemption Amount specified in the applicable Final Terms. The Optional Redemption Amount in respect of each
Security shall be either: (i) the Calculation Amount multiplied by the percentage specified in the applicable Final Terms;
or (ii) the SPS Call Payout (in the case of early redemption at the option of the Issuer) or the SPS Put Payout (in the case
of early redemption at the option of the Holders).
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The Securities may also be redeemed early following the occurrence of certain disruption, adjustment, extraordinary or
other events. If Payout Switch Election or Automatic Payout Switch is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the amount
payable or deliverable on redemption may be switched from one amount payable or deliverable to another.

If Autoroll is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms and an Autoroll Event occurs, where:

(a) Autoroll Standard is specified in the applicable Final Terms, (i) the Final Payout and its related provisions, (ii)
the Knock-in Event or Knock-out Event, as applicable, and its related provisions, (iii) the Automatic Early
Redemption Event and its related provisions, (iv) the Strike Date, (v) the Coupon Payout and its related
provisions and/or (vi) the Maturity Date will be amended to the Rolled Final Payout and its related provisions,
Rolled Knock-in Event or Rolled Knock-out Event, as applicable, and its related provisions, Rolled Automatic
Early Redemption Event and its related provisions, Rolled Strike Date, Rolled Coupon Payout and its related
provisions and/or Rolled Maturity Date, each as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

b) Autoroll Lock is specified in the applicable Final Terms and an Autoroll Event occurs, any level specified in the
applicable Final Terms in respect of (i) the Final Payout and its related provisions, (ii) the Knock-in Event or
Knock-out Event and its related provisions, (iii) the Automatic Early Redemption Event and its related provisions
and/or (iv) the Coupon Payout and its related provisions will be amended to (x) if Autoroll Lock Product is
specified in the applicable Final Terms, the product of such originally designated level and the relevant Locked
Level or (y) if Autoroll Lock Divide is specified in the applicable Final Terms, such originally designated level
divided by the relevant Locked Level, in each case, specified in the applicable Final Terms; or

(© Autoroll Shift is specified in the applicable Final Terms and an Autoroll Event occurs, any level specified in the
applicable Final Terms in respect of (i) the Final Payout and its related provisions, (ii) the Knock-in Event or
Knock-out Event and its related provisions, (iii) the Automatic Early Redemption Event and its related provisions
and/or (iv) the Coupon Payout and its related provisions will be amended to the relevant Shifted Level specified
in the applicable Final Terms.

Interest

The Securities may or may not bear or pay interest. Interest paying Securities will either bear or pay interest determined
by reference to a fixed rate, a floating rate and/or a rate calculated by reference to one or more Underlying Reference(s)
(each an "Underlying Reference").

Securities which do not bear or pay interest may be offered and sold at a discount to their nominal amount.

The Interest will be calculated and payable on such date or dates as determined by the relevant Issuer at the time of issue
of the relevant Securities specified in the applicable Final Terms and, if applicable, summarised in the relevant issue
specific summary annexed to the applicable Final Terms.

The Interest may be any of the following as specified in the applicable Final Terms:
- Fixed Rate (including SPS Fixed): paying a fixed rate of interest.

- Floating Rate (including SPS Variable Amount): paying a floating rate of interest which may be calculated by
reference to a reference rate (such as, but not limited to, EURIBOR, STIBOR, SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON
or TONA).

- Linked Interest (including SPS Coupons: Stellar, Cappuccino, Ratchet, Driver, Nova and FI Coupons: FX
Vanilla, Transition): paying an amount linked to the performance of one or more Underlying Reference(s).

- Conditional (including SPS Coupons: Digital, Snowball Digital, Accrual Digital and FI Coupons: FI Digital, FX
Digital, Range Accrual, FX Range Accrual, FX Memory, PRDC, FI Digital Floor and FI Digital Cap): paying
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an amount either related or unrelated to the performance of the Underlying Reference(s), if certain conditions
are met.

- Combination (including SPS Coupons: Sum, Option Max and FI Coupon: Combination Floater): combining two
Or more coupon types.

- FI Target Coupon.
- Duration Adjusted Coupon.
These rates and/or amounts of interest payable may be subject to a maximum or a minimum.

If Coupon Switch Election or Automatic Coupon Switch is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the rate
may be switched from one specified rate to another.

If Additional Switch Coupon is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, an Additional Switch Coupon
Amount will be payable on the Interest Payment Date following such switch. The terms applicable to each Series of such
Securities will be determined by the relevant Issuer at the time of issue of the relevant Securities, specified in the
applicable Final Terms and (if required) summarised in the relevant issue specific summary annexed to the applicable
Final Terms.

Payout Methodology

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled, each Security entitles its holder to receive from the relevant
Issuer:

(a) In respect of the Maturity Date:

@) in the case of Cash Settled Notes, the Final Redemption Amount (see Condition 5 (Redemption and
Purchase) and Payout Conditions 1.1, 2.2, 3.3), being an amount equal to the Final Payout specified in
the applicable Final Terms;

(ii) in the case of Physical Delivery Securities, the Entitlement (see Condition 5.1 (Final Redemption
Amount) and Payout Conditions 1.7 and 2.4) being the quantity of the Relevant Assets specified in the
applicable Final Terms equal to the Entitlement specified in the applicable Final Terms; or

(iii) in the case of Securities which may either be Cash Settled Notes or Physical Delivery Notes, depending
on whether certain conditions are met, either (A) a Final Redemption Amount being an amount equal
to the Final Payout specified in the applicable Final Terms or (B) the Entitlement, being the quantity of
the Relevant Assets specified in the applicable Final Terms equal to the Entitlement specified in the
applicable Final Terms.

Notwithstanding the above, if the Securities are:

@) Credit Securities, redemption shall be at the amount and/or by delivery of the assets specified in the
Credit Security Conditions and the applicable Final Terms; or

(ii) Actively Managed Securities, redemption shall be the Final Redemption Amount (see Condition 5
(Redemption and Purchase) as amended by Actively Managed Security Condition 7.2), being an
amount equal to the Calculation Amount per Note multiplied by the AMC Value in respect of the
Redemption Valuation Date.

(b) If Automatic Early Redemption is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms and an Automatic Early

Redemption Event occurs, the Automatic Early Redemption Amount, (see Condition 12 (Automatic Early
Redemption Event) and Payout Conditions 1.2, 2.3 and 3.4).
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If an Issuer Call Option, Noteholder Put Option or Holder Put Option is specified as applicable in the applicable
Final Terms, the relevant Optional Redemption Amount (see Condition 5 (Redemption and Purchase) and
Payout Conditions 1.3, 1.6 and 2.3).

In the case of Securities paying interest, the interest amount (see Conditions 3.1 (Interest on Fixed Rate Notes),
3.2(c) (Determination of Rate of Interest and Calculation of Interest Amount) and 3.3(c) (Determination of Rate
of Interest and Calculation of Interest Amount) and Payout Conditions 2.1 and 3.1).

The terms of a Series of Securities are comprised of (i) the Conditions, (ii) the Annex relevant to the relevant Underlying

References and (iii) if selected in the applicable Final Terms, the Interest Rate and/or Payout(s) selected from Annex 1 to

the Conditions (the "Payout Annex") specified in the applicable Final Terms and the related variables specified in the

applicable Final Terms (including the relevant valuation provisions) for such Interest Rate and/or Payout(s) (as selected

from the Payout Annex).

Investors must review the Conditions, the Annex relevant to the relevant Underlying Reference and the Payout

Annex, together with the applicable Final Terms to ascertain the terms and conditions applicable to the Securities.

Final Payouts
Structured Products Securities (SPS) Final Payouts

(a)
(b)

(©

()

(e)

®

(2

Fixed Percentage Securities: fixed term products which have a return equal to a fixed percentage.

Reverse Convertible Securities (Reverse Convertible, Reverse Convertible Standard): fixed term products which
have a return linked to both the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and a knock-in level. There is no
capital protection and these products pay coupons.

Vanilla Securities (Call, Call Spread, Put, Put Spread, Digital, Knock-in Call, Knock-out Call, Range Accrual):
fixed term products which have a return linked to the performance of the Underlying Reference(s). The return is
calculated by reference to various mechanisms (including knock-in or knock-out features). There may be total,
partial or no capital protection.

Asian Securities (Asian, Asian Spread, Himalaya, Talisman): fixed term products which have a return linked to
the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) determined through an averaging method. The return is
calculated by reference to various mechanisms (including a cap, a floor or lock-in features). There may be total,
partial or no capital protection.

Auto-callable Securities (Autocall, Autocall One Touch, Autocall Standard): fixed term products that include an
automatic early redemption feature. The return is linked to the performance of the Underlying Reference(s). The
return is calculated by reference to various mechanisms (including a knock-in feature). There may be total,
partial or no capital protection.

Indexation Securities (Certi plus: Booster, Certi plus: Bonus, Certi plus: Leveraged, Certi plus: Twin Win, Certi
plus: Super Sprinter, Certi plus: Generic, Certi plus: Generic Knock-in, Certi plus: Generic Knock-out): fixed
term products which have a return linked to the performance of the Underlying Reference(s). The return is
calculated by reference to various mechanisms (including knock-in or knock-out features). There may be total,
partial or no capital protection.

Ratchet Securities: fixed term products which have a return linked to the performance of the Underlying
Reference(s). The return is equal to the sum of returns determined on a given formula (which can be capped or
floored). There may be total, partial or no capital protection.
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Sum Securities: fixed term products which have a return linked to the performance of the Underlying
Reference(s). The return calculation is the weighted sum of returns determined using different payout formulae.
There may be total, partial or no capital protection.

Option Max Securities: fixed term products which have a return linked to the performance of the Underlying
Reference(s). The return is the maximum return calculation of different payout formulae. There may be total,
partial or no capital protection.

Stellar Securities: fixed term products which have a return linked to the performance of a basket of Underlying
References. The return calculation, which is subject to a floor, is made up of the average returns of each
Underlying Reference in the basket, each being subject to both a cap and a floor.

Driver Securities: fixed term products which have a return linked to the performance of a basket of Underlying
References. The return calculation, which is subject to a floor, is determined by reference to the average return
of the basket, where the performance of one or more of the best performing Underlying Reference(s) is set at a
fixed level.

Transition Securities: fixed term products which have a return linked to the performance of the Underlying
Reference(s). The return is calculated by reference to various mechanisms (including knock-in and automatic
early redemption feature) combined with trigger events which determine the allocation between the amount that
will be reimbursed and the amount linked to the performance of the Underlying Reference(s). There may be
partial or no capital protection and these products pay coupons.

Fixed Income (FI) Final Payouts

(a)

(b)

(©

FI FX Vanilla Securities: fixed term products which have a return linked to the performance of the Underlying
Reference(s). The return is calculated by reference to various mechanisms (including knock-in or knock-out
features). There may be total, partial or no capital protection.

Digital Securities (Digital Floor, Digital Cap, Digital Plus): fixed term products which have a fixed or variable
return depending on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s). The return is calculated by reference to
various mechanisms (including floor or cap conditions and knock-in and/or knock-out features).

Inflation securities: fixed term products which have a return linked to the performance of the Underlying
Reference(s).

Entitlement Amounts

The Entitlement Amount may be determined on the basis of the following payouts:

Delivery of Worst-Performing Underlying
Delivery of Best-Performing Underlying
Delivery of the Underlying

Delivery of Basket Underlying

Delivery of Accumulator Underlying

If Delivery of Worst-Performing Underlying, Delivery of Best-Performing Underlying or Delivery of the Underlying is

specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Entitlement Amount will be rounded down to the nearest unit of each Relevant

Asset capable of being delivered and in lieu thereof the Issuer will pay an amount equal to the Rounding and Residual

Amount. If Delivery of Basket Underlying is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Entitlement Amount in respect

of each Underlying Reference in the basket will be rounded down on a per Underlying Reference basis to the nearest unit
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of each Relevant Asset capable of being delivered and in lieu thereof the Issuer will pay an amount equal to the Rounding
and Residual Amount in respect of each Underlying Reference in the basket. If Delivery of Accumulator Underlying is
specified in the applicable Final Terms, in addition to delivery of the Entitlement Amount in respect of the Underlying
Reference, the Issuer will pay an amount equal to the Rounding and Residual Amount.

Dual Currency Notes

In the case of Dual Currency Notes, any amount calculated to be payable in respect of interest (if any) and any amount
calculated to be payable on redemption of the Notes, will be converted into the Settlement Currency at the Specified
Exchange Rate or the Settlement Currency Exchange Rate specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Automatic Early Redemption
If an Automatic Early Redemption Event, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, occurs, the Securities will be
redeemed early at the Automatic Early Redemption Amount on the Automatic Early Redemption Date.

Unless SPS Accumulator AER Payout is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Automatic Early Redemption
Amount in respect of each nominal amount of Notes equal to the Calculation Amount will be equal to the Automatic
Early Redemption Payout specified in the applicable Final Terms or, if not set out, an amount equal to the product of (i)
the Calculation Amount in respect of such Note and (ii) the sum of the relevant Automatic Early Redemption Percentage
and the relevant AER Rate specified in the applicable Final Terms relating to the Automatic Early Redemption Date. If
the SPS Accumulator AER Payout is specified in the applicable Final Terms, an Automatic Early Entitlement Amount
will be deliverable, equal to the SPS Accumulator AER Payout, together with payment of a residual cash amount (if any).

Automatic Early Redemption Payout

SPS Automatic Early Redemption Payout

SPS Target Automatic Early Redemption Payout
SPS Transition Automatic Early Redemption Payout
SPS Accumulator AER Payout

Target Automatic Early Redemption

FI Underlying Automatic Early Redemption

FI Coupon Automatic Early Redemption

Taxation

In the case of Securities issued by BNPP B.V.:

If Condition 6.3 (No Gross-up) is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, all payments in respect of
Notes will be made without deduction for or on account of withholding taxes imposed by France or any political
subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax (in the case of payments by BNPP as Guarantor) or
the Netherlands or any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax (in the case of
payments by BNPP B.V.), unless such deduction or withholding is required by law. In the event that any such deduction
is made, the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor will, save in certain limited circumstances, be required to pay
additional amounts to cover the amounts so deducted.

If Condition 6.3 (No Gross-up) is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, neither the Issuer nor the
Guarantor shall be liable for or otherwise obliged to pay any tax, duty, withholding or other payment which may arise as
a result of the ownership, transfer, presentation and surrender for payment, or enforcement of any Note and all payments
made by the Issuer or the Guarantor shall be made subject to any tax, duty, withholding or other payment which may be
required to be made, paid, withheld or deducted.

In the case of Securities issued by BP2F:

Subject to Condition 6.3 being specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, all payments in respect of Notes will
be made without deduction for or on account of withholding taxes imposed by Luxembourg or any political subdivision
thereof or any authority or agency therein or thereof having the power to tax or, where applicable, (in the case of the
Guarantor) Belgium or any political subdivision thereof or any authority or agency therein or thereof having power to
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tax, unless such deduction or withholding is required by law. In the event that any such deduction is made, the Issuer or,
as the case may be, the Guarantor will, save in certain limited circumstances, be required to pay additional amounts to
cover the amounts so deducted.

If Condition 6.3 (No Gross-up) is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, neither the Issuer nor the
Guarantor shall be liable for or otherwise obliged to pay any tax, duty, withholding or other payment which may arise as
a result of the ownership, transfer, presentation and surrender for payment, or enforcement of any Note and all payments
made by the Issuer or the Guarantor shall be made subject to any tax, duty, withholding or other payment which may be
required to be made, paid, withheld or deducted.

In the case of Securities issued by any Issuer:

Payments will be subject in all cases to (i) any fiscal or other laws and regulations applicable thereto in the place of
payment or other laws and regulations to which the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor or its Agents are subject, (ii) any
withholding or deduction required pursuant to an agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal Revenue
Code of 1986 (the "Code") or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code, any regulations
or agreements thereunder, any official interpretations thereof, or any law implementing an intergovernmental approach
thereto, and (iii) any withholding or deduction required pursuant to Section 871(m) of the Code.

In addition, if the Securities are deemed to be "specified securities" for the purpose of Section 871(m) of the Code, in
determining the amount of withholding or deduction required pursuant to Section 871(m) of the Code imposed with
respect to any amounts to be paid on the Securities, the Issuer shall be entitled to withhold on any "dividend equivalent"
payment (as defined for purposes of Section 871(m) of the Code) at a rate of 30 per cent.

Payments on the Securities that reference U.S. securities or an index that includes U.S. securities may be calculated by
reference to the net dividends payable on such U.S. securities or net total returns of the U.S. components of such index.
In calculating the relevant payment amount, the Issuer may withhold, and the holder may be deemed to have received, 30
per cent. of any "dividend equivalent” payments (as defined in Section 871(m) of the Code) in respect of the relevant U.S.
securities or U.S. dividend paying index components, as the case may be. The Issuer will not pay any additional amounts
to the holder on account of the Section 871(m) amount deemed withheld.

Negative Pledge
The terms of the Securities will not contain a negative pledge provision.

Events of Default

The terms of the Notes will contain events of default including non-payment, non-performance or non-observance of the
Issuer's or Guarantor's obligations in respect of the Securities; the insolvency or winding up of the Issuer or Guarantor;
or (in the case of BP2F) default by the Issuer or Guarantor in payment on other loan indebtedness of or assumed or
guaranteed by the Issuer or Guarantor of at least EUR 50,000,000 or its equivalent in any other currency.

The events of default in respect of Secured Securities are described in "Security and Collateral in respect of Secured
Securities" or "Security and Collateral in respect of Secured Securities which are Nominal Value Repack Securities", as

applicable.

Governing Law

In the case of English Law Securities:

The Securities, (in respect of English Law Securities) the Note Agency Agreement (as amended, supplemented or restated
from time to time), the Deed of Covenant (as amended, supplemented or restated from time to time), the related English
Law Guarantees in respect of the Securities and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with the
Securities, (in respect of English Law Securities) the Note Agency Agreement (as amended, supplemented or restated
from time to time), the Deed of Covenant (as amended, supplemented or restated from time to time) and the related
English Law Guarantees in respect of the Securities will be governed by and shall be construed in accordance with English
law.
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In the case of French Law Securities:

The Securities, (in respect of French Law Securities) the Note Agency Agreement (as amended, supplemented or restated
from time to time) and the BNPP French Law Guarantee are governed by, and construed in accordance with, French law,
and any action or proceeding in relation thereto shall, subject to any mandatory rules of the Brussels Recast Regulation,
be submitted to the jurisdiction of the competent courts in Paris within the jurisdiction of the Paris Court of Appeal (Cour
d'Appel de Paris). BNPP B.V. elects domicile at the registered office of BNP Paribas currently located at 16 boulevard
des Italiens, 75009 Paris.

Status

In the case of Securities issued by BNPP B.V.:

Securities may be issued on either a secured or unsecured basis. Securities issued on an unsecured basis and (if applicable)
the relative Coupons are unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and rank pari passu among themselves.

Securities issued on a secured basis ("Secured Securities") and (if applicable) the relative Coupons constitute
unsubordinated and secured obligations of the Issuer and rank pari passu among themselves.

In the case of Securities issued by BP2F':

The Securities and (if applicable) the relative Coupons are direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured and
general obligations of the Issuer and rank pari passu (subject to mandatorily preferred debts under applicable laws)
without any preference among themselves and at least rateably with all other present and future outstanding unsecured
and unsubordinated obligations, including guarantees and other obligations of a similar nature of the Issuer.

Guarantees

In the case of Securities issued by BNPP B.V.:

English law unsecured Securities issued by BNPP B.V. will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by BNPP
pursuant to an English law deed of guarantee executed by BNPP on or around 1 June 2022. The obligations under the
guarantee are senior preferred obligations (within the meaning of Article L.613-30-3-1-3° of the French Code monétaire
et financier) and unsecured obligations of BNPP and will rank pari passu with all its other present and future senior
preferred and unsecured obligations, subject to such exceptions as may from time to time be mandatory under French
law. In the event of a bail-in of BNPP but not BNPP B.V., the obligations and/or amounts owed by BNPP under the
guarantee shall be reduced to reflect any such modification or reduction applied to liabilities of BNPP resulting from the
application of a bail-in of BNPP by any relevant regulator (including in a situation where the guarantee itself is not the
subject of such bail-in).

English law secured Securities issued by BNPP B.V. will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by BNPP
pursuant to an English law deed of guarantee executed by BNPP on or around 1 June 2022. The obligations under the
guarantee are senior preferred obligations (within the meaning of Article L.613-30-3-1-3° of the French Code monétaire
et financier) and unsecured obligations of BNPP and will rank pari passu with all its other present and future senior
preferred and unsecured obligations, subject to such exceptions as may from time to time be mandatory under French
law.

French law unsecured Securities issued by BNPP B.V. will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by BNPP
pursuant to a French law garantie executed by BNPP on or around 1 June 2022. The obligations under the garantie are
senior preferred obligations (within the meaning of Article L.613-30-3-1-3° of the French Code monétaire et financier)
and unsecured obligations of BNPP and will rank pari passu with all its other present and future senior preferred and
unsecured obligations, subject to such exceptions as may from time to time be mandatory under French law. In the event
of a bail-in of BNPP but not BNPP B.V., the obligations and/or amounts owed by BNPP under the guarantee shall be
reduced to reflect any such modification or reduction applied to liabilities of BNPP resulting from the application of a
bail-in of BNPP by any relevant regulator (including in a situation where the guarantee itself is not the subject of such
bail-in).

23



OVERVIEW OF THIS BASE PROSPECTUS

French law secured Securities issued by BNPP B.V. will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by BNPP
pursuant to a French law garantie executed by BNPP on or around 1 June 2022. The obligations under the garantie are
senior preferred obligations (within the meaning of Article L..613-30-3-1-3° of the French Code monétaire et financier)
and unsecured obligations of BNPP and will rank pari passu with all its other present and future senior preferred and
unsecured obligations, subject to such exceptions as may from time to time be mandatory under French law.

In the case of Securities issued by BP2F:

Securities issued by BP2F will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by BNPPF pursuant to an English law deed
of guarantee executed by BNPPF on or around 1 June 2022. The obligations under the guarantee constitute
unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of BNPPF and will rank pari passu with all its other present and future
outstanding unsecured and unsubordinated obligations, subject to such exceptions as may from time to time be mandatory
under Belgian law.

Ratings
BNPP B.V.'s long term credit rating is A+ with a stable outlook (S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited) and BNPP B.V.'s
short term credit rating is A-1 (S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited).

BNPP's long term credit ratings are A+ with a stable outlook (S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited), Aa3 with a stable
outlook (Moody's Investors Service Ltd.), AA- with a stable outlook (Fitch Ratings Ireland Limited) and AA (low) with
a stable outlook (DBRS Rating GmbH) and BNPP's short-term credit ratings are A-1 (S&P Global Ratings Europe
Limited), P-1 (Moody's Investors Service Ltd.), F1+ (Fitch Ratings Ireland Limited) and R-1 (middle) (DBRS Rating
GmbH).

BP2F's senior unsecured debt rating is A+ (S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited), BP2F's senior unsecured credit ratings
are A2 with a stable outlook (Moody's Investors Service Ltd.) and AA- with a stable outlook (Fitch Ratings Ireland
Limited) and BP2F's short-term debt rating is A-1 (S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited) and BP2F's short-term credit
ratings are P-1 (Moody's Investors Service Ltd.) and F1 (Fitch Ratings Ireland Limited).

BNPPF's senior unsecured credit ratings are A+ with a stable outlook (S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited), A2 with a
stable outlook (Moody's Investors Service Ltd.) and AA- with a stable outlook (Fitch Ratings Ireland Limited) and
BNPPF's short-term credit ratings are A-1 (S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited), P-1 (Moody's Investors Service Ltd.)
and F1 (Fitch Ratings Ireland Limited).

Securities issued under the Base Prospectus may be rated or unrated.

A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or
withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.

Listing and Admission to Trading

Securities issued under this Base Prospectus may be listed and admitted to trading on Euronext Paris, Euronext Access
Paris (including the XMLI Segment), the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (including the professional segment of the
regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange), the SeDeX MTF, the EuroTLX, the Euro MTF Market (including
the professional segment of the Euro MTF Market), Euronext Brussels, the Warsaw Stock Exchange, the regulated market
of the Irish Stock Exchange plc trading as Euronext Dublin or such other regulated market, organised market, third country
market, SME market or other trading system specified in the applicable Final Terms, or may be issued on an unlisted
basis.

Selling Restrictions

The Securities will be freely transferable, subject to the offering and selling restrictions in the United States, the European
Economic Area, Belgium, France, Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg, Poland, Portugal, Romania, Spain, the United Kingdom,
Japan and Australia and under the Prospectus Regulation and the laws of any jurisdiction in which the relevant Securities
are offered or sold.
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Minimum denomination of Securities issued by BP2F

If Securities issued by BP2F are admitted to trading on a regulated market in the European Economic Area and/or offered
to the public in the European Economic Area in circumstances which require the publication of a prospectus under the
Prospectus Regulation, the minimum Specified Denomination will be euro 1,000 (or, if denominated in a currency other
than euro, the equivalent amount in such currency).

Exempt Securities

The requirement to publish a prospectus under the Prospectus Regulation only applies to Securities which are to be
admitted to trading on a regulated market in the European Economic Area and/or offered to the public in the European
Economic Area other than in circumstances where an exemption is available under Article 1(4) and/or Article 3(2) of the
Prospectus Regulation. The requirement to publish a prospectus under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000
("FSMA") only applies to Securities which are admitted to trading on a UK regulated market as defined in Regulation
(EU) No 600/2014 on markets in financial instruments as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the European Union
(Withdrawal) Act 2018 ("EUWA") ("UK MiFIR") and/or offered to the public in the United Kingdom other than in
circumstances where an exemption is available under section 86 of the FSMA. Under this Base Prospectus, the Issuers
may issue Exempt Securities (being Securities for which no prospectus is required to be published under the Prospectus
Regulation or the FSMA, as the case may be). In the case of Exempt Securities, any terms and conditions not contained
in this Base Prospectus which are applicable to such Exempt Securities will be set out in a final terms document for
Exempt Securities (the "Final Terms for Exempt Securities"). The Agency Agreement (as defined in the Conditions)
sets out the form of Final Terms for Exempt Securities which are Notes. For the purposes of any Exempt Securities,
references in the Conditions to "Final Terms" shall be deemed to include a reference to the "Final Terms for Exempt
Securities". For the avoidance of doubt, the Final Terms for Exempt Securities does not constitute "final terms" as such
term is used under the Prospectus Regulation.
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RISKS

Prospective purchasers of the Securities offered hereby should consider carefully, among other things and in light of their
financial circumstances and investment objectives, all of the information in this Base Prospectus and, in particular, the
risks set forth below (which each Issuer, in its reasonable opinion, believes represents or may represent the risks known
to it which may affect such Issuer's ability to fulfil its obligations under the Securities) in making an investment decision.
Investors may lose the value of their entire investment in certain circumstances.

Terms used in this section and not otherwise defined have the meanings given to them in the relevant Conditions.
Risks Relating to BNPP and its Industry

See "Risk Factors" under Chapter 5 on pages 309 to 323 of the BNPP 2021 Universal Registration Document (in English)
and pages 92 to 107 of the First Amendment to the BNPP 2021 Universal Registration Document (in English) (each as
defined below), each of which is incorporated by reference in this document.

Risk Factors

Unless otherwise indicated, the information and financial elements contained in these risk factors specifically include the
activity of Bank of the West to reflect a prudential view. They are therefore presented excluding the effects of the
application of IFRS 5 on groups of assets and liabilities held for sale. Chapter 3 of the BNPP 2021 Universal Registration
Document (in English) includes a reconciliation between the operational view presented excluding the application of
IFRS 5 and the consolidated financial statements applying IFRS 5.

The main categories of risk inherent in BNPP's business are presented below. They may be measured through risk-
weighted assets or other quantitative or qualitative indicators, to the extent risk-weighted assets are not relevant (for
example, for liquidity and funding risk).

Risk-weighted assets in billions of euros 31.12.21 31.12.20

Credit risk 554 527
Counterparty credit risk 40 41

Securitisation risk in the banking book 14 14
Operational risk 63 71

Market risk 25 25

Amounts below the thresholds for deduction 18 17

(subject to 250% risk weight)

[ Total |l 714 || 696

More generally, the risks to which BNPP is exposed may arise from a number of factors related, among others, to changes
in its macroeconomic or regulatory environment or factors related to the implementation of its strategy and its business.

The material risks specific to BNPP's business, determined based on the circumstances known to the management as of
the date of the BNPP 2021 Universal Registration Document (in English), are presented below under seven main
categories: credit risk, counterparty risk and securitisation risk in the banking book; operational risk; market risk; liquidity
and funding risk; risks related to the macroeconomic and market environment; regulatory risks; and risks related to
BNPP's growth in its current environment.
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BNPP's risk management policies have been taken into account in assessing the materiality of these risks; in particular,

risk-weighted assets factor in risk mitigation elements to the extent eligible in accordance with applicable banking

regulations.

1.

1.1

Credit risk, counterparty risk and securitisation risk in the banking book

BNPP's credit risk is defined as the probability of a borrower or counterparty defaulting on its obligations to
BNPP. Probability of default along with the recovery rate of the loan or debt in the event of default are essential
elements in assessing credit quality. In accordance with the European Banking Authority recommendations, this
category of risk also includes risks on equity investments, as well as those related to insurance activities. As of
31 December 2021, BNPP's credit risk exposure broke down as follows: corporates (41%), central governments
and central banks (27%), retail customers (25%), credit institutions (4%), other items (2%) and equities (1%).
As of 31 December 2021, 32% of BNPP's credit exposure was comprised of exposures in France, 16% in
Belgium and Luxembourg, 9% in Italy, 19% in other European countries, 13% in North America, 6% in Asia
and 5% in the rest of the world. BNPP's risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to €554 billion
at 31 December 2021, or 78% of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPP, compared to €527 billion at 31
December 2020.

BNPP's counterparty risk arises from its credit risk in the specific context of market transactions, investments,
and/or settlements. BNPP's exposure to counterparty risk, excluding Credit Valuation Adjustment ("CVA") risk
as of 31 December 2021, is comprised of: 44% in the corporate sector, 19% in governments and central banks,
13% in credit institutions and investment firms, and 24% in clearing houses. By product, BNPP's exposure,
excluding CVA risk, as of 31 December 2021 was comprised of: 51% in over-the-counter ("OTC") derivatives,
33% in repurchase transactions and securities lending/borrowing, 10% in listed derivatives and 6% in
contributions to the clearing houses' default funds. The amount of this risk varies over time, depending on
fluctuations in market parameters affecting the potential future value of the covered transactions. In addition,
CVA risk measures the risk of losses related to CVA volatility resulting from fluctuations in credit spreads
associated with the counterparties in respect of which BNPP is subject to risk. The risk-weighted assets subject
to counterparty credit risk amounted to €40 billion at 31 December 2021, representing 6% of BNPP's total risk-
weighted assets, compared to €41 billion at 31 December 2020.

Securitisation risk in the banking book: Securitisation is a transaction or arrangement by which the credit risk
associated with a liability or set of liabilities is subdivided into tranches. Any commitment made by BNPP under
a securitisation structure (including derivatives and liquidity lines) is considered to be a securitisation. The bulk
of BNPP's commitments are in the prudential banking portfolio. Securitised exposures are essentially those
generated by BNPP. The securitisation positions held or acquired by BNPP may also be categorized by its role:
of the positions as at 31 December 2021, BNPP was originator of 50%, was sponsor of 31% and was investor of
19%. The risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to €14 billion at 31 December 2021,
representing 23% of BNPP's total risk-weighted assets, unchanged compared to 31 December 2020.

A substantial increase in new provisions or a shortfall in the level of previously recorded provisions exposed to

credit risk and counterparty risk could adversely affect BNPP's results of operations and financial condition.

Credit risk and counterparty risk impact BNPP's consolidated financial statements when a customer or
counterparty is unable to honour its obligations and when the book value of these obligations in BNPP's records
is positive. The customer or counterparty may be a bank, a financial institution, an industrial or commercial
enterprise, a government or a government entity, an investment fund, or a natural person. If the default rate of
customers or counterparties increases, BNPP may have to record increased charges or provisions in respect of
irrecoverable or doubtful loans (Stage 3) or of performing loans (Stages 1 and 2) in response to a deterioration
in economic conditions or other factors, which may affect its profitability.
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As a result, in connection with its lending activities, BNPP regularly establishes provisions, which are recorded
on its income statement in the line item Cost of Risk. These provisions amounted to €2.925 billion at 31
December 2021, representing 34 basis points of outstanding customer loans (compared with 66 basis points at
31 December 2020 and 39 basis points at 31 December 2019). The significant increase in these provisions in
2020 reflects the economic consequences of the health crisis and is an example of the materialisation of this risk,
while their decrease in 2021 is explained by a high base in 2020, a limited number of defaults and write-backs
of provisions on performing loans.

BNPP's overall level of provisions is based on its assessment of prior loss experience, the volume and type of
lending being conducted, industry standards, past due loans, economic conditions and other factors related to the
recoverability of various loans or statistical analysis based on scenarios applicable to asset classes.

Although BNPP seeks to establish an appropriate level of provisions, its lending businesses may have to increase
their provisions for loan losses or sound receivables substantially in the future as a result of deteriorating
economic conditions or other causes. Any significant increase in provisions for loan losses or a significant
change in BNPP's estimate of the risk of loss inherent in its portfolio of non impaired loans, as well as the
occurrence of loan losses in excess of the related provisions, could have a material adverse effect on BNPP's
results of operations and financial condition.

For reference, at 31 December 2021, the ratio of doubtful loans to total loans outstanding was 2.0% and the
coverage ratio of these doubtful commitments (net of guarantees received) by provisions was 73.6%, against
2.1% and 71.5%, respectively, as at 31 December 2020. These two ratios are defined in Chapter 5.1 (Key
Figures) of the BNPP 2021 Universal Registration Document (in English)

While BNPP seeks to reduce its exposure to credit risk and counterparty risk by using risk mitigation techniques
such as collateralization, obtaining guarantees, entering into credit derivatives and entering into netting
agreements, it cannot be certain that these techniques will be effective to offset losses resulting from counterparty
defaults that are covered by these techniques. Moreover, BNPP is also exposed to the risk of default by the party
providing the credit risk coverage (such as a counterparty in a derivative or a loan insurance contract) or to the
risk of loss of value of any collateral. In addition, only a portion of BNPP's overall credit risk and counterparty
risk is covered by these techniques. Accordingly, BNPP has very significant exposure to these risks.

The soundness and conduct of other financial institutions and market participants could adversely affect BNPP.

BNPP's ability to engage in financing, investment and derivative transactions could be adversely affected by the
soundness of other financial institutions or market participants. Financial institutions are interrelated as a result
of trading, clearing, counterparty, funding or other relationships. As a result, defaults by one or more states or
financial institutions, or even rumours or questions about, one or more financial institutions, or the financial
services industry generally, may lead to market wide liquidity problems and could lead to further losses or
defaults. BNPP has exposure to many counterparties in the financial industry, directly and indirectly, including
clearing houses, brokers and dealers, commercial banks, investment banks, mutual and alternative investment
funds, and other institutional clients with which it regularly executes transactions. BNPP may also be exposed
to risks related to the increasing involvement in the financial sector of players and the introduction of new types
of transactions subject to little or no regulation (e.g., unregulated funds, trading venues or crowdfunding
platforms). Credit and counterparty risks could be exacerbated if the collateral held by BNPP cannot be realised,
it decreases in value, or it is liquidated at prices not sufficient to recover the full amount of the loan or derivative
exposure due to BNPP or in the event of the failure of a significant financial market participant such as a central
counterparty.

For reference, counterparty risk exposure related to financial institutions was €29 billion at 31 December 2021,
or 13% of BNPP's total counterparty risk exposure, and counterparty risk exposure related to clearing houses
was €54 billion, or 24% of BNPP's total counterparty risk exposure.
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In addition, fraud or misconduct by financial market participants can have a material adverse effect on financial
institutions due in particular to the interrelated nature of the financial markets. An example is the fraud
perpetrated by Bernard Madoff that came to light in 2008, as a result of which numerous financial institutions
globally, including BNPP, announced losses or exposure to losses in substantial amounts. BNPP remains the
subject of various claims in connection with the Madoff matter; see Note 7.b "Legal proceedings and arbitration"
to the consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2021, which are set out in the BNPP
2021 Universal Registration Document (in English).

Losses resulting from the risks summarised above could materially and adversely affect BNPP's results of
operations.

Operational Risk

BNPP's operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from failed or inadequate internal processes (particularly
those involving personnel and information systems) or external events, whether deliberate, accidental or natural
(floods, fires, earthquakes, terrorist attacks, etc.). BNPP's operational risks cover fraud, human resources risks,
legal and reputational risks, non-compliance risks, tax risks, information systems risks, risk of providing
inadequate financial services (conduct risk), risk of failure of operational processes including credit processes,
or from the use of a model (model risk), as well as potential financial consequences related to reputation risk
management. From 2013-2021, BNPP's main type of incidents involving operational risk were in "Clients,
products and business practices", which represents more than half of the total financial impact, largely as a result
of BNPP's agreement with US authorities regarding its review of certain dollar transactions concluded in June
2014. Process failures, including errors in execution or processing of transactions and external fraud are
respectively the second and third types of incidents with the highest financial impact. Between 2013 and 2021,
other types of risk in operational risk consisted of external fraud (14%), business disruption and systems failure
(3%), employment practices and workplace safety (2%), internal fraud (1%) and damage to physical assets (1%).

The risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to €63 billion at 31 December 2021, representing
9% of BNPP's total risk-weighted assets, compared to €71 billion at 31 December 2020.

BNPP's risk management policies, procedures and methods may leave it exposed to unidentified or unanticipated
risks, which could lead to material losses.

BNPP has devoted significant resources to developing its risk management policies, procedures and assessment
methods and intends to continue to do so in the future. Nonetheless, BNPP's risk management techniques and
strategies may not be fully effective in mitigating its risk exposure in all economic and market environments or
against all types of risk, particularly risks that BNPP may have failed to identify or anticipate. BNPP's ability to
assess the creditworthiness of its customers or to estimate the values of its assets may be impaired if, as a result
of market turmoil such as that experienced in recent years, the models and approaches it uses become less
predictive of future behaviour, valuations, assumptions or estimates. Some of BNPP's qualitative tools and
metrics for managing risk are based on its use of observed historical market behaviour. BNPP applies statistical
and other tools to these observations to arrive at quantifications of its risk exposures. The process BNPP uses to
estimate losses inherent in its credit exposure or estimate the value of certain assets requires difficult, subjective,
and complex judgments, including forecasts of economic conditions and how these economic predictions might
impair the ability of its borrowers to repay their loans or impact the value of assets, which may, during periods
of market disruption or substantial uncertainty, be incapable of accurate estimation and, in turn, impact the
reliability of the process. These tools and metrics may fail to predict future risk exposures, e.g., if BNPP does
not anticipate or correctly evaluate certain factors in its statistical models, or upon the occurrence of an event
deemed extremely unlikely by the tools and metrics. This would limit BNPP's ability to manage its risks. BNPP's
losses could therefore be significantly greater than the historical measures indicate. In addition, BNPP's
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quantified modelling does not take all risks into account. Its more qualitative approach to managing certain risks
could prove insufficient, exposing it to material unanticipated losses.

An interruption in or a breach of BNPP's information systems may cause substantial losses of client or customer
information, damage to BNPP's reputation and result in financial losses.

As with most other banks, BNPP relies heavily on communications and information systems to conduct its
business. This dependency has increased with the spread of mobile and online banking services, the development
of cloud computing and more generally the use of new technologies. Any failure or interruption or breach in
security of these systems could result in failures or interruptions in BNPP's customer relationship management,
general ledger, deposit, servicing and/or loan organization systems or could cause BNPP to incur significant
costs in recovering and verifying lost data. BNPP cannot provide assurances that such failures or interruptions
will not occur or, if they do occur, that they will be adequately addressed.

In addition, BNPP is subject to cybersecurity risk, or risk caused by a malicious and/or fraudulent act, committed
virtually, with the intention of manipulating information (confidential data, bank/insurance, technical or
strategic), processes and users, in order to cause material losses to BNPP's subsidiaries, employees, partners and
clients and/or for the purpose of extortion (ransomware). An increasing number of companies (including
financial institutions) have in recent years experienced intrusion attempts or even breaches of their information
technology security, some of which have involved sophisticated and highly targeted attacks on their computer
networks. Because the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access, disable or degrade service, steal
confidential data or sabotage information systems have become more sophisticated, change frequently and often
are not recognized until launched against a target, BNPP and its third party service providers may be unable to
anticipate these techniques or to implement in a timely manner effective and efficient countermeasures.

Any failures of or interruptions in BNPP's information systems or those of its providers and any subsequent
disclosure of confidential information related to any client, counterparty or employee of BNPP (or any other
person) or any intrusion or attack against its communication system could cause significant losses and have an
adverse effect on BNPP's reputation, financial condition and results of operations.

Regulatory authorities now consider cybersecurity as a growing systemic risk for the financial sector. They have
stressed the need for financial institutions to improve their resilience to cyber-attacks by strengthening internal
IT monitoring and control procedures. A successful cyber-attack could therefore expose BNPP to a regulatory
fine, especially should any personal data from customers be lost.

Moreover, BNPP is exposed to the risk of operational failure or interruption of a clearing agent, foreign markets,
clearing houses, custodian banks or any other financial intermediary or external service provider used by BNPP
to execute or facilitate financial transactions. Due to its increased interaction with clients, BNPP is also exposed
to the risk of operational malfunction of the latter's information systems. BNPP's communications and data
systems and those of its clients, service providers and counterparties may also be subject to malfunctions or
interruptions as a result of cyber-crime or cyber-terrorism. BNPP cannot guarantee that these malfunctions or
interruptions in its own systems or those of other parties will not occur or that in the event of a cyber-attack,
these malfunctions or interruptions will be adequately resolved. These operational malfunctions or interruptions
accounted for an average of 3% of operational risk losses over the 2013-2021 period.

Reputational risk could weigh on BNPP's financial strength and diminish the confidence of clients and
counterparties in it.

Considering the highly competitive environment in the financial services industry, a reputation for financial
strength and integrity is critical to BNPP's ability to attract and retain customers. BNPP's reputation could be
harmed if the means it uses to market and promote its products and services were deemed to be inconsistent with
client interests. BNPP's reputation could also be damaged if, as it increases its client base and the scale of its
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businesses, its overall procedures and controls dealing with conflicts of interest fail, or appear to fail, to address
them properly. Moreover, BNPP's reputation could be damaged by employee misconduct, fraud or misconduct
by financial industry participants to which BNPP is exposed, a restatement of, a decline in, or corrections to, its
results, as well as any adverse legal or regulatory action, such as the settlement BNPP entered into with the U.S.
authorities in 2014 for violations of U.S. laws and regulations regarding economic sanctions. The loss of business
that could result from damage to BNPP's reputation could have an adverse effect on its results of operations and
financial position.

Market risk

BNPP's market risk is the risk of loss of value caused by an unfavourable trend in prices or market parameters.
The parameters affecting BNPP's market risk include, but are not limited to, exchange rates, prices of securities
and commodities (whether the price is directly quoted or obtained by reference to a comparable asset), the price
of derivatives on an established market and all benchmarks that can be derived from market quotations such as
interest rates, credit spreads, volatility or implicit correlations or other similar parameters.

BNPP is exposed to market risk mainly through trading activities carried out by the business lines of its Corporate
& Institutional Banking ("CIB") operating division, primarily in Global Markets, which represented 14.8% of
BNPP's revenue in 2021. BNPP's trading activities are directly linked to economic relations with clients of these
business lines, or indirectly as part of its market making activity.

In addition, the market risk relating to BNPP's banking activities covers its interest rate and foreign exchange
rate risk in connection with its activities as a banking intermediary. The "operating" foreign exchange risk
exposure relates to net earnings generated by activities conducted in currencies other than the functional currency
of the entity concerned. The "structural”" foreign exchange risk position of an entity relates to investments in
currencies other than the functional currency. In measuring interest rate risk, BNPP defines the concepts of
standard rate risk and structural rate risk as the following: the standard rate risk corresponds to the general case,
namely when it is possible to define the most appropriate hedging strategy for a given transaction, and the
structural rate risk is the interest rate risk for equity and non-interest-bearing current accounts.

BNP Paribas' market risk based on its activities is measured by Value at Risk ("VaR"), and various other market
indicators (stressed VaR, Incremental Risk Charge, Comprehensive Risk Measure for credit correlation
portfolio) as well as by stress tests and sensitivity analysis compared with market limits.

The risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to €25 billion at 31 December 2021, representing
3% of BNPP's total risk-weighted assets, compared to €25 billion at 31 December 2020 representing 4% of
BNPP's total risk-weighted assets.

BNPP may incur significant losses on its trading and investment activities due to market fluctuations and
volatility.

BNPP maintains trading and investment positions in the debt, currency, commodity and equity markets and in
unlisted securities, real estate and other asset classes, including through derivative contracts. These positions
could be adversely affected by extreme volatility in these markets, i.e., the degree to which prices fluctuate over
a particular period in a particular market, regardless of market levels. Moreover, volatility trends that prove
substantially different from BNPP's expectations may lead to losses relating to a broad range of other products
that BNPP uses, including swaps, forward and future contracts, options and structured products.

To the extent that BNPP owns assets, or has net long positions, in any of those markets, a market downturn could
result in losses from a decline in the value of its positions. Conversely, to the extent that BNPP has sold assets
that it does not own, or has net short positions in any of those markets, a market upturn could, in spite of the
existing limitation of risks and control systems, expose BNPP to potentially substantial losses as it attempts to
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cover its net short positions by acquiring assets in a rising market. BNPP may from time to time hold a long
position in one asset and a short position in another, in order to hedge transactions with clients and/or in view of
benefiting from changes in the relative value of the two assets. If, however, the relative value of the two assets
changes in a direction or manner that BNPP did not anticipate or against which its positions are not hedged, it
might realize a loss on those paired positions. Such losses, if significant, could adversely affect BNPP's results
and financial condition. In addition, BNPP's hedging strategies may not be suitable for certain market conditions.

If any of the variety of instruments and strategies that the Group uses to hedge its exposure to various types of
risk in its businesses is not effective, BNPP may incur losses. Many of its strategies are based on historical
trading patterns and correlations. For example, if BNPP holds a long position in an asset, it may hedge that
position by taking a short position in another asset where the short position has historically moved in a direction
that would offset a change in the value of the long position. However, the hedge may only be partial, or the
strategies used may not protect against all future risks or may not be fully effective in mitigating BNPP's risk
exposure in all market environments or against all types of risk in the future. Unexpected market developments
may also reduce the effectiveness of BNPP's hedging strategies, as shown by the losses incurred by BNPP's
equity derivatives activities in the first quarter of 2020, due in particular to the market environment and the ECB
decisions on dividend distributions. In addition, the manner in which gains and losses resulting from certain
ineffective hedges are recorded may result in additional volatility in BNPP's reported earnings.

BNPP uses a VaR model to quantify its exposure to potential losses from market risks, and also performs stress
testing with a view to quantifying its potential exposure in extreme scenarios (see Chapter 5.7 (Market
Risk - Market Risk Stress Testing Framework) in the BNPP 2021 Universal Registration Document (in English)).
However, these techniques rely on statistical methodologies based on historical observations, which may turn
out to be unreliable predictors of future market conditions. Accordingly, BNPP's exposure to market risk in
extreme scenarios could be greater than the exposures predicted by its quantification techniques.

BNPP may generate lower revenues from commission and fee based businesses during market downturns and
declines in activity.

Commissions represented 23% of BNPP's total revenues in 2021. Financial and economic conditions affect the
number and size of transactions for which BNPP provides securities underwriting, financial advisory and other
investment banking services. These revenues, which include fees from these services, are directly related to the
number and size of the transactions in which BNPP participates and can thus be significantly affected by
economic or financial changes that are unfavourable to its Investment Banking business and clients. In addition,
because the fees that BNPP charges for managing its clients' portfolios are in many cases based on the value or
performance of those portfolios, a market downturn that reduces the value of its clients' portfolios or increases
the amount of withdrawals would reduce the revenues it receives from its asset management, equity derivatives
and private banking businesses. Independently of market changes, the development of index portfolios or below-
market performance by BNPP's mutual funds may lead to reduced revenues from BNPP's asset management
business, and increased withdrawals and reduced inflows for these vehicles. A reduced level of revenues from
the abovementioned commission and fee-based businesses may have a material adverse impact on BNPP's
financial results.

Adjustments to the carrying value of BNPP's securities and derivatives portfolios and BNPP's own debt could

have an adverse effect on its net income and shareholders' equity.

The carrying value of BNPP's securities and derivatives portfolios and certain other assets, as well as its own
debt, in its balance sheet is adjusted as of each financial statement date. As at 31 December 2021, on the assets
side of BNPP's balance sheet, financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, derivative financial
instruments used for hedging purposes and financial assets at fair value through shareholders' equity amounted
to €683 billion, €9 billion and €46 billion respectively. In the liabilities column, financial instruments at fair
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value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes amounted to €714
billion and €10 billion, respectively, at 31 December 2021. Most of the adjustments are made on the basis of
changes in fair value of BNPP's assets or debt during an accounting period, with the changes recorded either in
the income statement or directly in shareholders' equity. Changes that are recorded in the income statement, to
the extent not offset by opposite changes in the value of other assets, affect BNPP's consolidated revenues and,
as a result, its net income. A downward adjustment of the fair value of BNPP's securities and derivatives
portfolios may lead to reduced shareholders' equity and, to the extent not offset by opposite changes in the value
of BNPP's liabilities, BNPP's capital adequacy ratios may also be lowered. The fact that fair value adjustments
are recorded in one accounting period does not mean that further adjustments will not be needed in subsequent
periods.

Liquidity and funding risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that BNPP will not be able to honour its commitments or unwind or offset a position
due to market conditions or specific factors within a specified period of time and at a reasonable cost. It reflects
the risk of not being able to cope with net cash outflows, including collateral requirements, over short- to long-
term horizons. The Group's specific risk can be assessed through its short-term liquidity ratio ("Liquidity
Coverage Ratio" or "LCR"), which analyses the hedging of net cash outflows during a thirty-day stress period.
The monthly average in 2021 of the Group's LCR was 143%. The liquidity reserve was €452 billion at the end
of 2021.

BNPP's access to and cost of funding could be adversely affected by a resurgence of financial crises, worsening
economic conditions, rating downgrades, increases in sovereign credit spreads or other factors.

The financial crisis, the eurozone sovereign debt crisis as well as the general macroeconomic environment at
times adversely affected the availability and cost of funding for European banks around ten years ago. This was
due to several factors, including a sharp increase in the perception of bank credit risk due to exposure to sovereign
debt in particular, credit rating downgrades of sovereigns and of banks, and debt market speculation. Many
European banks, including BNPP, at various points during these periods experienced restricted access to
wholesale debt markets for institutional investors and to the interbank market, as well as a general increase in
their cost of funding. In the context of the health crisis, the European Central Bank ("ECB") also set up
refinancing facilities designed to foster the banks' financing of the economy (targeted longer-term refinancing
options or "TLTRO"), on which BNPP has drawn. Such adverse credit market conditions may reappear in the
event of prolonged stagnation of growth, deflation, resurgence of the financial crisis, another sovereign debt
crisis or new forms of financial crises, factors relating to the financial industry or the economy in general
(including the economic consequences of the health crisis) or to BNPP in particular. In this case, the effect on
the liquidity of the European financial sector in general or BNPP in particular could be materially adverse and
have a negative impact on BNPP's results of operations and financial condition.

Protracted market declines can reduce BNPP's liquidity, making it harder to sell assets and possibly leading to
material losses. Accordingly, BNPP must ensure that its assets and liabilities properly match in order to avoid

exposure to losses.

In some of BNPP's businesses, particularly Global Markets (which represented 14.8% of BNPP's revenue in
2021) and Asset/Liability Management, protracted market movements, particularly asset price declines, can
reduce the level of activity in the market or reduce market liquidity. These developments can lead to material
losses if BNPP cannot close out deteriorating positions in a timely way. This is particularly true for assets that
are intrinsically illiquid. Assets that are not traded on stock exchanges or other public trading markets, such as
certain derivative contracts between financial institutions, may have values that BNPP calculates using models
rather than publicly quoted prices. Monitoring the deterioration of prices of assets like these is difficult and could
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lead to significant unanticipated losses (see Chapter 5.8 (Liquidity risk - stress tests and liquidity reserve) in the
BNPP 2021 Universal Registration Document (in English)).

BNPP is exposed to the risk that the maturity, interest rate or currencies of its assets might not match those of
its liabilities. The timing of payments on certain of BNPP's assets is uncertain, and if BNPP receives lower
revenues than expected at a given time, it might require additional market funding in order to meet its obligations
on its liabilities. While BNPP imposes strict limits on the gaps between its assets and its liabilities as part of its
risk management procedures, it cannot be certain that these limits will be fully effective to eliminate potential
losses arising from asset and liability mismatches.

Any downgrade of BNPP's credit ratings could weigh heavily on the profitability of BNPP.

Credit ratings have a significant impact on BNPP's liquidity. On 24 June 2021, Standard & Poor's confirmed the
long-term rating of BNPP's deposits and senior preferred debt rating as A+, confirmed its short-term rating as
A-1 and revised the outlook from negative to stable. On 23 September 2021, Fitch maintained its long-term
deposits and senior preferred debt ratings for BNPP at AA- and F1+ and revised its outlook to stable. On 4
December 2020, Moody's confirmed its long-term deposits and senior preferred debt rating as Aa3, and
confirmed its short-term rating as P-1, with a stable outlook. On 29 June 2021, DBRS confirmed BNPP's senior
preferred debt rating as AA (low), as well as its short-term rating as R-1(middle) with a stable outlook. A
downgrade in BNPP's credit rating could affect the liquidity and competitive position of BNPP. It could also
increase BNPP's borrowing costs, limit access to the capital markets or trigger additional obligations under its
covered bonds or under certain bilateral provisions in some trading, derivative or collateralised financing
contacts.

In addition, BNPP's cost of obtaining long term unsecured funding from market investors is also directly related
to its credit spreads, which in turn depend to a certain extent on its credit ratings. Increases in credit spreads can
significantly increase BNPP's cost of funding. Changes in credit spreads are continuous, market driven, and
subject at times to unpredictable and highly volatile movements. Credit spreads are also influenced by market
perceptions of BNPP's creditworthiness. Furthermore, credit spreads may be influenced by movements in the
cost to purchasers of credit default swaps referenced to BNPP's debt obligations, which are influenced both by
the credit quality of those obligations, and by a number of market factors that are beyond the control of BNPP.

Risks related to the macroeconomic and market environment

Adverse economic and financial conditions have in the past had and may in the future have an impact on BNPP
and the markets in which it operates.

BNPP's business is sensitive to changes in the financial markets and more generally to economic conditions in
France (32% of BNPP's revenues at 31 December 2021), other countries in Europe (45% of BNPP's revenues at
31 December 2021) and the rest of the world (23% of BNPP's revenues at 31 December 2021, including 5%
related to activities of Bank of the West in the United States). A deterioration in economic conditions in the
markets in the countries where BNPP operates and in the economic environment could in the future have, some
or all of the following impacts:

. Adverse economic conditions affecting the business and operations of BNPP's customers, reducing
credit demand and trading volume and resulting in an increased rate of default on loans and other
receivables, in part as a result of the deterioration of the financial capacity of companies and
households;

. A decline in market prices of bonds, equities and commodities affecting the businesses of BNPP,
including in particular trading, investment banking and asset management revenues;
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. Macroeconomic policies adopted in response to actual or anticipated economic conditions having
unintended effects, and are likely to impact market parameters such as interest rates and foreign
exchange rates, which in turn can affect BNPP's businesses that are most exposed to market risk;

. Perceived favourable economic conditions generally or in specific business sectors resulting in asset
price bubbles, which could in turn exacerbate the impact of corrections when conditions become less
favourable;

. A significant economic disruption (such as the global financial crisis of 2008, the European sovereign

debt crisis of 2011 or the COVID-19 pandemic since 2020) having a substantial impact on all of BNPP's
activities, particularly if the disruption is characterised by an absence of market liquidity that makes it
difficult to sell certain categories of assets at their estimated market value or at all. These disruptions
could also lead to a decline in transaction commissions and consumer loans; and

. A significant deterioration of market and economic conditions resulting from, among other things,
adverse political and geopolitical events such as natural disasters, geopolitical tensions, health risks
such as the COVID-19 health crisis and its aftermath, the fear or recurrence of new epidemics or
pandemics, acts of terrorism, societal unrest, cyber-attacks, military conflicts or threats thereof and
related risks (in particular, the ongoing war in Ukraine and related sanctions), may affect the operating
environment for BNPP episodically or for extended periods.

Since 2020, economies and financial markets have been, and should continue in 2022 to be, particularly sensitive
to a number of factors, including the evolution of the COVID-19 pandemic and its economic consequences, in
particular, the increase in sovereign and corporate debt that pre-dated the health crisis and has been aggravated
by it, as well as the strength and staying power of the economic recovery following the crisis' peak, which is
itself dependent on a number of factors (see risk factor 7.1 "Epidemics and pandemics, including the ongoing
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and their economic consequences may adversely affect the Group's business,
operations, results and financial condition" below).

In addition, numerous factors are currently affecting or may affect the economy and the financial markets in the
coming months or years, in particular geopolitical tensions (notably in Eastern Europe, and in particular, the
invasion of Ukraine, as discussed below), political risks directly affecting Europe, general trends in consumer
and commodity prices characterised by high inflation, corresponding trends in wages, supply chain pressures,
the changing economic situation in certain countries or regions that contribute to overall global economic growth,
tensions around international trade and, as discussed below, the evolution of monetary policy and interest rates
(these elements being affected by the above-mentioned factors).

The invasion of Ukraine and the ongoing war, as well as the reaction of the international community, have been,
continue to be, and could continue to be a source of instability for BNPP, depressing stock market indices,
inflating commodity prices (notably oil, gas and agricultural products, such as wheat), aggravating supply chain
disruption and causing an increase in production costs and inflation more generally. These events are expected
to have economic and financial repercussions that will increase inflation and decrease global growth and BNPP
and its clients could be adversely affected as a result.

More generally, the volatility of financial markets could adversely affect BNPP's trading and investment
positions in the debt, currency, commodity and equity markets, as well as its positions in other investments. For
reference, Global Markets accounted for 14.8% of BNPP's revenues in 2021. Severe market disruptions and
extreme market volatility have occurred often in recent years and may occur again in the future, which could
result in significant losses for BNPP. Such losses may extend to a broad range of trading and hedging products,
including swaps, forward and future contracts, options and structured products. The volatility of financial
markets makes it difficult to predict trends and implement effective trading strategies.
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It is difficult to predict economic or market downturns or other market disruptions, and which markets will be
most significantly impacted. If economic or market conditions in France or elsewhere in Europe, or global
markets more generally, were to deteriorate or become more volatile, BNPP's operations could be disrupted, and
its business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

Significant interest rate changes could adversely affect BNPP's revenues or profitability. The prolonged low
interest rate environment carries inherent systemic risks, which could impact BNPP's income or profitability,
and any exit from such environment would also carry risks.

The net interest income recorded by BNPP during any given period significantly affects its overall revenues and
profitability for that period. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond BNPP's control, such as
the rate of inflation, country-specific monetary policies and certain decisions concerning regulatory capital.
Changes in market interest rates could affect the interest rates charged on interest-earning assets differently from
the interest rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Any adverse change in the yield curve could cause a decline
in net interest income generated by BNPP's lending activities. In addition, increases in the interest rates at which
BNPP's short-term funding is available and maturity mismatches may adversely affect its profitability.

Since the 2008-2009 financial crisis, global markets have been characterised by an extended period of low
interest rates. This low interest rate environment has weighed significantly on banks' profitability, including that
of BNPP, for a number of years. The relative impact on banks depends, in particular, on the proportion of their
revenues represented by net interest income; this proportion was 46% for BNPP in 2021 (see the consolidated
income statement for 2021 and the IFRS 5 reconciliation table in Chapter 3 of the BNPP 2021 Universal
Registration Document (in English)). The situation has worsened since 2019 with the introduction of negative
rates, particularly on placements by European banks with the ECB. If the low or even negative, interest rate
environment continues, despite higher inflation and the central banks' reactions to it, BNPP's profitability could
be affected or even decline. In this respect, central banks have — in 2020 and again in 2021 — increased their
monetary support in the face of the recession caused by the health crisis of 2020 and 2021. A reduction in these
accommodative policies by central banks, particularly in response to increasing inflation, has begun to be
implemented by the U.S. Federal Reserve, the Bank of England and the ECB. For example, on 16 March 2022,
the U.S. Federal Reserve decided to raise its main benchmark interest rate by 0.25% and now plans to reduce its
balance sheet by USD 95 billion per month. In addition, the ECB has ended its emergency pandemic purchase
programme ("EPPP") in March 2022 and indicated that will cease its targeted longer-term refinancing operations
("TLTRO 3") by June 2022. However, despite the increasing level of inflation, the implementation of monetary
tightening policies by the ECB could be delayed given the uncertainty resulting from the current economic
situation.

During periods of low interest rates, interest rate spreads tend to tighten, and BNPP may be unable to lower
interest rates on deposits sufficiently to offset reduced income from lending at lower interest rates. Net interest
income amounted to €21,312 million in 2020 and €21,209 million in 2021, respectively. On an indicative basis,
over one-, two- and three-year timeframes, the sensitivity of revenues at 31 December 2021 to a parallel,
instantaneous and definitive increase in market rates of +50 basis points (+0.5%) across all currencies had an
impact of +€127 million, +€537 million and +€694 million, respectively, or +0.3%, +1.2% and +1.5% of BNPP's
net banking income. The negative interest rate environment in which banks are charged for cash deposited with
central banks, whereas banks typically do not charge clients for deposits, weighs significantly on banks' margins.
In addition, BNPP has been facing and may continue to face an increase in early repayment and refinancing of
mortgages and other fixed rate consumer and corporate loans as clients take advantage of lower borrowing costs.
This, along with the issuance of new loans at the low prevailing market interest rates, has resulted and may
continue to result in a decrease in the average interest rate of BNPP's portfolio of loans thereby causing a decline
in its net interest income from lending activities. Moreover, an environment of persistently low interest rates can
also have the effect of flattening the yield curve in the market more generally, which could reduce the premium
generated by BNPP from its funding activities. A flattening yield curve can also influence financial institutions
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to engage in riskier activities in an effort to earn the desired level of returns, which can increase overall market
risk and volatility. Low interest rates may also affect the profitability and even the solvency of the insurance
activities of French banks, including BNPP, particularly due to the prevalence in the market of life insurance
contracts backed by euro-denominated funds, which may not be able to generate sufficient returns to be
competitive with other investment products. Low interest rates may also adversely affect commissions charged
by BNPP's asset management subsidiaries on money market and other fixed income products. A reduction in
credit spreads and decline in retail banking income resulting from lower portfolio interest rates may adversely
affect the profitability of BNPP's retail banking operations.

On the other hand, the end of a period of prolonged low interest rates, in particular due to the normalisation and
tightening of monetary policy (as already initiated by some central banks and expected by the market) following
the long period of accommodative monetary policies, or more generally, an economic recovery, or inflation at a
higher level or lasting longer than expected by central banks, would also carry risks. If market interest rates were
to rise generally, a portfolio featuring significant amounts of lower interest loans and fixed income assets would
be expected to decline in value. If BNPP's hedging strategies are ineffective or provide only a partial hedge
against such a change in value, BNPP could incur losses. Any sharper or more rapid than expected tightening
could have a negative impact on the economic recovery, and consequently the envisaged tightening of monetary
policy could be delayed in some currency areas, such as the euro-zone, to reduce the risk of recession caused by
the economic situation and the war in Ukraine. On the lending side, it could in particular cause stress in loan and
bond portfolios, possibly leading to an increase in non-performing exposures and defaults. More generally, the
reduction of accommodative monetary policies (already initiated by some central banks after a period of
substantial liquidity infusions from asset purchases) by central banks may, even if implemented progressively,
lead to severe corrections in certain markets or asset classes (e.g. non-investment grade corporate and sovereign
borrowers, certain sectors of equities and real estate) that particularly benefitted (including from very low risk
premia as compared to historical averages) from the prolonged low interest rate and high liquidity environment,
and such corrections could potentially be contagious to financial markets generally, including through
substantially increased volatility.

Given the global scope of its activities, BNPP is exposed to country risk and to changes in the political,
macroeconomic or financial contexts of a region or country.

BNPP is subject to country risk, meaning the risk that economic, financial, political or social conditions in a
given foreign country in which it operates could adversely affect BNPP's operations, its results, its financial
condition or its business. BNPP monitors country risk and takes it into account in the fair value adjustments and
cost of risk recorded in its financial statements. However, a significant change in political or macroeconomic
environments may require it to record additional charges or to incur losses beyond the amounts previously
written down in its financial statements. In addition, factors specific to a country or region in which BNPP
operates could make it difficult for it to carry out its business and lead to losses or impairment of assets.

At 31 December 2021, BNPP's loan portfolio consisted of receivables from borrowers located in France (32%),
Belgium and Luxembourg (16%), Italy (9%), other European countries (19%), North America, including Bank
of the West (13%), Asia (6%) and the rest of the world (5%). Adverse conditions that particularly affect these
countries and regions would have a significant impact on BNPP. In addition, BNPP has significant exposures in
countries outside the OECD, which are subject to risks that include political instability, unpredictable regulation
and taxation, expropriation and other risks that are less present in more developed economies.

In addition, BNPP is present in Ukraine, a country invaded in February 2022 and which has been a war zone
since then, through its subsidiary UkrSibbank in which it holds a 60% stake alongside the European Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (40%). At 31 December 2021, UkrSibbank’s balance sheet totaled
approximately 0.08% of that of BNPP. The total equity of the subsidiary represented approximately 0.15% of
consolidated equity of BNPP's share. At 31 December 2021, BNPP generated less than 0.5% of its pre-tax profit
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in Ukraine (see Chapter 8.6 (Information on locations and businesses in 2021) of the BNPP 2021 Universal
Registration Document (in English)). BNPP's total gross on- and off-balance sheet exposures to Ukraine (which
are concentrated on UkrSibbank) represented less than 0.09% of BNPP's gross exposures. The war in Ukraine
has profoundly changed the continuing operations of local banks, which — since 24 February 2022 — are focused
on the provision of payment instruments and services critical to the economy within the framework of the new
regulations introduced by the Ukrainian central bank. In this context, BNPP has estimated that as of 31 March
2022, it exerts significant influence over UkrSibbank within the meaning of the applicable accounting standards.
Consequently, in accordance with applicable accounting standards, BNPP has recorded, as of 31 March 2022, a
90% impairment of its shares in UkrSibbank amounting to EUR -159 million, as well as a loss of EUR 274
million relating to the recycling of the conversion reserve.

With regard to Russia, which is subject to severe economic sanctions imposed notably by the European Union,
the United States and the United Kingdom, gross on- and off- balance sheet exposures represented less than
0.07% of BNPP's gross exposures. The amount of net residual exposures, both in Russia and Ukraine, is more
limited given the way in which BNPP operates in these two markets and how it secures its activities, with
guarantees and collateral. In addition, various customers or counterparties of BNPP, in particular financial
institutions and corporates, conduct business in these countries or have exposure to borrowers in these countries
or have significant suppliers in those countries and could see their financial position weakened by the conflict
and its consequences, particularly due to the cessation of their business in Ukraine and/or Russia or the reduction
or termination (voluntarily or involuntarily) of their supplies from these countries. BNPP is closely monitoring
developments in the situation in conjunction with the authorities concerned and, in particular, the reactions of
the international community with regard to economic sanctions.

Regulatory Risks

Laws and regulations adopted in recent years, as well as current and future legislative and regulatory
developments, may significantly impact BNPP and the financial and economic environment in which it operates.

Laws and regulations have been enacted in the past few years, in particular in France, Europe and the
United States, with a view to introducing a number of changes, some permanent, in the financial environment.
The impact of the measures has changed substantially the environment in which BNPP and other financial
institutions operate.

The measures that have been adopted include:

. more stringent capital and liquidity requirements (particularly for global systemically important banks
such as BNPP), as well as changes to the risk-weighting methodologies and the methods of using
internal models that have led, could have led or could lead to increased capital requirements;

. restrictions on certain types of activities considered as speculative undertaken by commercial banks
that are prohibited or need to be ring fenced in subsidiaries (particularly proprietary trading) and are
subject to prudential requirements and autonomous funding;

. prohibitions or restrictions on fees for certain types of financial products or activities;

. enhanced recovery and resolution regimes, in particular the Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive
of 15 May 2014 (the "BRRD"), as amended from time to time, which strengthens powers to prevent
and resolve banking crises in order to ensure that losses are borne largely by the creditors and
shareholders of the banks and in order to keep the costs incurred by taxpayers to a minimum;

. the establishment of the national resolution funds by the BRRD and the creation of the Single
Resolution Board (the "SRB") by the European Parliament and Council of the European Union in a
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resolution dated 15 July 2014 (the "SRM Regulation"), as amended from time to time, which can
initiate resolution proceedings for banking institutions such as BNPP, and the Single Resolution Fund
(the "SRF"), the financing of which by BNPP (up to its annual contribution) can be significant;

the establishment of national deposit guarantee schemes and a proposed European deposit guarantee
scheme or deposit insurance which will gradually cover all or part of the guarantee schemes of
participating countries;

increased internal control and reporting requirements with respect to certain activities;

the implementation of regulatory stress tests (including in relation to climate change risk) which could
lead to additional regulatory capital requirements (see Chapter 5.7 (Market Risk Stress Testing
Framework) in the BNPP 2021 Universal Registration Document (in English));

greater powers granted to the relevant authorities to combat money laundering and terrorism financing;

more stringent governance and conduct of business rules and restrictions and increased taxes on
employee compensation over specified levels;

measures to improve the transparency, efficiency and integrity of financial markets and in particular
the regulation of high frequency trading, more extensive market abuse regulations, increased regulation
of certain types of financial products including mandatory reporting of derivative and securities
financing transactions, requirements either to mandatorily clear, or otherwise mitigate risks in relation
to, OTC derivative transactions (including through posting of collateral in respect of non-centrally
cleared derivatives);

the taxation of financial transactions;
enhanced protection of personal data and cybersecurity requirements;

enhanced disclosure requirements, including through the introduction of new disclosure requirements
on (i) how banking groups providing asset management services, such as BNPP, integrate sustainability
risks, negative impacts, sustainable investment objectives or the promotion of environmental or social
attributes when making investment decisions, and (ii) how and to what extent banking groups
themselves finance or develop economic activities that can be considered environmentally sustainable
as defined in the European Taxonomys;

the introduction of new requirements for the integration of climate risk into the risk measurement and
management systems of banking groups, including through the publication of proposals for banks to
manage and disclose climate risk; and

strengthening the powers of supervisory bodies, such as the French Prudential Supervision and
Resolution Authority (the "ACPR") and the creation of new authorities, including the adoption of the
Single Resolution Mechanism (the "SRM") in October 2013, pursuant to which BNPP is under the
direct supervision of the ECB.

These measures may have a significant adverse impact. For example, the introduction of a required contribution
to the Single Resolution Fund resulted in a substantial additional expense for BNPP (BNPP made a €967 million
contribution to the SRF in 2021).

Measures relating to the banking sector could be further amended, expanded or strengthened. Moreover,

additional measures could be adopted in other areas. It is impossible to predict what additional measures will be

adopted or what their exact content will be, and, given the complexity of the issues and the uncertainty
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surrounding them, to determine their impact on BNPP. The effect of these measures, whether already adopted
or that may be adopted in the future, has been and could continue to be a decrease in BNPP's ability to allocate
its capital and capital resources to financing, limit its ability to diversify risks, reduce the availability of certain
financing and liquidity resources, increase the cost of financing, increase the cost of compliance, increase the
cost or reduce the demand for the products and services offered by BNPP, require BNPP to proceed with internal
reorganizations, structural changes or reallocations, affect the ability of BNPP to carry on certain activities or to
attract and/or retain talent and, more generally, affect its competitiveness and profitability, which could have an
impact on its activities, financial condition and operating results. As a recent example, on 27 October 2021 the
European Commission presented a legislative package to finalise the implementation within the European Union
of the Basel III agreement adopted by the Group of Central Bank Governors and Heads of Supervision
("GHOS") on 7 December 2017. This legislative package will in the next stage be discussed by the European
Parliament and Council with a view to agreeing on a final text. In the impact assessment accompanying the
legislative package, the European Commission estimated, on the basis of a European Banking Authority
("EBA") impact study dated December 2020 and of additional European Commission estimates for some EU-
specific adjustments, that the implementation of the final Basel III standards may result in an average increase
in total minimum capital requirements ranging between 6.4% and 8.4% after a full implementation of the reform.
On the basis of the EBA's updated impact analysis taking into account the combined effect of the reform and the
potential consequences of the health crisis, the European Commission opted to apply the new capital
requirements to EU banks as of 1 January 2025, with a phase-in period during which the requirements will be
gradually increased through 2030 (and 2032 for certain requirements). On this basis, BNPP has indicated a
potential increase of 8% in its risk-weighted assets at the date of the first application announced for 1 January
2025, which implies a potential 8% increase in total minimum capital requirements resulting from the finalization
of Basel III (fully loaded). This estimate is subject to change depending on potential changes in the draft text, in
BNPP and in the macroeconomic context.

BNPP is subject to extensive and evolving regulatory regimes in the jurisdictions in which it operates. BNPP
faces the risk of changes in legislation or regulation in all of the countries in which it operates, including, but
not limited to, the following:

. monetary, liquidity, interest rate and other policies of central banks and regulatory authorities;

. changes in government or regulatory policy that may significantly influence investor decisions, in
particular in the markets in which BNPP operates;

. changes in regulatory requirements applicable to the financial industry, such as rules relating to
applicable governance, remunerations, capital adequacy and liquidity frameworks, restrictions on
activities considered as speculative and recovery and resolution frameworks;

. changes in securities regulations as well as in financial reporting, disclosure and market abuse
regulations;
. changes in the regulation of certain types of transactions and investments, such as derivatives and

securities financing transactions and money market funds;

. changes in the regulation of market infrastructures, such as trading venues, central counterparties,
central securities depositories, and payment and settlement systems;

. changes in the regulation of payment services, crowdfunding and fintech;
. changes in the regulation of protection of personal data and cybersecurity;
. changes in tax legislation or the application thereof;
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. changes in accounting norms;
. changes in rules and procedures relating to internal controls, risk management and compliance; and
. expropriation, nationalization, price controls, exchange controls, confiscation of assets and changes in

legislation relating to foreign ownership.

These changes, the scope and implications of which are highly unpredictable, could substantially affect BNPP
and have an adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations. Certain reforms not
directed specifically at financial institutions, such as measures relating to the funds industry or promoting
technological innovation (such as open data projects), could facilitate the entry of new players in the financial
services sector or otherwise affect BNPP's business model, competitiveness and profitability, which could in
turn affect its financial condition and results of operations.

Finally, the accommodative policies implemented temporarily by national and European regulatory authorities
in the context of the health crisis have either lapsed or are expected to lapse gradually, although their remaining
course is not currently certain (see risk factor 7.1 "Epidemics and pandemics, including the ongoing coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic and their economic consequences may adversely affect BNPP's business, operations,
results and financial condition" below).

BNPP may incur substantial fines and other administrative and criminal penalties for non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and may also incur losses in related (or unrelated) litigation with private
parties.

BNPP is exposed to regulatory compliance risk, i.e. the failure to comply fully with the laws, regulations, codes
of conduct, professional norms or recommendations applicable to the financial services industry. This risk is
exacerbated by the adoption by different countries of multiple and occasionally diverging and even conflicting
legal or regulatory requirements. Besides damage to BNPP's reputation and private rights of action (including
class actions), non-compliance could lead to material legal proceedings, fines and expenses (including fines and
expenses in excess of recorded provisions), public reprimand, enforced suspension of operations or, in extreme
cases, withdrawal by the authorities of operating licenses. This risk is further exacerbated by continuously
increasing regulatory scrutiny of financial institutions as well as substantial increases in the quantum of
applicable fines and penalties. Moreover, litigation by private parties against financial institutions has
substantially increased in recent years. Accordingly, BNPP faces significant legal risk in its operations, and the
volume and amount of damages claimed in litigation, regulatory proceedings and other adversarial proceedings
against financial services firms have substantially increased in recent years and may increase further. BNPP may
record provisions in this respect as indicated in Note 4.m "Provisions for contingencies and charges" to the
consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2021, which are set out in the BNPP 2021
Universal Registration Document (in English).

In this respect, on 30 June 2014 BNPP entered into a series of agreements with, and was the subject of several
orders issued by, U.S. federal and New York state government agencies and regulatory authorities in settlement
of investigations into violations of U.S. laws and regulations regarding economic sanctions. The fines and
penalties imposed on BNPP as part of this settlement included, among other things, the payment of monetary
penalties amounting in the aggregate to $8.97 billion (€6.6 billion) and guilty pleas by BNP Paribas S.A., the
parent company of BNPP, to charges of having violated U.S. federal criminal law and New York State criminal
law. Following this settlement, BNPP remains subject to increased scrutiny by regulatory authorities (including
via the presence of an independent consultant within BNPP) who are monitoring its compliance with a
remediation plan agreed with them.

BNPP is currently involved in various litigations and investigations, as summarised in Note 7.b "Contingent
liabilities: legal proceedings and arbitration" to the consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31
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December 2021, which are set out in the BNPP 2021 Universal Registration Document (in English). It may
become involved in further such matters at any point. No assurance can be given that an adverse outcome in one
or more of such matters would not have a material adverse effect on BNPP's operating results for any particular
period.

BNPP could experience an unfavourable change in circumstances, causing it to become subject to a resolution
proceeding: holders of securities of BNPP could suffer losses as a result.

The BRRD, the SRM Regulation and the Ordinance of 20 August 2015, each as amended from time to time,
confer upon the ACPR or the SRB the power to commence resolution proceedings for a banking institution, such
as BNPP, with a view to ensuring the continuity of critical functions, avoiding the risks of contagion and
recapitalizing or restoring the viability of the institution. These powers are to be implemented so that, subject to
certain exceptions, losses are borne first by shareholders, then by holders of additional capital instruments
qualifying as tier 1 and tier 2 (such as subordinated bonds), then by the holders of non-preferred senior debt and
finally by the holders of senior preferred debt, all in accordance with the order of their claims in normal
insolvency proceedings. For reference, BNPP's medium- to long-term wholesale financing at 31 December 2021
consisted of the following: €10 billion of hybrid Tier 1 debt, €23 billion of Tier 2 subordinated debt, €70 billion
of senior unsecured non-preferred debt, €69 billion of senior unsecured preferred debt and €17 billion of senior
secured debt.

Resolution authorities have broad powers to implement resolution measures with respect to institutions and
groups subject to resolution proceedings, which may include (without limitation): the total or partial sale of the
institution's business to a third party or a bridge institution, the separation of assets, the replacement or
substitution of the institution as obligor in respect of debt instruments, the full or partial write down of capital
instruments, the dilution of capital instruments through the issuance of new equity, the full or partial write down
or conversion into equity of debt instruments, modifications to the terms of debt instruments (including altering
the maturity and/or the amount of interest payable and/or imposing a temporary suspension on payments),
discontinuing the listing and admission to trading of financial instruments, the dismissal of managers or the
appointment of a special manager (administrateur spécial).

Certain powers, including the full or partial write down of capital instruments, the dilution of capital instruments
through the issuance of new equity, the full or partial write down or conversion into equity of additional capital
instruments qualifying as tier 1 and tier 2 (such as subordinated bonds), can also be exercised as a precautionary
measure, outside of resolution proceedings and/or pursuant to the European Commission's State Aid framework
if the institution requires exceptional public financial support.

The implementation of these tools and powers with respect to BNPP may result in significant structural changes
to BNPP (including as a result of asset or business sales or the creation of bridge institutions) and in a partial or
total write down, modification or variation of claims of shareholders and creditors. Such powers may also result,
after any transfer of all or part of BNPP's business or separation of any of its assets, in the holders of securities
(even in the absence of any such write down or conversion) being left as the creditors of BNPP whose remaining
business or assets are insufficient to support the claims of all or any of the creditors of BNPP.

Risks related to BNPP's growth in its current environment

Epidemics and pandemics, including the ongoing coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and their economic

consequences may adversely affect BNPP's business, operations, results and financial condition.

A global pandemic linked to a novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) has severely disrupted economies and
financial markets worldwide since 2020. The introduction of lockdown measures and other restrictions initially
caused economies in many regions to contract, trade to decline, production capacity to decrease, growth forecasts
to be cut and supply chains to be disrupted. In a second phase, the rollout of vaccination campaigns and the
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adaptation of economic actors allowed the gradual adaptation of these measures and restrictions, leading to a
recovery in economic activity. As a result, various growth forecasts converge on a strong economic recovery.
For example, according to the January 2022 estimates and projections of the International Monetary Fund (the
"IMF"), world economic growth is expected to be 5.9 % in 2021 and 4.4 % in 2022.

Nevertheless, uncertainties remain as to the strength and sustainability of the recovery, both in terms of the
public health situation (e.g., the appearance of new strains of the virus) and the economy, which could lead to
doubts as to the extent and durability of the recovery. In this respect, the outlook for 2022 was lowered for both
emerging and developing countries, as well as for advanced countries, compared to the IMF projections
published in October 2021. Various complicating factors will affect the trajectory of economic recovery.
International supply chains, which had been strained severely by pandemic-related mobility restrictions, remain
heavily disrupted, generating shortages of certain consumer goods (such as a dearth of semiconductors causing
delays in the production of telephones and automobiles) and oil and gas supply and labour market constraints,
having both specific (for example, raw materials price increases) and general (inflation rate) effects on prices.

Further, while various governments and central banks implemented and supplemented measures to support the
economy and its recovery (to mitigate the adverse economic and market consequences of the pandemic) there
can be no assurance that such measures will suffice to redress the pandemic's negative impact on the regional or
global economy over time, entirely compensate for or mitigate regional or global recessions (which occurred
and could reoccur), or fully and over time prevent possible disruptions to the financial markets.

The lifting of government support measures could also harm economic activity and the financial strength of
economic actors. Overall, the crisis has impacted and may continue impact the economies of the principal
countries where the Group operates, particularly its domestic markets (France, Italy, Belgium and Luxembourg),
which collectively represented 57% of its total gross credit exposures as of 31 December 2021. The Group’s
results and financial condition have been and could continue to be adversely impacted by the effects of the
crisis related to the pandemic and the resulting disruption of economic activity in the Group’s principal markets.
In particular, the crisis significantly affected the Group's cost of risk in 2020, reflecting macroeconomic
projections based on various scenarios applying the framework in place prior to the crisis. Under this framework,
macroeconomic projections (specifically GDP estimates and forecasts) are key to calculating the cost of risk and
the consequences of the health crisis included a decrease in GDP growth estimates for many of the Group's
markets. The cost of risk calculation also takes into account the specific dynamics of the crisis in 2020, along
with anticipated future impacts on credit and counterparty risk, including the consequences of lockdown
measures on economic activity and the impact of government support measures and decisions. These factors
contributed to the substantial increase in the Group's cost of risk in 2020 (66 basis points).

The 2021 financial year showed an improvement with an increase in revenues of 4.4% to €46,235 million and
an increase in net income attributable to the Group due to the increase in Domestic Markets revenues (+5.2%
compared to 2020) with the rebound of the economy and the resilience of CIB revenues (+3.4% compared to
2020), but also by the decrease in the cost of risk (-48.8% compared to 2020), particularly in connection with
improving economic forecasts. Nevertheless, revenues in the International Financial Services businesses remain
impacted by the consequences of the health crisis (-1.2% compared to 2020).

Developments in the current health crisis and market conditions have characteristics that could increase the
probability and magnitude of various existing risks faced by the Group such as:

(a) pressure on revenues due in particular to
@) prolongation of the low interest rate environment; and
(i1) lower revenues from fees and commissions;
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(b) renewed heightened risk linked to a an economic slowdown due to inflationary pressures (energy prices,
labour market tensions), supply chain disruption or withdrawal of government support measures;

(©) risk of financial market disruption in the event of poorly anticipated changes in monetary policies; and

(d) higher risk-weighted assets due to the deterioration of risk parameters, hence affecting the Group’s
capital position.

The Group's results and financial condition could also be harmed by negative trends in the financial markets, to
the extent that the pandemic initially caused extreme market conditions (such as, volatility spikes, a sharp drop
in equity markets, tensions on spreads, specific asset markets on hold). Uncertainties about the scope and
durability of the economic recovery, the easing or strengthening of government support measures, and the
pressures linked to supply chains and raw material procurement have generated and could generate unfavourable
market conditions. Thus, unfavourable market conditions have had and could have an adverse impact on the
Group's market activities, which accounted for 14.8% of its consolidated revenues in 2021, resulting in trading
or other market-related losses, as seen in 2020, following restrictions implemented on short-selling and dividend
distributions (notably €184 million in the first quarter of 2020 related to the European authorities' restrictions on
2019 dividends). Further, certain of the Group's investment portfolios (for example, in its insurance subsidiaries)
are accounted for on a mark-to-market basis and were impacted by adverse market conditions, particularly in the
second quarter of 2020 and could continue to be impacted again in the future.

The extent to which the short, medium and long-term economic consequences of the pandemic will continue to
affect the Group's results and financial condition will depend largely on:

(a) the intensity and duration of restrictive measures that have been put in place or their periodic
reintroduction, depending on the evolution of the health situation;

(b) the timing and extent of a return to pre-pandemic lifestyles, business operations and economic
interactions;
©) the effects of the measures taken to date or future measures that may be taken by governments and

central banks to attenuate the economic fallout of the pandemic or the terms and conditions for lifting
these measures; and

(d) the duration and extent of the pandemic's remaining course, including the prospect of new waves or the
appearance of new strains of the virus and, consequently, a reinstatement or strengthening of lockdown
measures or other restrictions, such as in relation to travel, in the Group's various markets, as well as
the pace and mechanisms of deployment of immunisation programmes. In addition, while the actions
of European Union and member states' authorities (in particular, central banks and governments) in
response to the pandemic have to date helped and may well continue to help attenuate its adverse
economic and market consequences, the authorities have also issued and may continue to issue
additional restrictions or recommendations in respect of banks' actions. In particular, in 2020 and 2021
they limited banks' flexibility in managing their business and taking action in relation to capital
distribution, capital allocation and compensation policies.

Due to the unprecedented environment generated by the COVID-19 crisis, various pandemic-related
uncertainties around public health, society and the economy persist. The consequences for the Group will depend
on the duration of the impact of the crisis, the measures taken by governments and central banks and the ability
of society to recover, and are therefore difficult to predict.

Should BNPP fail to implement its strategic objectives or to achieve its published financial objectives or should

its results not follow stated expected trends, the trading price of its securities could be adversely affected.
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In connection with its annual results announced on 8 February 2022, BNPP announced a strategic plan for the
2022-2025 period. The plan includes financial and operational objectives, on a constant scope basis, as well as
the expected impact of the redeployment of proceeds from the sale of Bank of the West, after adjusting for the
dilutive effect of the disposal on BNPP's results. BNPP's actual results could vary significantly from these trends
for a number of reasons, including the occurrence of one or more of the risk factors described elsewhere in this
section, in particular, as a result of the consequences of the COVID-19 health crisis which have had and could
continue to have major repercussions on the economic outlook and cause financial market disruptions. If BNPP's
results do not follow these trends, its financial condition and the value of its securities, as well as its financing
costs, could be affected.

Additionally, BNPP is pursuing an ambitious Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR") policy and is committed
to making a positive impact on society with concrete achievements. In 2021, BNPP strengthened its commitment
to a sustainable economy and accelerated decarbonisation strategies, with the signing of the Net Zero Banking
Alliance, the Net Zero Asset Owner Alliance, and the Net Zero Asset Managers Initiative. BNPP is thus taking
strong positions, as a founding member of the United Nations Principles for Responsible Banking, which
commits it to align its strategy with the Paris Agreement and the Sustainable Development Goals ("SDGs"). As
part of BNPP's 2022-2025 strategic plan, it aims to mobilise €350 billion in ESG-related loans and bond
issuances (loans to companies, institutions and individuals covering environmental and social issues and annual
sustainable bond issuances) and to have €300 billion in sustainable responsible investments under management
by 2025 (for example, BNP Paribas Asset Management's open-ended funds distributed in Europe and classified
as funds that promote ESG characteristics or funds that have a sustainability objective for the purposes of the
Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation ("SFDR")). If BNPP fails to meet these targets, which depend in part
on factors beyond its control, its reputation could be harmed.

BNPP may experience difficulties integrating businesses following acquisition transactions and may be unable
to realize the benefits expected from such transactions.

BNPP engages in acquisition and combination transactions on a regular basis. BNPP's most recent major such
transactions were the integration of BNPP's Prime Services and Electronic Equities platform with Deutsche Bank
in 2019, the acquisition of 100% of Exane, previously 50% owned by BNPP, finalised on 13 July 2021 and the
acquisition of 100% of Floa, a subsidiary of Casino and Crédit Mutuel Alliance Fédérale (via the Banque
Fédérative du Crédit Mutuel - BFCM) and one of the French leaders in innovative payments, finalised on 1
February 2022. These operational integration activities resulted, in 2021, in restructuring costs of €164 million.
Successful integration and the realization of synergies require, among other things, proper coordination of
business development and marketing efforts, retention of key members of management, policies for effective
recruitment and training as well as the ability to adapt information and computer systems. Any difficulties
encountered in combining operations could result in higher integration costs and lower savings or revenues than
expected. There will accordingly be uncertainty as to the extent to which anticipated synergies will be achieved
and the timing of their realization. Moreover, the integration of BNPP's existing operations with those of the
acquired operations could interfere with its respective businesses and divert management's attention from other
aspects of BNPP's business, which could have a negative impact on BNPP's business and results. In some cases,
moreover, disputes relating to acquisitions may have an adverse impact on the integration process or have other
adverse consequences, including financial ones.

Although BNPP undertakes an in-depth analysis of the companies it plans to acquire, such analyses often cannot
be complete or exhaustive. In the event that BNPP is unable to conduct comprehensive due diligence prior to an
acquisition, it may acquire doubtful or troubled assets or businesses that may be unprofitable or have certain
potential risks that only materialise after the acquisition. The acquisition of an unprofitable business or a business
with materialised risks may have a significant adverse effect on BNPP's overall profitability and may increase
its liabilities.
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BNPP's current environment may be affected by the intense competition amongst banking and non-banking
operators, which could adversely affect BNPP's revenues and profitability.

Competition is intense in all of BNPP's primary business areas in France and the other countries in which it
conducts a substantial portion of its business, including other European countries and the United States.
Competition in the banking industry could intensify as a result of consolidation in the financial services area, as
a result of the presence of new players in the payment and the financing services area or the development of
crowdfunding platforms, as well as the continuing evolution of consumer habits in the banking sector. While
BNPP has launched initiatives in these areas, such as the debut of Hello bank! and its acquisitions of Nickel and
Floa, competitors subject to less extensive regulatory requirements or to less strict capital requirements (e.g.,
debt funds, shadow banks), or benefiting from economies of scale, data synergies or technological innovation
(e.g., internet and mobile operators, digital platforms, fintechs) or free access to customer financial data could
be more competitive by offering lower prices and more innovative services to address the new needs of
consumers. New technologies that facilitate or transform transaction processes and payment systems, such as
blockchain technologies and related services, or that could significantly impact the fundamental mechanisms of
the banking system, such as central bank digital currencies ("CBDC"), have been developed in recent years or
could be developed in the near future. While it is difficult to predict the effects of these developments and the
regulations that apply to them, the use of such technology could nevertheless reduce the market share of banks,
including BNPP, secure investments that otherwise would have used technology used by more established
financial institutions, such as BNPP or, more broadly, lead to the emergence of a different monetary system in
which the attractiveness of using established financial institutions, such as BNPP, would be affected. If such
developments continue to gain momentum, particularly with the support of governments and central banks, and
if BNPP is unable to respond to the competitive environment in France or in its other major markets by offering
more attractive, innovative and profitable product and service solutions than those offered by current competitors
or new entrants or if some of these activities were to be carried out by institutions other than banks, it may lose
market share in key areas of its business or incur losses on some or all of its activities. In addition, downturns in
the economies of its principal markets could add to the competitive pressure, through, for example, increased
price pressure and lower business volumes for BNPP and its competitors. It is also possible that the imposition
of more stringent requirements (particularly capital requirements and business restrictions) on large or
systemically significant financial institutions, that new players may not be subject to, could lead to distortions
in competition in a manner adverse to large private sector institutions such as BNPP.

BNPP could experience business disruption and losses due to climate change risks such as transition risks,
physical risks or liability risks.

BNPP is exposed to risks related to climate change, either directly through its own operations or indirectly
through its financing and investment activities. There are two main types of risks related to climate change: (i)
transition risks, which result from changes in the behaviour of economic and financial actors in response to the
implementation of energy policies or technological changes; (ii) physical risks, which result from the direct
impact of climate change on people and property through extreme weather events or long-term risks such as
rising water levels or increasing temperatures. In addition, liability risks may arise from both categories of risk.
They correspond to the damages that a legal entity would have to pay if it were found to be responsible for global
warming. BNPP is progressively integrating the assessment of these risks into its risk management system.
BNPP monitors these risks in the conduct of its business, in the conduct of its counterparties' business, and in its
investments on its own behalf and on behalf of third parties. In this respect, the specific credit policies and the
General Credit Policy have been enhanced since 2012 and 2014 respectively, with the addition of relevant
clauses in terms of social and environmental responsibility. In addition, sector-specific policies and policies
excluding certain environmental, social and governance ("ESG") sectors from financing have also been put in
place. In 2019, as part of the fight against climate change, BNPP made new commitments to reduce its exposure
to thermal coal to zero by 2030 in the OECD and by 2040 for the rest of the world. BNPP is thus taking strong
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positions, as a founding member of the United Nations Principles for Responsible Banking, which commits it to
align its strategy with the Paris Agreement and the SDGs. As part of BNPP's 2022-2025 strategic plan, it aims
to mobilize €350 billion in ESG-related loans and bond issuances (loans to companies, institutions and
individuals covering environmental and social issues and annual sustainable bonds issuances) and to have €300
billion in sustainable responsible investments under management by 2025 (for example, BNP Paribas Asset
Management's open-ended funds distributed in Europe and classified as funds that promote ESG characteristics
or funds that have a sustainability objective for the purposes of SFDR). By the end of 2015, BNPP had already
significantly strengthened its criteria for financing and investing in the coal sector, and in 2017, it was the first
bank to announce the cessation of its financing activities for companies that derive most of their revenues from
non-conventional hydrocarbons, measures that remain to date among the most advanced in the sector. These
decisions are also reflected in the energy mix that BNPP finances. BNPP also supports its clients, both
individuals and businesses, in their transition to a low-carbon economy. BNPP also aims to reduce the
environmental footprint of its own operations. Despite the actions taken by BNPP to monitor risks and combat
climate change, physical, transition or liability risks related to climate change could disrupt business or lead to
losses.

7.6 Changes in certain holdings in credit or financial institutions could have an impact on BNPP's financial position.

Certain classes of assets may carry a high risk-weight of 250%. These assets include: credit or financial
institutions consolidated under the equity method within the prudential scope, (excluding insurance); significant
financial interest in credit or financial institutions in which BNPP holds a stake of more than 10%; and deferred
tax assets that rely on future profitability and arise from temporary differences.

The risk-weighted assets carrying a risk-weight of 250% amounted to €18 billion at 31 December 2021, or 2%
of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPP. If BNPP increases the amount of heavy risk-weighted assets (either
by increasing the proportion of such heavy risk-weighted assets in its overall asset portfolio or due to an increase
of the regulatory risk-weighting applicable to these assets), its capital adequacy ratios may be lowered.

Risk Factors Relating to BNPP B.V.

The main risks described above in relation to BNPP also represent the main risks for BNPP B.V., either as an individual
entity or a company of the BNPP Group.

Dependency Risk

BNPP B.V. is an operating company. The assets of BNPP B.V. consist of the obligations of other BNPP Group entities.
In respect of securities it issues, the ability of BNPP B.V. to meet its obligations under such securities depends on the
receipt by it of payments under certain hedging agreements that it enters with other BNPP Group entities, and, in the case
of Nominal Value Repack Securities, Reference Collateral Assets and/or other agreements, such as repurchase agreements
as appropriate. Consequently, Holders of securities issued by BNPP B.V. will, subject to the provisions of the Guarantee
issued by BNPP, be exposed to the ability of BNPP Group entities to perform their obligations under such hedging
agreements, and, in the case of Nominal Value Repack Securities, the ability of the issuer(s) of, or obligors in respect of,
the Reference Collateral Assets to pay amounts due under such Reference Collateral Assets and/or its counterparties
under other agreements to perform their obligations under such agreements and may suffer losses should these entities
fail to satisfy their obligations.

More generally, the creditworthiness of BNPP B.V. depends on the creditworthiness of BNPP. In the case of bankruptcy
proceedings of BNPP B.V. or any other similar proceedings affecting the Issuer, Holders of securities will become
creditors of BNPP pursuant to the relevant guarantee granted by BNPP. Holders should also refer to risk factor "6.3 BNPP
could experience an unfavourable change in circumstances, causing it to become subject to a resolution proceeding:
holders of securities of BNPP could suffer losses as a result." above for a description of the impact of resolution on the
BNPP Group.
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Credit risk

BNPP B.V. has significant concentration of credit risks, as its issuances are hedged through OTC transactions with its
parent company, BNPP, and other BNPP Group entities. Such credit risks amount to the total size of its balance sheet
(EUR 87,077,359,155 as at 31 December 2021). Therefore, if BNPP or any other BNPP Group entity fails to satisfy its
obligations under any transaction, Holders of Securities issued by BNPP B.V. may suffer losses.

Risk Factors Relating to BP2F
Dependency risks relating to the business of BP2F

The primary credit protection for securities issued by BP2F will derive from the guarantees given by BNPPF. The
principal activity of BP2F is to act as a financing vehicle for BNPPF and the companies controlled by BNPPF by issuing
bonds, notes or other securities, by performing any refinancing operations with or without a guarantee and in general
having recourse to any sources of finance. Securities issued by BP2F have the benefit of guarantees issued by BNPPF so
the primary credit protection for investors will derive from these guarantees.

When BP2F issues structured securities, it hedges the structured components with hedging counterparties such as BNPPF
or other entities of the BNPP Group. BP2F's ability to perform its obligations in respect of the structured return may
depend on the ability of these hedging counterparties to meet their obligations under the hedge.

BP2F's ability to perform its obligations in respect of securities may depend on the operating performance of those
companies to which the proceeds of the securities are lent. BP2F will lend the proceeds from the securities to certain of
BNP Paribas Fortis group's operating companies or invest in securities issued by those companies. Investors are, therefore,
also exposed to the operating performance of the operating companies to which BP2F may lend proceeds or in which
BP2F may invest, whose performance could change over time.

The financial condition of the operating companies to which the proceeds of the securities are lent may deteriorate and
this may affect BP2F's ability to perform its obligations under the securities as BP2F's ability to meet its obligations will
be reliant on the financial condition of the operating companies, if such operating companies' financial condition were to
deteriorate and to the extent that funds are not available under the guarantees, BP2F and holders of securities could suffer
direct and materially adverse consequences, including insufficient return on the securities and, if a liquidation or
bankruptcy of BP2F were to occur, loss by holders of all or part of their investment.

As a result of the above, BP2F has a significant concentration of credit risk in respect of BNPPF and other BNPP Group
entities. As at 31 December 2021, such credit risk amounted to EUR 2,237,633,661.98 plus interest. Therefore, if BNPPF
or any other BNPP Group entity fails to satisfy its obligations under any transaction entered into with BP2F, Holders of
Securities issued by BP2F may suffer losses.

BP2F is not an operating company so has limited capital resources. Its financial condition therefore mainly depends on
its ability to issue securities and otherwise raise finance. A deteriorating or challenging economic situation can make it
more difficult for BP2F to raise finance, which could have a negative effect on BP2F's financial condition.

Operational risks relating to the business of BP2F

BP2F may face operational risks, such as loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes or systems, human
error, external events or changes in the competitive environment that damage the franchise or operating economics of a
business. To mitigate these operational risks, in 2013 BP2F hired two part time employees of BNP Paribas Fortis SA/NV.

Legal risk and tax risks relating to the business of BP2F

BP2F may face legal risks and tax risks. In case of any potential legal risk, BP2F will request advice from the legal
department of BNPPF and external legal advisors, if required by an executive manager of BP2F or by a member of the

48



RISKS

board of directors. In case of any potential tax risk, BP2F will request advice from the tax specialists of BNPPF and
advice from external tax advisors if required by a member of the board of directors.

Settlement risks relating to the business of BP2F

To mitigate the risks associated with BP2F's daily cash management, BP2F has implemented a payment procedure
approved by the board of directors and agreed by BGL BNP Paribas S.A..

See also the risk factors relating to BNPPF set out below which are also applicable to BP2F but must be considered in the
light of the specific activities, businesses, location, jurisdiction, applicable laws, composition of assets and liabilities,
finances and other features of BP2F. BNPPF is the parent company of BP2F.

Risk Factors Relating to BNPPF and its industry

See the section entitled "Risk Management and Capital Adequacy” on pages 171 to 192 of the 2021 BNPPF Annual
Report, which is incorporated by reference in this document.

The main categories of risk inherent in BNPPF's business are presented below. They may be measured through risk-
weighted assets or other quantitative or qualitative indicators, to the extent risk-weighted assets are not relevant (for

example, for liquidity and funding risk).

Risk-weighted assets in billions of euros 31.12.21 31.12.20

Credit risk 95,451 110,904
Counterparty credit risk 1,689 2,274
Securitisation risk in the banking book 1,248 1,259
Operational risk 8,528 11,633
Market risk 1,168 1,443
Equity risk 12,800 7,993
Total | | 120884 | | 135,506

The figures in the table above are extracted from the 2021 BNPPF Annual Report, which is incorporated by reference in

this document.

More generally, the risks to which BNPPF is exposed may arise from a number of factors related, among others, to
changes in its macroeconomic or regulatory environment or factors related to the implementation of its strategy and its

business.

The material risks specific to BNPPF's business, determined based on the circumstances known to the management as of
the date of the 2021 BNPPF Annual Report, are presented below under seven main categories: credit risk, counterparty
risk and securitisation risk in the banking book; operational risk; market risk; liquidity and funding risk; risks related to
the macroeconomic and market environment; regulatory risks; and risks related to BNPPF's growth in its current

environment.

BNPPF's risk management policies have been taken into account in assessing the materiality of these risks; in particular,
risk-weighted assets factor in risk mitigation elements to the extent eligible in accordance with applicable banking

regulations.
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Credit Risk, Counterparty Risk and Securitisation Risk in the Banking Book

BNPPF's credit risk is defined as the probability of a borrower or counterparty defaulting on its obligations to
BNPPF. Probability of default along with the recovery rate of the loan or debt in the event of default are essential
elements in assessing credit quality. In accordance with European Banking Authority recommendations, this
category of risk also includes risks on equity investments. As of 31 December 2021, BNPPF's credit risk
exposure broke down as follows (in millions of euros): corporates (141,030), retail customers (123,029), central
governments and central banks (79,230), credit institutions (19,003) and other items (4,583). As of 31 December
2021, 60% of BNPPF's credit exposure was comprised of exposures in Belgium, 5% in France, 10% in
Luxembourg, 16% in other European countries, 1% in North America, and 6% in the rest of the world. BNPPF's
risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to EUR 95,451 million at 31 December 2021, or 79%
of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPPF (see the chapters entitled "Risk Management and Capital Adequacy”,
"4 Credit and counterparty Credit Risk" and "4.a Credit risk" in the 2021 BNPPF Annual Report), compared to
EUR 110,904 million at 31 December 2020.

BNPPF's counterparty risk arises from its credit risk in the specific context of market transactions, investments,
and/or settlements. BNPPF's exposure to counterparty risk, excluding Credit Valuation Adjustment ("CVA")
risk as at 31 December 2021, is comprised of: 51% to the corporate sector, 12% to governments and central
banks, 29% to credit institutions and investment firms and 8% to clearing houses. By product, BNPPF's
exposure, excluding CVA risk, as at 31 December 2021 was comprised of: 85% in OTC derivatives, 13% in
repurchase transactions and securities lending/borrowing, 1% in listed derivatives and 1% in contributions to the
clearing houses' default funds. The amount of this risk varies over time, depending on fluctuations in market
parameters affecting the potential future value of the covered transactions. In addition, CVA risk measures the
risk of losses related to CVA volatility resulting from fluctuations in credit spreads associated with the
counterparties to which BNPPF is subject to risk. The risk-weighted assets subject to counterparty risk amounted
to EUR 1,689 million at 31 December 2021, representing 1% of BNPPF's total risk-weighted assets (see the
BNPPF 2021 Pillar 3 Disclosure), compared to EUR 2,274 million at 31 December 2020.

Securitisation risk in the banking book: securitisation is a transaction or arrangement by which the credit risk
associated with a liability or set of liabilities is subdivided into tranches. Any commitment made by BNPPF
under a securitisation structure (including derivatives and liquidity lines) is considered to be a securitisation. The
bulk of BNPPF's commitments are in the prudential banking portfolio. Securitised exposures are essentially
those generated by BNPPF. BNPPF's securitisation exposure amounted to EUR 5,333 million at 31 December
2021, compared to EUR 5,386 million at 31 December 2020. The securitisation positions held or acquired by
BNPPF may also be categorized by its role: of the positions as at 31 December 2021, BNPPF was originator of
87% and was investor of 13%. The risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to EUR 1,248
million at 31 December 2021 for BNPPF, or 1% of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPPF (see the BNPPF
2021 Pillar 3 Disclosure), compared to EUR 1,259 million at 31 December 2020.

A substantial increase in new provisions or a shortfall in the level of previously recorded provisions exposed to

credit risk and counterparty risk could adversely affect BNPPF's results of operations and financial condition

Credit risk and counterparty risk impact BNPPF's consolidated financial statements when a customer or
counterparty is unable to honour its obligations and when the book value of these obligations in BNPPF's records
is positive. The customer or counterparty may be a bank, a financial institution, an industrial or commercial
enterprise, a government or a government entity, an investment fund, or a natural person. If the default rate of
customers or counterparties increases, BNPPF may have to record increased charges or provisions in respect of
irrecoverable or doubtful loans (Stage 3) or of performing loans (Stages 1 and 2) in response to a deterioration
in economic conditions or other factors, which may affect its profitability.
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As aresult, in connection with its lending activities, BNPPF regularly establishes provisions which are recorded
on its income statement in the line item Cost of Risk. These provisions amounted to EUR 359 million at 31
December 2021, representing 17 basis points of outstanding customer loans (compared with 36 basis points at
31 December 2020). In Belgium, the cost of risk decreased as a consequence of, among other things, the
provisioning of performing loans (stage 1 and 2). Stage 1 and 2 provisions were mainly impacted by a review of
the macro-economic scenarios. Outside Belgium, cost of risk also decreased mainly due to lower provisions in
stage 3 whereas the provisions in stages 1 and 2 were relatively stable. The significant increase in these
provisions in 2020 reflects the economic consequences of the health crisis and is an example of the
materialisation of this risk, while their decrease in 2021 is explained by a high base in 2020, a limited number
of defaults and write-back provisions on performing loans.

BNPPF's overall level of provisions is based on its assessment of prior loss experience, the volume and type of
lending being conducted, industry standards, past due loans, economic conditions and other factors related to the
recoverability of various loans or statistical analysis based on scenarios applicable to asset classes.

Although BNPPF seeks to establish an appropriate level of provisions, its lending businesses may have to
increase their provisions for loan losses or sound receivables substantially in the future as a result of deteriorating
economic conditions or other causes. Any significant increase in provisions for loan losses or a significant
change in BNPPF's estimate of the risk of loss inherent in its portfolio of non impaired loans, as well as the
occurrence of loan losses in excess of the related provisions, could have a material adverse effect on BNPPF's
results of operations and financial condition.

For reference, at 31 December 2021, the ratio of doubtful loans to total loans outstanding was 2.1% and the
coverage ratio of these doubtful commitments (net of guarantees received) by provisions was 68.0%, compared
to 2.6% and 65.1%, respectively, as at 31 December 2020. These two ratios are calculated based on figures from
the FINREP reporting of BNPPF.

While BNPPF seeks to reduce its exposure to credit risk and counterparty risk by using risk mitigation techniques
such as collateralisation, obtaining guarantees, entering into credit derivatives and entering into netting
agreements, it cannot be certain that these techniques will be effective to offset losses resulting from counterparty
defaults that are covered by these techniques. Moreover, BNPPF is also exposed to the risk of default by the
party providing the credit risk coverage (such as a counterparty in a derivative or a loan insurance contract) or
to the risk of loss of value of any collateral. In addition, only a portion of BNPPF's overall credit risk and
counterparty risk is covered by these techniques. Accordingly, BNPPF has very significant exposure to these
risks.

The soundness and conduct of other financial institutions and market participants could adversely affect BNPPF

BNPPF's ability to engage in financing, investment and derivative transactions could be adversely affected by
the soundness of other financial institutions or market participants. Financial institutions are interrelated as a
result of trading, clearing, counterparty, funding or other relationships. As a result, defaults by one or more states
or financial institutions, or even rumours or questions about one or more financial institutions, or the financial
services industry generally, may lead to market wide liquidity problems and could lead to further losses or
defaults. BNPPF has exposure to many counterparties in the financial industry, directly and indirectly, including
clearing houses, brokers and dealers, commercial banks, investment banks, mutual and alternative investment
funds, and other institutional clients with which it regularly executes transactions. BNPPF may also be exposed
to risks related to the increasing involvement in the financial sector of players and the introduction of new types
of transactions subject to little or no regulation (such as, unregulated funds, trading venues or crowdfunding
platforms). Credit and counterparty risks could be exacerbated if the collateral held by BNPPF cannot be realised,
it decreases in value or it is liquidated at prices not sufficient to recover the full amount of the loan or derivative
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exposure due to BNPPF or in the event of the failure of a significant financial market participant such as a central
counterparty.

For reference, counterparty risk exposure related to financial institutions was EUR 2,401 million at 31 December
2021, or 29% of BNPPF's total counterparty risk exposure, and counterparty risk exposure related to clearing
houses was EUR 666 million, or 8% of BNPPF's total counterparty risk exposure.

In addition, fraud or misconduct by financial market participants can have a material adverse effect on financial
institutions due in particular to the interrelated nature of the financial markets.

Losses resulting from the risks summarised above could materially and adversely affect BNPPF's results of
operations.

Operational Risk

BNPPF's operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from failed or inadequate internal processes (particularly
those involving personnel and information systems) or external events, whether deliberate, accidental or natural
(floods, fires, earthquakes, terrorist attacks, etc.). BNPPF's operational risks cover fraud, human resources risks,
legal and reputational risks, non-compliance risks, tax risks, information systems risks, risk of providing
inadequate financial services (conduct risk), risk of failure of operational processes including credit processes,
or from the use of a model (model risk), as well as potential financial consequences related to reputation risk
management.

The risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to EUR 8,528 million at 31 December 2021, or
7% of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPPF (see page 11 of the BNPPF 2021 Pillar 3 Disclosure).

BNPPF's risk management policies, procedures and methods may leave itexposed to unidentified or
unanticipated risks, which could lead to material losses

BNPPF has devoted significant resources to developing its risk management policies, procedures and assessment
methods and intends to continue to do so in the future. Nonetheless, BNPPF's risk management techniques and
strategies may not be fully effective in mitigating its risk exposure in all economic and market environments or
against all types of risk, particularly risks that BNPPF may have failed to identify or anticipate. BNPPF's ability
to assess the creditworthiness of its customers or to estimate the values of its assets may be impaired if, as a
result of market turmoil such as that experienced in recent years, the models and approaches it uses become less
predictive of future behaviour, valuations, assumptions or estimates. Some of BNPPF's qualitative tools and
metrics for managing risk are based on its use of observed historical market behaviour. BNPPF applies statistical
and other tools to these observations to arrive at quantifications of its risk exposures. The process BNPPF uses
to estimate losses inherent in its credit exposure or estimate the value of certain assets requires difficult,
subjective, and complex judgments, including forecasts of economic conditions and how these economic
predictions might impair the ability of its borrowers to repay their loans or impact the value of assets, which
may, during periods of market disruption or substantial uncertainty, be incapable of accurate estimation and, in
turn, impact the reliability of the process. These tools and metrics may fail to predict future risk exposures, for
example, if BNPPF does not anticipate or correctly evaluate certain factors in its statistical models, or upon the
occurrence of an event deemed extremely unlikely by the tools and metrics. This would limit BNPPF's ability to
manage its risks. BNPPF's losses could therefore be significantly greater than the historical measures indicate.
In addition, BNPPF's quantified modelling does not take all risks into account. Its more qualitative approach to
managing certain risks could prove insufficient, exposing it to material unanticipated losses.

An interruption in or a breach of BNPPF's information systems may cause substantial losses of client or

customer information, damage to BNPPF's reputation and result in financial losses
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As with most other banks, BNPPF relies heavily on communications and information systems to conduct its
business. This dependency has increased with the spread of mobile and online banking services, the development
of cloud computing and more generally the use of new technologies. Any failure or interruption or breach in
security of these systems could result in failures or interruptions in BNPPF's customer relationship management,
general ledger, deposit, servicing and/or loan organization systems or could cause BNPPF to incur significant
costs in recovering and verifying lost data. BNPPF cannot provide assurances that such failures or interruptions
will not occur or, if they do occur, that they will be adequately addressed.

In addition, BNPPF is subject to cybersecurity risk, or risk caused by a malicious and/or fraudulent act,
committed virtually, with the intention of manipulating information (confidential data, bank/insurance, technical
or strategic), processes and users, in order to cause material losses to BNPPF's subsidiaries, employees, partners
and clients and/or for the purpose of extortion (ransomware). An increasing number of companies (including
financial institutions) have in recent years experienced intrusion attempts or even breaches of their information
technology security, some of which have involved sophisticated and highly targeted attacks on their computer
networks. Because the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access, disable or degrade service, steal
confidential data or sabotage information systems have become more sophisticated, change frequently and often
are not recognized until launched against a target, BNPPF and its third party service providers may be unable to
anticipate these techniques or to implement in a timely manner effective and efficient countermeasures.

Any failures of or interruptions in BNPPF's information systems or those of its providers and any subsequent
disclosure of confidential information related to any client, counterparty or employee of BNPPF (or any other
person) or any intrusion or attack against its communication system could cause significant losses and have an
adverse effect on BNPPF's reputation, financial condition and results of operations.

Regulatory authorities now consider cybersecurity as a growing systemic risk for the financial sector. They have
stressed the need for financial institutions to improve their resilience to cyber-attacks by strengthening internal
IT monitoring and control procedures. A successful cyber-attack could therefore expose BNPPF to a regulatory
fine, especially should any personal data from customers be lost.

Moreover, BNPPF is exposed to the risk of operational failure or interruption of a clearing agent, foreign
markets, clearing houses, custodian banks or any other financial intermediary or external service provider used
by BNPPF to execute or facilitate financial transactions. Due to its increased interaction with clients, BNPPF is
also exposed to the risk of operational malfunction of the latter's information systems. BNPPF's communications
and data systems and those of its clients, service providers and counterparties may also be subject to malfunctions
or interruptions as a result of cyber-crime or cyber-terrorism. BNPPF cannot guarantee that these malfunctions
or interruptions in its own systems or those of other parties will not occur or that in the event of a cyber-attack,
these malfunctions or interruptions will be adequately resolved.

Reputational risk could weigh on BNPPF's financial strength and diminish the confidence of clients and
counterparties in it

Considering the highly competitive environment in the financial services industry, a reputation for financial
strength and integrity is critical to BNPPF's ability to attract and retain customers. BNPPF's reputation could be
harmed if the means it uses to market and promote its products and services were deemed to be inconsistent with
client interests. BNPPF's reputation could also be damaged if, as it increases its client base and the scale of its
businesses, its overall procedures and controls dealing with conflicts of interest fail, or appear to fail, to address
them properly. Moreover, BNPPF's reputation could be damaged by employee misconduct, fraud or misconduct
by financial industry participants to which BNPPF is exposed, a restatement of, a decline in or corrections to, its
results, as well as any adverse legal or regulatory action, such as the settlement the BNP Paribas Group entered
into with the U.S. authorities in 2014 for violations of U.S. laws and regulations regarding economic sanctions.
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The loss of business that could result from damage to BNPPF's reputation could have an adverse effect on its
results of operations and financial position.

Market Risk

BNPPF's market risk is the risk of loss of value caused by an unfavourable trend in prices or market parameters.
The parameters affecting BNPPF's market risk include, but are not limited to, exchange rates, prices of securities
(whether the price is directly quoted or obtained by reference to a comparable asset), the price of derivatives on
an established market and all benchmarks that can be derived from market quotations such as interest rates, credit
spreads, volatility or implicit correlations or other similar parameters.

BNPPF is exposed to market risk mainly through trading activities carried out by the business lines of its
Corporate & Institutional Banking ("CIB") operating division, primarily in Global Markets, which represented
2% of BNPPF's revenue in 2021. BNPPF's trading activities are directly linked to economic relations with clients
of these business lines, or indirectly as part of its market making activity.

In addition, the market risk relating to BNPPF's banking activities covers its interest rate and foreign exchange
rate risk in connection with its activities as a banking intermediary. The "operating" foreign exchange risk
exposure relates to net earnings generated by activities conducted in currencies other than the functional currency
of the entity concerned. The "structural" foreign exchange risk position of an entity relates to investments in
currencies other than the functional currency. In measuring interest rate risk, BNPPF defines the concepts of
standard rate risk and structural rate risk as the following: the standard rate risk corresponds to the general case,
namely when it is possible to define the most appropriate hedging strategy for a given transaction, and the
structural rate risk is the interest rate risk for equity and non-interest-bearing current accounts.

BNPPF's market risk based on its activities is measured by Value at Risk ("VaR"), and various other market
indicators (stressed VaR, Incremental Risk Charge) as well as by stress tests and sensitivity analysis compared
with market limits.

The risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to EUR 1,168 million at 31 December 2021, or
1% of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPPF (see the BNPPF 2021 Pillar 3 Disclosure).

BNPPF may incur significant losses on its trading and investment activities due to market fluctuations and
volatility

BNPPF maintains trading and investment positions in the debt, currency, commodity and equity markets, and in
unlisted securities, real estate and other asset classes, including through derivative contracts. These positions
could be adversely affected by extreme volatility in these markets, i.e., the degree to which prices fluctuate over
a particular period in a particular market, regardless of market levels. Moreover, volatility trends that prove
substantially different from BNPPF's expectations may lead to losses relating to a broad range of other products
that BNPPF uses, including swaps, forward and future contracts, options and structured products.

To the extent that BNPPF owns assets, or has net long positions, in any of those markets, a market downturn
could result in losses from a decline in the value of its positions. Conversely, to the extent that BNPPF has sold
assets that it does not own, or has net short positions in any of those markets, a market upturn could, in spite of
the existing limitation of risks and control systems, expose BNPPF to potentially substantial losses as it attempts
to cover its net short positions by acquiring assets in a rising market. BNPPF may from time to time hold a long
position in one asset and a short position in another, in order to hedge transactions with clients and/or in view of
benefiting from changes in the relative value of the two assets. If, however, the relative value of the two assets
changes in a direction or manner that BNPPF did not anticipate or against which its positions are not hedged, it
might realize a loss on those paired positions. Such losses, if significant, could adversely affect BNPPF's results
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and financial condition. In addition, BNPPF's hedging strategies may not be suitable for certain market
conditions.

If any of the variety of instruments and strategies that BNPPF uses to hedge its exposure to various types of risk
in its businesses is not effective, BNPPF may incur losses. Many of its strategies are based on historical trading
patterns and correlations. For example, if BNPPF holds a long position in an asset, it may hedge that position by
taking a short position in another asset where the short position has historically moved in a direction that would
offset a change in the value of the long position. However, the hedge may only be partial, or the strategies used
may not protect against all future risks or may not be fully effective in mitigating BNPPF's risk exposure in all
market environments or against all types of risk in the future. Unexpected market developments may also reduce
the effectiveness of BNPPF's hedging strategies. In addition, the manner in which gains and losses resulting
from certain ineffective hedges are recorded may result in additional volatility in BNPPF's reported earnings.

The BNP Paribas Group uses a VaR model to quantify its exposure to potential losses from market risks, and
also performs stress testing with a view to quantifying its potential exposure in extreme scenarios (see Chapter 5
("Market Risk") in the 2021 BNPPF Annual Report). However, these techniques rely on statistical methodologies
based on historical observations, which may turn out to be unreliable predictors of future market conditions.
Accordingly, BNPPF's exposure to market risk in extreme scenarios could be greater than the exposures
predicted by its quantification techniques.

BNPPF may generate lower revenues from commission and fee based businesses during market downturns and
declines in activity

Commissions represented 17% of BNPPF's total revenues in 2021. Financial and economic conditions affect the
number and size of transactions for which BNPPF provides securities underwriting, financial advisory and other
investment banking services. These revenues, which include fees from these services, are directly related to the
number and size of the transactions in which BNPPF participates and can thus be significantly affected by
economic or financial changes that are unfavourable to its investment banking business and clients. In addition,
because the fees that BNPPF charges for managing its clients' portfolios are in many cases based on the value or
performance of those portfolios, a market downturn that reduces the value of its clients' portfolios or increases
the amount of withdrawals would reduce the revenues it receives from its asset management, equity derivatives
and private banking businesses.

Adjustments to the carrying value of BNPPF's securities and derivatives portfolios and BNPPF's own debt could
have an adverse effect on its net income and shareholders' equity

The carrying value of BNPPF's securities and derivatives portfolios and certain other assets, as well as its own
debt, in its balance sheet is adjusted as of each financial statement date. As at 31 December 2021, on the assets
side of BNPPF's balance sheet, financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, derivative financial
instruments used for hedging purposes and financial assets at fair value through shareholders' equity amounted
to EUR 13,634 million, EUR 1,982 million and EUR 7,861 million respectively. In the liabilities column,
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments used for hedging
purposes amounted to EUR 22,372 million and EUR 3,215 million, respectively, at 31 December 2021. Most of
the adjustments are made on the basis of changes in fair value of BNPPF's assets or debt during an accounting
period, with the changes recorded either in the income statement or directly in shareholders' equity. Changes
that are recorded in the income statement, to the extent not offset by opposite changes in the value of other assets,
affect BNPPF's consolidated revenues and, as a result, its net income. A downward adjustment of the fair value
of BNPPF's securities and derivatives portfiolios may lead to reduced shareholders' equity and, to the extent not
offset by opposite changes in the value of BNPPF's liabilities, BNPPF's capital adequacy ratios may also be
lowered. The fact that fair value adjustments are recorded in one accounting period does not mean that further
adjustments will not be needed in subsequent periods.
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Liquidity and Funding Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that BNPPF will not be able to honour its commitments or unwind or offset a position
due to market conditions or specific factors within a specified period of time and at a reasonable cost. It reflects
the risk of not being able to cope with net cash outflows, including collateral requirements, over short-term to
long-term horizons. BNPPF's specific risk can be assessed through its short-term liquidity ratio ("Liquidity
Coverage Ratio" or "LCR"), which analyses the hedging of net cash outflows during a thirty-day stress period.
The LCR of BNPPF at 31 December 2021 was 192 per cent.

See the BNPPF Press Release dated 11 March 2022 on the 2021 full year results of BNPPF, which is incorporated
by reference in this Base Prospectus.

BNPPF's access to and cost of funding could be adversely affected by a resurgence of financial crises, worsening
economic conditions, rating downgrades, increases in sovereign credit spreads or other factors

Over the last ten years, the financial crisis, the eurozone sovereign debt crisis as well as the general
macroeconomic environment have, at times, adversely affected the availability and cost of funding for European
banks. This was due to several factors, including a sharp increase in the perception of bank credit risk due to
exposure to sovereign debt in particular, credit rating downgrades of sovereigns and of banks, and debt market
speculation. Many European banks, including BNPPF, at various points during these periods experienced
restricted access to wholesale debt markets for institutional investors and to the interbank market, as well as a
general increase in their cost of funding. In the context of the health crisis, the European Central Bank ("ECB")
also set up refinancing facilities designed to foster the banks' refinancing of the economy (targeted longer-term
refinancing options or "TLTRO", on which BNPPF has drawn). Such adverse credit market conditions may
reappear in the event of prolonged stagnation of growth, deflation, resurgence of the financial crisis, another
sovereign debt crisis or new forms of financial crises, factors relating to the financial industry or the economy
in general (including the economic consequences of the health crisis) or to BNPPF in particular. In this case, the
effect on the liquidity of the European financial sector in general and BNPPF in particular could be materially
adverse and have a negative impact on BNPPF's results of operations and financial condition.

Protracted market declines can reduce BNPPF's liquidity, making it harder to sell assets and possibly leading
to material losses. Accordingly, BNPPF must ensure that its assets and liabilities properly match in order to
avoid exposure to losses

In some of BNPPF's businesses, particularly Global Markets (which represented 2% of BNPPF's revenue in
2021) and Asset/Liability Management, protracted market movements, particularly asset price declines, can
reduce the level of activity in the market or reduce market liquidity. These developments can lead to material
losses if BNPPF cannot close out deteriorating positions in a timely way. This is particularly true for assets that
are intrinsically illiquid. Assets that are not traded on stock exchanges or other public trading markets, such as
certain derivative contracts between financial institutions, may have values that BNPPF calculates using models
rather than publicly-quoted prices. Monitoring the deterioration of prices of assets like these is difficult and could
lead to significant unanticipated losses (see Chapters 4 ("Note to the Balance Sheet"), 4d ("Measurement of the
Fair Value of Financial Instruments", pages 107 to 117) and the section entitled "Risk Management and Capital
Adequacy", page 191 in Chapter 9 ("Liquidity Risk") in the 2021 BNPPF Annual Report).

BNPPF is exposed to the risk that the maturity, interest rate or currencies of its assets might not match those of
its liabilities. The timing of payments on certain of BNPPF's assets is uncertain, and if BNPPF receives lower
revenues than expected at a given time, it might require additional market funding in order to meet its obligations
on its liabilities. While BNPPF imposes strict limits on the gaps between its assets and its liabilities as part of its
risk management procedures, it cannot be certain that these limits will be fully effective to eliminate potential
losses arising from asset and liability mismatches.
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Any downgrade of BNPPF's credit ratings could weigh heavily on the profitability of BNPPF

Credit ratings have a significant impact on BNPPF's liquidity. On 23 November 2021, Standard & Poor's
published a report indicating that BNPPF's long-term issuer credit rating is A+, and its short-term rating is A-1,
with a stable outlook.

On 28 October 2021, Fitch affirmed its long-term issuer default ratings for BNPPF at A+, and its short-term
rating at F1, with a stable outlook.

On 2 May 2022, Moody's affirmed its long-term senior unsecured debt rating at A2, and affirmed its short-term
rating as P-1, with a stable outlook.

Any rating action may occur at any time by any rating agency.

A downgrade in BNPPF's credit rating could affect the liquidity and competitive position of BNPPF. It could
also increase BNPPF's borrowing costs, limit access to the capital markets or trigger additional obligations under
its covered bonds or under certain bilateral provisions in some trading, derivative or collateralized financing
contacts. As part of the BNP Paribas Group, BNPPF can be highly sensitive to a downgrade by rating agencies
of the rating of the parent company of the BNP Paribas Group or a deterioration of its debt quality.

In addition, BNPPF's cost of obtaining long term unsecured funding from market investors is also directly related
to its credit spreads, which in turn depend to a certain extent on its credit ratings. Increases in credit spreads can
significantly increase BNPPF's cost of funding. Changes in credit spreads are continuous, market driven, and
subject at times to unpredictable and highly volatile movements. Credit spreads are also influenced by market
perceptions of BNPPF's creditworthiness. Furthermore, credit spreads may be influenced by movements in the
cost to purchasers of credit default swaps referenced to BNPPF's debt obligations, which are influenced both by
the credit quality of those obligations, and by a number of market factors that are beyond the control of the BNP
Paribas Group.

Risks related to the Macroeconomic and Market Environment

Adverse economic and financial conditions have in the past had and may in the future have an impact on BNPPF
and the markets in which it operates

BNPPF's business is sensitive to changes in the financial markets and more generally to economic conditions in
Belgium (53% of BNPPF's revenues at 31 December 2021), other countries in Europe (35% of BNPPF's
revenues at 31 December 2021) and the rest of the world (12% of BNPPF's revenues at 31 December 2021). A
deterioration in economic conditions in the markets in the countries where BNPPF operates and in the economic
environment could in the future have, some or all of the following impacts:

. adverse economic conditions affecting the business and operations of BNPPF's customers, reducing
credit demand and trading volume and resulting in an increased rate of default on loans and other
receivables, in part as a result of the deterioration of the financial capacity of companies and
households;

. a decline in market prices of bonds, equities and commodities affecting the businesses of BNPPF,
including in particular trading, investment banking and asset management revenues;

. macroeconomic policies adopted in response to actual or anticipated economic conditions having
unintended effects, and are likely to impact market parameters such as interest rates and foreign
exchange rates, which in turn can affect BNPPF's businesses that are most exposed to market risk;
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. perceived favourable economic conditions generally or in specific business sectors resulting in asset
price bubbles, which could in turn exacerbate the impact of corrections when conditions become less
favourable;

. a significant economic disruption (such as the global financial crisis of 2008 or the European sovereign

debt crisis of 2011 or the COVID-19 pandemic since 2020) having a substantial impact on all of
BNPPF's activities, particularly if the disruption is characterised by an absence of market liquidity that
makes it difficult to sell certain categories of assets at their estimated market value or at all. These
disruptions could also lead to a decline in transaction commissions and consumer loans; and

. a significant deterioration of market and economic conditions resulting from, among other things,
adverse political and geopolitical events such as natural disasters, geopolitical tensions, health risks
such as the COVID-19 health crisis and its aftermath, the fear or recurrence of new epidemics or
pandemics, acts of terrorism, societal unrest, cyber-attacks, military conflicts or threats thereof and
related risks may affect the operating environment for BNPPF episodically or for extended periods.

Since 2020, economies and financial markets have been, and should continue in 2022 to be, particularly sensitive
to a number of factors, including the evolution of the COVID-19 pandemic and its economic consequences, in
particular, the increase in sovereign and corporate debt that pre-dated the health crisis and has been aggravated
by it, as well as the strength and staying power of the economic recovery following the crisis' peak, which is
itself dependent on a number of factors (see risk factor 7.1 "Epidemics and pandemics, including the ongoing
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and their economic consequences may adversely affect BNPPF's business,
operations, results and financial condition" below).

In addition, numerous factors may impact the economy and the financial markets in the coming months or years,
in particular geopolitical tensions (notably in Eastern Europe, and in particular, the Russian invasion of Ukraine
and the reaction of the international community for which the consequences on the financial markets and the
general business climate are signficantly unfavourable in the short-term and remain uncertain in the long term),
political risks directly affecting Europe, general trends in consumer and commodity prices (themselves affected
by the above-mentioned factors) characterised by high inflation, corresponding trends in wages, supply chain
pressures, the changing economic situation in certain countries or regions that contribute to overall global
economic growth, tensions around international trade and, as discussed below, the evolution of monetary policy
and interest rates.

More generally, the volatility of financial markets could adversely affect BNPPF's trading and investment
positions in the debt, currency, commodity and equity markets, as well as its positions in other investments.
Severe market disruptions and extreme market volatility have occurred often in recent years and may occur again
in the future, which could result in significant losses for BNPPF. Such losses may extend to a broad range of
trading and hedging products, including swaps, forward and future contracts, options and structured products.
The volatility of financial markets makes it difficult to predict trends and implement effective trading strategies.

It is difficult to predict when economic or market downturns or other market disruptions will occur, and which
markets will be most significantly impacted. If economic or market conditions in Belgium or elsewhere in
Europe, or Global Markets more generally, were to deteriorate or become more volatile, BNPPF's operations
could be disrupted, and its business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

Significant interest rate changes could adversely affect BNPPF's revenues or profitability. The prolonged low
interest rate environment carries inherent systemic risks, which could impact BNPPF's income or profitability,

and any exit from such environment would also carry risks

The net interest income recorded by BNPPF during any given period significantly affects its overall revenues
and profitability for that period. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond BNPPF's control, such
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as the rate of inflation, country-specific monetary policies and certain decisions concerning regulatory capital.
Changes in market interest rates could affect the interest rates charged on interest-earning assets differently from
the interest rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Any adverse change in the yield curve could cause a decline
in net interest income generated by BNPPF's lending activities. In addition, increases in the interest rates at
which BNPPF's short-term funding is available and maturity mismatches may adversely affect its profitability.

Since the 2008-2009 financial crisis, global markets have been characterised by an extended period of low
interest rates. This low interest rate environment has weighed significantly on banks' profitability, including that
of BNPPF, for a number of years. The relative impact on banks depends, in particular, on the proportion of their
revenues represented by net interest income; this proportion was 56% for BNPPF in 2021 (see page 48 in the
2021 BNPPF Annual Report). The situation has worsened since 2019 with the introduction of negative rates,
particularly on placements by European banks with the ECB. If the low or even negative, interest rate
environment continues, despite higher inflation and the central banks' reactions to it, BNPPF's profitability could
be affected or even decline. In this respect, central banks have — in 2020 and again in 2021 — increased their
monetary support in the face of the recession caused by the health crisis of 2020 and 2021. A reduction in these
accommodative policies by central banks, particularly in response to increasing inflation, has begun to be
implemented by the U.S. Federal Reserve, the Bank of England and the ECB. For example, the ECB has
indicated that it will cease the emergency pandemic purchase programme ("EPPP") in March 2022 and its
targeted longer-term refinancing operations ("TLTRO 3") in June 2022.

During periods of low interest rates, interest rate spreads tend to tighten, and BNPPF may be unable to lower
interest rates on deposits sufficiently to offset reduced income from lending at lower interest rates. Net interest
income amounted to EUR 4,694 million in 2021 and EUR 4,752 million in 2020, respectively (see the 2021
BNPPF Annual Report 2021). The negative interest rate environment in which banks are charged for cash
deposited with central banks, whereas banks typically do not charge clients for deposits, weighs significantly on
banks' margins. In addition, BNPPF has been facing and may continue to face an increase in early repayment
and refinancing of mortgages and other fixed rate consumer and corporate loans as clients take advantage of
lower borrowing costs. This, along with the issuance of new loans at the low prevailing market interest rates,
has resulted and may continue to result in a decrease in the average interest rate of BNPPF's portfolio of loans
thereby causing a decline in its net interest income from lending activities. Moreover, an environment of
persistently low interest rates can also have the effect of flattening the yield curve in the market more generally,
which could reduce the premium generated by BNPPF from its funding activities. A flattening yield curve can
also influence financial institutions to engage in riskier activities in an effort to earn the desired level of returns,
which can increase overall market risk and volatility. Low interest rates may also affect the profitability and
even the solvency of the insurance activities of BNPPF, particularly due to the prevalence in the market of life
insurance contracts backed by euro-denominated funds, which may not be able to generate sufficient returns to
be competitive with other investment products. Low interest rates may also adversely affect commissions
charged by BNPPF's asset management subsidiaries on money market and other fixed income products. A
reduction in credit spreads and decline in retail banking income resulting from lower portfolio interest rates may
adversely affect the profitability of BNPPF's retail banking operations.

On the other hand, the end of a period of prolonged low interest rates, in particular due to the normalisation and
tightening of monetary policy (as already initiated by some central banks and expected by the market) following
the economy's recovery, or inflation a level higher or lasting longer than expected by central banks, would also
carry risks. If market interest rates were to rise generally, a portfolio featuring significant amounts of lower
interest loans and fixed income assets would be expected to decline in value. If BNPPF's hedging strategies are
ineffective or provide only a partial hedge against such a change in value, BNPPF could incur losses. Any sharper
or more rapid than expected tightening could have a negative impact on the economic recovery. On the lending
side, it could in particular cause stress in loan and bond portfolios, possibly leading to an increase in non-
performing exposures and defaults. More generally, the reduction of accommodative monetary policies (already
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initiated by some central banks after a period of substantial liquidity infusions from asset purchases) by central
banks may, even if implemented progressively, lead to severe corrections in certain markets or asset classes (e.g.,
non-investment grade corporate and sovereign borrowers, certain sectors of equities and real estate) that
particularly benefited (including from very low risk premia as compared to historical averages) from the
prolonged low interest rate and high liquidity environment, and such corrections could potentially be contagious
to financial markets generally, including through substantially increased volatility.

Given the global scope of its activities, BNPPF is exposed to country risk and to changes in the political,
macroeconomic or financial contexts of a region or country

BNPPF is subject to country risk, meaning the risk that economic, financial, political or social conditions in a
given foreign country in which it operates could adversely affect BNPPF's operations, its results, its financial
condition or its business. BNPPF monitors country risk and takes it into account in the fair value adjustments
and cost of risk recorded in its financial statements. However, a significant change in political or macroeconomic
environments may require it to record additional charges or to incur losses beyond the amounts previously
written down in its financial statements. In addition, factors specific to a country or region in which BNPPF
operates could make it difficult for it to carry out its business and lead to losses or impairment of assets.

At 31 December 2021, BNPPF's loan portfolio consisted of receivables from borrowers located in Belgium
(60%), France (5%), Luxembourg (10%), other European countries (16%), North America (1%), and the rest of
the world (8%). Adverse conditions that particularly affect these countries and regions would have a significant
impact on BNPPF.

Regulatory Risks

Laws and regulations adopted in recent years, as well as current and future legislative and regulatory
developments may significantly impact BNPPF and the financial and economic environment in which it operates

Laws and regulations have been enacted in the past few years, in particular in Belgium, Europe and the United
States, with a view to introducing a number of changes, some permanent, in the financial environment. The
impact of the measures has changed substantially the environment in which BNPPF and other financial
institutions operate.

The measures that have been adopted include:

. more stringent capital and liquidity requirements (particularly for global systemically important banks
such as the BNP Paribas Group), as well as changes to the risk-weighting methodologies and the
methods of using internal models that have led, could have led or could lead to increased capital
requirements;

. restrictions on certain types of activities considered as speculative undertaken by commercial banks
that are prohibited or need to be ring fenced in subsidiaries (particularly proprietary trading) and are
subject to prudential requirements and autonomous funding;

. prohibitions or restrictions on fees for certain types of financial products or activities;

. enhanced recovery and resolution regimes, in particular the Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive
of 15 May 2014 (the "BRRD"), as amended from time to time, which strengthens powers to prevent
and resolve banking crises in order to ensure that losses are borne largely by the creditors and
shareholders of the banks and in order to keep the costs incurred by taxpayers to a minimum;

. the establishment of the national resolution funds by the BRRD and the creation of the Single
Resolution Board (the "SRB") by the European Parliament and Council of the European Union in a
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resolution dated 15 July 2014 (the "SRM Regulation"), as amended from time to time, which can
initiate resolution proceedings for banking institutions such as BNPPF, and the Single Resolution Fund
(the "SRF"), the financing of which by BNPPF (up to its annual contribution) can be significant;

the establishment of national deposit guarantee schemes and a proposed European deposit guarantee
scheme or deposit insurance which will gradually cover all or part of the guarantee schemes of
participating countries;

increased internal control and reporting requirements with respect to certain activities;

the implementation of regulatory stress tests (including in relation to climate change risk) which could
lead to additional regulatory capital requirements (see the 2021 BNPPF Annual Report);

greater powers granted to the relevant authorities to combat money laundering and terrorism financing;

more stringent governance and conduct of business rules and restrictions and increased taxes on
employee compensation over specified levels;

measures to improve the transparency, efficiency and integrity of financial markets and in particular
the regulation of high frequency trading, more extensive market abuse regulations, increased regulation
of certain types of financial products including mandatory reporting of derivative and securities
financing transactions, requirements either to mandatorily clear, or otherwise mitigate risks in relation
to, over-the-counter derivative transactions (including through posting of collateral in respect of non-
centrally cleared derivatives);

the taxation of financial transactions;
enhanced protection of personal data and cybersecurity requirements;

enhanced disclosure requirements, including through the introduction of new disclosure requirements
on (i) how banking groups providing asset management services, such as BNPPF, integrate
sustainability risks, negative impacts, sustainable investment objectives or the promotion of
environmental or social attributes when making investment decisions, and (ii) how and to what extent
banking groups themselves finance or develop economic activities that can be considered
environmentally sustainable as defined in the European Taxonomy;

the introduction of new requirements for the integration of climate risk into the risk measurement and
management systems of banking groups, including through the publication of proposals for banks to
manage and disclose climate risk; and

strengthening the powers of supervisory bodies and the creation of new authorities, including the
adoption of the Single Resolution Mechanism (the "SRM") in October 2013, pursuant to which BNPPF
is under the direct supervision of the ECB.

These measures may have a significant adverse impact. For example, the introduction of a required contribution
to the Single Resolution Fund resulted in a substantial additional expense for BNPPF (BNPPF made a EUR 89
million contribution to the SRF in 2021).

Measures relating to the banking sector could be further amended, expanded or strengthened. Moreover,

additional measures could be adopted in other areas. It is impossible to predict what additional measures will be

adopted or what their exact content will be, and, given the complexity of the issues and the uncertainty

surrounding them, to determine their impact on BNPPF. The effect of these measures, whether already adopted

or that may be adopted in the future, has been and could continue to be a decrease in BNPPF's ability to allocate
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its capital and capital resources to financing, limit its ability to diversify risks, reduce the availability of certain
financing and liquidity resources, increase the cost of financing, increase the cost of compliance, increase the
cost or reduce the demand for the products and services offered by BNPPF, require BNPPF to proceed with
internal reorganizations, structural changes or reallocations, affect the ability of BNPPF to carry on certain
activities or to attract and/or retain talent and, more generally, affect its competitiveness and profitability, which
could have an impact on its profitability, financial condition and operating results. As a recent example, on 27
October 2021 the European Commission presented a legislative package to finalise the implementation within
the European Union of the Basel III agreement adopted by the Group of Central Bank Governors and Heads of
Supervision ("GHOS") on 7 December 2017. This legislative package will in the next stage be discussed by the
European Parliament and Council with a view to agreeing on a final text. In the impact assessment accompanying
the legislative package, the European Commission estimated, on the basis of a European Banking Authority
("EBA") impact study dated December 2020 and of additional European Commission’s estimates for some EU-
specific adjustments, that the implementation of the final Basel III standards may result in an average increase
in total minimum capital requirements ranging between 6.4% and 8.4% after a full implementation of the reform.
On the basis of the EBA’s updated impact analysis taking into account the combined effect of the reform and
the potential consequences of the health crisis, the European Commission opted to apply the new capital
requirements to EU banks as of 1 January 2025, with a phase-in period during which the requirements will be
gradually increased through 2030 (and 2032 for certain requirements).

BNPPF is subject to extensive and evolving regulatory regimes in the jurisdictions in which it operates. BNPPF
faces the risk of changes in legislation or regulation in all of the countries in which it operates, including, but
not limited to, the following:

. monetary, liquidity, interest rate and other policies of central banks and regulatory authorities;

. changes in government or regulatory policy that may significantly influence investor decisions, in
particular in the markets in which BNPPF operates;

. changes in regulatory requirements applicable to the financial industry, such as rules relating to
applicable governance, remunerations, capital adequacy and liquidity frameworks, restrictions on
activities considered as speculative and recovery and resolution frameworks;

. changes in securities regulations as well as in financial reporting, disclosure and market abuse
regulations;
. changes in the regulation of certain types of transactions and investments, such as derivatives and

securities financing transactions and money market funds;

. changes in the regulation of market infrastructures, such as trading venues, central counterparties,
central securities depositories, and payment and settlement systems;

. changes in the regulation of payment services, crowdfunding and fintech;

. changes in the regulation of protection of personal data and cybersecurity;

. changes in tax legislation or the application thereof;

. changes in accounting norms;

. changes in rules and procedures relating to internal controls, risk management and compliance; and

. expropriation, nationalization, price controls, exchange controls, confiscation of assets and changes in

legislation relating to foreign ownership.
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These changes, the scope and implications of which are highly unpredictable, could substantially affect BNPPF
and have an adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations. Certain reforms not
directed specifically at financial institutions, such as measures relating to the funds industry or promoting
technological innovation (such as open data projects), could facilitate the entry of new players in the financial
services sector or otherwise affect BNPPF's business model, competitiveness and profitability, which could in
turn affect its financial condition and results of operations.

Finally, the accommodative policies implemented temporarily by national and European regulatory authorities
in the context of the health crisis have either lapsed or are expected to lapse gradually, although their remaining
course is not currently certain (see risk factor 7.1 "Epidemics and pandemics, including the ongoing coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic and their economic consequences may adversely affect BNPPF's business, operations,
results and financial condition" below).

BNPPF may incur substantial fines and other administrative and criminal penalties for non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and may also incur losses in related (or unrelated) litigation with private

parties

BNPPF is exposed to regulatory compliance risk, i.e., the failure to comply fully with the laws, regulations,
codes of conduct, professional norms or recommendations applicable to the financial services industry. This risk
is exacerbated by the adoption by different countries of multiple and occasionally diverging and even conflicting
legal or regulatory requirements. Besides damage to BNPPF's reputation and private rights of action (including
class actions), non-compliance could lead to material legal proceedings, fines and expenses (including fines and
expenses in excess of recorded provisions), public reprimand, enforced suspension of operations or, in extreme
cases, withdrawal by the authorities of operating licenses. This risk is further exacerbated by continuously
increasing regulatory scrutiny of financial institutions as well as substantial increases in the quantum of
applicable fines and penalties. Moreover, litigation by private parties against financial institutions has
substantially increased in recent years. Accordingly, BNPPF faces significant legal risk in its operations, and the
volume and amount of damages claimed in litigation, regulatory proceedings and other adversarial proceedings
against financial services firms have substantially increased in recent years and may increase further. BNPPF
may record provisions in this respect as indicated in the 2021 BNPPF Annual Report, under the chapter entitled
"Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 2021", in particular note 4. "Notes to the balance sheet at 31
December 2021" and note 4n. "Provisions for contingencies and charges".

In this respect, on 30 June 2014 the BNP Paribas Group entered into a series of agreements with, and was the
subject of several orders issued by, U.S. federal and New York state government agencies and regulatory
authorities in settlement of investigations into violations of U.S. laws and regulations regarding economic
sanctions. The BNP Paribas Group remains subject to increased scrutiny by regulatory authorities (including via
the presence of an independent consultant within the BNP Paribas Group) who are monitoring its compliance
with a remediation plan agreed with them.

BNPPF is currently involved in various litigation and investigations as summarised in the note to its consolidated
financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2021 (see the 2021 BNPPF Annual Report, under the
chapter entitled "Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 2021", in particular note 7. "Additional
information" and note 7.a "Contingent liabilities legal proceedings and arbitration"). It may become involved in
further such matters at any point. No assurance can be given that an adverse outcome in one or more of such
matters would not have a material adverse effect on BNPPF's operating results for any particular period.

BNPPF could experience an unfavourable change in circumstances, causing it to become subject to a resolution
proceeding: holders of securities of BNPPF could suffer losses as a result

The BRRD, SRM Regulation and the law of 25 April 2014, confer upon the NBB or the SRB the power to
commence resolution proceedings for a banking institution, such as BNPPF, with a view to ensure the continuity
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of critical functions, to avoid the risks of contagion and to recapitalise or restore the viability of the institution.
These powers are to be implemented so that, subject to certain exceptions, losses are borne first by shareholders,
then by holders of additional capital instruments qualifying as Tier 1 and Tier 2 (such as subordinated bonds),
then by the holders of non-preferred senior debt and finally by the holders of senior preferred debt, all in
accordance with the order of their claims in normal insolvency proceedings. For reference, BNPPF's medium-
to long-term wholesale financing at 31 December 2020 consisted of the following: EUR 0.07 billion in hybrid
Tier 1 debt, EUR 2.5 billion in Tier 2 subordinated debt, EUR 2.3 billion in structured notes and EUR 7.9 billion
in other senior unsecured debt. As of 31 December 2021, the financing consisted of the following: EUR 0.7
billion in hybrid, Tier 1, EUR 1 billion in Tier 2 subordinated debt, EUR 1.9 billion subordinated debt not
recognised in Tier 2, EUR 2.0 billion in structured notes and EUR 8.3 billion in other senior unsecured debt.

Resolution authorities have broad powers to implement resolution measures with respect to institutions and
groups subject to resolution proceedings, which may include (without limitation): the total or partial sale of the
institution's business to a third party or a bridge institution, the separation of assets, the replacement or
substitution of the institution as obligor in respect of debt instruments, the full or partial write down of capital
instruments, the dilution of capital instruments through the issuance of new equity, the full or partial write down
or conversion into equity of debt instruments, modifications to the terms of debt instruments (including altering
the maturity and/or the amount of interest payable and/or imposing a temporary suspension on payments),
discontinuing the listing and admission to trading of financial instruments, the dismissal of managers or the
appointment of a special manager (administrateur spécial).

Certain powers, including the full or partial write down of capital instruments, the dilution of capital instruments
through the issuance of new equity, the full or partial write down or conversion into equity of additional capital
instruments qualifying as Tier 1 and Tier 2 (such as subordinated bonds), can also be exercised as a precautionary
measure, outside of resolution proceedings and/or pursuant to the European Commission's State Aid framework
if the institution requires exceptional public financial support.

The implementation of these tools and powers with respect to BNPPF may result in significant structural changes
to BNPPF (including as a result of asset or business sales or the creation of bridge institutions) and in a partial
or total write down, modification or variation of claims of shareholders and creditors. Such powers may also
result, after any transfer of all or part of BNPPF's business or separation of any of its assets, in the holders of
securities (even in the absence of any such write down or conversion) being left as the creditors of BNPPF whose
remaining business or assets are insufficient to support the claims of all or any of the creditors of the BNP Paribas
Group.

Risks Related to BNPPF's Growth in its Current Environment

Epidemics and pandemics, including the ongoing coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and their economic

consequences may adversely affect BNPPF's business, operations, results and financial condition

A global pandemic linked to a novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) has severely disrupted economies and
financial markets worldwide since 2020. The introduction of lockdown measures and other restrictions initially
caused economies in many regions to contract, trade to decline, production capacity to decrease, growth forecasts
to be cut and supply chains to be disrupted. In a second phase, the rollout of vaccination campaigns and the
adaptation of economic actors allowed the gradual adaptation of these measures and restrictions, leading to a
recovery in economic activity. As a result, various growth forecasts converge on a strong economic recovery.
For example, according to the January 2022 estimates and projections of the International Monetary Fund (the
"IMF"), world economic growth is expected to be 5.9 % in 2021 and 4.4 % in 2022.

Nevertheless, uncertainties remain as to the strength and sustainability of the recovery, both in terms of the
public health situation (e.g., the appearance of new strains of the virus) and the economy (which could lead to
doubt as to the extent and durability of the recovery). In this respect, the outlook for 2022 was lowered for both

64



RISKS

emerging and developing countries, as well as for advanced countries, compared to the IMF projections
published in October 2021. Various complicating factors will affect the trajectory of economic recovery.
International supply chains, which had been strained severely by pandemic-related mobility restrictions, remain
heavily disrupted, generating shortages of certain consumer goods (such as a dearth of semiconductors causing
delays in the production of telephones and automobiles) and oil and gas supply and labour market constraints,
having both specific (for example, raw materials price increases) and general (inflation rate) effects on prices.

Further, while various governments and central banks implemented and supplemented measures to support the
economy and its recovery (to mitigate the adverse economic and market consequences of the pandemic) there
can be no assurance that such measures will suffice to redress the pandemic's negative impact on the regional or
global economy over time, entirely compensate for or mitigate regional or global recessions (which occurred
and could reoccur), or fully and over time prevent possible disruptions to the financial markets.

The lifting of government support measures could also harm economic activity and the financial strength of
economic actors. Overall, the crisis has impacted and may continue to impact the economies of the principal
countries where BNPPF operaties, particularly its domestic markets (Belgium, France and Luxembourg), which
collectively represented 75 per cent. of its total gross credit exposures as of 31 December 2021. BNPPF's results
and financial condition have been and could continue to be adversely impacted by the effects of the crisis related
to the pandemic and the resulting disruption of economic activity in its principal markets.

In particular, the crisis significantly affected BNPPF's cost of risk in 2020, reflecting macroeconomic projections
based on various scenarios applying the framework in place prior to the crisis. Under this framework,
macroeconomic projections (specifically GDP estimates and forecasts) are key to calculating the cost of risk and
the consequences of the health crisis included a temporary decrease in GDP growth estimates for many of
BNPPF's markets. The cost of risk calculation also takes into account the specific dynamics of the crisis in 2020,
along with anticipated future impacts on credit and counterparty risk, including the consequences of lockdown
measures on economic activity and the impact of government support measures and decisions. These factors
contributed to the substantial increase in BNPPF's cost of risk in 2020. In the 2021 financial year, that amounted
to EUR 359 million, corresponding to 18 basis points of average outstanding customer loans, to be compared to
32 basis points in 2020. The decrease in cost of risk (EUR 317 million) is mainly due to the provisioning of
expected losses on performing loans (stages 1 and 2) (EUR 79 million). This provisioning takes into account in
particular updated macroeconomic scenarios, in accordance with IFRS 9 principles.

Developments in the current health crisis and market conditions have characteristics that could increase the
probability and magnitude of various existing risks faced by BNPPF such as:

(a) pressure on revenues due in particular to (i) prolongation of the low interest rate environment; and (ii)
lower revenues from fees and commissions;

(b) renewed heightened risk linked to an economic slowdown due to inflationary pressures (energy prices,
labour market tensions), supply chain disruption or withdrawal of government support measures;

© risk of financial market disruption in the event of poorly anticipated changes in monetary policies; and
(d higher risk-weighted assets due to the deterioration of risk parameters, hence affecting BNPPF's capital
position.

BNPPF’s results and financial condition could also be harmed by negative trends in the financial markets, to the
extent that the pandemic initially caused extreme market conditions (such as, volatility spikes, a sharp drop in
equity markets, tensions on spreads, specific asset markets on hold). Uncertainties about the scope and durability
of the economic recovery, the easing or strengthening of government support measures, and the pressures linked
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to supply chains and raw material procurement have generated and could generate unfavourable market
conditions.

The extent to which the short, medium and long-term economic consequences of the pandemic will continue to
affect BNPPF's results and financial condition will depend largely on:

(a) the intensity and duration of restrictive measures that have been put in place or their periodic
reintroduction, depending on the evolution of the health situation;

(b) the timing and extent of a return to pre-pandemic lifestyles, business operations and economic
interactions;
(©) the effects of the measures taken to date or future measures that may be taken by governments and

central banks to attenuate the economic fallout of the pandemic or the terms and conditions for lifting
these measures; and

(d) the duration and extent of the pandemic's remaining course, including the prospect of new waves or the
appearance of new strains of the virus and, consequently, a reinstatement or strengthening of lockdown
measures or other restrictions, such as in relation to travel, in BNPPF's various markets, as well as the
pace and mechanisms of deployment of immunisation programmes. In addition, while the actions of
European Union and member states' authorities (in particular, central banks and governments) in
response to the pandemic have to date helped and may well continue to help, attenuate its adverse
economic and market consequences, the authorities have also issued and may continue to issue
additional restrictions or recommendations in respect of banks' actions. In particular, in 2020 and 2021
they limited banks' flexibility in managing their business and taking action in relation to capital
distribution, capital allocation and compensation policies.

Due to the unprecedented environment generated by the COVID-19 crisis, various pandemic-related
uncertainties around public health, society and the economy persist. The consequences for BNPPF will depend
on the duration of the impact of the crisis, the measures taken by governments and central banks and the ability
of society to recover, and are therefore difficult to predict.

BNPPF's current environment may be affected by the intense competition amongst banking and non-banking
operators, which could adversely affect BNPPF's revenues and profitability

Competition is intense in all of BNPPF's primary business areas in Belgium and the other countries in which it
conducts a substantial portion of its business, including other European countries and the United States.
Competition in the banking industry could intensify as a result of consolidation in the financial services area, as
a result of the presence of new players in the payment and the financing services area or the development of
crowdfunding platforms, as well as the continuing evolution of consumer habits in the banking sector. New
technologies that facilitate or transform transaction processes and payment systems, such as blockchain
technologies and related services, or that could significantly impact the fundamental mechanisms of the banking
system, such as central bank digital currencies ("CBDC"), have been developed in recent years or could be
developed in the near future. While it is difficult to predict the effects of these developments and the regulations
that apply to them, the use of such technology could nevertheless reduce the market share of banks, including
BNPPF, secure investments that otherwise would have used technology used by more established financial
institutions, such as BNPPF or, more broadly, lead to the emergence of a different monetary system in which
the attractiveness of using established financial institutions, such as BNPPF, would be affected. If such
developments continue to gain momentum, particularly with the support of governments and central banks, and
if BNPPF is unable to respond to the competitive environment in Belgium or in its other major markets by
offering more attractive, innovative and profitable product and service solutions than those offered by current
competitors or new entrants or if some of these activities were to be carried out by institutions other than banks,
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it may lose market share in key areas of its business or incur losses on some or all of its activities. In addition,
downturns in the economies of its principal markets could add to the competitive pressure, through, for example,
increased price pressure and lower business volumes for BNPPF and its competitors. It is also possible that the
imposition of more stringent requirements (particularly capital requirements and business restrictions) on large
or systemically significant financial institutions, that new players may not be subject to, could lead to distortions
in competition in a manner adverse to large private sector institutions such as BNPPF.

BNPPF could experience business disruption and losses due to climate change risks such as transition risks,
physical risks or liability risks

BNPPF is exposed to risks related to climate change, either directly through its own operations or indirectly
through its financing and investment activities. There are two main types of risks related to climate change: (i)
transition risks, which result from changes in the behaviour of economic and financial actors in response to the
implementation of energy policies or technological changes; (ii) physical risks, which result from the direct
impact of climate change on people and property through extreme weather events or long-term risks such as
rising water levels or increasing temperatures. In addition, liability risks may arise from both categories of risk.
They correspond to the damages that a legal entity would have to pay if it were found to be responsible for global
warming. BNPPF is progressively integrating the assessment of these risks into its risk management system. The
BNP Paribas Group monitors these risks in the conduct of its business, in the conduct of its counterparties’
business, and in its investments on its own behalf and on behalf of third parties. In this respect, the specific credit
policies and the General Credit Policy have been enhanced since 2012 and 2014, respectively, with the addition
of relevant clauses in terms of social and environmental responsibility. In addition, sector-specific policies and
policies excluding certain environmental, social and governance sectors from financing have also been put in
place. In 2019, as part of the fight against climate change, the BNP Paribas Group made new commitments to
reduce its exposure to thermal coal to zero by 2030 in the European Union and by 2040 for the rest of the world.
The BNP Paribas Group also supports its clients, both individuals and businesses, in their transition to a low-
carbon economy. The BNP Paribas Group also aims to reduce the environmental footprint of its own operations.
Despite the actions taken by the BNP Paribas Group to monitor risks and combat climate change, physical,
transition or liability risks related to climate change could disrupt business or lead to losses.

Changes in certain holdings in credit or financial institutions could have an impact on BNPPF's financial
position

Certain classes of assets may carry a high risk-weight of 250%. These assets include: credit or financial
institutions consolidated under the equity method within the prudential scope (excluding insurance); significant
financial interest in credit or financial institutions in which BNPPF holds a stake of more than 10%; and deferred
tax assets that rely on future profitability and arise from temporary differences.

The risk-weighted assets carrying a risk-weight of 250% amounted to EUR 8.5 billion at 31 December 2021, or
7.0% of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPPF. If BNPPF increases the amount of heavy risk-weighted assets
(either by increasing the proportion of such heavy risk-weighted assets in its overall asset portfolio or due to an
increase of the regulatory risk-weighting applicable to these assets), its capital adequacy ratios may be lowered.

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO SECURITIES

A number of the risks described below may be relevant to a specific Series of Securities, depending on the terms of those

Securities. The effect of this compounding of risks is likely to increase the volatility of the Securities and increase the

possibility that a Holder loses some or all of their investment or does not receive the anticipated return.

Risks Relating to the Structure of the Securities

Risks associated with specific types of products
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Risks associated with SPS Products:

®

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

Risks associated with Reverse Convertible Products

The return on the Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and whether
a knock-in event occurs. As a consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial or total loss of their
investment.

Risks associated with Vanilla Products

The return depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and whether knock-in or knock-
out features apply. As a consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial or total loss of their
investment.

Risks associated with Asian Products

The return on the Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s), which is
determined using an averaging method. The return will also depend on whether specific features, such
as a cap, a floor or lock-in, apply. As a consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial or total loss
of their investment.

Risks associated with Auto-callable Products

The return on the Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and whether
knock-in or knock out features apply. Auto-callable Products include automatic early redemption
mechanisms. Depending on the applicable formula, if an automatic early redemption event occurs
investors may be exposed to a partial loss of their investment. As a consequence, investors may be
exposed to a partial or total loss of their investment.

Risks associated with Indexation Products

The return on the Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and whether
knock-in, knock-out and/or automatic early redemption features apply. Depending on the applicable
formula, if an automatic early redemption event occurs investors may be exposed to a partial loss of
their investment. As a consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial or total loss of their
investment.

Risks associated with Ratchet Products

The return on the Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and is
calculated based on the sum of returns determined on a given formula (which can be capped and/or
floored). As a consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial or total loss of their investment.

Risks associated with Sum Products

The return on the Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and is
calculated based on the weighted sum of returns determined using different payout formulae. As a
consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial or total loss of their investment.
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(viii)  Risks associated with Option Max Products

The return on the Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and is
calculated based on the maximum return determined using different payout formulae. As a
consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial or total loss of their investment.

(ix) Risks associated with Stellar Products

The return on the Securities depends on the performance of a basket of Underlying References and is
calculated based on the average returns of each Underlying Reference in the basket (which can be
capped and/or floored). As a consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial loss of their
investment.

x) Risks associated with Driver Products

The return on the Securities depends on the performance of a basket of Underlying References. The
return is determined by reference to the average return of the basket, where the performance of one or
more of the best performing Underlying Reference(s) is set at a fixed level. As a consequence, investors
may be exposed to a partial loss of their investment.

(xi) Risks associated with Transition Products

The return on the Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and whether
knock-in and/or automatic early redemption features apply. Depending on the applicable formula,
investors may be exposed to a partial or total loss of their investment.

(b) Risks associated with FI Products:
@) Risks associated with Vanilla Products

The return on the Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and whether
knock-in or knock-out features apply. As a consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial or total
loss of their investment.

(i) Risks associated with Digital Products

The return on the Securities is fixed or variable and will be dependent upon the performance of the
Underlying Reference(s). The return is calculated by reference to various mechanisms (including floor
or cap conditions and knock-in and/or knock-out features). As a consequence, investors may be exposed
to a partial or total loss of their investment.

The formulae, relevant variables and other related provisions of these products are more fully described in "Annex 1 —
Additional Terms and Conditions for Payouts".

Securities subject to early redemption at the option of the Issuer, other early redemption (including Automatic Early

Redemption) and consequences of early redemption

An optional or other early redemption feature (including an Automatic Early Redemption feature) is likely to limit the
market value of the Securities. In the case of Securities with an optional redemption feature, during any period when the
relevant Issuer may elect to redeem the relevant Securities, the market value of those Securities generally will not rise
substantially above the price at which they can be redeemed. This may also be true prior to any redemption period. In
addition, the Final Terms may provide that the relevant Securities will be redeemed early in specified circumstances, such
as the occurrence of an Additional Disruption Event (as defined in Condition 9.1 (Additional Disruption Events and
Optional Additional Disruption Events)), an Optional Additional Disruption Event (as defined in Condition 9.1

69



RISKS

(Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption Events)) and/or an Automatic Early Redemption Event
(as defined in Condition 12 (Automatic Early Redemption Event)). Following an optional or other early redemption
(including an Automatic Early Redemption), a Holder generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds
(if any) at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the relevant Securities being redeemed and may only be
able to do so at a significantly lower rate. As a consequence, the Holder may lose some or all of their investment.
Investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at that time. In addition, in the case of
Securities with an Automatic Early Redemption feature, the value of the Securities and the amount that Holders receive
upon an Automatic Early Redemption may not correlate with the value of the Underlying Reference, which may trigger
such Automatic Early Redemption and Holders could receive a significantly lower return than expected in relation to the
change in value of the Underlying Reference.

Minimum trading amount may affect a Holder's ability to transfer their Securities

If the Securities have a minimum trading amount, a Holder will not be permitted to transfer its Securities prior to
redemption without purchasing enough additional Securities to hold the minimum trading amount. The Holder may not
be able to purchase additional Securities, in which case they will have to wait until redemption of the Securities to realise
any value. If they are able to purchase additional Securities, this may be at a price higher than their original investment
and is likely to adversely affect the overall return they achieve on their investment.

Risks associated with Securities traded in integral multiples that are different to the minimum Specified Denomination

If the Securities are traded in denominations consisting of a minimum Specified Denomination plus one or more higher
integral multiples of another smaller amount, such Securities may be traded in amounts in excess of the minimum
Specified Denomination that are not integral multiples of such minimum Specified Denomination. If at any time Holder
holds an amount which is less than the minimum Specified Denomination they would not be able to sell or transfer the
remainder of such holding or exchange the remainder of such holding for a definitive Security without first purchasing a
principal amount of Securities at or in excess of the minimum Specified Denomination. In these circumstances, there is
a risk that the price to purchase additional Securities may be greater than the original price paid by the investor and/or
such Securities may be illiquid and difficult to trade meaning that Holders may be required to retain their investment until
redemption.

Certain specific information may not be known at the beginning of an offer period

Where an indicative range is specified in the Final Terms at the start of an offer period in respect of the issue price,
Gearing, Gearing Up, Bonus Coupon, Up Cap Percentage, any Constant Percentage, barrier value or level, Floor
Percentage, Knock-in Level and/or Knock-out Level, prospective purchasers of Securities should be aware that the actual
price, rate, level or percentage, as applicable, selected from within the indicative range specified for the issue price,
Gearing, Gearing Up, Bonus Coupon, Up Cap Percentage, any Constant Percentage, barrier value or level, Floor
Percentage, Knock-in Level and/or Knock-out Level, as applicable, in respect of any Securities may have a negative
impact on the interest payable and/or final return on the Securities when compared with another price, rate, level or
percentage, as applicable, within the indicative range.

Gap Risk

The relevant level, value or price of one or more Underlying Reference(s) may change suddenly and significantly during
the trading day or at the opening of the market. Such change may be positive or negative and is known as the "Gap Risk".
If the price of the Securities includes a premium, this will be calculated to take account of the cost to the Issuer or its
Affiliates of unwinding its hedging positions in relation to the Securities on early redemption of the Securities and the
Gap Risk associated with the relevant level, value or price of the Underlying Reference(s). Holders will not receive a
refund of this premium if an Automatic Early Redemption Event occurs, which could significantly reduce the return a
Holder stands to receive on its investment.
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Limited exposure to Underlying Reference(s)

If the applicable Final Terms provide that the exposure of the relevant Securities to one or more Underlying References
is limited or capped at a certain level or amount, the relevant Securities will not benefit from any upside in the value of
any such Underlying Reference(s) beyond such limit or cap. In this case, Holders will not receive as much from their
investment as they would have done if they had invested directly in the Underlying Reference(s) or in alternative
Securities without such features. The likelihood of this occurring is dependent on the likelihood of the Underlying
Reference(s) performing such that the limit or cap affects the Securities.

If the rate of interest payable on the Securities or the amount payable or deliverable on redemption of the Securities
changes during the life of the Securities, Holders may receive less than expected

If specified in the applicable Final Terms and the Issuer exercises its Coupon Switch Election or Payout Switch Election
or if an Automatic Coupon Switch Event or Automatic Payout Switch Event occurs (see Condition 3.9 (Coupon Switch)
(in the case of a Coupon Switch Election or an Automatic Coupon Switch Event) or Condition 5.12 (Payout Switch) (in
the case of a Payout Switch Election or an Automatic Payout Switch Event)), the coupon or redemption payout, as the
case may be, on such Securities will change during the life of the Securities and investors may receive a return which
differs from, and may be significantly less than, that which they expected to receive as of the Issue Date or they may
receive no return.

The terms of the Securities may in certain circumstances be changed during the life of the Securities, in which case
Holders may receive a lower return than expected

If Autoroll is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms and an Autoroll Event occurs (see Condition 5.6
(Autoroll)), the terms of the Securities (including, (a) (if Autoroll Standard is specified in the applicable Final Terms) the
Final Payout, Knock-in Event or Knock-out Event (as the case may be), Automatic Early Redemption Event, Strike Date,
the Coupon Payout and/or Maturity Date or (b) (if Autoroll Lock or Autoroll Shift are specified in the applicable Final
Terms) any level specified in the applicable Final Terms in respect of the Final Payout, the Knock-in Event or Knock-out
Event, the Automatic Early Redemption Event and/or the Coupon Payout) will be amended to the relevant terms specified
in the applicable Final Terms. If the terms of the Securities are amended during the life of the Securities investors may
receive a return which differs from, and may be significantly less than, that which they expected to receive or they may
receive no return.

Risk of leveraged exposure

Securities including a leverage feature magnify gains and losses. If the Underlying Reference moves against expectations,
Holders risk losing a greater proportion of their investment than if they had invested in a Security that is not leveraged.

Risks associated with Actively Managed Securities

The Issuer may issue Securities ("Actively Managed Securities") where the amount payable on redemption is dependent
upon the performance of a notional portfolio of Shares, ETI Interests and/or Custom Indices (the "Reference Portfolio"),
the composition of which may be reallocated to reflect adjustments proposed by a Basket Allocation Agent appointed
pursuant to a Basket Allocation Agency Agreement (each as specified in the applicable Final Terms) in connection with
the Securities and the relevant Reference Portfolio. Investors should note that the Basket Allocation Agent has the right,
but not the obligation, to propose a reallocation to the Reference Portfolio in accordance with the terms of the relevant
Basket Alloction Agency Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, references in these risk factors to Underlying
Reference(s), include any Reference Portfolio and, as the context permits, the Shares, ETI Interests and Custom Indices
(if any) comprising such Reference Portfolio from time to time.

Investors are exposed to decision(s) of the relevant Basket Allocation Agent in relation to the composition of the
Reference Portfolio, which decision(s) may reduce the value of the Reference Portfolio and thereby the amount (if any)
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payable under the Actively Managed Securities. Investors should note that the Calculation Agent will reject a proposed
reallocation to the Reference Portfolio by the Basket Allocation Agent if the Calculation Agent determines that such
proposed reallocation (i) does not comply with the Investment Strategy Guidelines, (ii) would cause the Issuer, the Hedge
Provider and/or any of their relevant Affiliates to be subject to any restrictions or prohibitions in acquiring and/or
disposing of any components of the Reference Portfolio, (iii) would or could result in the Reference Portfolio referencing
a component the issuer of which is directly or indirectly subject to sanctions, (iv) could result in the Hedge Provider being
unable to execute any sale or purchase of the relevant Portfolio Component or (v) could result in the Issuer and/or its
Affiliates being restricted from providing a secondary market in respect of the Securities. Any such rejection may result
in a lower value of the Reference Portfolio and thereby reduce the amount that may otherwise have been payable in
respect of the Actively Managed Securities and none of the Issuer, the Calculation Agent nor the Basket Allocation Agent
will have any liability in such respect, including without limitation in relation to any determination as to whether a
proposed reallocation meets such criteria. In certain circumstances the performance of the Reference Portfolio may be
such that no amounts are payable on redemption of the Actively Managed Securities and investors may lose their entire
investment. Investors should ensure that they review and understand the criteria which must be met for the Reference
Portfolio to be reallocated to reflect adjustments proposed by the Basket Allocation Agent and the discretions of the
Basket Allocation Agent, the Issuer and the Calculation Agent in respect of the Reference Portfolio and the Securities.
No assurance is given that the Basket Allocation Agent will manage the composition of the Reference Portfolio to produce
a return to Holders and no party (including, without limitation, the Issuer or the Calculation Agent) accepts any liability
to the extent that any Holders suffer a loss as a result of a failure by the Basket Allocation Agent to do so.

The value of the Reference Portfolio will also be reduced for certain advisory, reallocation and structuring fees, reflecting
fees of the Basket Allocation Agent, costs of reallocations and fees of the Calculation Agent respectively, which may
negate any positive performance of the Reference Portfolio and, if the Reference Portfolio performs negatively, increase
a Holder's loss of investment.

In the event that the appointment of the Basket Allocation Agent terminates prior to the redemption of the Actively
Managed Securities (and no successor has been appointed), the management of the Reference Portfolio by the Basket
Allocation Agent will cease, meaning investors will be exposed to the performance of the specific Shares, ETI Interests
and Custom Indices (if any) comprising the Reference Portfolio at that time and there will be no further reallocations
thereafter which could otherwise have improved the value of the Reference Portfolio.

If any component of the Reference Portfolio is deemed to no longer satisfy the Investment Strategy Guidelines, investors
should note that any such affected component will be removed from the Reference Portfolio and the exposure of the
Reference Portfolio to the remaining components adjusted accordingly, which may be detrimental to the performance of
the Reference Portfolio. The Actively Managed Securities may be subject to further adjustment to account for the deemed
reallocation as a consequence.

As the Reference Portfolio may at any time be comprised of components that are Shares, Custom Indices and/or ETI
Interests that is a Share, a Custom Index or an ETI Interest, respectively, investors should also refer to the risks described
under "Additional risks associated with Share Securities", "An adjustment to Share Securities following a Potential
Adjustment Event may adversely impact Holders", "Extraordinary Events relating to Share Securities", "Securities Linked
to Shares traded on the China Connect Service", "Additional risks associated with ETI Securities", "An adjustment to ETI
Securities following a Potential Adjustment Event may adversely impact Holders", "The occurrence of an Extraordinary
ETI Event (where ETI Share Provisions is not applicable) or Extraordinary Event (where ETI Share Provisions is
applicable) may have an adverse impact on Holders" and "Additional risks associated with Index Securities", which set

out the risks associated with such potential component types.
Risks associated with Dynamic Securities

Securities linked to a portfolio or strategy that comprises assets with a greater potential for return and consequently greater
risk (such as a hedge fund) and assets with a lower return and consequently lesser risk (such as a zero coupon debt security

72



RISKS

issued by an issuer with a high credit rating) are described by the relevant Issuer as "Dynamic Securities”. The impact
of any rebalancing of the portfolio or strategy and any leverage features will affect the value of the portfolio or strategy
and, in turn the value of the Dynamic Securities. If the portfolio or strategy does not perform as expected, the value of
the Dynamic Securities and the return an investor can expect will be adversely affected.

The terms of the Notes do not contain a negative pledge and the Issuer is entitled to incur additional debt

There is no negative pledge in respect of the Notes and the Terms and Conditions of the Securities place no restrictions
on the incurrence by the relevant Issuer or the relevant Guarantor of additional obligations that rank pari passu with, or
senior to, the Notes. In addition, the relevant Issuer or the relevant Guarantor may pledge assets to secure other notes or
debt instruments without granting an equivalent pledge or security interest and status to the Notes. An increase of the
outstanding amount of such securities or other liabilities could reduce the amount (if any) recoverable by the Holders on
a winding-up of the relevant Issuer or the relevant Guarantor, if the amount outstanding exceeds the assets of the relevant
Issuer or the relevant Guarantor. Holders could suffer a loss of their entire investment if the relevant Issuer or the relevant
Guarantor becomes insolvent (whether voluntarily or otherwise).

Risks Relating to the Underlying Reference(s) and Disruption and/or Adjustment Mechanisms
Risks associated with Underlying Reference Securities

Securities issued under this Base Prospectus may be linked to the performance of one or more Underlying Reference(s)
(as further described in the "Investment Considerations" section below) (such Securities, "Underlying Reference
Securities"). Depending on the terms of the Underlying Reference Securities, the amount payable on redemption or in
interest will be determined by reference to the value of one or more Underlying References specified in the applicable
Final Terms. If an Underlying Reference does not perform as expected, this will have a material adverse impact on the
amounts (if any) that Holders will receive in respect of the Securities and may also negatively affect the value of the
Securities.

Absence of rights in respect of the Underlying Reference(s)

The Securities do not represent a claim against any Underlying Reference (or any issuer, sponsor, manager or other
connected person in respect of an Underlying Reference) and Holders will not have any right of recourse under the
Securities to any such Underlying Reference (or any issuer, sponsor, manager or other connected person in respect of an
Underlying Reference). The Securities are not in any way sponsored, endorsed or promoted by any issuer, sponsor,
manager or other connected person in respect of an Underlying Reference and such entities have no obligation to take
into account the consequences of their actions on any Holders and such consequences may have a negative impact on
Holders. Investors in Physically Settled Securities should also refer to "Risks associated with Physically Settled
Securities" below.

Risks associated with Physically Settled Securities

If the Securities are Physically Settled Securities (as defined in Condition 1.1 (Form, Denomination and Title)) or in the
case of Credit Securities that provide for physical delivery (see "Annex 12 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Credit
Securities"), Holders will only obtain a direct investment in the Underlying Reference or the relevant assets, in the case
of Credit Securities and have a right to participate in any voting, dividends, distributions or other rights of the Underlying
Reference or the relevant assets, in the case of Credit Securities, as the case may be, upon delivery of the Entitlement or
the relevant assets, in the case of Credit Securities. Holders of Securities or physically settled Credit Securities are
exposed to the risk that the market value of the Entitlement or the relevant assets, in the case of Credit Securities is less
than the market value of the Securities and Holders may not subsequently be able to realise any cash value from the assets
comprising the Entitlement or the relevant assets, in the case of Credit Securities. This risk is increased if the assets
comprising the Entitlement or the relevant assets, in the case of Credit Securities have a nexus with an emerging market

(see "Additional risks associated with Securities with a nexus to emerging markets" above).
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In the case of Physical Delivery Securities, if a Settlement Disruption Event occurs or exists on the Maturity Date,
settlement will be postponed until the next Settlement Business Day in respect of which there is no Settlement Disruption
Event. The relevant Issuer in these circumstances also has the right to pay the Disruption Cash Redemption Amount (as
defined in Condition 4(b)(1)(E) (Settlement Disruption)) in lieu of delivering the Entitlement. The Disruption Cash
Redemption Amount may be less than the fair market value of the Entitlement and could be less than the return that the
investor had anticipated.

The value of Underlying References may be subject to market fluctuations

Depending on the Underlying Reference, the value of a Holder's investment in Underlying Reference Securities, may be
significantly adversely affected by the negative impact of market fluctuations caused by economic and political
developments, changes in interest rates and perceived trends in the prices of securities.

Interest linked to an Underlying Reference

In the case of Linked Interest Notes (see Condition 3.3 (Interest on Linked Interest Notes)), where the amount of interest
payable is determined by reference to the performance of an Underlying Reference or a basket of Underlying References,
Holders are subject to the following risks:

(a) the market price of such Securities may be volatile, and so Holders may only be able to sell their Securities in
the secondary market at a loss (if they are able to sell at all);

(b) they may receive no interest;

(©) payment of interest may occur at a different time or in a different currency than expected, which could negatively
affect the value of the Securities;

(d an Underlying Reference may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest
rates, currencies or other indices and the yield may be less than other comparable investments;

(e) if an Underlying Reference in a basket has a disproportionately greater weighting compared to other basket
components or a weighting greater than one or contains some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the
value of such Underlying Reference on interest payable will be magnified and could magnify any loss of interest
that Holders would experience compared to an investment in Securities without such features; and

®) interest may only be payable and/or calculated in respect of certain specified days and/or periods on or during
which the Underlying Reference or its value equals, exceeds and/or is less than certain specified thresholds and
if such conditions are not satisfied, Holders may not receive any interest, thus negatively affecting the Holder's
overall yield.

Investment decision based on publicly available information

Holders are required to make their investment decision on the basis of information that is publicly available. Therefore,
Holders are exposed to the risk that information that is subsequently made public could adversely affect the trading price
of the Underlying Reference(s), which could have a significant adverse impact on the value of the Securities.

Risks associated with the occurrence of Additional Disruption Events and/or Optional Additional Disruption Events

If an Additional Disruption Event occurs or any Optional Additional Disruption Event specified in the applicable Final
Terms occurs (other than in respect of a Failure to Deliver due to Illiquidity) (each as defined in Condition 9.1 (Additional
Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption Events)), the Securities may be subject to adjustment (including,
in the case of Share Securities linked to a Basket of Shares, adjustments to the Basket of Shares), early redemption or the
amount payable on scheduled redemption may be different from the amount expected to be paid at scheduled redemption.
In the case of Index Securities linked to a Custom Index, the occurrence of an Additional Disruption Event or Optional
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Redemption Event specified in the applicable Final Terms may lead to the selection of a successor Index. Any of these
consequences is likely to have a material adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the Securities and/or the return a
Holder can expect to receive on their investment.

The occurrence of a Disrupted Day may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the Index Securities, Share
Securities, ETI Securities, Debt Securities or Futures Securities

If, in the determination of the Calculation Agent, a Market Disruption Event as described in the Index Security Conditions,
Share Security Conditions, ETT Security Conditions, Debt Security Conditions or Futures Security Conditions (as the
case may be) has occurred or the relevant exchange has not opened on a date for valuation in respect of an issue of Index
Securities, Share Securities, ETI Securities, Debt Securities or Futures Securities (a "Disrupted Day"), any consequential
postponement of the valuation date, or any alternative provisions for valuation provided in any Securities in respect of an
Underlying Reference (including any Underlying Reference comprising a basket) may have an adverse effect on the value
and liquidity of such Securities, particularly if the Maturity Date of the Securities is postponed as a consequence.

Additional risks associated with Index Securities

Index Securities are linked to the performance of an underlying index (an "Index"), which may reference various asset
classes, such as equities, bonds, currency exchange rates or property price data, or could reference a mixture of asset
classes. Investors in Index Securities face the risk of a broader set of circumstances that mean that the assets underlying
the Index do not perform as expected compared to an investment in conventional debt securities. Accordingly, the return
on an investment in Index Securities is more likely to be adversely affected than an investment in conventional debt
securities. The terms and conditions relevant to Index Securities are set out in "Annex 2 — Additional Terms and Conditions
for Index Securities".

In the case of Index Securities that are linked to the performance of a proprietary index (a "Custom Index"), if the
components of the Custom Index are subject to regular rebalancing in accordance with the methodology of the Custom
Index, this may be determined (in whole or in part) by reference to criteria specified in the index and/or one or more lists
of assets compiled by an independent third party (such as research lists, analytical reports or "top picks" guides). Such
third parties have no regard to the interests of Holders and any such rebalancing could negatively affect the performance
of a Custom Index and the value of the Index Securities.

The occurrence of an Index Adjustment Event may adversely impact Holders of Index Securities

The occurrence of an Index Modification, an Index Cancellation or an Index Disruption (each being an "Index
Adjustment Event", as more fully described in Index Security Condition 3.2 (Modification and Cessation of Calculation
of an Index)) may lead to (i) changes in the calculation of the relevant value or price (if the Calculation Agent determines
such Index Adjustment Event has a material effect on the Securities), (ii) early redemption of the Securities or (iii) the
amount payable on scheduled redemption of the Securities being different from the amount expected to be paid at
scheduled redemption. Any such adjustment or early redemption of the Index Securities may have an adverse effect on
the value and liquidity of such Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment.

Additional risks associated with Share Securities

Unlike a direct investment in any Share(s), Stapled Share(s), GDR(s) and/or ADR(s) comprising the Underlying
Reference(s) (together the "Share(s)"), an investment in Share Securities does not entitle Holders to vote or receive
dividends or distributions (unless otherwise specified in the Final Terms). Accordingly, the return on Share Securities
will not be the same as a direct investment in the relevant Share(s) and Holders could receive less than they would have
done on a direct investment. The terms and conditions relevant to Share Securities are set out in "Annex 3 — Additional

Terms and Conditions for Share Securities".

An adjustment to Share Securities following a Potential Adjustment Event may adversely impact Holders
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In the case of Share Securities, following the declaration by the Basket Company or Share Company, as the case may be
(or, in the case of Stapled Shares, an issuer of each constituent share comprising the Stapled Shares), of the occurrence
of any Potential Adjustment Event (as more fully described in Share Security Condition 3 (Potential Adjustment Events)),
the Calculation Agent will, acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner, determine whether such
Potential Adjustment Event has a diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the Shares (or the Stapled
Shares, as the case may be) and, if so, will make the corresponding adjustment, if any, to any terms of the Securities as
the Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner determines appropriate to account
for that diluting or concentrative effect (provided that no adjustments will be made to account solely for changes in
volatility, expected dividends, stock loan rate or liquidity relative to the relevant Share (or the relevant Stapled Shares, as
the case may be)). Such adjustment may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the affected Share Securities
and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment.

Extraordinary Events relating to Share Securities

Following the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event (as defined in Share Security Condition 4 (Extraordinary Events))
in relation to a Share, the terms of the Share Securities may be adjusted (including, in the case of Share Securities linked
to a Basket of Shares, adjustments to and/or substitution of constituent shares of the Basket of Shares), the Share Securities
may be redeemed in whole or in part or the Calculation Agent may make an adjustment corresponding to adjustments
made by an Options Exchange.

An adjustment to the Share Securities may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the affected Share
Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment. If the Share Securities are early
redeemed, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest the relevant proceeds at an effective interest rate as high as
the effective return on the relevant Securities being redeemed and may only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate,
and investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at that time. Consequently, the
occurrence of an Extraordinary Event in relation to a Share may have an adverse effect on the value or liquidity of the
Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment.

Securities Linked to Shares traded on the China Connect Service

In respect of Securities linked to Shares traded on the China Connect Service where "China Connect" is specified as
applicable in the applicable Final Terms, if a China Connect Share Disqualification or a China Connect Service
Termination (each as more fully described in Share Security Condition 4.1 (Extraordinary Events)) occurs such Securities
may be subject to adjustment (including, in the case of Share Securities linked to a Basket of Shares, adjustments to the
Basket of Shares) or early redemption or the amount payable on scheduled redemption may be different from the amount
expected to be paid at scheduled redemption. Furthermore, if "China Connect" is specified in the applicable Final Terms,
the Conditions will include provisions dealing with (a)(i) the suspension of or limitations on routing of orders through the
China Connect Service or (ii) events disrupting the ability of market participants to enter orders through the China Connect
Service, where the Calculation Agent determines such disruption is material at any time during the one hour period that
ends at the relevant time for valuation or (b) the unexpected early closure of the China Connect Service, in each case on
a date for valuation of a Share (including any Share comprising a Basket of Shares). If the Calculation Agent determines
that such circumstances exist on any relevant date for valuation, such date may be subject to postponement or alternative
provisions for valuation may apply (see "Consequences of a Disrupted Day" under the "Investment Considerations"
section below). Any of these consequences is likely to have a material adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the
Securities and/or the return a Holder can expect to receive on their investment.

Additional risks associated with ETI Securities

An investment in ETT Securities carries similar risks to an investment in Share Securities or Fund Securities. An exchange
traded instrument (an "ETI") may invest using sophisticated techniques, such as leverage or short selling or in complex
financial instruments such as derivatives (swaps, options, futures), securities lending transactions, repurchase or reverse
repurchase agreements or foreign exchange instruments. If the investment strategy of the ETI is not successful it will
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have a negative impact upon the performance of the ETI, and consequently, could have a negative impact on the value of
the ETI Securities and the return investors may receive. Holders of ETI Securities have no right to participate in the ETI,
whether by voting or in any distributions. Accordingly, the return a Holder of ETI Securities receives could be less (and
could be significantly less) than a direct investment in an ETI. This effect could be amplified if the ETI Share Provisions
(as set out in ETI Security Conditions 9 to 14) are specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms and the value
of the ETT is linked to the NAV per ETTI Interest, the trading price of the ETT or the actual redemption proceeds the Hedge
Provider or a hypothetical investor in the relevant ETI(s) would receive. The terms and conditions relevant to ETI
Securities are set out in "Annex 4 — Additional Terms and Conditions for ETI Securities".

An adjustment to ETI Securities following a Potential Adjustment Event may adversely impact Holders

In the case of ETI Securities, following the declaration by the relevant ETI or any person appointed to provide services
directly or indirectly in respect of such ETI, as the case may be, of the terms of any Potential Adjustment Event (as more
fully described in ETI Security Condition 3 (Potential Adjustment Events) or (if the ETI Share Provisions are specified
as applicable in the applicable Final Terms) ETI Security Condition 11 (Potential Adjustment Events)), the Calculation
Agent will, acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner, determine whether such Potential Adjustment
Event has a diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the ETI Interests and, if so, will make the
corresponding adjustment, if any, to any terms of the Securities as the Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in a
commercially reasonable manner determines appropriate to account for that diluting or concentrative effect (provided that
no adjustments will be made to account solely for changes in volatility, expected dividends, stock loan rate or liquidity
relative to the relevant ETI Interest). Such adjustment may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the
affected ETI Securities, and accordingly, the amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment.

The occurrence of an Extraordinary ETI Event (where ETI Share Provisions is not applicable) or Extraordinary Event
(where ETI Share Provisions is applicable) may have an adverse impact on Holders

If an Extraordinary ETI Event or an Extraordinary Event (each as further described in the "Investment Considerations"
section below and ETI Security Condition 4 (Extraordinary ETI Events) or (if the ETI Share Provisions are specified as
applicable in the applicable Final Terms) ETI Security Condition 12 (Extraordinary Events)) occurs, the Issuer may (i)
adjust the terms of the ETI Securities to reflect such event, (ii) substitute the relevant ETI Interests, or (iii) early redeem
the ETI Securities. Consequently, the occurrence of an Extraordinary ETI Event or an Extraordinary Event, as the case
may be, may have an adverse effect on the value or liquidity of the Securities and the amount Holders can expect to
receive on their investment.

The occurrence of a Market Disruption Event relating to Commodity Securities may have an adverse impact on Holders

If a Market Disruption Event (as defined in Commodity Security Condition 2 (Market Disruption)) occurs or is continuing
on a date for valuation in respect of Commodity Securities, then the Calculation Agent may make any relevant calculation
in respect of the Commodity Securities using an alternative value in lieu of the published price, the affected Commodity,
the affected Commodity Index or the affected EU Allowance, as the case may be, may be substituted, the Issuer will early
redeem the Securities or (in the case of a Commodity that is an EU Allowance) make any appropriate adjustment(s) to
the terms of the Commodity Securities as determined by the Calculation Agent, acting in good faith and in a commercially
reasonable manner. Any such adjustment or early redemption of the Securities may have an adverse effect on the value
and liquidity of such Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment.

The occurrence of a Commodity Index Adjustment Event may adversely impact Holders of Commodity Securities that

reference a Commodity Index

The occurrence of a Commodity Index Modification, Commodity Index Cancellation or Commodity Index Disruption
(each being a "Commodity Index Adjustment Event", as more fully described in Commodity Security Condition 4(b)
(Modification and Cessation of Calculation of Commodity Index)) may lead to (i) the Calculation Agent determining the
Relevant Price using, in lieu of a published level, the Commodity Fallback Value (if the Calculation Agent determines
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such Commodity Index Adjustment Event has a material effect on the Securities), or (ii) early redemption of the
Securities. Any such adjustment or early redemption of the Commodity Securities may have an adverse effect on the
value and liquidity of such Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment.

Additional risks associated with Commodity Securities referencing a proprietary commodity index

If the Commodity Securities reference the performance of a proprietary commodity index, the operational rules of the
commodity index (which may not be publicly available) will affect how the level of the commodity index is determined
in the event of a disruption. A delay in the publication of the commodity index could adversely affect the commodity
index and consequently, the value of the Commodity Securities, which in turn could negatively affect the return an
investor can expect to receive on the Commodity Securities. The terms and conditions relevant to Commodity Securities
are set out in "Annex 6 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Commodity Securities".

Additional risks associated with Commodity Securities referencing EU Allowances

Trading in carbon emissions is a developing market and is highly speculative and volatile. The carbon emissions trading
market has been and may again be subject to temporary distortions or other disruptions due to various factors, including
the lack of liquidity in the market, the participation of speculators and government regulation and intervention. In addition,
in respect of the emissions trading market in Europe, EU Allowances have allegedly been stolen or "phished" from the
national registries of several European countries and from the carbon trading accounts of market participants. This has
caused severe market disruption in the European carbon trading market with delivery of EU Allowances suspended for
significant periods. Any such disruption in the future would have a detrimental impact on the value or settlement of
Commodity Securities referencing EU Allowances.

Additional risks associated with Currency Securities

Fluctuations in exchange rates are affected by complex political and economic factors, including governmental action to
fix or support the value of a currency, regardless of other market forces. If the rate of issuance of exchange rate instruments
(such as warrants, securities or options relating to particular currencies or currency indices) increases, the value of
Currency Securities in the secondary market will decline. Holders of Currency Securities risk losing some or all of their
investment if exchange rates of the relevant currency (or basket of currencies) do not move in the direction they had
anticipated. Additionally, if Currency Securities are settled in a currency other than the Holder's home currency, the
negative effects of exchange rate fluctuations will be greater (see also "Exchange control risks" below). The terms and
conditions relevant to Currency Securities are set out in "Annex 8 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Currency

Securities".
Additional risks associated with Fund Securities (other than where the Fund is a Euro Fund)

The value of underlying fund shares or units or the level of an underlying fund index in respect of Fund Securities will
be affected by the investment strategy of the relevant fund. The investment strategy is often opaque and may not be
publicly available. In addition, funds are often illiquid and/or unregulated. If the investment strategy does not perform as
expected, there are limited methods by which direct investments in fund shares or units can be exited. The value of the
fund shares or units or the level of a fund index is also exposed to the performance of various fund service providers, in
particular, the investment adviser. Taking these circumstances into account, compared to other types of investment, there
is a greater risk associated with an investment in Fund Securities that the value of the Securities may be adversely affected
(and could fall to zero) and the return Holders can expect may be less (and could be significantly less) than expected. The
terms and conditions relevant to Fund Securities are set out in "Annex 9 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Fund

Securities".

The occurrence of an Extraordinary Fund Event may have an adverse impact on Holders
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Unless the Fund is a Euro Fund, if an Extraordinary Fund Event (as further described in the "Investment Considerations"
section below and Fund Security Condition 2 (Extraordinary Fund Events)) occurs, the Issuer may, (i) adjust the terms
of the Fund Securities to reflect such event, (ii) substitute the relevant Fund Shares, or (iii) early redeem the Fund
Securities. Consequently, the occurrence of an Extraordinary Fund Event may have an adverse effect on the value or
liquidity of the Securities and the amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment.

Date for redemption may be postponed if Hedge Provider does not receive redemption proceeds from Fund Shares

In the event that redemption proceeds in respect of the underlying Fund Shares are not received by the Hedge Provider
on or prior to the scheduled date for redemption, the Maturity Date of the Fund Securities (other than where the Fund is
a Euro Fund) may be postponed for a period of up to two calendar years (or such other period as may be specified in the
applicable Final Terms) in accordance with Fund Security Condition 5 (Interest Payment Date/Maturity Date/Automatic
Early Redemption Date/Termination Date Extension) and no additional amount shall be payable as a result of such delay.
Such delay could have a significant adverse impact on the amount that the Holder would have otherwise received had
such date for redemption not been postponed.

Investors should conduct their own investigation of the Euro Fund as if they were a policyholder

In the case of Fund Securities where the Fund is a Euro Fund, to the extent that any amounts payable under the Securities
depend on the Gross Rate of Return of the Euro Fund, investors should conduct their own investigations concerning the
Euro Fund and the Insurance Company as if they were a policyholder in the Euro Fund. In particular, investors should
take into account that the Gross Rate of Return of the Euro Fund, which is determined by the Insurance Company based
on the return the Insurance Company achieves on its general assets may be different from the provisional rate of return
published by the Insurance Company in respect of the Euro Fund and may be zero. The issuance by the Issuer of any
Securities referencing a Euro Fund does not constitute any form of recommendation by the Issuer or the Guarantor to
invest in the Euro Fund.

The occurrence of an Extraordinary Euro Fund Event may have an adverse impact on Holders

If, in respect of Fund Securities, where the Fund is a Euro Fund and an Extraordinary Euro Fund Event (as further
described in the "Investment Considerations" section below and Fund Security Condition 9 (Extraordinary Euro Fund
Events)) occurs, the Issuer may (i) adjust the terms of the Fund Securities to reflect such event, (ii) substitute the relevant
Euro Fund, or (iii) early redeem the Fund Securities (as further described in Fund Security Condition 10 (Consequences
of an Extraordinary Euro Fund Event)). Consequently, the occurrence of an Extraordinary Euro Fund Event may have
an adverse effect on the value or liquidity of the Securities and the amount Holders can expect to receive on their
mvestment.

Additional risks associated with Commodity Securities valued by reference to Futures Contracts or Index Securities or

Debt Securities where Futures Price Valuation is specified as applicable

If Futures Price Valuation is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms in respect of Index Securities or Debt
Securities, the value of the Securities will be dependent on the performance of a futures or options contract relating to (i)
an index (in the case of Index Securities see Index Security Condition 9 (Futures Price Valuation)) or (ii) a synthetic debt
instrument (in the case of Debt Securities see Debt Security Condition 6 (Futures Price Valuation)). Commodity
Securities may also be linked to the performance of a futures or options contract over an underlying commodity (as more
fully described in "Annex 6 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Commodity Securities"). If such underlying futures or
options contract does not perform as expected, an investor in such types of Securities may receive a lower return (and
could receive a significantly lower return) than anticipated.

The performance of futures and options contracts can be affected by, among other things, the liquidity of the futures or
options exchange and events beyond the control of the futures or options exchange. There may be significant differences
between the value of spot markets and the futures or options markets for the underlying commodity, index and/or synthetic
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debt instrument. Accordingly, an investment in Securities referencing such futures contracts may perform worse than a
comparable investment in Commodity Securities, Index Securities or Debt Securities that do not reference a futures or
options contract or even a direct investment in the relevant underlying commodity, index or debt instrument.

Additional risks associated with Rolling Futures Contract Securities

If the terms of the Securities contemplate that the underlying futures contract will roll to maintain ongoing exposure to
such underlying futures contract throughout the term of the Securities, the value of the Securities and an investor's
expected return on the Securities will depend on the performance of the futures market. If the market is in backwardation
(where the price of the near-dated futures contract is greater than the longer-dated futures contract), any loss in value that
the Holder experiences in respect of the Securities will be increased, as the Holder's synthetic exposure to the longer-
dated futures contract is greater. However, if the market is in contango (where the price of the near-dated futures contract
is less than the longer-dated futures contract), any gain in value that the Holder experiences in respect of the Securities
will be reduced, as the Holder's synthetic exposure to the longer-dated futures contract is lower. The effect of this will
be greater the longer the term of an investor's investment in Rolling Futures Contract Securities. The relevant provisions
for Rolling Futures Contract Securities will depend on the relevant Underlying Reference and are more fully described
in Index Security Condition 9.2 (Rolling Futures Contract Securities), Debt Security Condition (Rolling Futures Contract
Securities) or Commodity Security Condition 6 (Rolling Futures Contract Securities), as applicable.

Futures contracts will roll on a specified date (the "Futures Rollover Date"). At each Futures Rollover Date there may
be expenses incurred in replacing the futures contract which may have an adverse effect on the return on the Securities.
Investors should be aware that in respect of Rolling Futures Contract Securities, the price difference between the futures
contracts involved on each Futures Rollover Date may have a negative effect on the value of the securities and in the long
term be higher than the positive performance of the underlying and result in a total loss of a Holder's investment in the
Securities.

Additional risks relating to Credit Securities

The risk factors set out below relate to Credit Securities, which are subject to the provisions set out in "Annex 12 —
Additional Terms and Conditions for Credit Securities".

(a) General risks relating to Credit Securities

The Issuers may issue Notes ("Credit Securities") where the amount payable is dependent upon whether certain events
("Credit Events") have occurred in respect of one or more Reference Entities and, if so, on the value of certain specified
obligations of such Reference Entity/Entities. Credit Securities are Notes in respect of which the relevant Issuer has
effectively bought credit protection in relation to one or more obligations issued or incurred by Reference Entities from
the Holders. Payments to be made to Holders of such Notes or (in the case of Credit Securities that provide for physical
delivery) the relevant Issuer's obligation to deliver certain specified obligations, will depend on the occurrence of a Credit
Event with respect to such Reference Entities.

Accordingly, the holders of Credit Securities will be exposed to the credit risk of one or more Reference Entities (being,
in general terms, the risk that a given entity does not perform its financial obligations when due or becomes insolvent),
which exposure may be to the full extent of their investment in such Credit Securities. Upon the occurrence of any of the
events comprising a Credit Event with respect to any Reference Entity, the Holders may suffer significant losses. Credit
Events may also occur in the absence of a default, for example, as a result of a restructuring of indebtedness or the
implementation of resolution or recovery proceedings with respect to a Reference Entity. Holders should also note that a
Credit Event may occur even if the obligations of a Reference Entity are unenforceable or their performance is prohibited
by any applicable law or exchange controls. Certain Credit Events may occur even in the absence of a deterioration in the
financial condition or creditworthiness of a Reference Entity.
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Where Cash Settlement or Auction Settlement applies, the occurrence of a Credit Event in relation to any Reference
Entity from time to time may result in a redemption of the Credit Securities at a reduced redemption amount or at zero,
and, (if applicable) in a reduction of the amount on which interest is calculated, which reduction may be to zero. Where
Physical Settlement applies in respect of a Credit Security, the occurrence of a Credit Event may result in the redemption
of the Credit Securities by delivery (or, in certain circumstances, valuation) of certain direct or indirect obligations of the
affected Reference Entity, which obligations are likely to have a market value which is substantially less than their par
amount.

Accordingly, investors in Credit Securities are exposed, in respect of both principal and (if applicable) interest, to the
credit risk of the Reference Entity or Reference Entities. The maximum loss an investor in Credit Securities may sustain
is 100 per cent. of their initial investment, together with (if applicable) any interest amounts.

(b) Correlated Credit Risks

In purchasing Credit Securities, investors assume credit exposure to both the specified Reference Entity or Reference
Entities and the Issuer (and the Guarantor) of the Credit Securities. The credit risk to investors may further be increased
if the specified Reference Entity or Reference Entities are concentrated in the same industry sector or geographic area as
the Issuer (or the Guarantor). In the case of Credit Securities linked to more than one Reference Entity, the risks of default
of such Reference Entities may be highly correlated.

(©) A Credit Event may occur prior to the Trade Date

Holders of Credit Securities may suffer a loss of some or all of the redemption amount and any interest amount in respect
of the Credit Securities in respect of one or more Credit Events that occur prior to the Trade Date or the Issue Date, if the
Credit Event Backstop Date is specified as a date falling prior to such date. Neither the Calculation Agent or the relevant
Issuer nor any of their respective Affiliates has any responsibility to inform any Holder, or avoid or mitigate the effects
of a Credit Event that has taken place prior to the Trade Date or the Issue Date.

(d) Increased credit risks associated with Nth-to-Default Credit Securities

Where the Credit Securities are Nth-to-Default Credit Securities, the Credit Securities will be subject to redemption in
full as described above upon the occurrence of a Credit Event in relation to the nth Reference Entity. The credit risk to
Holders may therefore be increased as a result of the concentration of Reference Entities in a particular industry sector or
geographic area or the exposure of the Reference Entities to similar financial or other risks.

(e) Additional credit risks associated with Basket Credit Securities

Where the Credit Securities are Basket Credit Securities and a Distribution End Date is specified in the Final Terms, the
Final Terms shall specify whether "Distribution Period Redemption", "Redemption at Maturity" or "Distribution Period
Event Determination Date Disapplication" applies. If "Distribution Period Redemption" applies and an Event
Determination Date occurs on or prior to the Distribution End Date, Holders of such Credit Securities will suffer a loss
of interest and the Credit Securities will be redeemed, in part, early. In the case of such partial early redemption, Holders
may not be able to reinvest in a similar product offering a corresponding return.

The credit risk to Holders of Basket Credit Securities may be increased as a result of the concentration of Reference
Entities in a particular industry sector or geographic area or the exposure of the Reference Entities to similar financial or
other risks.

® Increased risks associated with Tranched Credit Securities

Tranched Credit Securities create leveraged exposure to the credit risk of the Reference Entities as the implicit portfolio
size or size of the aggregate notional amount of the Reference Portfolio is significantly larger than the aggregate nominal
amount of the Credit Securities. Investors can lose a significant part or all of their investment even if a Credit Event
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occurs in respect of only one or a few of the Reference Entities comprising the Reference Portfolio. The value of the
Tranched Credit Securities may be more volatile and credit losses experienced by a Holder in respect of the Tranched
Credit Securities may be greater than would be the case in the absence of such leverage.

The value of the Tranched Credit Securities may also be adversely affected by changes in the relative value of different
tranches of credit risk on the Reference Portfolio, which will vary based on, infer alia, the views and assumptions of
market participants and the supply of and demand for credit protection in relation to each such tranche.

(2) Actions of Reference Entities may affect the value of the Credit Securities

Actions of Reference Entities (for example, merger or demerger or the repayment or transfer of indebtedness) may
adversely affect the value of the Credit Securities. Holders of the Credit Securities should be aware that the Reference
Entities to which the value of the Credit Securities is exposed, and the terms of such exposure, may change over the term
of the Credit Securities. Where a successor Reference Entity is identified, the risks associated with such successor may
be greater than the risks associated with the original Reference Entity, resulting in an increased likelihood that a Credit
Event will occur and accordingly, an increased risk that Holders may lose some or all of their investment.

(h) Suspension of Obligations will suspend payment of principal and interest

In certain circumstances (for example, where a Credit Event has occurred and the related credit loss has not been
determined as at the relevant date for payment, or, if applicable, where a potential Credit Event exists as at the scheduled
maturity of the Credit Securities), Holders may be adversely affected where payment of the redemption amount and/or
interest on the Credit Securities is deferred for a material period in whole or part without compensation to the Holders of
the Credit Securities.

@) Use of Auction Settlement may adversely affect returns to Holders

Where Credit Securities are redeemed or settled by reference to a market auction process, the losses determined pursuant
to such market auction process may be greater than the losses which would have been determined had an alternative
settlement method been used. In particular, the auction process may be affected by technical factors or operational errors
which would not otherwise apply or may be the subject of actual or attempted manipulation. Where this is the case,
Holders of Credit Securities may receive a lower amount on redemption or settlement of their Credit Securities than would
otherwise be the case.

Q) Use of Cash Settlement may adversely affect returns to Holders

If the Credit Securities are cash settled, then, following the occurrence of a Credit Event, the Calculation Agent will be
required to seek quotations in respect of selected obligations of the affected Reference Entity. Quotations obtained will
be "bid-side" - that is, they will be reduced to take account of a bid-offer spread charged by the relevant dealer. Such
quotations may not be available, or the level of such quotations may be substantially reduced or may vary substantially
as a result of illiquidity in the relevant markets or as a result of factors other than the credit risk of the affected Reference
Entity (for example, liquidity constraints affecting market dealers). Accordingly, any quotations so obtained may be
significantly lower than the value of the relevant obligation which would be determined by reference to (for example) the
present value of related cashflows. Quotations will be deemed to be zero in the event that no such quotations are available.
Accordingly, Holders may receive a lower amount on redemption or settlement of their Credit Securities than would
otherwise be the case. In relation to the risks applicable to physical settlement, investors should also note the section
entitled "Risks associated with Physical Delivery Securities" above.

(9] "Cheapest-to-Deliver" risk

Since the Issuer, as buyer of protection in respect of the Credit Securities has discretion to choose the portfolio of
obligations and/or assets to be valued or delivered following a Credit Event in respect of a Reference Entity, it is likely
that the portfolio of obligations and/or assets selected will be obligations of the Reference Entity and/or assets with the
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lowest market value that are permitted to be selected pursuant to the terms of the Credit Securities. This could result in
a lower recovery value and hence greater losses for investors in the Credit Securities.

@ Risks Related interpretation and operation of terms

The views of market participants and/or legal counsel may differ as to how the terms of market standard credit default
swaps, and the corresponding terms of the Credit Securities, should be interpreted, or such terms may operate in a manner
contrary to the expectations of market participants and/or adversely to the interests of Holders of the Credit Securities.
The market value or return on the Credit Securities may therefore be less than an investor expects to receive at the point
at which they purchase the Credit Securities.

(m) Asset Package Delivery risks

In certain circumstances where (a) "Financial Reference Entity Terms" and "Governmental Intervention" apply in respect
of a Reference Entity and (i) there is a Governmental Intervention Credit Event; or (ii) a Restructuring Credit Event in
respect of the Reference Obligation where such Restructuring does not constitute a Governmental Intervention or (b) a
Restructuring Credit Event in respect of a Sovereign, then a related asset package resulting from a prior deliverable
obligation (where "Financial Reference Entity Terms" apply) or package observable bond (where the Reference Entity is
a sovereign) may be deliverable.

If the resulting asset package is deemed to be zero where there are no resulting assets, the negative impact on Holders
could be a related credit loss borne by Holders of 100 per cent. of their investment notwithstanding the recovery value on
any other obligations of the Reference Entity.

If an asset in the asset package is a non-transferable instrument or non-financial instrument, the value of such asset will
be the market value determined by reference to a specialist valuation or in accordance with methodology determined by
the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committees, which valuation may result in losses to be borne by Holders which
may be greater than the losses which would have been determined in the absence of such valuation methodology being
used. Accordingly, Holders may receive a lower amount on redemption or settlement of their Credit Securities than would
otherwise be the case if an alternative settlement method were used.

(n) Increased risks of Zero Recovery Credit Securities or where a specified Final Price is applicable

Where the Credit Securities are Zero Recovery Credit Securities, if a Credit Event occurs in respect of a Reference Entity,
investors will automatically lose an amount in principal or notional amount of the Credit Security equal to the portion of
the Credit Security which is allocated to the credit risk of the affected Reference Entity, regardless of any recoveries on
any obligations of the Reference Entity which would have been determined in the absence of the "Zero Recovery" feature.
Likewise, if the Final Price is specified in the Final Terms in relation to Credit Securities, such fixed Final Price may be
lower (and may be significantly lower) than the recovery which an investor in bonds or instruments issued by such
Reference Entity would receive.

(0) Risks Associated with Credit Derivatives Determinations Committees

The institutions of the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee owe no duty to the Holders and have the ability to
make determinations that may have a material adverse on effect the Holders, such as the occurrence of a Credit Event or
a Succession Event. A Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee may be able to make determinations without action
or knowledge of the Holders.

The powers of the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee may be expanded or modified as a result of amendments
to the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committees Rules. Holders may have no role in the composition of any Credit
Derivatives Determinations Committee and may have no recourse against either the institutions serving on a Credit
Derivatives Determinations Committee or the external reviewers.
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(P The Calculation Agent may modify the terms of the Credit Securities

The Calculation Agent may, following its determination that there has been a change in the prevailing market standard
terms or market trading conventions that affects any hedging transaction, modify the terms of the Credit Securities to the
extent reasonably necessary to ensure consistency with the prevailing market standard terms or market trading
conventions, without the consent of Holders or prior notice to Holders. The Calculation Agent is not obliged to make
any such modifications. If the Calculation Agent modifies the terms of the Credit Securities, it will do so without regard
to the interests of the holders of the Credit Securities and any such modification may be prejudicial to the interests of the
holder of the Credit Securities in that such a modification may adversely affect the market value of the Credit Securities
or the amount which a Holder would be entitled to receive on redemption or settlement of the Credit Securities.

Risks Relating to the Market
Certain factors affecting the value and trading price of Securities

The trading price of the Securities may be affected by a number of factors including, but not limited to, the relevant price,
value or level of the Underlying Reference(s), the time remaining until the scheduled maturity date of the Securities, the
actual or implied volatility associated with the Underlying Reference and the correlation risk of the relevant Underlying
Reference(s).

The possibility that the value and trading price of the Securities will fluctuate (either positively or negatively) depends
on a number of factors, which investors should consider carefully before purchasing or selling Securities, including:

(a) the trading price of the Securities;

(b) depending on the applicable payout or coupon (if applicable), movements in the value and/or volatility of the
Underlying Reference may cause the value of the Securities to either rise or fall;

(©) depending on the applicable payout or coupon (if applicable), the value of the Securities may fluctuate as the
time remaining until the scheduled maturity date decreases;

(d) depending on the applicable payout or coupon (if applicable), movements in interest rates and/or dividends (if
applicable) may cause the theoretical value of the Securities to either rise or fall;

(e) any change(s) in currency exchange rates;
®) the depth of the market or liquidity of the Underlying Reference as specified in the applicable Final Terms; and
(2) any related transaction costs.

Such factors may mean that the trading price of the Securities is below the Final Redemption Amount or the value of the
Entitlement, as applicable and accordingly, Holders may receive an amount or an asset with a value significantly lower
than the amount that they invested to purchase the Securities.

A Security's purchase price may not reflect its inherent value

Prospective investors in the Securities should be aware that the purchase price of a Security does not necessarily reflect
its inherent value. Any difference between a Security's purchase price and its inherent value may be due to a number of
different factors including, without limitation, prevailing market conditions and fees, discounts or commissions paid or
accorded to the various parties involved in structuring and/or distributing the Security. Any such difference in value
could negatively affect the return an investor may receive. For further information prospective investors should refer to
the party from whom they are purchasing the Securities. Prospective investors may also wish to seek an independent
valuation of Securities prior to their purchase.
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Possible illiquidity of the Securities in the secondary market

For certain issues of Securities, BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. is required to act as market-maker, in which case it will
endeavour to maintain a secondary market throughout the life of the Securities. However, during certain periods, it may
be difficult, impractical or impossible for BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. to quote bid and offer prices, and during such
periods, it may be difficult, impracticable or impossible to buy or sell these Securities. Adverse market conditions, volatile
prices or large price fluctuations, a large market place being closed or restricted or experiencing technical problems such
as an IT system failure or network disruption could affect BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.'s ability to maintain a secondary
market.

Each Issuer may, but is not obliged to, at any time purchase Securities at any price in the open market or by tender or
private offer/treaty. Any Manager may also be a market maker for an issue of Securities, but it is not obliged to and may
cease to do so at any time. Even if a Manager is a market-maker for an issue of Securities, the secondary market for such
Securities may be limited.

The only means through which a Holder can realise value from their Securities prior to its Maturity Date is to sell them
at the market price in an available secondary market, which may be a lower price than a Holder's original investment. If
there is no or a limited secondary market for the Securities and the Holder is unable to sell its Securities they will have to
wait until redemption of the Securities to realise any value.

Effect of credit rating reduction

The value of the Securities is expected to be affected, in part, by investors' general appraisal of the creditworthiness of
the relevant Issuer and the Guarantor. Such perceptions are generally influenced by the ratings attributed to the
outstanding securities of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F or BNPPF by standard statistical rating services, such as S&P Global
Ratings Europe Limited, Fitch Ratings Ireland Limited, Moody's France SAS and Moody's Investors Service Ltd. A
reduction in the rating, if any, attributed to outstanding debt securities of BNPP B.V. BNPP, BP2F or BNPPF by one of
these rating agencies could result in a reduction in the trading value of the Securities.

Risks associated with Securities with a nexus to emerging markets

Where the value and return of the Securities depends on the performance of one or more Underlying References issued
by issuers located in, or subject to regulation in, emerging or developing countries, denominated in the currency of, or
are traded in, emerging or developing countries or where the Securities are denominated in currencies of emerging or
developing countries, Holders are exposed to greater risks associated with political and economic uncertainty, adverse
governmental policies, restrictions on foreign investment and currency convertibility, currency exchange rate fluctuations,
possible lower levels of disclosure and regulation, and uncertainties as to the status, interpretation and application of laws
including, but not limited to, those relating to expropriation, nationalisation and confiscation. Holders of Securities with
such a nexus to emerging or developing countries are exposed to the risk that such Securities may be less liquid and the
prices of such Securities more volatile, thus increasing the risk that such Holders may experience a loss on their
investment. In addition, settlement of trades in such markets may be slower and more likely to be subject to failure than
in markets in developed countries.

Investors in such Securities should also be aware that the probability of the occurrence of a Hedging Disruption Event (or
other Adjustment Event under the relevant terms of the Securities as set out further in the Conditions) and consequently
loss of investment or profit by an investor may be higher for certain developing or emerging markets.

Exchange control risks

There is a risk that authorities with jurisdiction over the Settlement Currency (as specified in the applicable Final Terms)
and/or the currency in which the Underlying Reference is denominated, such as government and monetary authorities,
may impose or modify (as some have done in the past) exchange controls that could adversely affect an applicable
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exchange rate or the ability to transfer of funds in and out of the relevant country. Such exchange controls, if imposed
would have a negative impact on the amount a Holder is able to realise from Securities denominated in an affected
Settlement Currency or referencing an affected Underlying Reference.

The imposition of exchange controls in respect of a Relevant Currency could significantly increase the risk of an FX
Settlement Disruption Event (as defined in Condition 4(a)(Il)(vii) (Payments, Physical Delivery and Exchange of Talons))
occurring. If an FX Settlement Disruption Event occurs payments of principal and/or interest (if applicable) may (i) occur
at a different time than expected and that no additional amount of interest will be payable in respect of any delay in
payment of principal and/or interest and (ii) be made in USD. The occurrence of an FX Settlement Disruption Event could
have a significant adverse impact on the amount a Holder receives in respect of the Securities and may mean that the
Holder is unable to receive payment in the desired currency. If the Holder receives payment in USD, it may not be able
to exchange the amount received into the relevant Settlement Currency or it may only be able to do so at an exchange
rate that significantly adversely impacts the amount the Holder ultimately receives in the Settlement Currency.

Risks associated with Dual Currency Notes

The Issuers may issue Notes with principal (see Condition 5.13 (Dual Currency Redemption Notes)) and/or interest (see
Condition 3.13 (Dual Currency Interest Notes)) payable in a currency which may be different from the currency in which
the Notes are denominated ("Dual Currency Notes"). The risks associated with Dual Currency Notes are similar to those
associated with Currency Securities (described in "Additional risks associated with Currency Securities" below) and the
risks associated with the Settlement Currency (described in "Exchange control risks" above). In addition, investors will
not benefit from favourable changes in exchange rates during the term of the Dual Currency Notes where a pre-determined
rate of exchange is applicable and a consequence the market price of such Notes may be volatile.

Risks associated with Securities denominated in Renminbi

Renminbi is not completely freely convertible at present. The PRC government continues to regulate conversion between
Renminbi and foreign currencies, including the Hong Kong dollar, although control by the PRC government over routine
foreign exchange transactions under current accounts has decreased over the years.

Remittance of Renminbi into and out of the PRC for the settlement of capital account items is generally only permitted
upon obtaining specific approvals from, or completing specific registrations or filings with, the relevant authorities on a
case-by-case basis and is subject to strict monitoring system. Regulations in the PRC on the remittance of Renminbi into
the PRC for settlement of capital account items are being developed gradually and will be subject to interpretation and
application by the relevant authorities in the PRC.

From 1 October 2016 Renminbi was added to the Special Drawing Rights basket created by the International Monetary
Fund; however, the PRC government may not continue to gradually liberalise the control over cross-border Renminbi
remittances in the future or that new PRC regulations will not be promulgated in the future which have the effect of
restricting or eliminating the remittance of Renminbi into or outside the PRC. Furthermore, if any new PRC regulations
are promulgated in the future which have the effect of permitting or restricting (as the case may be) the remittance of
Renminbi for payment of transactions categorised as capital account items, then such remittances will need to be made
subject to the specific requirements or restrictions set out in such rules. Such restrictions may negatively affect the
liquidity and value of Securities denominated in Renminbi.

As aresult of the restrictions by the PRC government on cross-border Renminbi fund flows, the availability of Renminbi
outside of the PRC is limited. Currently, financial institutions in a number of financial centres and cities (each a "RMB
Clearing Bank") have entered into settlement agreements (the "Settlement Agreements") with the People's Bank of
China ("PBOC") to act as the RMB clearing bank.

However, the current size of Renminbi-denominated financial assets outside the PRC is limited. Renminbi business
participating banks do not have direct Renminbi liquidity support from PBOC and the relevant RMB Clearing Bank only
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has access to onshore liquidity support from PBOC to square open positions of participating banks for limited types of
transactions, including open positions resulting from conversion services for corporations relating to cross-border trade
settlement. The relevant RMB Clearing Bank is not obliged to square for participating banks any open positions resulting
from other foreign exchange transactions or conversion services and the participating banks will need to source Renminbi
from the offshore market to square such open positions.

The offshore Renminbi market is subject to many constraints as a result of PRC laws and regulations on foreign exchange.
New PRC regulations may be promulgated or the Settlement Agreement may be terminated or amended in the future
which will have the effect of further restricting availability of Renminbi offshore. The limited availability of Renminbi
outside the PRC may affect the liquidity of the Securities. To the extent the Issuer is required to source Renminbi in the
offshore market to service its Securities, the Issuer may not be able to source such Renminbi on satisfactory terms, if at
all. If Renminbi is not available, in certain circumstances as described in the Conditions applicable to the Securities, the
Issuer can make payments under the Securities in the Equivalent Amount Settlement Currency, which may negatively
affect the amount the Holder receives in respect of Securities denominated in Renminbi.

Legal Risks
Meetings of Holders

The Terms and Conditions of the Securities contain provisions for calling meetings (including by way of conference call
or by use of a video conference platform) of Holders to consider matters affecting their interests generally (see Condition
18 (Meetings of Noteholders, Voting Provisions, Modifications and Waiver)). These provisions permit defined majorities
to bind all Holders, including Holders who did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting, Holders who did not consent
to the Written Resolutions and Holders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority. General meetings or written
consultations may deliberate on any proposal relating to the modification of the conditions of the Securities subject, in
the case of French Law Securities, to the limitations provided by French law. Only holders of French Law Securities
will, in certain circumstances, be grouped for the defence of their common interests in a separate legal entity called
"Masse" (as defined in Condition 18 (Meetings of Noteholders, Voting Provisions, Modifications and Waiver — French
Law Securities)). If the applicable Final Terms specify "No Masse", Holders will not be grouped in a masse having legal
personality governed by the provisions of the French Code de commerce and will not be represented by a representative
of the masse. While it is not possible to assess the likelihood that the Conditions will need to be amended during the term
of the Securities by a meeting of the Holders, if a decision is adopted by a majority of Holders and such modifications
impair or limit the rights of Holders, this may negatively affect the market value of the Securities, although the probability
of such a decision being taken by Holders is considered to be low.

The Issuer or the Guarantor may be substituted by another entity

The conditions of the Securities provide that the Issuer may, following the occurrence of certain events, without the
consent of the Holders, agree to the substitution of another company as the principal obligor under any Securities in place
of the Issuer, subject to the conditions set out in Condition 20 (Substitution). In particular, where the substitute is not the
relevant Guarantor, the Guarantor will guarantee the performance of the substitute's obligations under the Securities.

The conditions of the Securities also provide that (in the case of Notes issued by BNPP B.V.) BNPP or (in the case of
Notes issued by BP2F) BNPPF may, following the occurrence of certain events, without the consent of the Holders agree
to the substitution of another company as the guarantor in respect of any Securities issued by BNPP B.V. or BP2F,
respectively, subject to the conditions set out in Condition 20 (Substitution). In particular, the creditworthiness of the
substitute guarantor must be at least equal to that of BNPP or BNPPF, as the case may be, as determined by the Calculation
Agent, acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner, by reference to, inter alia, the long term senior
debt ratings assigned by such rating agencies as the Calculation Agent determines.

Each of the relevant Issuer and the relevant Guarantor shall only exercise a substitution of the relevant Issuer or the
relevant Guarantor if (i) a Substitution Event has occurred and (ii) it has obtained from the Substitute Issuer or Substitute
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Guarantor, as the case may be, an undertaking that the substitution would not have a material impact on the interests of
the Holders. Despite this, any such substitution may negatively affect the value of the Securities.

The Issuer will give Holders notice of such substitution in accordance with Condition 17 (Notices).

Risks related to the intragroup merger of BNP Paribas Securities Services SCA and its parent company, BNP Paribas
SA

BNPP and BNP Paribas Securities Services SCA ("BP2S") are implementing an intragroup reorganisation pursuant to
which BNPP, as the "absorbing entity", will merge with BP2S, as the "absorbed entity", pursuant to the simplified merger
regime (fusion simplifiée), which is governed by Articles L. 236-1 et seq. of the French Commercial Code (Code de

commerce).

As of the date of this Base Prospectus, BP2S acts as Principal Paying Agent, Registrar and Collateral Custodian (through
its branch in Luxembourg), French Issuing and Paying Agent and Principal Paying Agent and Italian Agent (through its
branch in Milan) under the Programme.

As of the date of this Base Prospectus, the intragroup merger is due to take place on 1 October 2022, subject to ongoing
consultation with local work councils in some countries. BP2S is currently a distinct legal entity within the BNP Paribas
Group, although it is wholly owned by BNPP. The intragroup merger will see this distinct legal entity cease to exist and
the business of BP2S will instead be provided via BNPP. Following the intragroup merger, BNPP will become Principal
Paying Agent, Registrar and Collateral Custodian (through its branch in Luxembourg), French Issuing and Paying Agent
and Principal Paying Agent and Italian Agent (through its branch in Milan) under the Programme.

The intragroup merger could impact the continuity of business operations, particularly when unrelated companies are
involved. Since BP2S is a consolidated subsidiary of BNPP, the intragroup merger is not expected to have any material
adverse effect on the business of BP2S or BNPP.

Potential Conflicts of Interest

BNPP, BNPP B.V., BNPPF, BP2F and/or any of their respective Affiliates or agents or, in the case of Actively Managed
Securities, the relevant Basket Allocation Agent (as applicable), may engage in activities or arrangements in a range of
capacities that may result in conflicts of interest between their own financial interests and those of any Holders, for
example, by:

@) engaging in trading activities (including hedging activities) relating to the Underlying Reference or Reference
Entity and other instruments or derivative products based on or relating to the Underlying Reference or Reference
Entity of any Securities for their proprietary accounts or for other accounts under their management;

(ii) underwriting future offerings of shares or other securities relating to an issue of Securities or acting as financial
adviser or in a commercial banking capacity to certain companies or companies whose shares or other securities
are included in a basket in respect of a Series of Securities;

(iii) acting in a number of different capacities in relation to an underlying Index (including a Custom Index),
including, but not limited to, as issuer of the constituents of the Index (or Custom Index, as the case may be),
index sponsor or calculation agent;

@iv) engaging in business, such as investing in, extending loans to, providing advisory services to, entering into
financing or derivative transactions with a company that has issued shares or a debt instrument, a fund that has
issued fund shares or units, an exchange traded instrument comprising the relevant Underlying Reference or a
Reference Entity;

) receiving a fee for performing any services or entering into any transactions described above;
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(vi) publishing research reports relating to any Underlying Reference or Reference Entity, which express views that
are inconsistent with purchasing or holding the Securities; or

(vii) making determinations regarding the occurrence of various events in respect of the Securities and the applicable
consequences in its role as Calculation Agent or Issuer, as the case may be, of the Securities.

Any of the conflicts of interest described above could have a material adverse effect on the value of the Securities and
the return a Holder can expect to receive on their Securities, as none of BNPP, BNPP B.V., BNPPF, BP2F and/or any of
their respective Affiliates or agents or, in the case of Actively Managed Securities, the relevant Basket Allocation Agent,
acting in any capacity, is required to have regard to the interests of the Holders. Investors should also refer to the
description of the role of the Calculation Agent in the "Investment Considerations" section below.

Following the intragroup merger of BP2S and BNPP described in "Risks related to the intragroup merger of BNP Paribas
Securities Services SCA and its parent company, BNP Paribas SA" above, BNPP will perform various agency roles in
place of BP2S (including its branches in various jurisdictions) under the Programme. As a result, potential conflicts of
interest may arise between these roles. Such potential conflicts of interests are mitigated using different management
teams and information barriers within BNPP, but the possibility of conflicts of interest arising cannot be completely
eliminated.

Change of law

The Terms and Conditions of English Law Securities are based on English law in effect as at the date of this Base
Prospectus. The Terms and Conditions of French Law Securities are based on French law in effect as at the date of this
Base Prospectus. The possible impact of any judicial decision or change to an administrative practice or change to English
law or French law, as applicable, after the date of this Base Prospectus is unknown and any such change could materially
adversely impact the value of any Securities affected by it.

Termination of Securities in the event of illegality or impracticability

If the Issuer determines that the performance of its obligations under the Securities has become illegal, impossible or
impracticable in whole or in part for any reason, the Issuer may redeem the Securities by paying to each Holder the Early
Redemption Amount (as defined in "Investment Considerations" below) specified in the applicable Final Terms. Such
redemption may result in an investor losing some or all of their investment in the Securities.

French Insolvency Law

BNPP is a société anonyme with its corporate seat in France. In the event that BNPP becomes insolvent, insolvency
proceedings will generally be governed by the insolvency laws of France to the extent that, where applicable, the "centre
of main interests" (as construed under Regulation (EU) 2015/848, as amended) of BNPP is located in France.

Directive (EU) 2019/1023 on preventive restructuring frameworks, on discharge of debt and disqualifications, and on
measures to increase the efficiency of procedures concerning restructuring, insolvency and discharge of debt, and
amending Directive (EU) 2017/1132 has been transposed into French law by Ordonnance 2021-1193 dated 15 September
2021. Such ordonnance, which has applied since 1 October 2021, amends French insolvency laws notably with regard to
the process of adopting restructuring plans under insolvency proceedings. According to this ordonnance, "affected
parties" (including in particular creditors, and therefore the Noteholders) shall be treated in separate classes which reflect
certain class formation criteria for the purpose of adopting a restructuring plan. Classes will be formed in such a way that
each class comprises claims or interests with rights that reflect a sufficient common interest based on verifiable criteria.
Noteholders will no longer deliberate on the proposed restructuring plan in a separate assembly, meaning that they will
no longer benefit from a specific veto power on this plan. Instead, Noteholders will be treated in the same way as other
affected parties and will be grouped into one or more classes (potentially including other types of creditors) and their
dissenting vote may be overridden by a cross-class cram down.
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Neither the scope of Directive (EU) 2019/1023 nor the scope of the ordonnance cover financial institutions, unless the
competent authority chooses to make them applicable. As a consequence, the application of French insolvency law to a
credit institution, such as BNPP is also subject to the prior permission of the Autorité de controle prudentiel et de
résolution before the opening of any safeguard, judicial reorganisation or liquidation procedures. This limitation will
affect the ability of the Noteholders to recover their investments in the Securities.

The commencement of insolvency proceedings against BNPP would have a material adverse effect on the market value
of Securities guaranteed by BNPP. As a consequence, any decisions taken by a class of affected parties could negatively
and significantly impact the Noteholders and could result in a loss of some or all of their investment, should they not be
able to recover some or all of the amounts due to them from BNPP.

The implementation of the EU Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive could materially affect the Securities and their
Holders

Directive 2014/59/EU, as amended by Directive (EU) 2019/879 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 May
2019 (the "Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive" or "BRRD") provides for the establishment of an EU-wide
framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and investment firms. The BRRD has been implemented
in France, Belgium and Luxembourg by several legislative texts to provide relevant resolution authorities with, among
other powers, a credible set of tools (the "BRRD Resolution Tools") to intervene sufficiently early and quickly in an
unsound or failing institution so as to ensure the continuity of that institution's critical financial and economic functions,
while minimising the impact of its potential failure on the economy and financial system.

Following a review of BRRD, Directive no. 2019/879/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 May 2019
amending Directive 2014/59/EU as regards the loss-absorbing and recapitalisation capacity of credit institutions and
investment firms and Directive 98/26/EC ("BRRD 2") was adopted.

BRRD 2 was transposed into French law by Ordinance n°2020-1636 of 20 December 2020 relating to the resolution
regime in the banking sector and Decree n°2020-1703 of 24 December 2020 relating to the resolution regime in the
banking sector and took effect from 28 December 2020. BRRD 2 was transposed into Luxembourg law by the
Luxembourg act dated 20 May 2021 and is effective from 25 May 2021. BRRD 2 was transposed into Belgian law by the
law of 11 July 2021was transposed into Belgian law by and is effective from 23 July 2021.

If the relevant Guarantor is determined to be failing or likely to fail within the meaning of, and under the conditions set
by the BRRD, and the relevant resolution authority applies any, or a combination, of the BRRD Resolution Tools
(including, a sale of the business, the creation of a bridge institution, asset separation or bail-in), any shortfall from the
sale of the relevant Guarantor's assets may lead to a partial reduction in the outstanding amounts of certain claims of
unsecured creditors of that entity (including, as the case may be, the Securities or the Guarantee), or, in a worst case
scenario, a reduction to zero. The unsecured debt claims of the relevant Guarantor (including, the relevant Guarantee)
might also be converted into equity or other instruments of ownership, in accordance with the hierarchy of claims in
normal insolvency proceedings, which equity or other instruments could also be subject to any future cancellation, transfer
or dilution (such reduction or cancellation being first on common equity tier one instruments, thereafter the reduction,
cancellation or conversion being on additional tier one instruments, then tier two instruments and other subordinated
debts, then other eligible liabilities). The relevant resolution authority may also seek to amend the terms (such as varying
the date for redemption) of any outstanding unsecured debt securities (including, the relevant Guarantee) (all as further
described in Condition 23 (Recognition of Bail-in and Loss Absorption)).

Public financial support to resolve the relevant Guarantor where there is a risk of failure will only be used as a last resort,
after having assessed and applied the resolution tools above, including the bail-in tool, to the maximum extent possible
whilst maintaining financial stability.

The exercise of any power under the BRRD by the relevant resolution authority or any suggestion that such powers may
be exercised could materially adversely affect the rights of the Holders of Securities, the price or value of their investment
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in the Securities and/or the ability of the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, to satisfy its obligations under the
Securities or the Guarantee, respectively. As a result, Holders of Securities could lose all or a substantial part of their
investment in the Securities.

The regulation and reform of "benchmarks" may adversely affect the value of Securities linked to or referencing such
"benchmarks"

A number of major interest rates (including the Euro Interbank Offered Rate ("EURIBOR")), other rates, indices and
other published values or benchmarks are the subject of national, international and other regulatory guidance and
proposals for reform. These reforms may cause such benchmarks to perform differently than in the past, to disappear
entirely or have other consequences which cannot be predicted. Any such consequence could have a material adverse
effect on the value of and return on Securities linked to any such value or benchmark.

The Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 on indices used as benchmarks in financial instruments and financial contracts or to
measure the performance of investment funds (the "EU Benchmarks Regulation") is a key element of ongoing regulatory
reform in the EU and has applied, subject to certain transitional provisions, since 1 January 2018. In addition to so-called
"critical benchmark" indices, such as EURIBOR, other interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and indices, including
equity, commodity and "proprietary" indices or strategies, will in most cases be within scope of the EU Benchmarks
Regulation as "benchmarks" where they are used to determine the amount payable under, or the value of, certain financial
instruments (including securities listed on an EU regulated market, EU multilateral trading facility ("MTF"), EU
organised trading facility ("OTF") or via a systematic internaliser). Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 as it forms part of
domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (the "UK Benchmarks Regulation") is the
relevant regulatory regime applicable to, among other things, the provision of benchmarks and the use of a benchmark in
the UK.

The EU Benchmarks Regulation applies to the contribution of input data to a benchmark, the administration of a
benchmark, and the use of a benchmark in the EU. Amongst other things, the EU Benchmarks Regulation requires EU
benchmark administrators to be authorised or registered as such and to comply with extensive requirements relating to
benchmark administration. It also prohibits certain uses by EU supervised entities of (a) benchmarks provided by EU
administrators which are not authorised or registered in accordance with the EU Benchmarks Regulation and (b)
benchmarks provided by non-EU administrators where (i) the administrator's regulatory regime has not been determined
to be "equivalent" to that of the EU, (ii) the administrator has not been recognised in accordance with the EU Benchmarks
Regulation, or (iii) the benchmark has not been endorsed in accordance with the Benchmark Regulation. Similarly, the
UK Benchmarks Regulation prohibits the use of in the UK by UK supervised entities of benchmarks of administrators
that are not authorised by the Financial Conduct Authority (the "FCA") or registered on the FCA register (or, if not based
in the UK, not deemed equivalent or recognised or endorsed).

The EU Benchmarks Regulation and/or the UK Benchmarks Regulation, as applicable, could have a material adverse
impact on any Securities for which a request for admission to trading on a trading venue has been made, or which are
traded on a trading venue or via a "systematic internaliser" linked to, referencing or otherwise dependent (in whole or in
part) upon a "benchmark” for the purposes of the EU Benchmarks Regulation and/or UK Benchmarks Regulation, as
applicable.

Any of the above changes or any other consequential changes to any benchmark may result in:

. the level of the published rate or the level of the "benchmark" or the volatility of the published rate or level being
adversely affected;

. an increase in the costs and risks of administering or otherwise participating in the setting of a "benchmark" and
complying with such regulations or requirements;
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. the "benchmark" (including certain currencies or tenors of benchmarks) being discontinued or otherwise
unavailable, which may result in the rate of interest in respect of the Securities (if any) being determined based
on any applicable fallback provisions;

. the methodology or other terms of the benchmark being changed in order to comply with regulatory
requirements;
. the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event (as further described under "Risks associated with the

occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event" below); or
. have other adverse effects or unforeseen consequences.

Any such consequences could have a material adverse effect on the value of and return on any Securities and/or could
lead to the Securities being de-listed, adjusted, redeemed early following the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark
Event, subject to discretionary valuation or adjustment by the Calculation Agent or otherwise impacted depending on the
particular "benchmark" and the applicable terms of the Securities. This could also negatively affect the liquidity of the
Securities and a Holder's ability to sell their Securities in the secondary market.

The Benchmarks Regulation was further amended by Regulation (EU) 2021/168 of the European Parliament and of the
Council of 10 February 2021 which introduces a harmonised approach to deal with the cessation or wind-down of certain
benchmarks (such as EURIBOR) by conferring the power to designate a statutory replacement for said benchmarks on
the Commission or the relevant national authority in certain circumstances, such replacement being limited to contracts
and financial instruments (such as certain Securities) which contain no fallback provision or no suitable fallback
provisions and where certain trigger events relating to non-representativeness or cessation or wind down of the benchmark
are met. In general, parties can opt out of the statutory replacement where all parties, or the required majority of parties,
to a contract or financial instrument have agreed to apply a different replacement for a benchmark before or after entry
into force of the implementing act. A statutory replacement benchmark could have a negative impact on the value or
liquidity of, and return on, certain Securities linked to or referencing such benchmark and may not operate as intended at
the relevant time or may perform differently from the discontinued or otherwise unavailable benchmark.

In addition Regulation (EU) 2021/168 is subject to further development through delegated regulations and the transitional
provisions applicable to third-country benchmarks are extended until the end of 2023 (and the Commission is empowered
to further extend this period until the end of 2025, if necessary). There are therefore still details to be clarified in relation
to the potential impact of these legislative developments. Accordingly, there may be a risk that a statutory replacement
benchmark may designated if, for instance, a replacement benchmark determined in accordance with the fallback
provisions is deemed unsuitable as its application no longer reflects or significantly diverges from the underlying market
or the economic reality that the benchmark in cessation is intended to measure (and where certain other conditions are
satisfied, including one of the parties objecting to the contractually agreed fallback).

Risks associated with the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event

If specified as an Optional Additional Disruption Event in the applicable Final Terms, the occurrence of an
Administrator/Benchmark Event (as defined in Condition 9.1 (Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional
Disruption Events) and more fully described in the "Investment Considerations" section below) may lead to redemption
or adjustment of the Securities. Any such adjustment or redemption of the Securities following the occurrence of an
Administrator/Benchmark Event may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of such Securities and accordingly
the amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment.

The implementation of SOFR Replacement Conforming Changes could adversely affect Holders

Under the fallback provisions applicable to Securities that pay a floating rate of interest by reference to the Secured
Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR") (whether a compounded rate or the SOFR Index), if a particular SOFR Replacement
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or SOFR Replacement Adjustment (each as defined in Condition 3.4(c)(iii)(D)) cannot be determined, then the next-
available SOFR Replacement or SOFR Replacement Adjustment will apply. These replacement rates and adjustments
may be selected or formulated by (i) the Relevant Governmental Body (as defined in Condition 3.4(c)(iii)(C) (Interest —
Screen Rate Determination — SOFR)), (ii) ISDA or (iii) in certain circumstances, the Calculation Agent and/or the
Replacement Rate Determination Agent.

In addition, the fallback provisions permit the Replacement Rate Determination Agent to make certain changes (which
are defined in Condition 3.4(c)(iii)(D) as "SOFR Replacement Conforming Changes") with respect to, among other
things, the timing and frequency of determining rates and making payments of interest. The application of a SOFR
Replacement and SOFR Replacement Adjustment and any implementation of SOFR Replacement Conforming Changes
could reduce the amount of interest payable in respect of an interest period, which could adversely affect the return on,
value of and market for the Securities. Furthermore, the characteristics of any SOFR Replacement may not be similar to
the then-current SOFR benchmark that it is replacing and/or that any SOFR Replacement may not produce the economic
equivalent of the then-current SOFR benchmark that it is replacing.

The discontinuation of Interbank Offered Rates may adversely affect the value of the Securities

Sterling, Euro, Swiss Franc and Japanese Yen London Interbank Offered Rates ("LIBOR"), across all tenors, and U.S.
dollar LIBOR 1 week and 2 month tenors, either ceased to exist entirely, or became non-representative of the underlying
market and economic reality that such rates were intended to measure, immediately after 31 December 2021 and U.S.
dollar LIBOR overnight, 1, 3, 6 and 12 month tenors will either cease to exist entirely or will become non-representative
immediately after 30 June 2023. The future of EURIBOR is also uncertain. Amongst other developments, new issuances
of products referencing LIBOR are no longer permitted (except in very limited circumstances) and relevant authorities
are strongly encouraging the transition away from Interbank Offered Rates ("IBORs"), such as EURIBOR. A number of
"risk free rates" have been identified to take the place of such IBORs as primary benchmarks. This includes (i) for sterling
LIBOR, a reformed Sterling Overnight Index Average ("SONIA") as the primary Sterling interest rate benchmark, (ii)
for EONIA and EURIBOR, Euro Short-Term Rate ("€STR") as the new euro risk free rate, (iii) for USD LIBOR, SOFR
as the primary U.S. dollar interest rate benchmark, (iv) for CHF LIBOR, the daily Swiss Average Rate Overnight
("SARON") as the primary Swiss Franc interest rate benchmark and (v) for JPY LIBOR, the Tokyo Overnight Average
Rate ("TONA") as a Japanese Yen interest rate benchmark. The risk free rates have a different methodology and other
important differences from the IBORs they have replaced, a limited historical track record and may be subject to changes
in their methodology. Uncertainties in the development of these risk free rates could have a material adverse effect on the
value of and return on Securities linked to any such rates.

The reforms and eventual replacement of EURIBOR with €STR may cause EURIBOR to perform differently than in the
past, to disappear entirely, or have other consequences which cannot be predicted.

Investors in Securities referencing EURIBOR as an Underlying Interest Rate, or EURIBOR or STIBOR as a floating rate
of interest face the risk that such rate will be discontinued or otherwise unavailable during the term of their Securities, in
which case the rate of interest on the Securities will be determined for the relevant period by the fall-back provisions
applicable to the Securities. Depending on the manner in which EURIBOR or STIBOR is to be determined under the
Terms and Conditions, this may in certain circumstances result in (i) the application of a backward looking, risk free
overnight rate, whereas EURIBOR and STIBOR are expressed on the basis of a forward looking term and include a risk
element based on inter bank lending, (ii) result in the effective application of a fixed rate based on the rate which applied
in the previous period when EURIBOR or STIBOR, as the case may be, was available, or (iii) be determined by reference
to an alternative rate selected by an institution with authority consistent with industry accepted standards or, in the absence
of such alternative rate, by a third party agent appointed by the Calculation Agent. As the replacement rate will not be
identical to the original rate (and may not be comparable), any of the foregoing circumstances could have a significant
adverse effect on the value or liquidity of, and return on, the Securities. In addition, any Holders of such Securities that
enter into hedging instruments based on the original replacement reference rate may find their hedges to be ineffective,
and they may incur costs replacing such hedges with instruments tied to the new replacement reference rate.
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The market continues to develop in relation to SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON and TONA as reference rates for Securities
that pay a floating rate of interest

Where the applicable Final Terms specifies that the Rate of Interest or Rate in respect of the Securities will be determined
by reference to SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON or TONA, the Rate of Interest or Rate will be determined by reference to
the Compounded Daily SONIA (including on the basis of the SONIA Index published by the relevant administrator or
other information service specified in the applicable Final Terms), Weighted Average SONIA, Compounded Daily SOFR
(including on the basis of the SOFR Index published on the NY Federal Reserve Website), SOFR Arithmetic Mean,
Compounded Daily €STR, Compounded Daily SARON, as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

The ongoing development of compounded daily SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON and TONA as reference rates in the
capital markets, as well as continued development of SONIA-, SOFR-, €STR- and SARON-based rates for such markets
and the market infrastructure for adopting such rates, could result in reduced liquidity or increased volatility or could
otherwise affect the market price of any Securities that reference a SONIA, SOFR, €STR or SARON rate, as applicable.

The market, or a significant part thereof, may adopt an application of SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON and TONA that
differs significantly from that set out in the Conditions and used in relation to Securities that pay a floating rate of interest
that reference a SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON and TONA rate issued under this Base Prospectus. Interest on Securities
which reference a SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON and TONA rate is only capable of being determined at the end of the
relevant Interest Period and shortly prior to the relevant Interest Payment Date. It may be difficult for investors in
Securities that reference a SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON and TONA rate to estimate reliably the amount of interest that
will be payable on such Securities, which could adversely impact the liquidity of such Securities. In contrast to Securities
that pay a floating rate of interest referencing a term rate, such as EURIBOR or STIBOR, if Securities referencing
compounded daily or single daily SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON or TONA are redeemed early and accrued interest is
payable on such redemption in respect of a period which is not an Interest Period, the final Rate of Interest payable in
respect of such Securities will only be determined at the due date for redemption.

In addition, the manner of adoption or application of SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON and TONA reference rates in the
Eurobond markets may differ materially compared with the application and adoption of SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON
and TONA in other markets, such as the derivative and loan markets. Any such mismatch between the adoption of SONIA,
SOFR, €STR, SARON and TONA reference rates across these markets may adversely impact any hedging or other
financial arrangements which a Holder has in connection with any acquisition, holding or disposal of any Securities
referencing a SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON and TONA rate and could have a material adverse impact on such Holders'
investments.

To the extent the SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON or TONA rate is not published, the applicable rate to be used to calculate
the Rate of Interest or Rate in respect of an Interest Period, will be determined using the fallback provisions set out in the
Conditions. Any of these fallback provisions may result in interest payments that are lower than, or do not otherwise
correlate over time with, the payments that would have been made on the Securities if the SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON
or TONA rate had been published as expected as of the Issue Date of the Securities. In addition, application of the
fallback provisions may result in the effective application of a fixed rate of interest in respect of the Securities.

Investors will not know in advance the interest amount payable on Securities which is calculated by reference to SONIA,
SOFR, €STR, SARON or TONA

The rate of interest on the Securities may be calculated by reference to SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON or TONA. Because
such rates are overnight funding rates, interest on Securities that reference such rates with Interest Periods longer than
overnight will be calculated on the basis of (a) in the case of SONIA, (i) the weighted average mean of SONIA over the
relevant Observation Lookback Period in respect of an Interest Period or where SONIA is fixed for a certain number of
days prior to the end of the relevant Interest Period, (ii) a compounded SONIA (x) in respect of the Interest Period,
provided that the SONIA used as the basis for calculation is that which was published a specified number of days prior
to the observation date or (y) in respect of a period that starts a specified number of days prior to the relevant Interest
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Period and ends the same specified number of days prior to the end of such Interest Period or (iii) calculated by reference
to the SONIA Index published by the administrator of the SONIA reference rate, (b) in the case of SOFR, (i) the arithmetic
mean of SOFR over the relevant Interest Period, where the SOFR is fixed for a certain number of days prior to the end of
such Interest Period, (ii) a compounded SOFR (x) in respect of the Interest Period, provided that the SOFR used as the
basis for calculation is that which was published a specified number of days prior to the observation date or (y) in respect
of a period that starts a specified number of days prior to the relevant Interest Period and ends the same specified number
of days prior to the end of such Interest Period or (iii) calculated by reference to the SOFR Index published on the NY
Federal Reserve Website (c) in the case of €STR, a compounded €STR (x) in respect of the Interest Period, provided that
€STR used as the basis for calculation is that which was published a specified number of days prior to the observation
date or (y) in respect of a period that starts a specified number of days prior to the relevant Interest Period and ends the
same specified number of days prior to the end of such Interest Period, (d) in the case of SARON, a compounded SARON
in respect of a period that starts a specified number of days prior to the relevant Interest Period and ends the same specified
number of days prior to the end of such Interest Period or (e) in the case of TONA, a compounded TONA (i) in respect
of the Interest Period, provided that the TONA used as the basis for calculation is that which was published a specified
number of days prior to the observation date or (ii) in respect of a period that starts a specified number of days prior to
the relevant Interest Period and ends the same specified number of days prior to the end of such Interest Period. As a
consequence of these calculation methods, the amount of interest payable on each interest payment date will only be
known a short period of time prior to the relevant interest payment date. Investors therefore will not know in advance the
interest amount which will be payable on such Securities and there is a possibility that such amount could be lower than
expected.

Any failure of SOFR to gain market acceptance could adversely affect Holders of Securities that pay a floating rate of
interest referencing SOFR

Holders of Securities that pay a floating rate of interest that references SOFR are exposed to the risk that such rate may
not be widely accepted in the market. The risk of this occurring is mitigated by the fact that SOFR was developed for use
in certain U.S. dollar derivatives and other financial contracts as an alternative to LIBOR in part because it is considered
to be a good representation of general funding conditions in the overnight U.S. Treasury repo market. However, as a rate
based on transactions secured by U.S. Treasury securities, it does not measure bank-specific credit risk and, as a result,
is less likely to correlate with the unsecured short-term funding costs of banks. This may mean that market participants
would not consider SOFR to be a suitable substitute or successor for all of the purposes for which LIBOR historically has
been used (including, without limitation, as a representation of the unsecured short-term funding costs of banks), which
may, in turn, lessen its market acceptance. Any failure of SOFR to gain or maintain market acceptance could adversely
affect the return on, value of and market for Securities that pay a floating rate of interest referencing SOFR.

If proceeds of Green Bonds are not applied, are not certificated or listed as expected the Securities may be adversely
affected

In respect of Securities issued by BNPP B.V., the applicable Final Terms may provide that it will be BNPP B.V.'s intention
to apply the proceeds of issuance of the relevant Series of Securities to Eligible Green Assets, as defined in and further
described in the BNP Paribas Green Bond Framework, as amended and supplemented from time to time (the "Green
Bond Framework"), which is available on the following website: https://invest.bnpparibas/en/document/green-bond-
framework-october-2021. The term "Green Bonds" as used in this risk factor means any Securities to be issued by BNPP
B.V. in accordance with the Green Bond Framework.

Any:
@) failure to apply the proceeds of any issue of Green Bonds to any Eligible Green Assets;
(i1) withdrawal of any opinion or certification or any opinion or certification being superseded by an opinion or

certification stating that BNPP B.V. has not complied, in whole or in part, with any matters on which the original
opinion or certification had opined or certified; and/or
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(iii) event or circumstances resulting in the Green Bonds no longer being listed or admitted to trading on any stock
exchange or securities market,

may have a material adverse effect on the value of Green Bonds and the value of any other securities which are intended
to finance Eligible Green Assets and could also result in adverse consequences for certain investors with portfolio
mandates to invest in securities to be used for a particular purpose.

The relationship of the United Kingdom with the European Union may affect the business (including the Securities) of
the relevant Issuer or the relevant Guarantor in the United Kingdom

The United Kingdom ("UK") left the European Union ("EU") on 31 January 2020 at 1 1pm and the transition period ended
on 31 December 2020 at 11pm. Therefore, the Treaty on the European Union and the Treaty on the Functioning of the
European Union have ceased to apply to the UK. The European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (as amended by the
European Union (Withdrawal Agreement) Act 2020) and secondary legislation made under it ensure there is a functioning
statute book in the UK.

Although the UK and the EU have entered into a Trade and Cooperation Agreement (the "Trade and Cooperation
Agreement") to govern their relationship going forward, the Trade and Cooperation Agreement does not create a detailed
framework to govern the cross-border provision of regulated financial services from the UK into the EU and from the EU
into the UK.

Due to the on-going political uncertainty as regards the structure of the future relationship between the UK and the EU,
the precise impact on the business of the relevant Issuer or the relevant Guarantor in the United Kingdom is difficult to
determine. As such, such matters could adversely affect the ability of the relevant Issuer or the relevant Guarantor to
satisfy its obligations under any Series of Securities with a UK nexus and/or the market value and/or the liquidity of such
Securities in the secondary market.

Risks Relating to Secured Securities

The risk factors set out below relate to Secured Securities, which are subject to the provisions set out in "Annex 13 —
Additional Terms and Conditions for Secured Securities". Unless the Secured Securities are Nominal Value Repack
Securities, the provisions in Part A or B of "Annex 13 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Secured Securities", as
specified in the applicable Final Terms, will apply. If the Secured Securities are Nominal Value Repack Securities, the
provisions in Part C or D of "Annex 13 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Secured Securities", as specified in the
applicable Final Terms, will apply.

Shortfall on realisation of Collateral Pool

Secured Securities issued by BNPP B.V. will be secured by a pool (a "Collateral Pool") of assets (the "Collateral
Assets"). Where a default and/or insolvency event occurs with respect to BNPP B.V. and/or the Guarantor and the security
for the Notes is enforced, the value realised for the Collateral Assets in the relevant Collateral Pool may be insufficient
to pay the Security Termination Amount in respect of the relevant Secured Security, in which case a "Shortfall" will be
deemed to occur unless Physical Delivery of Collateral and Nominal Value Collateralisation is applicable in respect of
all the Secured Securities secured by the relevant Collateral Pool. Under the terms of the relevant Guarantee, the
Guarantor agrees to make payment of the Shortfall in respect of each Note if BNPP B.V. fails to pay such amount;
however, in the event of the insolvency of BNPP B.V. and the Guarantor, the Guarantor may not be in a position to pay
all or part of any Shortfall and investors may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment.

Where one of "Security Value Realisation Proceeds", "Nominal Value Realisation Proceeds" or "Partial Nominal Value
Realisation Proceeds" is specified in the applicable Final Terms as the applicable Security Termination Amount and the
amount paid to a Holder is equal to such Security Termination Amount, no Shortfall will be calculated in respect of such
Secured Securities and no other amount will be payable by BNPP B.V. in respect of such Secured Securities. In such
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circumstances, the amount received by a Holder following an Enforcement Event may not be equal to the market value
of the relevant Secured Security prior to the occurrence of the Enforcement Event and may be significantly less.

Where one of "Realisation Proceeds", "Nominal Value Realisation Proceeds" or "Partial Nominal Value Realisation
Proceeds" is specified in the applicable Final Terms as the applicable Security Termination Amount, following an
Enforcement Event in respect of a series of Nominal Value Repack Securities, the amount payable to a Holder will be
calculated by reference to the realisation proceeds of the Charged Assets relating to such series of Secured Securities and
a pro rata share of such amount will be the Security Termination Amount. No other amount will be payable by BNPP
B.V. in respect of such Secured Securities. Save where Security Value Termination Amount is the applicable Security
Termination Amount, a Shortfall will only arise in respect of a series of Nominal Value Repack Securities if the proceeds
of realisation from the relevant Charged Assets are not paid or deemed to be paid, where Physical Delivery is applicable,
to the relevant Holders. In such circumstances, the amount received by a Holder following an Enforcement Event may
not be equal to the market value of the relevant Nominal Value Repack Security prior to the occurrence of the Enforcement
Event and may be significantly less.

Adjustments to Collateral Pool comprised of Collateral Assets or a cash amount

If specified in the applicable Final Terms (and unless the Secured Securities are Nominal Value Repack Securities), the
Collateral Pool may be adjusted following a Collateral Valuation Date to reflect changes in (i) the amount of cash standing
to the credit of the Collateral Account (the "Deposit Amount") and/or (ii) the marked to market value of the Collateral
Assets compared to the value associated with each series of Secured Securities secured by the relevant Collateral Pool.
Depending on the frequency of the Collateral Valuation Dates, investors may be adversely affected as they will be exposed
to credit risk on BNPP B.V. and the Guarantor to the extent of the difference between (A) the value of the Secured
Securities and (B) the Deposit Amount and/or the marked to market value of the Collateral Assets prior to any such
adjustment being made.

No adjustments to a Collateral Pool

If the Secured Securities are Nominal Value Repack Securities or there are no Collateral Valuation Dates for the Secured
Securities, there will be no adjustments to the Collateral Assets in the Collateral Pool to reflect the current market value
of the relevant Secured Securities at any point in time and, as a result, the market value of the Collateral Assets may be
significantly lower than the amount due on redemption of the Secured Securities. Holders will therefore be exposed to
the difference between such market value and the amount due on redemption of the Securities to the extent it is necessary
for the Collateral Agent, the Security Trustee or the French Collateral Security Agent, as the case may be, to realise such
Collateral Assets in connection with the redemption of the Securities.

Fluctuations in the value of the Collateral Assets

Investors should note that the Collateral Assets may suffer a fall in value between the time at which the relevant Pledge
Agreement(s) become enforceable and the time at which the Collateral Assets are realised in full. Any delay in realising
the relevant Collateral Assets, fluctuations in the value of the Collateral Assets and/or the costs and expenses incurred in,
or relating to, any sale of relevant Collateral Assets will expose Holders to the difference between the value of the Secured
Securities and the Realisation Amount, which may have a negative impact on the amount Holders receive. In
extraordinary circumstances, the Collateral Assets available at the time at which the relevant Pledge Agreement(s) become
enforceable could completely lose their value by the time of the realisation. Any such fall in value of the Collateral Assets
will mean that there is less cash available to BNPP B.V. to make payments and increase the Holders' risk on the Guarantor
to make payments.

Lack of diversification of the Collateral Assets

The Collateral Assets in a Collateral Pool may (including where Limited Diversification is specified as being applicable
in the applicable Final Terms) be limited to one or a few assets or the same or a small number of types of asset between
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which there is a correlation in respect of value or risk or such assets may be issued by the same issuer or a small number
of issuers, or by the same or a small number of types of issuer which may operate in similar or related business sectors.
As a result of such limited diversification, the amount recovered in respect of the Collateral Assets on their sale will be
dependent on the then current market value of a smaller number or type of Collateral Assets and/or Collateral Assets
issued by a smaller number of issuers or type of issuers and this may increase the risk that the proceeds of realisation of
the Collateral Assets may be less than the sums due to the relevant Holders under the relevant Secured Securities and
accordingly, Holders may receive less than anticipated or may receive nothing.

Cross default

Following the occurrence of an Enforcement Event relating to Secured Securities which are not Nominal Value Repack
Securities, the Collateral Agent will realise the Collateral Assets for all Collateral Pools or will cause such Collateral
Assets to be realised. Where the Collateral Assets are securities, liquidation of all the Collateral Assets simultaneously
could potentially lead to a reduction in the market value of some or all of the Collateral Assets and this would increase
the risk that the proceeds of realisation of the Collateral Assets may be less than the sums due to the relevant Holders
under the relevant Secured Securities and accordingly, Holders may receive less than anticipated or may receive nothing.

Following the occurrence of an Enforcement Event in respect of a series of Secured Securities which are Nominal Value
Repack Securities, the Security Trustee (in the case of English Law Securities) or the French Collateral Security Agent
(in the case of French Law Securities) will realise the Collateral Assets for such Collateral Pool or will cause such
Collateral Assets to be realised. Where Enforcement Events occur at the same time in respect of different series of
Nominal Value Repack Securities or where more than one series of Nominal Value Repack Securities is secured by the
same Collateral Pool, the liquidation of the Collateral Assets for such series of Nominal Value Repack Securities at the
same time could potentially lead to a reduction in the market value of some or all of the Collateral Assets (particularly
where the same Collateral Assets are held in the Collateral Pools for different series of Nominal Value Repack Securities)
and this would increase the risk that the proceeds of realisation of the Collateral Assets may be less than the sums due to
the relevant Holders under the relevant Secured Securities and accordingly, Holders may receive less than anticipated or
may receive nothing.

Risk of a delay in the realisation of the Collateral Assets in the event of the insolvency of BNPP B.V.

In the event of the insolvency of BNPP B.V., the realisation of the Collateral Assets may be delayed either by the
insolvency administrator appointed in relation to BNPP B.V. or by measures ordered by a competent court. Such delay
could adversely affect the position of the Holders in the event of the Collateral Assets falling in value during such delay.
In addition, in respect of Secured Securities which are not Nominal Value Repack Securities, as the Collateral Agent and
BNPP B.V. are part of the Group, in the event of the insolvency of BNPP B.V ., it is also possible that the Collateral Agent
may be insolvent. Such circumstances may lead to an inability to realise the Collateral Assets and/or a delay in the
realisation of the Collateral Assets but the Collateral Assets will not form part of the Collateral Agent's estate. The Note
Agency Agreement will contain provisions permitting the replacement of the Collateral Agent in certain circumstances,
including upon the insolvency of the Collateral Agent.

Illiquid Collateral Assets

The Collateral Assets in some Collateral Pools may comprise assets which are not admitted to any public trading market
and may therefore be illiquid and not readily realisable. Where there is limited liquidity in the secondary market relating
to Collateral Assets, the Collateral Agent (or its agent) or, in the case of Secured Securities which are Nominal Value
Repack Securities, the Security Trustee (or its agent or any receiver appointed by it) or the French Collateral Security
Agent (or its agent), as the case may be, may not be able to sell such Collateral Assets to a third party and distribute the
net proceeds to Holders. As a result, Holders may be adversely affected, as they may not receive payments in respect of
their Secured Securities until such Collateral Assets mature or are redeemed in accordance with their terms. The maturity
date of such Collateral Assets may be after the date of redemption of the relevant Secured Securities.
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Subordination of Holders to payment of expenses and other payments

On enforcement of the relevant Pledge Agreement(s) or other applicable security agreements, the rights of the Holders to
be paid amounts from the proceeds of such enforcement and realisation of the Collateral Assets may be subordinate to (i)
any fees and expenses incurred in such enforcement and realisation of the Collateral Assets and (ii) prior rights of the
parties (if any) identified in the applicable Priority of Payments or in the applicable Collateral Security Conditions (which
may, without limitation, include the Security Trustee (and any agents or receiver appointed by it)), the French Collateral
Security Agent (and any agents appointed by it), the Swap Counterparty, the Collateral Exchange Counterparty and/or
Repo Counterparty (in each case to the extent appointed or applicable to a series of Secured Securities) to be paid amounts
due from BNPP B.V. in priority to the Holders from the proceeds of such enforcement and realisation of the Collateral
Assets. Such amounts which may be paid in priority may include, without limitation, termination payments due from
BNPP B.V. to the Repo Counterparty under any Repurchase Agreement entered into with respect to such series of Secured
Securities, termination payments due from BNPP B.V. to the Swap Counterparty under any Swap Agreement entered
into with respect to such series of Secured Securities and/or termination payments due from BNPP B.V. to the Collateral
Exchange Counterparty under any Collateral Exchange Agreement entered into with respect to such series of Secured
Securities. Where other parties are paid amounts in priority to the Holders from the proceeds of such enforcement and
realisation of the Collateral Assets, this will reduce the amount available to be paid to the Holders in the event of
enforcement of the security and increase the likelihood of the Holder suffering a loss.

Physical Delivery of Collateral

If Physical Delivery of Collateral is specified in respect of a series of Secured Securities upon enforcement of the Pledge
Agreement, the Collateral Agent or the Security Trustee (in the case of Nominal Value Repack Securities which are
English Law Securities) or the French Collateral Security Agent (in the case of Nominal Value Repack Securities which
are French Law Securities) will not sell the Collateral Assets which are subject to such physical delivery (unless there is
a Collateral Settlement Disruption Event and/or, in the case of Nominal Value Repack Securities, there are amounts
payable in accordance with the relevant Priority of Payments in priority to the Holders) but will deliver the Collateral
Assets in the manner set out in the Collateral Security Conditions. In such cases, investors wishing to sell the Collateral
Assets before their scheduled redemption date may not be able to realise an amount equal to the nominal amount of the
relevant Collateral Assets which they have received on the secondary market prior to the Maturity Date and such Holders
will be exposed to fluctuations in the price of the Collateral Assets according to market conditions, which may negatively
affect the return they receive.

Collateral Settlement Disruption Event

When Physical Delivery of Collateral is applicable, if a Collateral Settlement Disruption Event occurs or exists on the
Collateral Delivery Date, settlement will be postponed until the next Business Day on which there is no Collateral
Settlement Disruption Event. If such Collateral Settlement Disruption Event continues for a period of not less than eight
Business Days after the original Collateral Delivery Date, the Collateral Agent (in the case of Secured Securities which
are not Nominal Value Repack Securities), the Security Trustee (in respect of Nominal Value Repack Securities which
are English Law Securities) or the French Collateral Security Agent (in respect of Nominal Value Repack Securities
which are French Law Securities) will arrange for the sale of such Collateral Assets instead of delivery of the relevant
Collateral Assets which are due to be delivered in accordance with the relevant Collateral Security Conditions. The
amount received by a Holder following such sale of Collateral Assets may be lower than the amount which a Holder
would have received if the relevant Collateral Assets had been delivered to it and the Holder held the relevant Collateral
Assets to the maturity date of such assets or sold such assets at a different point in time.

Collateral Realisation Delay

In respect of Secured Securities which are not Nominal Value Repack Securities, where the Collateral Custodian is
Euroclear Bank SA/NV, the Collateral Assets will be transferred into a "Single Pledgor Pledged Account” (the "SPPA")
in the Euroclear System, which account will be secured in favour of the Collateral Agent (for its own account and for the
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account of Holders) pursuant to a Belgian law pledge. The SPPA will be opened in the name of BNP Paribas, which will
act in the capacity as "Representative” of the Collateral Agent. Notwithstanding the occurrence of an Event of Default
and an Enforcement Event, Euroclear (as the Collateral Custodian) will take instructions only from BNP Paribas and not
from the Collateral Agent. In such circumstances it is likely that BNP Paribas will be insolvent and therefore the Collateral
Agent will need to instruct the relevant insolvency practitioner to realise the Collateral Assets or to transfer these to an
account in the name of the Collateral Agent. This process may significantly delay the realisation of the Collateral Assets
and, during which time the value of the Collateral Assets may be subject to fluctuations and this may lead to a lower
amount being realised by, or on behalf of, the Collateral Agent and may significantly delay the distribution of the
Realisation Proceeds to Holders following such Enforcement Event thus negatively affecting a Holder's return.

Credit risk on the Reference Collateral Asset Issuer

In the case of Collateral Asset Linked Securities, upon the occurrence of any Collateral Asset Default, the Holders may
suffer significant losses at a time when losses may be suffered by a direct investor in obligations of such Reference
Collateral Asset Issuer. However, the holding of a Collateral Asset Linked Security is unlikely to lead to outcomes which
exactly reflect the impact of directly investing in the Reference Collateral Assets, and losses borne by Holders could be
considerably greater than would be suffered by a direct investor in the Reference Collateral Assets and/or could arise for
reasons unrelated to such Reference Collateral Assets. Holders should also note that a Collateral Asset Default may occur
even if the obligations of the Reference Collateral Asset Issuer under the Reference Collateral Assets are unenforceable
or their performance is prohibited by any applicable law or exchange controls.

Consultation Period

Where a Distributor is specified in the applicable Final Terms for a series of Collateral Asset Linked Securities and a
Collateral Asset Default may have occurred, the Calculation Agent will consult with the Distributor as to whether a
Collateral Asset Default has occurred for a period of up to five Business Days. If the Calculation Agent and the Distributor
do not agree whether a Collateral Asset Default has occurred, the Calculation Agent will obtain the views of three
participants in the relevant market for the Reference Collateral Assets as to whether a Collateral Asset Default has
occurred. If a Collateral Asset Default has occurred, the requirement to consult with the Distributor and, potentially, with
market participants could lead to a delay in BNPP B.V. redeeming the Collateral Asset Linked Securities and as a
consequence Holders may potentially suffer a loss if the value of the Option and/or the Reference Collateral Assets decline
in the period when the relevant consultation(s) is taking place.

Suspension of Payments under the Notes and the relevant Related Agreements during a Suspension Period

Where Suspension of Payments is applicable to a series of Nominal Value Repack Securities, the payment obligations of
BNPP B.V. under the Notes will be suspended if the Calculation Agent determines that facts exist which may amount to
an Asset Payment Default Event, RCA Payment Default Event or Asset Default Event following the expiration of any
applicable grace period. During the Suspension Period (i) BNPP B.V. shall make no payments on account of principal
and/or interest under the Notes; and (ii) neither BNPP B.V. nor the Swap Counterparty (or other applicable Related
Agreement Counterparty) shall make any payments under the Swap Agreement (or other applicable Related Agreement).

If an Early Redemption Event occurs during the Suspension Period (which will be the period of time specified in the
applicable Final Terms or otherwise specified in the terms and conditions of the Securities) then no further payments will
be made under the Notes in respect of principal and/or interest and the Notes will be redeemed in accordance with the
applicable provisions relating to early redemption. If an Early Redemption Event has not occurred on the last day of the
Suspension Period, any prinicpal and/or interest amount which would otherwise have been payable will be payable on
the second Business Day following the earlier of (i) last day of such Suspension Period or (ii) the date on which the
Calculation Agent determines that the events which may have resulted in the potential Early Redemption Event have been
remedied or no longer exist but, Holders may be negatively affected as they will not be entitled to receive any further
payments as a result of such suspension and the corresponding delay in payment of any principal and/or interest amount.
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Subordination of Reference Collateral Assets

Where the relevant Reference Collateral Assets in respect of a Series of Nominal Value Repack Securities are
subordinated obligations, they will be junior to certain obligations of the RCA Issuer. As a result, the holders of Reference
Collateral Assets which are subordinated obligations generally face increased risks as compared with the holders of senior
obligations (including a greater risk of loss and the risk that subordinated obligations of the RCA Issuer may have a lower
market value than senior obligations of the RCA Issuer). In particular, holders of subordinated obligations face an
increased risk of loss in the event of the RCA Issuer's insolvency. Where BNPP B.V. acquires Reference Collateral
Assets which are subordinated obligations, Holders of Nominal Value Repack Securities are also exposed to such
increased risk of loss.

Reliance on creditworthiness of other parties

In the case of Nominal Value Repack Securities, in the event of the insolvency of the Collateral Exchange Counterparty
(where relevant), BNPP B.V. will rank as an unsecured creditor of the Collateral Exchange Counterparty with respect to
the return of any part of the Reference Collateral Assets which have been transferred by BNPP B.V. to the Collateral
Exchange Counterparty pursuant to the Collateral Exchange Agreement (the "Received Collateral"). Where Collateral
Exchange Agreement - Two Way Transfer or Collateral Exchange — Triparty Transfer is applicable, although BNPP B.V.
will have received Replacement Collateral Assets from the Collateral Exchange Counterparty, holders of the Securities
are therefore exposed to the credit risk of the Collateral Exchange Counterparty on an unsecured basis to the extent the
Replacement Collateral Assets cannot be sold for the same amount as a sale of the Received Collateral would have realised
if such Reference Collateral Assets had not been transferred to the Collateral Exchange Counterparty.

Where Collateral Exchange Agreement - One Way Transfer Securities Lending is applicable, although BNPP B.V. will
grant security over its rights against the Collateral Exchange Counterparty under the Collateral Exchange Agreement
prospective investors should note that as BNPP B.V. will not receive replacement collateral from the Collateral Exchange
Counterparty, BNPP B.V. is therefore exposed (and as a consequence the Holders are effectively exposed) to the credit
risk of the Collateral Exchange Counterparty on an unsecured basis to the extent the Collateral Exchange Counterparty
does not return equivalent Received Collateral or, in the event of such failure, is unable to pay the relevant termination
payment due under the Collateral Exchange Agreement.

If an Enforcement Event occurs with respect to BNPP B.V. in the period from the Issue Date and prior to the date on
which the Collateral Exchange Counterparty transfers Equivalent Securities in respect of the Reference Collateral Assets,
the Collateral Exchange Agreement will terminate and instead of transferring Equivalent Securities to BNPP B.V., the
Collateral Exchange Counterparty will be obliged to pay a termination payment to BNPP B.V.. This termination payment
will be equal to the market value of the Received Collateral determined in accordance with the terms of the Collateral
Exchange Agreement. If the Collateral Exchange Counterparty fails to pay the relevant termination payment, the Security
Trustee (in respect of English Law Securities) or the French Collateral Security Agent (in respect of French Law
Securities) will have no recourse to the Received Collateral and instead will have to rely on the enforcement of the
contractual rights BNPP B.V. has in order to recover the termination payment from the Collateral Exchange Counterparty.
If the Collateral Exchange Counterparty is unable to pay the sums due under the Collateral Exchange Agreement in such
circumstances, Holders may lose all or a substantial part of their investment in the Securities.

In respect of certain series of Nominal Value Repack Securities, BNPP B.V. will not hold Reference Collateral Assets
for all or part of the duration of the relevant series of Nominal Value Repack Securities and/or may pay redemption
proceeds from the Reference Collateral Assets to the Swap Counterparty and/or may pay the issuance proceeds to the
Swap Counterparty. In such circumstances, the ability of BNPP B.V. to make payment of amounts due under the relevant
Nominal Value Repack Securities will be dependent on the receipt by it of payments from the Swap Counterparty. Other
than any collateral which may be transferred by the Swap Counterparty pursuant to the Credit Support Annex (if any),
the only Charged Assets during the period between the maturity date of the Reference Collateral Assets (or the Issue Date
where the issuance proceeds have been paid to the Swap Counterparty) and the Maturity Date will be the relevant
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contractual rights of BNPP B.V. under the Swap Agreement against the Swap Counterparty. If the Swap Agreement
terminates, it is likely that a termination payment will be due from the Swap Counterparty. If the Swap Counterparty fails
to pay such termination payment where the issuance proceeds from the Nominal Value Repack Securities or the
redemption proceeds from the Reference Collateral Assets have been paid to the Swap Counterparty, BNPP B.V. or, in
the case of an Enforcement Event, the Security Trustee (in respect of English Law Securities) or the French Collateral
Security Agent (in respect of French Law Securities) on behalf of the Holders, will have to rely on the enforcement of the
contractual rights BNPP B.V. has in order to recover the termination payment from the Swap Counterparty. If the Swap
Counterparty is unable to pay the sums due under the Swap Agreement in such circumstances, Holders may lose all or a
substantial part of their investment in the relevant series of Nominal Value Repack Securities.

Where a Credit Support Annex is entered into in connection with the Swap Agreement in respect of a series of Nominal
Value Repack Securities where BNPP B.V. does not acquire Reference Collateral Assets or enter into a Repurchase
Agreement, only the Swap Counterparty will transfer collateral to BNPP B.V.. Such collateral will be available to be
sold by BNPP B.V. if the Swap Agreement terminates and the Swap Counterparty does not pay the relevant termination
payment (if any) due under the Swap Agreement. If there is a mismatch between the value of the Swap Counterparty
Collateral and the close out value of the Swap Agreement, it is possible that there will still be a termination payment due
from the Swap Counterparty to BNPP B.V. If the Swap Counterparty fails to pay such termination payment, BNPP B.V.
or, in the case of an Enforcement Event, the Security Trustee (in respect of English Law Securities) or the French
Collateral Security Agent (in respect of French Law Securities) on behalf of the Holders, will have to rely on the
enforcement of the contractual rights BNPP B.V. has in order to recover the termination payment from the Swap
Counterparty. If the Swap Counterparty is unable to pay the sums due under the Swap Agreement in such circumstances,
Holders may lose all or a substantial part of their investment in the relevant series of Nominal Value Repack Securities.

BNPP B.V. may also be obliged to transfer some or all of the Reference Collateral Assets to the Swap Counterparty
pursuant to a Credit Support Annex. In the event of an Enforcement Event affecting BNPP B.V., the Swap Agreement is
likely to terminate and in circumstances where BNPP B.V. has transferred Issuer Posted Collateral to the Swap
Counterparty, these Reference Collateral Assets will not be returned. Instead the value of such Reference Collateral Assets
will be treated as an Unpaid Amount and factored into the calculation of the termination payment due under the Swap
Agreement. If there is a mismatch between the value of the Issuer Posted Collateral and the close out value of the Swap
Agreement, it is possible that there will be a termination payment due from the Swap Counterparty to BNPP B.V. If the
Swap Counterparty fails to pay such termination payment, the Security Trustee (in respect of English Law Securities) or
the French Collateral Security Agent (in respect of French Law Securities) on behalf of the Holders will have no recourse
to the Issuer Posted Collateral and instead will have to rely on the enforcement of the contractual rights BNPP B.V. has
in order to recover the termination payment from the Swap Counterparty. If the Swap Counterparty is unable to pay the
sums due under the Swap Agreement in such circumstances, Holders may lose all or a substantial part of their investment
in the relevant series of Nominal Value Repack Securities.

Country and regional risk

The price and value of any Collateral Assets may be influenced by the political, financial and economic stability of the
country and/or region in which an obligor of any Collateral Assets is incorporated or has its business or of the country of
the currency in which any Collateral Assets are denominated. Although this risk is likely to be more acute where there
is a nexus with an emerging market, in certain cases, the price and value of assets originating from countries ordinarily
not considered to be emerging markets countries may behave in a similar manner to those of assets originating from
emerging markets countries. The risks which arise relating to an investment in emerging markets obligations or in
Securities which are secured on emerging markets obligations include:

@) the price of such obligations may be subject to sharp and sudden fluctuations and declines;

(ii) such obligations may be illiquid and therefore difficult to sell;
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(iii) in certain cases the Holders may be exposed to the risk of default by a sub-custodian in an emerging markets
country which will mean that the Collateral Agent, the Security Trustee or the French Collateral Security Agent,
as the case may be, may not be able to effect the sale of the relevant Collateral Assets; and

@iv) realisation of Collateral Assets comprising emerging markets obligations may be subject to restrictions or delays
arising under local law.

The occurrence of such circumstances could lead to a lower amount being realised by the Collateral Agent, the Security
Trustee or the French Collateral Security Agent, as the case may be, and therefore, Holders receiving less (and, potentially,
significantly less) than anticipated.

Business relationships

Each of BNPP B.V., the Guarantor, each Manager, each Agent and the Security Trustee and any French Collateral
Security Agent and their respective affiliates may deal with and engage generally in any kind of commercial or investment
banking or other business with any RCA Reference Entity, its respective affiliates or any other person or entity having
obligations relating to any RCA Reference Entity to in the same manner as if the Securities issued under the Programme
did not exist and will pursue actions and take steps that they deem or it deems necessary or appropriate to protect their or
its interests arising therefrom, regardless of whether any such action might have an adverse effect on a RCA Reference
Entity or any of its respective affiliates or any guarantor or provider of any credit enhancement or any other person and
whether an Early Redemption Event will occur and as a result that Holders may lose some or all of their initial investment.

Exposure to credit risk of RCA Reference Entities

The terms of certain series of Nominal Value Repack Securities may create exposure to the credit risk of the RCA
Reference Entities (including the Eligible Collateral Issuer) specified as relevant to such series. The likelihood of a
Reference Collateral Credit Event or Early Redemption Event occurring with respect to any relevant RCA Reference
Entity or in relation to the Reference Portfolio, as the case may be, will generally fluctuate with, among other things, the
financial condition of the relevant RCA Reference Entity (where applicable), general economic conditions, the condition
of certain financial markets, political events, developments or trends in any particular industry and changes in prevailing
interest rates. Upon the occurrence of one of these Early Redemption Events or a Reference Collateral Credit Event, the
Holders may suffer significant losses at a time when losses may be suffered by a direct investor in obligations of such
RCA Reference Entity. However, the holding of a Nominal Value Repack Security is unlikely to lead to outcomes which
exactly reflect the impact of directly investing in the Reference Collateral Assets, and losses could be considerably greater
than would be suffered by a direct investor in the Reference Collateral Assets and/or could arise for reasons unrelated to
such Reference Collateral Assets. Holders should also note that a relevant Early Redemption Event or a Reference
Collateral Credit Event may occur even if the obligations of the RCA Reference Entity under the Reference Collateral
Assets are unenforceable or their performance is prohibited by any applicable law or exchange controls.

Leveraged Nominal Value Repack Securities

In respect of certain series of Nominal Value Repack Securities, BNPP B.V. may acquire Reference Collateral Assets
with a nominal amount greater than the aggregate nominal amount of the relevant Nominal Value Repack Securities.
Although BNPP B.V. will hold Reference Collateral Assets with a greater nominal amount than the aggregate nominal
amount of the relevant series of Nominal Value Repack Securities and will therefore be overcollateralised, the purchase
of such Reference Collateral Assets will be funded by payments received from the Swap Counterparty and in such
circumstances the amounts required to purchase the relevant Reference Collateral Assets may be substantially higher in
aggregate than the issue proceeds in respect of the relevant series of Nominal Value Repack Securities. In the event that
an Early Redemption Event or Event of Default occurs, the likelihood that a termination payment will be due to the Swap
Counterparty will be magnified as will the potential extent of such payment. This could lead to the amount of the proceeds
of sale of the Reference Collateral Assets being available to pay amounts due to the Holders being significantly reduced
where such amounts are applied towards payment of the termination payment due to the Swap Counterparty.
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Risks associated with credit risk retention

The Secured Securities sold as part of the initial distribution of any Secured Securities may not be purchased by any
person except for persons that are not "U.S. persons” as defined in the U.S. Risk Retention Rules, or "Risk Retention U.S.
Persons". "U.S. Risk Retention Rules" means Regulation RR (17 C.F.R Part 246) implementing the risk retention
requirements of Section 15G of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. It is not certain whether the
foreign transaction safe harbor exemption from the U.S. Risk Retention Rules will be available. Failure of the offering
to comply with the U.S. Risk Retention Rules (regardless of the reason for the failure to comply) could give rise to
regulatory action which may adversely affect the Secured Securities. Furthermore, the impact of the U.S. Risk Retention
Rules on the securitisation markets generally is uncertain, and a failure by a transaction to comply with the U.S. Risk
Retention Rules could negatively affect the market value and secondary market liquidity of the Secured Securities.

Scope of guarantee

The guarantee in respect of the Secured Securities provided by BNPP is not a guarantee to deliver any securities or pay
any interest amount and/or Final Redemption Amount in respect of the Secured Securities but is a guarantee to pay an
amount equal to the relevant Shortfall only. Other than where Physical Delivery of Collateral and Nominal Value
Collateralisation is applicable in respect of all the Secured Securities secured by the relevant Collateral Pool, a Shortfall
will arise where the security for the Securities is enforced and the proceeds of realisation of the Collateral Assets in the
relevant Collateral Pool is less than the Security Termination Amount in respect of the relevant Secured Security. The
Security Termination Amount is an amount linked to either the market value of the relevant Secured Security, the nominal
value of the Secured Security or the proceeds of realisation of the Collateral Assets in the Collateral Pool as specified in
the relevant Final Terms. As a result, and depending on the Security Termination Amount applicable, Holders may
receive less than the amount of interest and/or Final Redemption Amount payable if BNPP B.V. had performed its
obligations under the Secured Securities and/or if payment of such amounts had been guaranteed in full by BNPP (as is
the case with the guarantee for Securities which are not Secured Securities). In addition, an Enforcement Event must
have occurred and the security enforced by the Collateral Agent, the Security Trustee or the French Collateral Security
Agent, as the case may be, prior to any payment under the guarantee for Secured Securities and, as a result, amounts may
be payable under the guarantee for Secured Securities substantially later than amounts may be payable under the guarantee
provided by BNPP in respect of Securities which are not Secured Securities.

Limited Recourse Obligations

The Secured Securities which are Nominal Value Repack Seecurities are direct, secured, limited recourse obligations of
BNPP B.V. payable solely out of the assets over which BNPP B.V. has granted security in favour of the Security Trustee
(in the case of English Law Securities) or the French Collateral Security Agent (in the case of French Law Securities) on
behalf of, among others, the Holders. BNPP B.V. will have no other assets or sources of revenue other than its rights
under any Swap Agreement and/or Repurchase Agreement and/or Collateral Exchange Agreement, guarantee or credit
enhancement agreement and the Collateral Assets (if any) for the relevant series of Nominal Value Repack Securities.
The proceeds available for and allocated to the repayment of the relevant Nominal Value Repack Securities at any
particular time may not be sufficient to cover all amounts that would otherwise be due and payable in respect of the
relevant series of Nominal Value Repack Securities.

If the proceeds of the realisation of the Collateral Assets and the other assets of BNPP B.V. received by the Security
Trustee (in the case of English Law Securities) or the French Collateral Security Agent (in the case of French Law
Securities) for the benefit of the Holders are insufficient to make payments on the relevant series of Nominal Value
Repack Securities, no other assets will be available for payment of any shortfall, and, following distribution of the
proceeds of such realisation, the obligation of BNPP B.V. to pay such shortfall shall be extinguished. No person other
than BNPP B.V. or the Guarantor will be obliged to make payments on the relevant series of Nominal Value Repack
Securities. The Guarantor has guaranteed BNPP B.V's obligations to pay the portion of the proceeds of realisation from
the Charged Assets remaining after payment of amounts due in priority thereto to the Holders. Following the occurrence
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of an Enforcement Event, BNPP B.V. has no obligation to pay an amount to Holders other than the relevant part of the
realisation proceeds and BNPP B.V. (and as a consequence the Guarantor) will have no liability for any shortfall between
such amount and the amounts which would have been payable if an Enforcement Event had not occurred and the Security
Interests had not been enforced. Accordingly, any such shortfall will be borne by the Holders and by the relevant Swap
Counterparty, relevant Repo Counterparty and Collateral Exchange Counterparty, as the case may be. The holders of the
relevant Nominal Value Repack Securities shall not be able to institute, or join with any other person in bringing,
instituting or joining, insolvency proceedings (whether court based or otherwise) in relation to BNPP B.V. or the
appointment of an insolvency administrator in respect of BNPP B.V., as a consequence of any such shortfall.
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INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS
1. General investment considerations associated with the Securities
Securities (other than Secured Securities) are Unsecured Obligations

Unless the Securities are Secured Securities, the Securities are unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the relevant
Issuer and will rank pari passu with themselves. Each issue of Securities issued by BNPP B.V. will be guaranteed by
BNPP pursuant to (a) (in the case of English Law Securities) the BNPP English Law Note Guarantee or (b) (in the case
of French Law Securities) the BNPP French Law Note Guarantee (together, the BNPP Note Guarantees). The obligations
of BNPP under the BNPP Note Guarantees are senior preferred obligations within the meaning of Article L.613-30-3-1-
3° of the French Code monétaire et financier and unsecured obligations of BNPP and will rank pari passu with all its
other present and future senior preferred and unsecured obligations, subject to such exceptions as may from time to time
be mandatory under French law. Each issue of Securities issued by BP2F will be guaranteed by BNPPF pursuant to the
BNPPF Note Guarantee. The obligations of BNPPF under the BNPPF Note Guarantee are unsubordinated and unsecured
obligations of BNPPF and will rank pari passu with all its other present and future unsubordinated and unsecured
obligations, subject as may from time to time be mandatory under Belgian Law.

Description of the role of the Calculation Agent

@) The Calculation Agent may be an Affiliate of the relevant Issuer or, the Guarantor, or the Calculation Agent may
be the Guarantor itself. The Calculation Agent is under no obligation to take into account the interests of Holders
of the Securities, including with respect to making certain determinations and judgments, such as whether an
event, including a Market Disruption Event, a Settlement Disruption Event or Credit Event (each, as defined in
the Conditions), has occurred and, in some cases, the applicable consequences.

(ii) The Calculation Agent is obliged to carry out its duties and functions as calculation agent acting in good faith
and in a commercially reasonable manner.

Investors should also refer to "Potential conflicts of interest" in the "Risks" section.
Certain specific information may not be known at the beginning of an offer period

In certain circumstances, at the commencement of an offer period in respect of Securities, but prior to the issue date of
such Securities certain specific information (specifically, the issue price, fixed rate of interest, minimum and/or maximum
rate of interest payable, the margin applied to the floating rate of interest payable, the Gearing applied to the interest or
final payout, the Gearing Up applied to the final payout, (in the case of Autocall Securities, Autocall One Touch Securities
or Autocall Standard Securities) the FR Rate component of the final payout (which will be payable if certain conditions
are met, as set out in the Payout Conditions), (in the case of Securities which include a Snowball Digital Coupon, Digital
Coupon, Accrual Digital Coupon, SPS Variable Amount Coupon or SPS Fixed Coupon) the Rate component of the
coupon rate, the value of the barrier component of a final payout or coupon rate, the AER Exit Rate used if an Automatic
Early Redemption Event occurs, the Bonus Coupon component of the final payout (in the case of Vanilla Digital
Securities), the Up Cap Percentage component of the final payout (in the case of Certi-Plus: Generic Securities, Certi-
Plus: Generic Knock-in Securities and Certi-Plus: Generic Knock-out Securities), any Constant Percentage (being any of
Constant Percentage, Constant Percentage 1, Constant Percentage 2, Constant Percentage 3 or Constant Percentage 4)
component of the final payout or coupon rate (which will be payable if certain conditions are met, as set out in the Payout
Conditions), the Floor Percentage component of the final payout or coupon rate and/or the Knock-in Level and/or Knock-
out Level (used to ascertain whether a Knock-in Event or Knock-out Event, as applicable, has occurred)) may not be
known. In these circumstances the Final Terms will specify in place of the relevant price, rate, level or percentage, as
applicable, a minimum and/or maximum price, rate, level or percentage, as applicable, or an indicative range of prices,
rates, levels or percentages. The actual price, rate, level or percentage, as applicable, applicable to the Securities will be
selected by the Issuer from within the range or will not be higher than the maximum price, rate, level or percentage, and/or
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will not be lower than the minimum price, rate, level or percentage, as specified in the applicable Final Terms and will
be notified to investors prior to the Issue Date. The actual price, rate, level or percentage, as applicable, will be determined
in accordance with market conditions by the Issuer in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner.

Prospective purchasers of Securities will be required to make their investment decision based on the minimum and/or
maximum price, rate, level or percentage, as applicable, or the indicative range rather than the actual price, rate, level or
percentage, as applicable, which will only be fixed after the investment decision is made but will apply to the Securities
once issued.

Where a minimum and/or maximum price, rate, level or percentage, as applicable, or an indicative range is specified in
the Final Terms in respect of the Rate of Interest, Minimum Rate of Interest, Maximum Rate of Interest, Margin, FR Rate,
Rate and/or AER Exit Rate, prospective purchasers of Securities should, for the purposes of evaluating the risks and
benefits of an investment in the Securities, assume that the actual Rate of Interest, Minimum Rate of Interest, Maximum
Rate of Interest, Margin, FR Rate, Rate and/or AER Exit Rate, as applicable, which will apply to the Securities will be
the lowest rate specified in the range and make their decision to invest in the Securities on that basis.

Recognition of English court judgments at the end of the United Kingdom's Brexit Transition Period

On 31 January 2020, the United Kingdom (the "UK") formally left the European Union. Pursuant to a treaty entitled "the
Agreement on the withdrawal of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland from the European Union
and the European Atomic Energy Community" (the "Withdrawal Agreement"), the UK and the EU agreed to an
implementation period, ending on 31 December 2020 (the "Transition Period"). The Withdrawal Agreement was
incorporated into English law by the European Union (Withdrawal Agreement) Act 2020.

As a result of leaving the EU, the UK is no longer bound by the provisions of Regulation (EU) No 1215/2012 (the
"Brussels Recast"), a formal reciprocal regime between EU Member States on the allocation of jurisdiction and the
mutual recognition and enforcement of Member State judgments. This regime is no longer applied by English courts,
save in relation to legacy cases (i.e. those cases where proceedings were initiated prior to the end of the Transition Period).
As a further consequence, English judgments will no longer be recognised and enforced in EU Member State courts under
this regime, again, save for legacy cases where English judgments are issued in proceedings commenced prior to the end
of the Transition Period.

Upon leaving the EU, the UK also ceased to be a member of another convention on the allocation of jurisdiction and the
mutual enforcement of contracting state court judgments, the Lugano Convention 2007 (the "Lugano Convention"). The
EU, Switzerland, Iceland and Norway are members of the Lugano Convention and the UK has applied to re-join this
convention. As of the date of this Base Prospectus, the UK's application is pending. As the UK is no longer a Lugano
contracting state, English judgments cannot be enforced under this regime in other contracting states, although Norway
has put in place arrangements with the UK for the reciprocal enforcement of judgments.

Investors should also note that on 1 January 2021 the UK re-joined the Hague Convention on Choice of Court Agreements
2005 (the "Hague Convention") as a sovereign state. The Hague Convention is another international convention on the
jurisdiction and the reciprocal enforcement of contracting state judgments. The Hague Convention requires contracting
states to respect exclusive jurisdiction clauses in favour of other contracting state courts and to enforce resulting
judgments. The EU, Mexico, Montenegro and Singapore are currently contracting states.

Accordingly, English judgments issued by an English court pursuant to an exclusive jurisdiction clause entered into after
1 January 2021 should be recognised and enforced in EU states (and Mexico, Montenegro and Singapore) under the
Hague Convention, subject to standard exceptions. It is generally considered that the Hague Convention only covers
exclusive jurisdiction clauses and resulting judgments (although, investors should note that there are some matters, such
as certain company matters that are outside the scope of the Hague Convention). There remains uncertainty as to whether
the Hague Convention would be applied by Member State courts in respect of exclusive jurisdiction clauses entered into
between 1 October 2015 (when the EU joined the Convention) and 31 December 2020. The UK has legislated to confirm
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such clauses would be treated as being within the Hague Convention. Although the grounds upon which enforcement
may be refused under the Hague Convention are in substance similar to those under the Brussels Recast, the Hague
Convention is new and therefore there may be some uncertainty as to how Member State courts apply these provisions,
at least initially.

Where English jurisdiction clauses and judgments are not within the scope of the Hague Convention, it will be necessary
to consider the applicable national law rules.

2. Investment considerations associated with certain interest rates
Additional information on EURIBOR and related reforms

The euro risk free rate working group for the euro area has published a set of guiding principles and high level
recommendations for fallback provisions in, amongst other things, new euro denominated cash products (including bonds)
referencing EURIBOR. The guiding principles indicate, amongst other things, that continuing to reference EURIBOR in
relevant contracts (without robust fallback provisions) may increase the risk to the euro area financial system. On 11 May
2021, the euro risk free rate working group published its recommendations on EURIBOR fallback trigger events and
fallback rates.

Investors should be aware that, if EURIBOR were discontinued or otherwise unavailable, the rate of interest on the
Securities will be determined for the relevant period by the fall-back provisions applicable to the Securities, as further
described in the Conditions.

Additional information on the development of SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON and TONA as reference rates

Holders of Securities that reference SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON or TONA should be aware that the market continues
to develop in relation to SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON and TONA, respectively, as reference rates in the capital markets
and their adoption as an alternative to GBP-LIBOR, USD-LIBOR, EURIBOR, CHF-LIBOR and JPY-LIBOR,
respectively. For example, in the context of backwards-looking rates, market participants and relevant working groups
are currently assessing the differences between compounded rates and weighted average rates and the basis on which to
determine them, and such groups are also exploring forward-looking "term" SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON and TONA
reference rates; although, it is not known whether they will be adopted by the markets. The adoption of SONIA, SOFR,
€STR, SARON or TONA may also see component inputs into swap rates or other composite rates.

The market, or a significant part thereof, may adopt an application of SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON or TONA that
differs significantly from the methodology set out in the Conditions.

Additional information on the development of SONIA reference rates for use in the capital markets

In connection with the ongoing development of the market in relation to SONIA as a reference rate in the capital markets,
market participants and relevant working groups are exploring alternative reference rates based on SONIA, including
term SONIA reference rates (which seek to measure the market's forward expectation of an average SONIA rate over a
designated term). The ongoing development of Compounded Daily SONIA as an interest reference rate for the Eurobond
markets, as well as continued development of SONIA-based rates for such markets and the market infrastructure for
adopting such rates, could result in reduced liquidity or increased volatility or could otherwise affect the market price of
the Securities.

If EURIBOR, STIBOR or any other benchmark is discontinued, the applicable floating rate of interest or Underlying
Interest Rate may be changed

In respect of Securities linked to an Underlying Interest Rate or Securities which pay a floating rate of interest, if the
Issuer or the Calculation Agent determines at any time that the relevant reference rate has been discontinued, the
Calculation Agent will use, as a substitute for the relevant reference rate, the alternative reference rate selected by the
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central bank, reserve bank, monetary authority or any similar institution in the jurisdiction of the currency of the relevant
rate that is consistent with industry accepted standards. If the Calculation Agent notifies the Issuer that it is unable to
determine such an alternative reference rate, the Calculation Agent will appoint a determination agent (which may be the
Guarantor or an affiliate of the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Calculation Agent) who will determine a replacement reference
rate, as well as any required changes to the business day convention, the definition of business day, the interest
determination date, the day count fraction and any method for calculating the replacement rate including any adjustment
required to make such replacement reference rate comparable to the relevant reference rate. Such replacement reference
rate will (in the absence of manifest error) be final and binding, and will apply to the relevant Securities.

The replacement rate may perform differently from the discontinued reference rate. There can be no assurance that any
adjustment applied to any Securities will adequately compensate for this impact.

The conditions also provide for other fallbacks, such as consulting reference banks for rate quotations, which may not be
possible if the reference banks decline to provide such quotations for a sustained period of time (or at all). If the relevant
screen page for the reference rate is not available or it is not possible to obtain quotations then the Calculation Agent will
determine the relevant rate of interest for the affected Securities at the relevant time acting in good faith and in a
commercially reasonable manner. Investors should note that the replacement rate may be different to the original rate.

It is possible that, if a reference rate is discontinued, a clear successor rate will not be established in the market for some
time. Accordingly, the terms of the Securities provide as an ultimate fallback that, following the designation of a
replacement rate, if the Calculation Agent or the determination agent appointed by the Calculation Agent considers that
such replacement reference rate is no longer substantially comparable to the original reference rate or does not constitute
an industry accepted successor rate, the Calculation Agent will appoint or re-appoint a determination agent (which may
or may not be the same entity as the original determination agent) for the purposes of confirming the replacement reference
rate or determining a substitute replacement reference rate (despite the continued existence of the initial replacement
reference rate). Any such substitute replacement reference rate, once designated pursuant to the Conditions, will apply to
the affected Securities. This could impact the relevant rate of interest in respect of the Securities. In addition, any Holders
of such Securities that enter into hedging instruments based on the original replacement reference rate may find their
hedges to be ineffective, and they may incur costs replacing such hedges with instruments tied to the new replacement
reference rate.

Additional considerations associated with Securities that pay a floating rate of interest referencing SOFR

SOFR is a relatively new rate. The NY Federal Reserve began to publish SOFR in April 2018. Although the NY Federal
Reserve has published historical indicative SOFR information going back to 2014, such prepublication historical data
inherently involves assumptions, estimates and approximations. Investors should not rely on any historical changes or
trends in SOFR as an indicator of the future performance of SOFR. Since the initial publication of SOFR, daily changes
in the rate have, on occasion, been more volatile than daily changes in other benchmark or market rates. As a result, the
return on and value of Securities that pay a floating rate of interest by reference to SOFR ("SOFR-Linked Securities")
may fluctuate more than floating rate debt securities that are linked to less volatile rates.

Because SOFR is a relatively new market index, SOFR-Linked Securities will likely have no established trading market
when issued, and an established trading market may never develop or may not be very liquid. Market terms for debt
securities indexed to SOFR, such as the spread over the base rate reflected in the interest rate provisions, may evolve over
time, and trading prices of SOFR-Linked Securities may be lower than those of later-issued SOFR-linked debt securities
as aresult. Similarly, if SOFR does not prove to be widely used in securities like the Securities, the trading price of SOFR-
Linked Securities may be lower than those of securities linked to rates that are more widely used. Investors may not be
able to sell SOFR-Linked Securities at all or may not be able to sell such Securities at prices that will provide a yield
comparable to similar investments that have a developed secondary market, and may consequently suffer from increased
pricing volatility and market risk.
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The manner of adoption or application of reference rates based on SOFR in the bond market may differ materially
compared with the application and adoption of SOFR in other markets, such as the derivatives and loan markets. Investors
should carefully consider how any potential inconsistencies between the adoption of reference rates based on SOFR across
these markets may impact any hedging or other financial arrangements which they may put in place in connection with
any acquisition, holding or disposal of the SOFR-Linked Securities.

The NY Federal Reserve notes on its publication page for SOFR that use of SOFR is subject to important limitations,
including that the NY Federal Reserve may alter the methods of calculation, publication schedule, rate revision practices
or availability of SOFR at any time without notice. There can be no guarantee that SOFR will not be discontinued or
fundamentally altered in a way that affects the value of the Securities. If the manner in which SOFR is calculated is
changed or if SOFR is discontinued, that change or discontinuance may result in a reduction or elimination of the amount
of interest payable on SOFR-Linked Securities and a reduction in the trading prices of such Securities.

3. Investment considerations associated with adjustment, disruption and related redemption provisions in
respect of the Securities

Description of Additional Disruption Event and Optional Additional Disruption Events

The Additional Disruption Events correspond to changes in law (including changes in tax or regulatory capital
requirements) and hedging disruptions in respect of any hedging transactions relating to the Securities. The Optional
Additional Disruption Events that may be specified in the applicable Final Terms correspond to the occurrence of an
event relating to benchmark reform (including a material change, permanent cancellation or issue with any official
authorisation of the benchmark, administrator or sponsor) (an Administrator/Benchmark Event), an early redemption of
any Debt Instruments (a Cancellation Event), an issue converting or determining a rate for a currency (a Currency Event),
a failure to deliver assets comprising the Entitlement in the case of Physical Delivery Securities (a Failure to Deliver due
to Illiquidity), a material hindrance or delay to the performance of the Issuer's obligations under the Securities (an
Extraordinary External Event), a default by any hedging counterparty in respect of the Securities (a Hedging Party
Default), a materially increased cost of hedging (an Increased Cost of Hedging), an increase in the rate to borrow any
relevant share or any component of an Index (an Increased Cost of Stock Borrow), circumstances where it is
impracticable, illegal or impossible to purchase, sell, hold or otherwise deal in the Underlying Reference (a Jurisdiction
Event), insolvency of the relevant Share Company or Basket Company (an Insolvency Filing), an inability to borrow any
relevant share (a Loss of Stock Borrow), a drop in the price of a Share below 5 per cent. (or such other value specified in
the applicable Final Terms) of its Strike Price (a Stop-Loss Event) and/or an event that is not attributable to the Issuer
that significantly alters the economics of the Securities (a Significant Alteration Event). Each of the Additional Disruption
Events and Optional Additional Disruption Events are both more fully set out in the Conditions.

Consequences of a Disrupted Day

The occurrence of a Disrupted Day may delay the determination of the final level, value, price or amount of the index,
share, ETI interest, debt instrument, future, commodity or commodity index which could also cause a delay in the payment
of any amount payable in respect of the Securities as more fully set out in the Conditions.

Description of Early Redemption Amounts

The manner in which the amount due to Holders on an early redemption of the Securities is determined may depend on
the event that has triggered an early redemption of the Securities and the early redemption method specified in the
applicable Final Terms. The Securities (other than Nominal Value Repack Securities) will be redeemed at an amount
calculated by reference to:

(a) (unless otherwise specified or if Market Value is specified in the applicable Final Terms) the fair market value
of such Securities;
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(b) (if the applicable Final Terms indicate redemption will be delayed) the fair market value of the Securities at the
point of the event triggering redemption plus the Issuer's cost of funding up to the scheduled Maturity Date;

(©) (if Highest Value is specified in the applicable Final Terms) the greater of the fair market value of the Securities
and the Protected Amount specified in the Final Terms; or

(d (if Monetisation Option is specified in the applicable Final Terms and Holders do not elect to receive the fair
market value of the Securities) the present value of the Protected Amount specified in the Final Terms, the
market value of the embedded derivative, a hypothetical interest rate that might be achieved on an alternative
debt instrument with the same tenor as the Securities and the remaining time to the scheduled Maturity Date (the
"Monetisation Amount"),

each an "Early Redemption Amount".

In the case of (b), payment of the Early Redemption Amount will be made on the scheduled Maturity Date. Any
determination of the fair market value of the Securities will take into account the event or circumstances that triggered
the early redemption. The Final Terms may specify that any costs incurred by the Issuer (or its affiliates) as a result of
unwinding any hedging arrangements associated with the Securities may not be taken into account when determining the
amount payable on early redemption.

If the Final Terms specify that Highest Value, Market Value or Monetisation Option are applicable, the amount the Holder
receives on early redemption will include reimbursement of any costs that were charged as part of the Issue Price of the
Securities and will not include a deduction of any costs. If Monetisation Option is specified as applicable in the applicable
Final Terms, the Holder may elect to receive the fair market value of the Securities as if Market Value were applicable
instead of the Monetisation Amount.

If the Securities are early redeemed in part, the amount calculated as payable on such early redemption will take into
account that only a portion of the outstanding Securities are being early redeemed.

The amount payable on an early redemption of Nominal Value Repack Securities is described in "Security and Collateral
in respect of Secured Securities which are Nominal Value Repack Securities".

Additional information in respect of Securities denominated in Renminbi

Investors may be required to provide certification and other information (including Renminbi account information) in
order to be allowed to receive payments in Renminbi in accordance with the Renminbi clearing and settlement system
for participating banks in the CNY Settlement Centre(s).

All Renminbi payments to investors in the Securities will be made solely (i) for so long as the Securities are represented
by a Global Security held with the common depositary, for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg or any alternative
clearing system, by transfer to a RMB bank account maintained in the CNY Settlement Centre(s) in accordance with
prevailing Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg rules and procedures, or (ii) so long as the Securities are in
definitive form, by transfer to a RMB bank account maintained in the CNY Settlement Centre(s) in accordance with
prevailing rules and regulations. The relevant Issuer will not be required to make payment by any other means (including
in any other currency or in bank notes, by cheque or draft or by transfer to a bank account in the PRC).

4. Investment considerations associated with Securities linked to the performance of one or more Underlying
References

Additional investment considerations in respect of Index Securities

In respect of Index Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by reference to the value
of the underlying index/indices and/or the Index Securities will pay interest calculated by reference to the value of the
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underlying index/indices. Such underlying index may be a well known and widely published index or an index which
may not be widely published or available. The index may reference, among other asset types, equities, bonds, currency
exchange rates, or other securities or it may be a property index referencing certain property price data which will be
subject to market price fluctuations, or reference a number of different assets or indices. A property index may include
valuations only and not actual transactions and the property data sources used to compile the index may be subject to
change.

Index Securities linked to a custom index are linked to a proprietary index which may be sponsored and/or calculated by
BNP Paribas or one of its Affiliates. Pursuant to the operational rules of the relevant custom index, the custom index is
scheduled to be calculated on a periodic basis (for example on each weekday). In the event that one of the levels, values
or prices of a component included in the custom index is not available for any reason on a relevant day of calculation
including, without limitation, (a) because such day is a non-scheduled trading day in respect of that index component or
(b) that index component is subject to a market disruption, then the Calculation Agent of the custom index may, but will
not be obliged to, calculate the level of the custom index on a different basis (for example by taking a value for the
affected index component from the first preceding day on which a level for such affected index component was available).
Such an occurrence may potentially result in a delay in the publication of the index and the level of the index may be
affected.

Components of certain custom indices may be subject to regular rebalancing in accordance with the methodology of the
index. As part of the rebalancing, components may be added to or removed from the index or their weights adjusted. The
components which are included in the index and the weight assigned to each component may be determined either wholly
or partially by reference to criteria specified in the index and/or one or more lists of assets (including, without limitation,
research lists, analytical reports or "top picks" guides), which are published by a third party unconnected with the index.
If a third party is compiling the list of assets such third party may exercise its discretion to determine which assets are
included in such list. The index methodology may apply objective filters to these lists of assets, to determine which assets
are included as components in the index and their weight. The components which are derived from the list published by
a third party may affect the performance of the index, and, correspondingly, the value of the Index Securities. Such third
parties have no obligation to take into account the consequences of their actions on any Holders.

If the Index specified in the Final Terms is replaced by a successor index with the same or a substantially similar method
for calculating that index or the original index sponsor is replaced by a successor index sponsor acceptable to the
Calculation Agent, the successor index or the successor index sponsor will replace the original index or original index
sponsor, as applicable.

Following a modification to the methodology of the Index (an Index Modification), a permanent cancellation of the Index
(an Index Cancellation) or if the Index Sponsor fails to calculate or publish the level of the Index on a relevant date for
valuation (an Index Disruption) (each, an Index Adjustment Event), (i) the Calculation Agent may determine whether to
(x) determine the level of the Index itself, or (y) replace the Index, or (ii) the Issuer may redeem the Index Securities at
the Early Redemption Amount.

In addition, if the published level of an Index is subsequently corrected, the corrected level will be used if corrected within
the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected level is published less than three Business Days prior to a due date
for payment it will be disregarded.

If Futures Price Valuation is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Index Securities will reference the
performance of one or more futures or options contracts in respect of an index. Investors should refer to the "Additional
investment considerations in respect of Futures Price Valuation" for details on such Index Securities.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Share Securities

In respect of Share Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by reference to the value
of the share(s) or Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs and/or the physical delivery of a given number of share(s) or
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Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs and/or the Share Securities will pay interest calculated by reference to the value of
the underlying share(s) or Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs.

No issuer of the underlying shares will have participated in the preparation of the relevant Final Terms or in establishing
the terms of the Share Securities, and none of the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Manager will make any investigation or
enquiry in connection with such offering with respect to any information concerning any such issuer of shares contained
in such Final Terms or in the documents from which such information was extracted. Consequently, there can be no
assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant issue date (including events that would affect the accuracy or
completeness of the publicly available information described in this paragraph or in any relevant Final Terms) that would
affect the trading price of the share or Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs will have been publicly disclosed. Subsequent
disclosure of any such events or the disclosure of or failure to disclose material future events concerning such an issuer
of shares could affect the trading price of the share or Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs.

Except as provided in the Conditions, Holders will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or distributions
or any other rights with respect to the relevant shares to which such Securities relate.

A Potential Adjustment Event will occur in a number of scenarios more fully described in the Conditions that have a
diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the share(s). The Calculation Agent may adjust the terms of the
Share Securities as it determines appropriate to take account of such Potential Adjustment Event.

An Extraordinary Event will occur upon a De-Listing, Insolvency, Merger Event, Nationalisation, Stapling, Tender Offer
(unless Tender Offer is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms) or (if specified in the applicable Final
Terms) Illiquidity, Listing Change, Listing Suspension or CSR Event in respect of a share. If an Extraordinary Event

occurs:

(a) the Calculation Agent may make adjustments to any of the terms of the Share Securities (including, in the case
of Share Securities linked to a Basket of Shares, adjustments to and/or substitution of constituent shares of the
Basket of Shares);

(b) the Issuer may redeem the Share Securities in whole or (in the case of Share Securities linked to a Basket of
Shares) in part at the Early Redemption Amount; or

(©) the Calculation Agent may make an adjustment to any terms of the Share Securities by reference to the

corresponding adjustment(s) made by the relevant exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which options on the
affected Shares are traded.

If the Stapled Shares become de-stapled such that one or more shares comprising the Stapled Shares may be held, owned,
sold, transferred, purchased and otherwise dealt with as an individual share, the Issuer may elect to substitute the Stapled
Shares with an alternative share meeting certain criteria selected by the Calculation Agent.

If Hedging Liquidity Event is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer may redeem the Share
Securities in full at the Early Redemption Amount if the volume of Shares held by the Issuer and/or any of its affiliates
via hedging arrangements related to the Share Securities exceeds a specified level.

In addition, if the published price of a Share is subsequently corrected, the corrected price will be used if corrected within
the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected price is published less than three Business Days prior to a due date
for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investment considerations in respect of ETI Securities

In respect of ETI Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by reference to the value
of an interest in one or more exchange traded instruments (an "ETI Interest") and/or the ETI Securities will pay interest
calculated by reference to the value of one or more ETI Interests. While ETT Interests are traded on an exchange and are
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therefore valued in a similar manner as a share traded on an exchange, if ETI Share Provisions is specified as not
applicable in the applicable Final Terms, certain provisions related to ETI Securities are similar to the provisions related
to funds and Fund Securities. If ETI Share Provisions is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the
provisions related to the ETI Securities will be more similar to the provisions related to shares and Share Securities.

An exchange traded instrument (an "ETI") may invest in and trade in a variety of investments and financial instruments
using sophisticated investment techniques for hedging and non-hedging purposes. None of the relevant Issuer, the
Guarantor or the Calculation Agent have any control over investments made by the relevant exchange traded instrument(s)
and in no way guarantee the performance of an ETL.

In hedging the relevant Issuer's obligations under the ETI Securities, an entity providing such hedging (the "Hedge
Provider") is not restricted to any particular hedging practice. Accordingly, the Hedge Provider may hedge its exposure
using any method it, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate. The Hedge Provider may perform any number of different
hedging practices with respect to ETI Securities without taking into account any Holder's interests.

No entity related to the ETI will have participated in the preparation of the relevant Final Terms or in establishing the
terms of the ETI Securities, and none of the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Manager will make any investigation or enquiry
in connection with such offering with respect to any information concerning any such ETI contained in such Final Terms
or in the documents from which such information was extracted. Consequently, there can be no assurance that all events
occurring prior to the relevant issue date (including events that would affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly
available information described in this paragraph or in any relevant Final Terms) that would affect the trading price of
the interests in the exchange traded instrument will have been publicly disclosed. Subsequent disclosure of any such
events or the disclosure of or failure to disclose material future events concerning such an exchange traded instrument
could affect the trading price of interests in the exchange traded instruments.

Except as provided in the Conditions, Holders will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or distributions
or any other rights with respect to the relevant ETIs to which such Securities relate.

A Potential Adjustment Event will occur in a number of scenarios more fully described in the Conditions that have a
diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the ETI Interest(s). The Calculation Agent may adjust the terms
of the ETI Securities as it determines appropriate to take account of such Potential Adjustment Event.

In the case of ETI Securities where ETI Share Provisions is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, an
Extraordinary ETI Event will occur as a result of events including (a) a merger of the ETI Interests or the ETI or ETI
Related Party with other ETI Interests or another entity, an entity obtaining a controlling stake in the ETI or ETI Related
Party or the insolvency of the ETI or any ETI Related Party (Global Events), (b) material litigation or allegations of
criminal or fraudulent activity in respect of the ETI or ETI Related Party (Litigation/Fraudulent Activity Events), (c) the
ETI Related Party ceasing to act without being replaced (Change in ETI Related Parties/Key Person Events), (d) a material
change to the ETT or the ETI Documents (Modification Events), (¢) a change to or suspension of the calculation of the
Value per ETI Interest or a breach of the Investment/AUM Level or Value per ETI Interest Trigger Percentage (Net Asset
Value/Investment/AUM Level Events), (f) a change in tax law, revocation of any required licence or compulsory
redemption of the ETI Interests required by a competent authority (Tax/Law/Accounting/Regulatory Events), (g) an issue
affecting the hedging associated with the ETI Securities (Hedging/Impracticality/Increased Costs Events) and (h) other
events such as an Extraordinary ETI Event affecting a portion of the basket of ETI Interests, a rating downgrade, issues
obtaining or trading ETI Interests or changes in the way dividends are paid (Miscellaneous Events), each more fully
described in the Conditions. The relevant Issuer may require the Calculation Agent to adjust the terms of the ETI
Securities to reflect such event, substitute the relevant ETI Interest(s) or redeem the ETI Securities at the Early
Redemption Amount.

In the case of ETI Securities where ETI Share Provisions is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, an
Extraordinary Event will occur upon a Delisting, ETI Currency Change, ETI Modification, ETI Reclassification, ETI
Redemption or Subscription Event, ETT Regulatory Action, ETI Reporting Event, ETI Strategy Breach, ETI Termination,
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Insolvency, Merger Event, Nationalisation or, if specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, Illiquidity, Listing
Change, Listing Suspension or Tender Offer. If an Extraordinary Event occurs:

(a) the Calculation Agent may make adjustments to any of the terms of the ETI Securities (including, in the case of
ETI Securities linked to a Basket of ETT Interests, adjustments to and/or substitution of constituent ETI Interests
of the Basket of ETI Interests);

(b) the Issuer may redeem the ETI Securities in whole or (in the case of ETI Securities linked to a Basket of ETI
Interests) in part at the Early Redemption Amount; or

() the Calculation Agent may make an adjustment to any terms of the ETI Securities by reference to the
corresponding adjustment(s) made by the relevant exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which options on the
affected ETI Interests are traded.

In the case of ETI Securities where ETI Share Provisions and Hedging Liquidity Event is specified as applicable in the
applicable Final Terms, the Issuer may redeem the ETI Securities in full at the Early Redemption Amount if the volume
of ETI Interests held by the Issuer and/or any of its affiliates via hedging arrangements related to the ETI Securities
exceeds a specified level.

In addition, if the published price of an ETI Interest is subsequently corrected, the corrected price will be used if corrected
within the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected price is published less than three Business Days prior to a due
date for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Debt Securities

In respect of Debt Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by reference to the price
or yield of the underlying debt instrument(s) and/or the physical delivery of a given number of debt instrument(s) and/or
the Debt Securities will pay interest calculated by reference to the price or yield of the underlying debt instrument(s).

If the published reference price of a debt instrument is subsequently corrected, the corrected reference price will be used
if corrected within the specified Debt Instrument Correction Period, provided that, if the corrected reference price is
published less than three Exchange Business Days prior to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Investors should be aware that if an underlying debt instrument is redeemed or cancelled by the relevant issuer of such
debt instrument (for example, following an event of default under the terms of the relevant debt instrument), the Issuer
will early redeem the Debt Securities at the Early Redemption Amount in accordance with the Conditions.

If Futures Price Valuation is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Debt Securities will reference the
performance of one or more debt futures or debt options contracts. Investors should refer to the "Additional investment
considerations in respect of Futures Price Valuation" for details on such Debt Securities.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Commodity Securities

In respect of Commodity Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by reference to
the value of the underlying commodity (including EU emissions allowances ("EU Allowances")), commodity index,
commodities and/or commodity indices and/or Commodity Securities will pay interest calculated by reference to the
value of the underlying commodity, commodity index, commodities and/or commodity indices.

Where the Commodity Securities are linked to a commodity index, such commodity index may be a well known and
widely available commodity index (such as the S&P GSCI®) or a commodity index which may be less well known (such
as a commodity index that is composed, sponsored and/or calculated by BNP Paribas or one of its affiliates) in which
case information on the commodity index may be less readily available. A commodity index may be comprised of futures
contracts, mono-indices, or other commodity indices, which may be proprietary. Pursuant to the operational rules of the
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relevant commodity index, the commodity index is scheduled to be calculated on a periodic basis (for example on each
weekday). In the event that one of the levels, values or prices of a component included in the commodity index is not
available for any reason on a relevant day of calculation including, without limitation, (a) where it is a not a business day
in respect of that commodity index component or (b) that commodity index component is subject to a market disruption
event, then the calculation agent of the commodity index may calculate the level of the commodity index on a different
basis (for example, by taking a value for the affected commodity index component on the first day following the end of
a specified maximum days of disruption based on the price at which it is able to sell or otherwise realise any hedge
position). Such an occurrence may potentially result in a delay in the publication of the commodity index and the level
of the commodity index may be affected.

A Market Disruption Event will occur if there is a disruption in respect of a commodity or a commodity index (a) to the
availability of any price source, (b) to the ability to trade, (c) (other than in respect of Commodity Securities referencing
Gold, Silver, Platinum or Palladium) caused by a change in composition, methodology or taxation, (d) (in respect of a
commodity index only) to the price source or calculation of a commodity index component or (e) (in respect of
Commodity Securities referencing EU Allowances only) (i) to the ability to deliver or accept EU Allowances, (ii) resulting
from the discontinuation of the scheme for transferring allowances, (iii) caused by a suspension by the relevant registries
of operations relating to recording the issue, holding, transfer, acquisition, surrender, cancellation and/or replacement of
EU Allowances or (iv) to the establishment and functioning of the relevant registries or transaction logs maintained in
respect of EU Allowance transactions. If a Market Disruption Event occurs:

(a) the Calculation Agent may make any calculations in respect of the Commodity Securities using a price, level or
value that it has determined;

(b) the Calculation Agent may substitute any relevant commodity, reference price or commodity index component
(subject to adhering to the criteria set out in the Conditions);

(©) the Issuer may redeem the Commodity Securities in full at the Early Redemption Amount; or

(d) (in the case of Commodity Securities that reference an EU Allowance) the Calculation Agent may make any
adjustment(s) to the terms of the Commodity Securities as it considers appropriate, acting in good faith and in a
commercially reasonable manner.

In the case of Commodity Securities that reference one or more commodity indices, if:

(a) the commodity index is replaced by a successor commodity index with the same or a substantially similar method
for calculating that commodity index or the original commodity index sponsor is replaced by a successor
commodity index sponsor acceptable to the Calculation Agent such successor commodity index or successor
commodity index sponsor will replace the original commodity index or the original commodity index sponsor,
as applicable; and

(b) following a modification to the methodology of the commodity index (a Commodity Index Modification), a
permanent cancellation of the commodity index (a Commodity Index Cancellation) or if the commodity index
sponsor fails to calculate or publish the level of the commodity index on a relevant date for valuation (a
Commodity Index Disruption) (each, a Commodity Index Adjustment Event), (i) the Calculation Agent may
determine whether to (x) determine the level of the commodity index itself, or (y) replace the commodity index,
or (ii) the Issuer may redeem the Commodity Securities at the Early Redemption Amount.

In addition, if the reference price of a commodity or commodity index is subsequently corrected, the corrected reference
price will be used if corrected within 30 calendar days of the original publication, provided that, if the corrected level is
published less than three Commodity Business Days prior to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.
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If the applicable Final Terms specifies that the Commodity Securities are linked to the performance of a futures contract
in respect of a commodity, the considerations described above will apply to such futures contract by reference to the
underlying commodity. If the applicable Final Terms specify that the Commodity Securities are "Rolling Futures Contract
Securities", the reference price of the commodity will be valued by reference to futures contracts with delivery months
that do not match the Maturity Date of the Commodity Securities. The Calculation Agent will select a new futures contract
on each Futures Rollover Date specified in the applicable Final Terms. If it is impossible or materially impracticable to
select a new futures contract and/or hedge the Issuer's obligations in respect of the Commodity Securities, the
consequences of a Market Disruption Event or a Commodity Index Adjustment Event described above will apply.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Commodity Securities that are linked to EU Allowances

The market for carbon emission allowances or credits has emerged as a consequence of the Kyoto Protocol and covers
both industrial and developing countries. Industrial countries are allocated emissions allowances under the Kyoto
Protocol. The EU introduced its own emission trading scheme (the "EU-ETS") in 2005 (pursuant to Directive
2003/87/EC, as amended from time to time (the "EU Emissions Allowance Directive")), which extends beyond the 2012
termination of the Kyoto Protocol.

An EU Allowance refers to an "allowance", as such term is defined in the EU Emissions Allowance Directive, that has
been issued by a competent authority pursuant to Article 25 of the EU Emissions Allowance Directive. One EU Allowance
corresponds to the emission by the holder of one tonne of carbon dioxide (CO2) equivalent during a specified period
which is valid for meeting certain emissions related obligations. The EU's member states issue new EU Allowances
annually to each company subject to the EU-ETS. These awards are made in accordance with an allocation plan approved
by the European Commission which is based on the EU's application of the Kyoto Protocol's obligations to the industries
covered by the EU-ETS. By 30 April in each year, companies are obliged to "surrender”" a number of EU Allowances
corresponding to their actual emissions in the preceding year. EU Allowances can also be rolled over from one year to
the next if a company emits less carbon dioxide or carbon-equivalent greenhouse gas than the EU Allowances it holds.
EU Allowances have a limited or no value outside the EU-ETS.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Inflation Index Securities

In respect of Inflation Index Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by reference
to the value of the underlying inflation index/indices and/or the Inflation Index Securities will pay interest calculated by
reference to the value of the underlying inflation index/indices.

The terms of the Inflation Index Securities may be adjusted by the Calculation Agent if the Calculation Agent determines
that the Index Sponsor fails to publish or announce the level of an inflation index. The Calculation Agent will determine
a substitute level for the relevant inflation index by reference to (a) a related bond specified in the Final Terms or (b) a
formula that calculates the level of the relevant inflation index based on previously available levels. If publication of the
level of the relevant inflation index is disrupted or discontinued or the inflation index is cancelled, the Calculation Agent
may determine a successor inflation index. The Calculation Agent may further adjust the terms of the Inflation Index
Securities to take account of such substitute level or substitute inflation index.

The Calculation Agent may also make adjustments to the terms of the Inflation Index Securities or the relevant level of
an inflation index if (a) a published level is subsequently revised within the cut-off periods described in the Conditions,
(b) there is a material change to the formula for calculating an inflation index or (c) an inflation index is rebased, provided
that, if an inflation index is rebased such that the Calculation Agent is unable to make adjustments that would produce a
commercially reasonable result, the Issuer may redeem the Inflation Index Securities at the Early Redemption Amount.

Investors should be aware that if an inflation index is cancelled (and the Calculation Agent is unable to determine a
successor inflation index), either the Calculation Agent will calculate the level of the inflation index or the Issuer will
redeem the Inflation Index Securities at the Early Redemption Amount in accordance with the Conditions.
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Additional investment considerations in respect of Currency Securities

In respect of Currency Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by reference to the
value of the currency/currencies and/or the physical delivery of a given amount of a currency or currencies and/or
Currency Securities will pay interest calculated by reference to the value of the underlying currency/currencies. Currency
Securities reference the performance of an exchange rate between a base currency and one or more subject currencies.

A Disruption Event will occur in respect of the base currency or any subject currency if (i) there is a disruption to the
source of the exchange rate, (ii) (unless Illiquidity Disruption is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms)
it is not possible to obtain firm quotes for such currency, (iii) the currency is split into more than one currency exchange
rate, or (iv) circumstances similar to (i), (ii) (if applicable) or (iii) arise. Upon the occurrence of a Disruption Event in
respect of a date for valuation, the following consequences may apply:

(a) the Calculation Agent may postpone the relevant date for valuation until the Disruption Event is no longer
subsisting, up to a maximum number of days specified in the applicable Final Terms (or if not specified five
Scheduled Trading Days), following which the Calculation Agent may determine a level for the subject currency
as of the last such Scheduled Trading Day;

(b) the Issuer may redeem the Currency Securities in full at the Early Redemption Amount; or

(©) (unless Disruption Postponement is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms) the Calculation
Agent may postpone any payment date until a Disruption Event is no longer subsisting.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Fund Securities (other than where the Fund is a Euro Fund)

In respect of Fund Securities (other than where the Fund is a Euro Fund), Holders will receive an amount (if any) on
redemption determined by reference to the value of fund shares or units in one or more funds (including hedge funds,
mutual funds or private equity funds) (each a "Fund"), the level of a fund index comprised of such fund shares or units
and/or the physical delivery of a given number of fund shares or units and/or Fund Securities will pay interest calculated
by reference to the value of the fund shares or units or the level of the fund index. The value of fund shares or units or
the level of a fund index may be affected by the performance of the fund service providers, and in particular the investment
adviser (each a "Fund Service Provider").

Funds may trade and invest in a broad range of investments and financial instruments using sophisticated investment
techniques. None of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor or the Calculation Agent have any control over investments made
by a Fund and therefore in no way guarantee the performance of a Fund. Funds may often be illiquid and may only be
traded on a monthly, quarterly or even less frequent basis. The trading strategies of Funds are often opaque. Funds, as
well as the markets and instruments in which they invest, are often not subject to review by governmental authorities,
self-regulatory organisations or other supervisory authorities.

A Fund may be established as part of a master-feeder fund structure. Generally, a master-feeder fund structure involves
the incorporation of a "master" fund company into which separate and distinct "feeder" funds invest. Active management
of any investment strategy is, generally, performed at the master fund level. In instances where the Fund(s) underlying
the relevant Fund Securities are "feeder" funds, the Extraordinary Fund Events described below extend to include the
"master” fund and its service providers. In conducting their own due diligence of the relevant Fund(s), prospective
investors should consider whether the relevant Fund(s) are established as part of a master-feeder fund structure.

No Fund Service Provider will have participated in the preparation of the relevant Final Terms or in establishing the terms
of the Fund Securities, and none of the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Manager will make any investigation or enquiry in
connection with such offering with respect to any information concerning any such issuer of fund shares or units contained
in such Final Terms or in the documents from which such information was extracted. Consequently, there can be no
assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant issue date (including events that would affect the accuracy or
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completeness of the publicly available information described in this paragraph or in any relevant Final Terms) that would
affect the trading price of the fund shares or units or the level of the fund index will have been publicly disclosed.
Subsequent disclosure of any such events or the disclosure of or failure to disclose material future events concerning such
an issuer of fund shares or units could affect the trading price of the fund shares or units or the level of the fund index and
therefore the trading price of the Fund Securities.

Except as provided in the Conditions, Holders will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or distributions
or any other rights with respect to the relevant fund shares or units or the relevant fund index to which such Securities
relate.

An Extraordinary Fund Event will occur as a result of events including (a) a merger of the Fund or Fund Service Provider
another entity, an entity obtaining a controlling stake in the Fund or Fund Service Provider or the insolvency of the Fund
or any Fund Service Provider (Global Events), (b) material litigation or allegations of criminal or fraudulent activity in
respect of the Fund or Fund Service Provider (Litigation/Fraudulent Activity Events), (c) the Fund Service Provider or
its key personnel ceasing to act and not being replaced (Fund Service Provider/Key Person Events), (d) a material change
to the Fund or the Fund Documents (Modification Events), (e) a change to or suspension of the calculation of the NAV
per Fund Share or a breach of the AUM Level or NAV Trigger Percentage (NAV per Fund Share/AUM Level Events),
(f) the failure of the Fund or the Fund Service Provider to provide required information (Reporting Events), (g) a change
in tax law, revocation of any required licence or compulsory redemption of the fund shares required by a competent
authority (Tax/Law/Accounting/Regulatory Events), (h) an issue affecting the hedging associated with the Fund
Securities (Hedging/Impracticality/Increased Costs Events), (i) a restriction or limitation on subscriptions or redemptions
of any fund shares (Dealing Events) and (j) other events such as an Extraordinary Fund Event affecting a portion of the
basket or Fund Index components, an issue with any rebate agreements, segregation of Fund portfolios, security granted
by the Fund or any Fund Service Provider or a rating downgrade (Miscellaneous Events), each more fully described in
the Conditions. The relevant Issuer may require the Calculation Agent to adjust the terms of the Fund Securities to reflect
such event, substitute the relevant Fund Shares or the Issuer may redeem the Fund Securities at the Early Redemption
Amount.

If the Fund Securities reference a fund index, a Fund Index Adjustment Event will occur following a modification to the
methodology of the fund index (a Fund Index Modification), a permanent cancellation of the fund index (a Fund Index
Cancellation) or if the fund index sponsor fails to calculate or publish the level of the fund index on a relevant date for
valuation (a Fund Index Disruption). Upon the occurrence of a Fund Index Adjustment Event, (i) the Calculation Agent
may determine whether to (x) determine the level of the fund index itself, or (y) replace the fund index, or (ii) the Issuer
may early redeem the Fund Securities at the Early Redemption Amount.

The Hedge Provider may not receive the proceeds of redeeming any fund shares that they hold on the date expected, for
example, if redemption is delayed or suspended by the Fund. If this occurs, the Maturity Date of the Fund Securities may
be postponed for a period of up to two calendar years (or such other period as may be specified in the applicable Final
Terms) and no additional amount shall be payable as a result of such delay.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Fund Securities (where the Fund is a Euro Fund)

In respect of Fund Securities where the Fund is a Euro Fund, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption
determined by reference to the gross rate of return of an insurance or investment policy or capitalisation contract backed
by euro-denominated assets (a "Euro Fund") offered by the insurance company specified in the applicable Final Terms
and/or Fund Securities will pay interest calculated by reference to such gross rate of return. The gross rate of return in
respect of a Euro Fund may be affected by the performance of the insurance company that offers the Euro Fund and/or
the assets underlying the Euro Fund.

Euro Funds typically invest in long-term, stable assets, such as bonds, on a "buy-to-hold" basis. As a consequence,
although none of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor or the Calculation Agent have any control over investments made by
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a Euro Fund, the yield of a Euro Fund portfolio is generally known in advance. Euro Funds offer investors a guaranteed
rate of return, which is generally higher than the money market rate, but limited in terms of performance potential.

No insurance company will have participated in the preparation of the relevant Final Terms or in establishing the terms
of the Fund Securities, and none of the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Manager will make any investigation or enquiry in
connection with such offering with respect to any information concerning any such insurance company offering such
Euro Fund or the assets underlying such Euro Fund referenced in such Final Terms or in the documents from which such
information was extracted. Consequently, there can be no assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant issue
date (including events that would affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available information described in
this paragraph or in any relevant Final Terms) that would affect the gross rate of return of the Euro Fund will have been
publicly disclosed. Subsequent disclosure of any such events or the disclosure of or failure to disclose material future
events concerning such an insurance company could affect the gross rate of return of the Euro Fund and therefore the
trading price of the Fund Securities.

An Extraordinary Euro Fund Event will occur as a result of events including (a) the application of the gross rate of return
of the Euro Fund in a manner that is different to that which is described in the contractual policy documents of the Euro
Fund, (b) redemption by the insurance company of a policyholder's investment in the Euro Fund or cancellation of the
Euro Fund, (c) a material modification of the Euro Fund, (d) a merger of the insurance company with another entity (or
similar event) or the sale, transfer, segregation or desegregation of the assets of the insurance company which affects the
gross rate of return of the Euro Fund, (d) the insolvency of the insurance company, (e) any litigation against the insurance
company that could materially affect the rate of return of the Euro Fund, (f) a change in tax law, revocation of any required
licence or compulsory redemption of policyholders' investments in a Euro Fund required by a competent authority or (g)
the failure of the insurance company to provide required information, each more fully described in the Conditions. The
relevant Issuer may require the Calculation Agent to adjust the terms of the Fund Securities to reflect such event, substitute
the relevant Euro Fund or the Issuer may redeem the Fund Securities at the Early Redemption Amount.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Futures Securities

In respect of Futures Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by reference to the
value of one or more futures contracts and/or Futures Securities will pay interest calculated by reference to the value of
one or more futures contracts.

A Futures Adjustment Event will occur if the relevant exchange makes or announces (a) a modification to the futures
contract (a Futures Modification), (b) a replacement of the futures contract with another futures contract (a Futures
Replacement) or (c) that the futures contract will cease to be listed, traded or publicly quoted (a Futures De-Listing).
Upon the occurrence of a Futures Adjustment Event (i) the Calculation Agent may determine whether to use the futures
contract so modified or replaced, as the case may be, or (ii) the Issuer may redeem the Futures Securities at the Early
Redemption Amount.

In addition, if the published price of a futures contract is subsequently corrected, the corrected price will be used if it is
corrected within the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected price is published less than three Exchange Business
Days prior to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Underlying Interest Rate Securities

In respect of Underlying Interest Rate Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by
reference to the value of one or more underlying interest rates and/or Underlying Interest Rate Securities will pay interest
calculated by reference to the value of one or more underlying interest rates.

The underlying interest rate will be determined by reference to a hypothetical interest rate swap transaction if ISDA
Determination is specified in the applicable Final Terms or by reference to a rate provided on a screen page if Screen
Rate Determination is specified in the applicable Final Terms. Regardless of the rate that is determined, if it is subject to
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a cap and/or a floor, such underlying interest rate will be deemed to be no higher than the Maximum Underlying Reference
Rate specified in the applicable Final Terms and/or no lower than the Minimum Underlying Reference Rate specified in
the applicable Final Terms.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Futures Price Valuation

A futures transaction constitutes the contractual obligation to buy or sell a certain amount or number of the respective
underlying at a fixed price and at a predetermined future point in time. Futures contracts are traded on futures exchanges
and standardised for this purpose with respect to their contract size, the nature and quality of the underlying as well as
delivery places and dates, if any.

In the case of Debt Securities or Index Securities where Futures Price Valuation is applicable, the Securities are exposed
to a futures or options contract relating to a synthetic debt instrument (in the case of Debt Securities) or an index (in the
case of Index Securities). If trading in the futures contract never commences or is permanently discontinued on or prior
to a date for valuation and the relevant price for the futures contract is not available, (a) in the case of Index Securitiesthe
level of the underlying index shall be used for any calculation, or (b) (in any other case) the Issuer shall redeem the
Securities at the Early Redemption Amount.

If adjustments are made to the futures contract by the relevant exchange, the Calculation Agent will make consequential
adjustments to the Securities to account for such change. In addition, if the published price of a futures contract is
subsequently corrected, the corrected price will be used if it is corrected within the prescribed period, provided that, if the
corrected price is published less than three Business Days prior to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Rolling Futures Contract Securities

Futures contracts have a predetermined expiration date. Holding a futures contract until expiration will result in delivery
of the physical underlying or the requirement to make or receive a cash settlement amount. Rolling Futures Contract
Securities are valued by reference to futures contracts that have a delivery or expiry month that do not correspond with
the term of the Securities. Consequently the futures contracts are "rolled" which means that the futures contract that is
nearing expiration is sold before it expires and a futures contract that has an expiration date further in the future is
purchased, thus maintaining ongoing exposure to such underlying futures contracts throughout the term of the Securities.
The Calculation Agent will select a new futures contract on each Futures Rollover Date specified in the applicable Final
Terms. If it is impossible or materially impracticable to select a new futures contract and/or (unless Related Hedging is
specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms) hedge the Issuer's obligations in respect of the Securities, the
Issuer will redeem the Securities in full at the Early Redemption Amount.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Credit Securities

In respect of Credit Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by reference to a
hypothetical credit default swap referencing obligations of one or more Reference Entities. Reference Entities may be
corporate, sovereign or supra-national entities. Following the occurrence of a Credit Event with respect to a Reference
Entity to which the Credit Securities are linked, the redemption value and any interest payable in respect of the Credit
Securities may be significantly reduced, which reduction may be to zero. The observation period during which a Credit
Event in respect of a Reference Entity may trigger a reduction of the redemption amount or interest payable in respect of
a Credit Security will be specified in the applicable Final Terms, and may begin prior to the Issue Date of the Credit
Securities.

A Credit Event may occur as a result of events including: (a) the relevant Reference Entity's failure to perform certain
financial obligations when due (where the NTCE Provisions are not applicable in respect of a particular Reference Entity,
whether or not such failure represents a deterioration in the financial condition or creditworthiness of the Reference
Entity); (b) with respect to the relevant Reference Entity, its dissolution, insolvency, inability to pay its debts, entry into
a general assignment, arrangement, scheme or composition with or for the benefit of its creditors generally, becoming the
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subject of proceedings seeking a judgment of insolvency or bankruptcy or any similar relief, passing of a resolution for
its winding-up or liquidation, or being subject to the appointment of an administrator, liquidator, conservator, receiver,
trustee, custodian or other similar official for its assets; (c) certain financial obligations of the relevant Reference Entity
becoming (or being capable of becoming) due and payable before they would otherwise have been due and payable as a
result of the occurrence of a default, event of default or other similar condition or event (however described); (d) an
authorised officer of the Reference Entity or a governmental authority disaffirms, disclaims, repudiates or rejects, in
whole or in part, or challenges the validity of, one or more of certain financial obligations of the relevant Reference Entity,
or declares or imposes a moratorium, standstill, roll-over or deferral, whether de facto or de jure, with respect to such
obligations; (e) a restructuring of certain financial obligations of the relevant Reference Entity is agreed between the
Reference Entity or a governmental authority and a sufficient number of holders of the relevant obligation to bind all
holders of such obligations, or such a restructuring is announced (or otherwise decreed) by the relevant Reference Entity
or a governmental authority in a form that binds all holders of the relevant obligations, where such event is not expressly
provided for under the terms of such obligations (and whether or not such restructuring arises from a deterioration in the
financial condition or creditworthiness of the Reference Entity); or (f) certain rights of creditors in respect of certain
financial obligations of the Reference Entity are adversely affected as a result of action taken or an announcement made
by a governmental authority pursuant to, or by means of, a restructuring and resolution law or regulation (or any other
similar law or regulation), in each case, applicable to the Reference Entity in a form which is binding, irrespective of
whether such event is expressly provided for under the terms of such obligations. The foregoing summary is not a
comprehensive list of events which may constitute a Credit Event, and such events are more fully described in the
Conditions. Applicable Credit Events in respect of a particular Reference Entity will be set out in the terms of the Credit
Securities (which may be by reference to publicly available documentation). The application of certain Credit Events with
respect to certain Reference Entities may be further varied by the terms of the Credit Securities.

The market value of Credit Securities will be linked to the market perception of the creditworthiness of the relevant
Reference Entity. Even where a Credit Event does not occur, the market value of the Credit Securities may be affected
when the probability or perceived probability of a Credit Event occurring in respect of any Reference Entity increases.

Buying a Credit Security is not equivalent to investing in debt obligations of a Reference Entity. A Credit Security confers
no rights in respect of any debt obligations of the relevant Reference Entity. The holding of a Credit Security is unlikely
to lead to outcomes which exactly reflect the impact of investing in an obligation of a Reference Entity. The relevant
Issuer's obligations in respect of Credit Securities are irrespective of the existence or amount of the relevant Issuer's and/or
any Affiliates' credit exposure to a Reference Entity.

S. Investment considerations associated with Securities with specific features
Additional information in respect of Securities that are issued as Green Bonds

No assurance is given by BNPP B.V. that the use of such proceeds for any Eligible Green Assets will satisfy, whether in
whole or in part, any present or future investor expectations or requirements as regards any investment criteria or
guidelines with which such investor or its investments are required to comply, whether by any present or future applicable
law or regulations or by its own by-laws, investment policy or other governing rules or investment portfolio mandates, in
particular with regard to any direct or indirect environmental, sustainability or social impact of any projects or uses, the
subject of or related to, any Eligible Green Assets.

Furthermore, it should be noted that there is currently no clear definition (legal, regulatory or otherwise) of, nor market
consensus as to what constitutes, a "green", "sustainable" or an equivalently-labelled project or as to what precise
attributes are required for a particular project to be considered "green" or "sustainable" or falling under such other
equivalent label, nor can any assurance be given that such a clear definition or consensus will develop over time.
Accordingly, no assurance is or can be given to investors that any projects or uses which are the subject of, or related to,
any Eligible Green Assets will meet any or all investor expectations regarding such "green", "sustainable" or other
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equivalently-labelled performance objectives or that any adverse environmental, social and/or other impacts will not occur
during the implementation of any projects or uses, which are the subject of, or related to, any Eligible Green Assets.

No assurance or representation is given by BNPP B.V. as to the suitability or reliability for any purpose whatsoever of
any opinion or certification of any third parties (whether or not solicited by BNPP B.V.) which may be made available in
connection with the issue and offering of any Green Bonds and in particular with the extent to which Eligible Green
Assets may fulfil any environmental, sustainability, social and/or other criteria. For the avoidance of doubt, any such
opinion or certification is not, nor shall be deemed to be, incorporated in and/or form part of the Green Bond Framework.
Any such opinion or certification is not, nor should be deemed to be, a recommendation by BNPP B.V. and its affiliates
or any other person to buy, sell or hold any Green Bonds. Any such opinion or certification is only current as of the date
that opinion was initially issued. Prospective investors must determine for themselves the relevance of any such opinion
or certification and/or the information contained therein and/or the provider of such opinion or certification for the purpose
of any investment in such Green Bonds. Currently, the providers of such opinions and certifications are not subject to any
specific regulatory or other regime or oversight.

In the event that any Green Bonds are listed or admitted to trading on any dedicated "green", "environmental",
"sustainable" or other similarly labelled segment of any stock exchange or securities market (whether or not a regulated
market for the purpose of the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive 2014/65/EU), or are included in any dedicated
"green", "environmental", "sustainable" or other equivalently-labelled index, no representation or assurance is given by
BNPP B.V. or any other person that such listing or admission, or inclusion in such index, satisfies, whether in whole or
in part, any present or future investor expectations or requirements as regards any investment criteria or guidelines with
which such investor or its investments are required to comply, whether by any present or future applicable law or
regulations or by its own by-laws or other governing rules or investment portfolio mandates, in particular with regard to
any direct or indirect environmental, sustainability or social impact of any projects or uses, the subject of or related to,
any climate projects. Furthermore, it should be noted that the criteria for any such listings or admission to trading may
vary from one stock exchange or securities market to another and that the criteria for inclusion in such index may vary
from one index to another. No representation or assurance given or made by BNPP B.V. or any other person that any
such listing or admission to trading, or inclusion in any such index, will be obtained in respect of Green Bonds or, if
obtained, that any such listing or admission to trading, or inclusion in such index, will be maintained during the life of
Green Bonds. Additionally, no representation or assurance is given by BNPP B.V. or any other person as to the suitability
of the Green Bonds to fulfil environmental and sustainability criteria required by prospective investors. BNPP B.V. is not
responsible for any third party assessment of the Green Bonds.

While it is BNPP B.V.'s intention to apply the proceeds of any Green Bonds to Eligible Green Assets in, or substantially
in, the manner described in the applicable Final Terms and in the Green Bond Framework, there can be no assurance that
the relevant project(s) or use(s) which are the subject of, or related to, any Eligible Green Assets will be capable of being
implemented in or substantially in such manner and/or in accordance with any timing schedule and that accordingly there
can be no assurance that such proceeds will be totally or partially disbursed for such Eligible Green Assets. There can be
no assurance that such Eligible Green Assets will be completed within any specified period or at all or with the results or
outcome (whether or not related to the environment) as originally expected or anticipated by BNPP B.V. Any such event
or failure by BNPP B.V. to apply the proceeds as intended will not constitute an event of default (however defined) under
the Green Bonds.
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USER'S GUIDE TO THE BASE PROSPECTUS
1. INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this section (the "User's Guide") is to provide potential investors with a tool to help them navigate through
the various documents relating to Securities issued by BNPP B.V. (and guaranteed by BNPP) or BP2F (and guaranteed
by BNPPF) under the Base Prospectus.

2. DOCUMENTATION

For each issue of Securities under the Base Prospectus, the documents listed below will be available to potential investors
on an ongoing basis.

2.1 The Base Prospectus
This document:

° contains an overview of the contents of this Base Prospectus, the information relating to the Issuers, BNPP B.V.
or BP2F or the Guarantors, BNPP or BNPPF and the risk factors;

. sets out the Terms and Conditions of the Securities (other than the specific commercial terms and characteristics
of a particular issue, in respect of which, see paragraph 2.3 below);

. sets out the possible specific characteristics of the Securities, including the rate of interest or how the rate of
interest is calculated, payout formulae used to calculate the amount(s) (if any) payable or assets deliverable to
the investors on the maturity date and the Underlying Reference(s); and

. details the terms specific to each type of Underlying Reference linked Securities in the annexes to the Terms and
Conditions of the Securities.

2.2 The Supplement(s)

If a significant new factor, material mistake or material inaccuracy relating to the information included in the Base
Prospectus, which is capable of affecting a potential investor's assessment of the Securities arises, the relevant Issuer and
the relevant Guarantor will publish a supplement to the Base Prospectus. The supplement will be approved by the Autorité
des Marchés Financiers (the "AMF") in accordance with Article 23 of the Prospectus Regulation and published on the
website of the AMF (www.amf-france.org) and on the website of BNPP (https:/rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/public/LegalDocs.aspx).

In accordance with Article 23(2a) of the Prospectus Regulation, investors who have already agreed to purchase or
subscribe for Notes before this Base Prospectus is published have the right, exercisable within three working days after
the publication of this Base Prospectus, to withdraw their acceptances, provided that the significant new factor, material
mistake or material inaccuracy arose or was noted before the closing of the offer period or the delivery of the Securities,
whichever occurs later. Investors should be aware, however, that the law of the jurisdiction in which they have accepted
an offer of Notes may provide for a longer time limit.

2.3 The Final Terms or (in the case of Exempt Securities) Final Terms for Exempt Securities

The Final Terms or (in the case of Exempt Securities) the Final Terms for Exempt Securities will be prepared to document
each specific issue of Securities. It will contain:

. the specific terms of the issue, including but not limited to: the number of Securities being issued, the relevant
identification codes and the currency of the Securities;

124



3.

USER'S GUIDE TO THE BASE PROSPECTUS

the commercial terms of the issue, such as the payout formula for redemption, the amount of interest payable
and/or how the rate of interest is calculated, any automatic early redemption provisions and the related definitions
in respect of a specific issue of Securities, as described in the Base Prospectus and completed by the applicable
Final Terms or (in the case of Exempt Securities) as further described in the applicable Final Terms for Exempt
Securities;

the Underlying Reference(s) to which the Securities are linked;

the relevant dates, such as the issue date, interest payment dates, valuation or averaging date(s) and maturity
date; and

if required, a duly completed summary specific to such issue of Securities (the "issue specific summary").

HOW TO NAVIGATE THE BASE PROSPECTUS

All Securities issued under the Base Prospectus will be subject to the generic sections of the Base Prospectus summarised

above. Investors should note that depending on the specific terms of an issue of Securities not all sections of the

Base Prospectus will be relevant to each issuance.

The table below lists all of the sections of the Base Prospectus and their applicability to each issue of Securities:

Sections which are applicable to all Securities

Sections which are only applicable to specific issues of Securities
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® RISKS
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o Additional Terms and Conditions for Debt Securities

o Additional Terms and Conditions for Commodity Securities

o Additional Terms and Conditions for Inflation Index Securities

o Additional Terms and Conditions for Currency Securities

o Additional Terms and Conditions for Fund Securities

o Additional Terms and Conditions for Futures Securities

o Additional Terms and Conditions for Underlying Interest Rate Securities
o Additional Terms and Conditions for Credit Securities

o Additional Terms and Conditions for Secured Securities

o Additional Terms and Conditions for Actively Managed Securities

o INDEX OF DEFINED TERMS IN RESPECT OF THE SECURITIES

o DESCRIPTION OF BNPP INDICES
o CONNECTED THIRD PARTY INDICES

o FORM OF THE BNPP ENGLISH LAW GUARANTEE FOR UNSECURED NOTES
o FORM OF THE BNPP ENGLISH LAW GUARANTEE FOR SECURED NOTES

o FORM OF THE BNPP FRENCH LAW GUARANTEE FOR UNSECURED NOTES
o FORM OF THE BNPP FRENCH LAW GUARANTEE FOR SECURED NOTES

o FORM OF THE BNPPF GUARANTEE FOR NOTES

e USE OF PROCEEDS

o DESCRIPTION OF BNPP B.V.
o DESCRIPTION OF BNPP

o DESCRIPTION OF BP2F

o DESCRIPTION OF BNPPF

o FORM OF THE SECURITIES

® BOOK-ENTRY CLEARANCE SYSTEMS

o BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEMS

o TAXATION

o CERTAIN CONSIDERATIONS ASSOCIATED WITH ERISA AND OTHER EMPLOYEE
BENEFIT PLANS

o OFFERING AND SALE

o GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Sections providing general information on the
Base Prospectus, the Issuer(s), the Guarantor
and the Securities

2. Section sefting out the general terms
goveming the Securities

3. Section detailing the different payout formulae

4. Sections applicable to Securities depending
on the Underlying Reference(s). One or more

sections may apply depending on the
Underlying Reference(s).

5. Section listing the relevant defined terms

6. Sections describing BNPP indices and
connected third party indices

7. Sections detailing the terms of each of the
guarantees

8. Sections relating to the Issuers and

Guarantors

9. Sections providing additional general
information in respect of the Securities
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4. HOW TO READ THE FINAL TERMS

The applicable Final Terms are divided in three parts:

o Part A, titled "CONTRACTUAL TERMS", which provides the specific contractual terms of the Securities;
° Part B, titled "OTHER INFORMATION", which provides other information specific to the Securities; and
. In the case of Securities where an issue specific summary is required, an issue specific summary of the Securities

will be appended to the Final Terms.

Exhaustive information on the characteristics of the Securities as set out in Parts A and B of the applicable Final Terms
is available in the Base Prospectus. The following diagram indicates the links between the various clauses of Parts A and
B of the applicable Final Terms and the corresponding sections of the Base Prospectus set out above.

Information linked to sections fromthe Base Prospectus
TITLE . .
- 1. Secions providing general informaiion
lssuer and Guarantor ofthe Securities & |} » 07 = Base B o <], he

Descrifon and defniions relaing o Guaranior and e Secunles
o e Securiles

Payout Formula and/or intencst
(Coupon) provisions

Deacripion and defimiSons in
respect of fie Undedlying

4. Secion applicable o Scourics
depending on he Underlying Reference(s).
One or mone SeCions may apply
depending on be Undesdying Reference(s)

Information specific to the Securities

3. Geclion Bing he relevant defined

ferms
Lizing and admission io rading

and ratng iformason B I G 5ecsons describing BNPP indices and
connecied fird party ndices
Informalion on performance of H
Underying Reference(s) and, 7. Sechons detaling e lerms of each of
INFORMATION  O%er information relsing o e ; > fhe guaranises

Underlying Rekerence(s)

. H 8. Secfions relaing io e lssuers and
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applicabis)
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The documents incorporated by reference (such sections being the "BNP Paribas Disclosure") contain forward-looking
statements. BNP Paribas, BNPP B.V., BP2F, BNPPF and the BNP Paribas Group (being BNP Paribas together with its
consolidated subsidiaries, the "Group") may also make forward-looking statements in their offering circulars, in press
releases and other written materials and in oral statements made by their officers, directors or employees to third parties.
Statements that are not historical facts, including statements about BNPP, BNPP B.V., BP2F, BNPPF or the Group's
beliefs and expectations, are forward-looking statements. These statements are based on current plans, estimates and
projections, and therefore undue reliance should not be placed on them. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the
date they are made, and BNPP, BNPP B.V., BP2F, BNPPF and the Group undertake no obligation to update publicly any
of them in light of new information or future events.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Most of the financial data presented, or incorporated by reference, in this Base Prospectus are presented in euros.

The audited consolidated financial statements of BNPP, BNPPF and BP2F for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2021 have been prepared in accordance with international financial reporting standards ("IFRS") as adopted
by the European Union. IFRS differs in certain significant respects from generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States ("U.S. GAAP"). The Group has made no attempt to quantify the impact of those differences. In making an
investment decision, investors must rely upon their own examination of the Group, the terms of an offering and the
financial information. Potential investors should consult their own professional advisors for an understanding of the
differences between IFRS and U.S. GAAP, and how those differences might affect the information herein. The Group's
fiscal year ends on 31 December and references in the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document (in English) and the
BNPP 2021 Universal Registration Document (in English) and any amendment to the BNPP 2021 Universal Registration
Document (in English) (in each case, as defined in "Documents Incorporated by Reference" below and incorporated by
reference herein) to any specific fiscal year are to the 12-month period ended 31 December of such year.

Due to rounding, the numbers presented throughout the BNP Paribas Disclosure and in the table under the heading
"Capitalisation and Medium and Long Term Debt Indetedness over one year of BNPP and the BNP Paribas Group" in
the General Information section below may not add up precisely, and percentages may not reflect precisely absolute
figures.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

This Base Prospectus should be read and construed in conjunction with the following documents which have been

previously published or are published simultaneously with this Base Prospectus and shall be incorporated in, and form

part of, this Base Prospectus:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e

6]
€9)

(h)
@

@

(k)

@

(m)

(i) the terms and conditions of the Notes and (ii) the form of final terms of the Notes, in each case from the base
prospectus or supplements listed in the table below (the "Previous Note Conditions and Form of Final
Terms");

the final terms for each Non-Exempt Offer (as defined below) extending beyond the validity of the 2021 Base
Prospectus (as defined below) (the "Offers Extending Beyond the Validity of the Base Prospectus");

the statutory annual reports for 2020 (the "2020 BNPP B.V. Annual Report") and 2021 (the "2021 BNPP B.V.
Annual Report") which include, respectively, the audited annual non-consolidated financial statements of
BNPP B.V. as at, and for the years ended, 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 (the "BNPP B.V. 2020
Financial Statements" and the "BNPP B.V. 2021 Financial Statements" respectively) and the respective
auditors' reports thereon;

the 2020 annual report of BNPPF including in particular the audited annual financial statements of BNPPF
(including the unqualified statutory auditor's report of the joint statutory auditors on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (including their opinion with explanatory paragraphs)) (the
"2020 BNPPF Annual Report");

the 2021 annual report of BNPPF including in particular the audited annual financial statements of BNPPF
(including the unqualified statutory auditor's report of the statutory auditors on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (including their opinion)) (the "2021 BNPPF Annual
Report");

the Pillar 3 Disclosure for the year 2020 published by BNPPF (the "BNPPF 2020 Pillar 3 Disclosure");

the Additional Pillar 3 disclosure for the year 2020 published by BNPPF (the "BNPPF 2020 Additional Pillar
3 Disclosure");

the Pillar 3 Disclosure for the year 2021 published by BNPPF (the "BNPPF 2021 Pillar 3 Disclosure");

the Additional Pillar 3 Disclosure for the year 2021 published by BNPPF (the "BNPPF 2021 Additional Pillar
3 Disclosure");

the press release dated 11 March 2022 published by BNPPF regarding its 2021 full year results (the "BNPPF
Press Release");

the 2020 audited annual accounts of BP2F (including the report of the approved independent auditor issued by
Deloitte Audit (réviseur d'entreprises agréé) on 26 March 2021 for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the "2020
BP2F Audited Annual Accounts"));

the 2021 audited annual accounts of BP2F (including the report of the approved independent auditor issued by
Deloitte Audit (réviseur d'entreprises agréé) on 24 March 2022 for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the "2021
BP2F Audited Annual Accounts"));

(1) the cash flow statements of BP2F for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the audit report thereon issued
on 20 April 2021 by Deloitte Audit as independent auditor (réviseur d'enterprises) and as approved independent
auditor (réviseur d'enterprises agréé) (the "BP2F 2020 Cash Flow Statements"), and (ii) the cash flow
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statements of BP2F for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the audit report thereon issued on 14 April 2022
by Deloitte Audit as independent auditor (réviseur d'entreprises) and as approved independent auditor (réviseur
d'entreprises agréé) (the "BP2F 2021 Cash Flow Statements");

BNPP's Document d'Enregistrement Universel au 31 décembre 2020 et rapport financier annuel in English
including the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the statutory auditors'
report thereon, other than the sections entitled "Person Responsible for the Universal Registration Document”
and the "Table of Concordance", with filing number D.21-0114 (the "BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document (in English)");

BNPP's Document d'Enregistrement Universel au 31 décembre 2021 et rapport financier annuel in English
including the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the statutory auditors’'
report thereon, other than the sections entitled "Person Responsible for the Universal Registration Document"
and the "Table of Concordance”, with filing number D.22-0156 (the "BNPP 2021 Universal Registration
Document (in English)");

the first Amendement au Document d'Enregistrement Universel 2021 (in English), other than the sections entitled
"Person Responsible for the Universal Registration Document" and the "Table of Concordance", with filing
number D.22-0156-A01 (the "First Amendment to the BNPP 2021 Universal Registration Document (in
English)"); and

the first Amendement au Document d'Enregistrement Universel 2021 (in English), other than the sections entitled
"Person Responsible for the Universal Registration Document" and the "Table of Concordance", with filing
number D.22-0156-A01 (the "First Amendment to the BNPP 2021 Universal Registration Document (in
English)"),

save that any statement contained herein or in a document which is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein shall

be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Base Prospectus to the extent that such statement is

inconsistent with a statement contained in this Base Prospectus or any supplement to this Base Prospectus.

Any non-incorporated parts of a document referred to herein (which, for the avoidance of doubt, means any parts not

listed in the cross-reference list below) are either deemed not relevant for an investor or are otherwise covered

elsewhere in this Base Prospectus.

The information incorporated by reference above is available as follows:

Previous Note Conditions and Final Terms

Prospectus")

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

Document and website Information Incorporated by | Page References
Reference

2013 Base Prospectus

Base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BNPPF, BP2F and | June 2013 Note Conditions 274-346; 475-821

BGL BNP Paribas ("BGL") dated 3 June 2013 as approved

by the AMF with visa number 13-259 (the "2013 Base | June 2013 Form of Final Terms 162-207

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_filess/BNPP_NWC

Base_Prospectus_3Jun2013 _1.pdf

Supplement dated 24 July 2013 to the 2013 Base Prospectus | July 2013 Note Conditions 5-6
as approved by the AMF with visa number 13-416
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https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/First_Supplem
ent_Warrants.pdf

Supplement dated 12 September 2013 to the 2013 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 13-490

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM 1791289
9 vi4 Third Supplement Note__Warrant_and_Certificate
Progr_Ist.pdf

September 2013 Note
Conditions

12

Supplement dated 12 November 2013 to the 2013 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 13-602

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM_ 1905931
7 vl _Corrected_Supplement No_5 NWC_Dated_12_Nove
mber_2013.pdf

November 2013 Note
Conditions

11-129

Supplement dated 20 December 2013 to the 2013 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 13-687

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM 1865978
vI_Supplement No8 BNPP _NWC dated 20 _December 2
013 _FINAL_with_visa.pdf

December 2013 Note Conditions

9-17

December 2013 Form of Final
Terms

Supplement dated 10 January 2014 to the 2013 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 14-008

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM 1877109
3 viSupplement No9 BNPP_NWC dated 10_January 20
14_FINAL.pdf

January 2014 Note Conditions

9-15

Supplement dated 11 April 2014 to the 2013 Base Prospectus
as approved by the AMF with visa number 14-145

hitps://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_filess/BNPP_NWC
Twelfth_Supplement 11_April 2014 _FINAL with_visa.PD
F

April 2014 Note Conditions

28; 46-61

April 2014 Form of Final Terms

63-67

2014 Base Prospectus

Base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F, BNPPF and
BGL dated 5 June 2014 as approved by the AMF with visa
number 14-276 (the "2014 Base Prospectus")

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_filessBNPP _NWC
Base_Prospectus_withvisa05JUN2014_new.pdf

June 2014 Note Conditions

339-411; 540-898

June 2014 Form of Final Terms

202-259
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Supplement dated 7 August 2014 to the 2014 Base Prospectus
as approved by the AMF with visa number 14-457

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM20118478
viSecond_ NWC_Supplement_dated 7 August 2014.pdf

August 2014 Form of Final
Terms

20-22

Supplement dated 5 September 2014 to the 2014 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 14-485

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM 2026888
9 vl _Third NWC_Supplement _dated 5_September_2014
Final_vers.pdf

5 September 2014 Note

Conditions

15

Supplement dated 22 September 2014 to the 2014 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 14-510

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/BNPP%20NW
C%20F ourth%20Supplement%2022%20Sep%202014%20F
inal%20with%20visa.pdf

22 September 2014 Note

Conditions

12-157

22 September 2014 Form of
Final Terms

Supplement dated 10 October 2014 to the 2014 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 14-543

hitps://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/BNPP_Fifth
NWC_Supplementwithvisadated%20100CT2014.pdf

October 2014 Note Conditions

20-101

October 2014 Form of Final
Terms

14-19

Supplement dated 7 November 2014 to the 2014 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 14-593

hitps://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_filess/BNPP_NWC
Sixth_Supplement_final.pdf

November 2014 Note

Conditions

10-13

Supplement dated 10 February 2015 to the 2014 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 15-049

hitps://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM21275391
UPDATED 8th NWC _Supplement _including visa.pdf

February 2015 Note Conditions

19-21; 26-32

February 2015 Form of Final
Terms

13-14

2015 Base Prospectus

Base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F, BNPPF and
BGL dated 9 June 2015 as approved by the AMF with visa
number 15-262 (the "2015 Base Prospectus")

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM_2203581
7 v4 BNPP_NWC _Base_Prospectus_dated_9 June_2015
Documentl.pdf

June 2015 Note Conditions

368-454; 599-1044

June 2015 Form of Final Terms

219-281

132




DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Supplement dated 6 August 2015 to the 2015 Base Prospectus
as approved by the AMF with visa number 15-443

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM22494668
vIFINALFirstNWCSupplementincludingvisaDocumentl.pdf

August 2015 Note Conditions

12-13

Supplement dated 10 September 2015 to the 2015 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 15-478

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/Second%20N
WC%20Supplement%2010.09.15.pdf

September 2015 Note
Conditions

24-28

September 2015 Form of Final
Terms

20-21

Supplement dated 10 November 2015 to the 2015 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 15-568

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM 2309624
9 vl _Fourth NWC_Supplement_including visa_Document
1.pdf

November 2015 Note
Conditions

18-

November 2015 Form of Final
Terms

15

Supplement dated 29 February 2016 to the 2015 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 16-065

hitps://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM23740108
vl FINALSixthNWCSupplementdated29F ebruary201.pdf

February 2016 Note Conditions

193-195

Supplement dated 30 March 2016 to the 2015 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 16-111

hitps://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM23922279
vIBNPP7thNWCSupplementDated30March2016.pdf

March 2016 Form of Final
Terms

28

2016 Base Prospectus

Base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F and BNPPF
dated 9 June 2016 as approved by the AMF with visa number
16-236 (the "2016 Base Prospectus")

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/NoteBPO9JUN
2016 _ICM 24489142 v2 FINAL Note BP 16 _236.pdf

June 2016 Note Conditions

492-955

June 2016 Form of Final Terms

412-491

Supplement dated 4 August 2016 to the 2016 Base Prospectus
as approved by the AMF with visa number 16-383

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM 2488256
1 vl _FINAL NBP_Third_Supplement%20with%20visa.pdf

August 2016 Note Conditions

14-15; 17-18

August 2016 Form of Final
Terms

15

October 2016 Note Conditions

17
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Supplement dated 12 October 2016 to the 2016 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 16-477

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM_ 2541884
1 vi_FINAL Fifth NBP_Supplement with_visa.pdf

October 2016 Form of Final
Terms

16

Supplement dated 9 November 2016 to the 2016 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 16-523

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM25622240
vIFINALNBPSixth_Supplement.pdf

November 2016 Note
Conditions

13-14

Supplement dated 28 February 2017 to the 2016 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 17-075

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM26502610
v2FINALSeventhNBPSupplement.pdf

February 2017 Note Conditions

184

February 2017 Form of Final
Terms

182-183

2017 Base Prospectus

Base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F and BNPPF
dated 7 June 2017 as approved by the AMF with visa number
17-262 (the "2017 Base Prospectus")

hitps://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM27398133
v3FINALNoteBP 2017dated_07 06_17visa_I17 262.pdf

June 2017 Note Conditions

531-1086

June 2017 Form of Final Terms

442-530

Supplement dated 4 August 2017 to the 2017 Base Prospectus
as approved by the AMF with visa number 17-431

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM27967397
vIFINAL NBP _First Supplement.pdf

August 2017 Form of Final
Terms

15

Supplement dated 12 December 2017 to the 2017 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 17-636

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/Fourth_ 2017
BNP_Note BP_Supplement doc.pdf

December 2017 Note Conditions

December 2017 Form of Final
Terms

Supplement dated 15 February 2018 to the 2017 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 18-043

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_filess/BNPPNotesBP
2017 FifthSupplement.pdf

February 2018 Form of Final
Terms

170

Supplement dated 18 April 2018 to the 2017 Base Prospectus
as approved by the AMF with visa number 18-139

April 2018 Form of Final Terms

73-74

134




DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM29884555
v2FINALSixth2017NBPSupplement.pdf

2018 Base Prospectus

Base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F and BNPPF
dated 5 June 2018 as approved by the AMF with visa number
18-226 (the "2018 Base Prospectus")

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM30229503
v2FINALNoteBP2018.pdf

June 2018 Note Conditions

562-1160

June 2018 Form of Final Terms

464-561

Supplement dated 9 August 2018 to the 2018 Base Prospectus
as approved by the AMF with visa number 18-379

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/1St%20Supple
ment%20Note%20BP %209 %20August%202018.pdf

August 2018 Note Conditions

22-24

Supplement dated 25 September 2018 to the 2018 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 18-450

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/2nd_Suppleme
nt_Note_BP_25 September_2018.pdf

September 2018 Note
Conditions

24

September 2018 Form of Final
Terms

23

2019 Base Prospectus

Base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F and BNPPF
dated 3 June 2019 as approved by the AMF with visa number
19-239 (the "2019 Base Prospectus")

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM 3283025
7 v2 FINAL Note BP 2019.pdf

June 2019 Note Conditions

567-1193

June 2019 Form of Final Terms

465-566

Supplement dated 8 August 2019 to the 2019 Base Prospectus
as approved by the AMF with visa number 19-395

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM 3339302
3 v2 FINAL 2019 NBP_First Supplement.pdf

August 2019 Note Conditions

20

Supplement dated 29 November 2019 to the 2019 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 19-551

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/ICM 3421556
2 vl _FINAL Third 2019 NBP_Supplement.pdf

November 2019 Note
Conditions

57-559

November 2019 Form of Final
Terms

56

2020 Base Prospectus
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Base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F and BNPPF
dated 2 June 2020 as approved by the AMF with visa number
20-231 (the "2020 Base Prospectus")

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/I _FINAL 202
0_Note_BP.pdf

June 2020 Note Conditions 319-977

June 2020 Form of Final Terms 206-318

Supplement dated 30 March 2021 to the 2020 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 21-087

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/fUKO2 20022
87004 _v1_FINAL 2020 _NBP_Fifth_Supplement.pdf

March 2021 Note Conditions 203-204

March 2021
Terms

Form of Final 198-202

2021 Base Prospectus

Base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F and BNPPF
dated 1 June 2021 as approved by the AMF with visa number
21-194 (the "2021 Base Prospectus")

hitps://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/I _FINAL 202
1_Note_BP.pdf

June 2021 Note Conditions 341-1040

June 2021 Form of Final Terms 225-340

Supplement dated 30 September 2021 to the 2021 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 21-423

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/fUKO2 20033
98918 v2 FINAL 2021 NBP_Second_Supplement.pdf

September 2021 Note

Conditions

Supplement dated 25 November 2021 to the 2021 Base
Prospectus as approved by the AMF with visa number 21-503

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource

.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/NBP_Third_S
upplement_26Nov.pdf

November 2021 Note 14

Conditions

Offers Extending Beyond the Validity of the Base Prospectus

ISIN Website
XS2475196536 https://www.bpostbanque.be/bpb/investir/obligation-
structuree
FR001400A3X9 https://eqdpo.bnpparibas.com/FR001400A3X9
FRO014009KE6 https://www.bourse.lu/security/FR0014009KE6/356221
FR0O014009LV8 https://www.bourse.lu/security/FR0014009LV8/356212
FRO0O1400A1RS https://www.bourse.lu/security/FR001400A1R5/357291
FR0O01400A043 https://www.bourse.lu/security/FR001400A043/357631
FR0O01400A8D0 https://www.bourse.lu/security/FR001400A8D0/357639
FRO01400A7B6 https://www.bourse.lu/security/FRO01400A7B6/357690
FR0O01400A7C4 https://www.bourse.lu/security/FRO01400A7C4/357682
FR001400A3P5 https://www.bourse.lu/security/FR001400A3P5/357903
FR001400AB43 http://eqdpo.bnpparibas.com/EI1233ACD
FRO01400AE73 http://eqdpo.bnpparibas.com/EI1344JES
FR0O01400ADA3 http://eqdpo.bnpparibas.com/EI1257ACD
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FR0014009M31 http://eqdpo.bnpparibas.com/FR0014009M31

FR00140099Q9 https://eqdpo.bnpparibas.com/FR00140099Q9

FR0014009CKO https://eqdpo.bnpparibas.com/FR0014009CK0

FRO01400AFQ4 http://eqdpo.bnpparibas.com/EI1265ACD
BNP PARIBAS

Information incorporated by Page Reference

reference

Headings as listed by Annex 1 of the
Commission  Delegated Regulation
(EU) 2019/980

BNPP 2021 Universal Registration
Document (in English) -
https://invest.bnpparibas/en/groupe-
de-document/universal-registration-

First Amendment to the BNPP 2021
Universal Registration Document
(in English) -
https://invest.bnpparibas/en/documen

document-and-annual-financial-
report-2021

t/1st-amendment-to-the-2021 -
universal-registration-document

2. Statutory auditors 686 136
3. Risk factors 309-323 92-108
4. Information about the Issuer 4-6; 695-698 N/A
S. Business overview
5.1. Principal activities 7-18; 218-221; 670-676 N/A
5.2. Principal markets 7-18; 218-221; 670-676 N/A
5.3. History and development of 6 N/A
the Issuer
5.4. Strategy and objectives 157-160; 582-583; 630-640; 650-651 | N/A
5.5. Possible dependency 668 N/A
5.6. Basis for any statements 7-18; 132-148 N/A
made by the issuer regarding
its competitive position
5.7. Investments 267; 570; 628-629; 669 N/A
6. Organisational structure
6.1. Brief description 4; 650-651 N/A
6.2. List of significant 281-289; 562-569; 670-675 N/A
subsidiaries
7. Operating and financial review
7.1. Financial situation 160; 180, 182; 532-533 3-74;77;78
7.2. Operating results 132-148; 155-156; 163-169; 180; 63-74

219; 532
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Capital resources

8.1. Issuer’s capital resources

184-185; 557

57;78; 80-91

8.2. Sources and amounts of cash
flows

183

N/A

8.3. Borrowing requirements and
funding structure

160; 482-498

18

Regulatory environment

299; 306-308

N/A

10.

Trend information

10.1. Main recent trends

157-160; 669

110

10.2. Trends likely to have a
material impact on the
Issuer's outlook

157-160; 669

110

11.

Profit forecasts or estimates

N/A

N/A

12.

Administrative, management,
and supervisory bodies, and
senior management

12.1. Administrative and
management bodies

35-50; 114

N/A

12.2. Administrative and
management bodies’
conflicts of interest

55-56; 70-71; 81-110

N/A

13.

Remuneration and benefits

13.1. Amount of remuneration paid
and benefits in kind granted

81-110; 257-264; 277

112-132

13.2. Total amounts set aside or
accrued by the Issuer or its
subsidiaries to provide
pension, retirement or similar
benefits

81-110; 257-264; 277

112-132

14.

Board practices

14.1. Date of expiry of the current
terms of office

35-48

N/A

14.2. Information about members
of the administrative bodies’

N/A

N/A
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service contracts with the
Issuer

14.3. Information about the audit
committee and remuneration
committee

58-66

N/A

14.4. Corporate governance regime
in force in the Issuer’s
country of incorporation

51-58

N/A

14.5. Potential material impacts on
the corporate governance

35-48

N/A

15. Employees

15.1. Number of employees

4; 614-615; 650; 695

N/A

15.2. Shareholdings and stock
options

81-110; 204-205; 612-613

N/A

15.3. Information about members
of the administrative bodies’
service contracts with the
Issuer

N/A

N/A

16.

Major shareholders

16.1. Shareholders owning more
than 5% of the Issuer’s
capital or voting rights

19; 20

N/A

16.2. Existence of different voting
rights

19

N/A

16.3. Control of the Issuer

19; 20

N/A

16.4. Description of any
arrangements, known to the
Issuer, the operation of which
may at a subsequent date
result in a change of control
of the Issuer

20

N/A

17.

Related party transactions

81-110; 278-279; 682-683

N/A

18.

Financial information
concerning the Issuer’s assets
and liabilities, financial position,
and profits and losses
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18.1. Historical financial 5;23; 132-290; 532-570 63-74;77;78
information
18.2. Interim and other financial N/A 63-74;, 77,78
information
18.3. Auditing of historical annual | 291-296; 571-576 N/A
financial information
18.4. Pro forma financial N/A N/A
information
18.5. Dividend policy 23;26-27; 133; 158; 160; 560 N/A
18.6.Legal and arbitration 266-267 110; 111
proceedings
18.7. Significant change in the 669 110
Issuer’s financial or trading
position
19. Additional information
19.1. Share capital 19; 264-266; 551-553; 677; 702 N/A
19.2. Memorandum and articles of | 677-682 N/A
association
20. Material contracts 668 N/A
21. Documents on display 668 110

Information Incorporated by Reference

Page Reference

2020 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document (in English)

https.//invest.bnpparibas/en/document/universal-registration-document-and-annual-financial-report-2020

Profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 164
2020
Statement of net income and changes in assets and 165

liabilities recognised directly in equity

Balance sheet at 31 December 2020

166

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2020 | 167

Statement of changes in shareholders' equity between 1

January 2019 and 31 December 2020

168; 169
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Notes to the financial statements prepared in accordance 170-271
with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union

Statutory Auditors' report on the Consolidated Financial 272-277
Statements of BNP Paribas for the year ended 31
December 2020

2021 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BNPP 2021 Universal Registration Document (in English)
https://invest.bnpparibas/en/groupe-de-document/universal-registration-document-and-annual-financial-report-202 1

Profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 180
2021
Statement of net income and changes in assets and 181

liabilities recognised directly in equity

Balance sheet at 31 December 2021 182

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2021 | 183

Statement of changes in shareholders' equity between 1 184; 185
January 2021 and 31 December 2021

Notes to the financial statements prepared in accordance 186-290
with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union

Statutory Auditors' report on the Consolidated Financial 291-296
Statements of BNP Paribas for the year ended 31
December 2021

BNP PARIBAS ISSUANCE B.V.

Information Incorporated by Reference | Page Reference

2020 BNPP B.V. Annual Report
https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2F/Legal
Docs/index_files/20210416_BNP Paribas_Issuance_BYV _initialled_annual_Report 2020.pdf

Management Board Report 3-4
Balance Sheet at 31 December 2020 5
Profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 6
2020

Cash flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 7
2020

Notes to the financial statements 8-13
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Statutory arrangements concerning the appropriation of 14
profits

Independent Auditor's Report for the year ended 31 15-20
December 2020

2021 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/2021_BNPP_[

ssuance_BYV_initialled_final Annual_Report 2021.pdf

Management Board Report 3-4
Balance sheet at 31 December 2021 5
Profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 6
2021

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2021 | 7

Notes to the financial statements 8-13

Statutory arrangements concerning the appropriation of 15
profits

Independent Auditor's Report for the year ended 31 16-22
December 2021

BNP PARIBAS FORTIS SA/NV

Information Incorporated by Reference | Page Reference

2020 BNPPF Annual Report
hitps://www.bnpparibasfortis.com/docs/default-source/pdf-(en)/financial-reports/annual-report-2020-bnp-paribas-
fortis-sa-nv.pdf?sfvrsn=d0409c6e_6 (the document is also available via www.bnpparibasfortis.be\emissions)

The BNPPF Consolidated Annual Report 2020 7-40

The audited consolidated profit and loss account of 42
BNPPF for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

The statement of net income and change in assets and 43
liabilities recognised directly in equity of BNPPF for the
financial year ended 31 December 2020

The balance sheet of BNPPF for the financial year ended 44
31 December 2020

The cash flow statement of BNPPF for the financial year 45
ended 31 December 2020

The statement of changes in shareholders' equity between | 46
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 2020 47-162
Risk management and capital adequacy 163-183
The statutory auditor's report to the general shareholder's 186-193

meeting on the consolidated financial statements of
BNPPF as of and for the year ended 31 December 2020
(including their opinion)

2021 BNPPF Annual Report

https://www.bnpparibasfortis.com/docs/default-source/pdf-(en)/financial-reports/bnp-paribas-fortis-annual-report-

2021 en.pdf?sfvrsn=ab5e966e_4 (the document is also available via www.bnpparibasfortis.be\emissions)

The BNPPF Consolidated Annual Report 2021 9-46
The audited consolidated profit and loss account of 48
BNPPF for the financial year ended 31 December 2021

The statement of net income and change in assets and 49
liabilities recognised directly in equity of BNPPF for the

financial year ended 31 December 2021

The balance sheet of BNPPF for the financial year ended 50

31 December 2021

The cash flow statement of BNPPF for the financial year 51
ended 31 December 2021

The statement of changes in shareholders' equity between | 52

1 January 2020 and 31 December 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 2021 53-170
Risk management and capital adequacy 171-192
The statutory auditor's report to the general shareholder's 193-202

meeting on the consolidated financial statements of
BNPPF as of and for the year ended 31 December 2021
(including their opinion)

BNPPF 2020 Pillar 3 Disclosure
https://www.bnpparibasfortis.com/docs/default-source/pdf-(en)/financial-reports/pillar-3-

2020 vf2.pdf?sfvrsn=b7f89c6e_4 (the document is also available via www.bnpparibasfortis.be\emissions)

Pillar 3 Disclosure for the Year 2020

4-63

BNPPF 2020 Additional Pillar 3 Disclosure
https://'www.bnpparibasfortis.com/docs/default-source/pdf-(en)/financial-reports/additional-pillar-3-

2020 vf.pdf?sfvrsn=cbf89c6e_4 (the document is also available via www.bnpparibasfortis.be\emissions)

Additional Pillar 3 Disclosure for the Year 2020

3-15
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BNPPF 2021 Pillar 3 Disclosure
https://www.bnpparibasfortis.com/docs/default-source/pdf-(en)/financial-reports/pillar-3-2021-

final.pdf?sfvrsn=c48d966e_6 (the document is also available via www.bnpparibasfortis.be\emissions)

Pillar 3 Disclosure for the Year 2021 4-71

BNPPF 2021 Additional Pillar 3 Disclosure
https://www.bnpparibasfortis.com/docs/default-source/pdf-(en)/financial-reports/additional-pillar-3-

2021.pdf?sfvrsn=a88d966¢e_4 (the document is also available via www.bnpparibasfortis.be\emissions)

Additional Pillar 3 Disclosure for the Year 2021 3-26

BNPPF Press Release
https://'www.bnpparibasfortis.com/docs/default-source/newsroom-documents/2022-03-11-fy-results-
202 1/uk_bnppf press_release_results fy 2021 11032022.pdf?sfvrsn=e983976e 6 (the document is also available via
www.bnpparibasfortis.be\emissions)

Overview of the main figures 1
Analysis of the full year 2021 financial performance 2-4
Comments from the CEO of BNPPF 9
Consolidated profit and loss account 5

BNP PARIBAS FORTIS FUNDING

Information Incorporated by Reference Page Reference

2020 BP2F Audited Annual Accounts
hitps://bp2f.lu/files/results/Signed BP2F %20-%20SFR%20-%2031%2012%202020.pdf (the document is also available

via www.bnpparibasfortis.be\emissions)

The unqualified auditor's report to the audited annual 1-5
accounts for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Report from the Board of Directors 6-19
The balance sheet and profit and loss account 20-21
Notes to the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31 22-33
December 2020

2021 BP2F Audited Annual Accounts

hitps://bp2f.lu/files/results/BP2F - FS - 31 12 2021 signed.pdf (the document is also available via
www.bnpparibasfortis.be\emissions)

The unqualified auditor's report to the audited annual 1-5
accounts for the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Report from the Board of Directors 6-19
The balance sheet and profit and loss account 20-21
Notes to the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31 22-34
December 2021

BP2F 2020 Cash Flow Statements

https://bp2f.lu/files/results/Signed BP2F %20-%20ISA %20805%20-%2031%2012%202020.pdf (the document is also
available via www.bnpparibasfortis.be\emissions)
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Report of the réviseur d'entreprises agréé 1-2
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 3
2020

Notes to the statement of cash flows 4-5

BP2F 2021 Cash Flow Statements
https://bp2f.lu/files/results/BP2F - ISA_805 - 31 12 2021 signed.pdf (the document is also available via

www.bnpparibasfortis.be\emissions)

Report of the réviseur d'entreprises agréé 1-2
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December | 3
2021

Notes to the statement of cash flows 4-5

Information contained in the documents incorporated by reference other than information listed in the tables above is for

information purposes only.

Each Issuer will provide, free of charge, to each person to whom a copy of this Base Prospectus has been delivered, upon

the oral or written request of such person, a copy of any or all of the documents which are incorporated herein by reference

in (a) or (b) above. Each of the documents incorporated by reference in (c) to (q) above will only be made available by

the relevant Issuer or the relevant Guarantor to which such document relates. Written or oral requests for such documents

should be directed to the relevant Issuer at its principal office set out at the end of this Base Prospectus.
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SECURITY AND COLLATERAL IN RESPECT OF SECURED SECURITIES

The following shall apply to Secured Securities only to which either of Part A or B of Annex 13 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for Secured Securities) applies. The following does not apply to Secured Securities to which either of Part C
or Part D of Annex 13 (Additional Terms and Conditions for Secured Securities) applies.

General

Only BNPP B.V. may issue Secured Securities. In order to secure its obligations in respect of the Secured Securities,
BNPP B.V. will enter into one or more pledge agreements and/or other security arrangements with, among others, BNP
Paribas Trust Corporation UK Limited which will, unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, be governed
by Luxembourg law (each a "Security Agreement"). Under the Security Agreement, BNPP B.V. will grant first ranking
security over securities accounts or cash accounts (each a "Collateral Account") held by BNPP B.V. with BNP Paribas
Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch (which, from and including the date on which the intragroup merger with BNPP
takes effect (being 1 October 2022 or such other date notified to Noteholders in accordance with the Conditions), will be
substituted with BNP Paribas, Succursale de Luxembourg) or such other custodian or account bank as is specified for the
relevant Collateral Pool in the applicable Final Terms (each a "Collateral Custodian") in favour of BNP Paribas Trust
Corporation UK Limited (the "Collateral Agent") on behalf of itself and the relevant Holders. In each Collateral
Account, BNPP B.V. will hold sufficient securities or cash which, upon delivery to the relevant Collateral Account, are
Eligible Collateral (the "Collateral Assets") to secure the marked to market value of the relevant Secured Securities
("MTM Collateralisation") or a specified proportion of the marked to market value of the relevant Secured Securities
("Partial MTM Collateralisation") or alternatively to secure the nominal value of such Secured Securities ("Nominal
Value Collateralisation") or to secure part of the nominal value of such Secured Securities ("Partial Nominal Value
Collateralisation"). Whether or not MTM Collateralisation, Partial MTM Collateralisation, Nominal Value
Collateralisation or Partial Nominal Value Collateralisation is applicable to a series of Secured Securities will be specified
in the applicable Final Terms. Multiple series of Secured Securities may be secured by the Collateral Assets held in a
single Collateral Account (each a "Collateral Pool") if so specified in the relevant Final Terms.

Adjustments to Collateral Pool where the Collateral Assets are securities

Unless specified otherwise in the applicable Final Terms, where the Collateral Assets are securities, on such periodic
basis as is specified in the applicable Final Terms (each a "Collateral Valuation Date"), will determine (a) the marked
to market value of the Collateral Assets in a Collateral Pool (the "Collateral Value") will be determined by BNP Paribas
Arbitrage S.N.C (or such other party specified in the applicable Final Terms) (the "Collateral Calculation Agent")
provided that where a triparty collateral agent is appointed (the "Triparty Agent") in respect of the relevant Collateral
Pool, the Collateral Calculation Agent will delegate its obligation to calculate the marked-to-market value of the Collateral
Assets in the Collateral Pool to the Triparty Agent and provided further that, notwithstanding such delegation, the
Collateral Calculation Agent may from time to time, provide such Triparty Agent with the marked to market value of any
Collateral Assets or correct a marked to market value previously determined by the Triparty Agent. The Collateral
Calculation Agent will also determine on each Collateral Valuation Date (a) the sum of, in respect of each series of
Secured Securities secured by the relevant Collateral Pool, the marked to market value of such Secured Securities (where
MTM Collateralisation is applicable to a series of Secured Securities) or part of the marked to market value of such
Secured Securities (where Partial MTM Collateralisation is applicable to a series of Secured Securities) and (b) where
Nominal Value Collateralisation or Partial Nominal Value Collateralisation is applicable to a series of Secured Securities,
the aggregate nominal value or part of the aggregate nominal value of the relevant Secured Securities (such sum, the
"Securities Value"). When determining the Collateral Value in respect of Collateral Assets in a Collateral Pool, the
Collateral Calculation Agent or the Triparty Agent, as the case may be, may, if so specified in the applicable Final Terms,
apply a "haircut" (being a percentage by which the market value of a Collateral Asset is discounted) which is designed to
mitigate the depreciation in value of the relevant Collateral Asset in the period between the last valuation of the Collateral
Asset and the realisation of such Collateral Asset. When determining the Securities Value on the basis of the marked to
market value of the Secured Securities (or part of such marked to market value), the Collateral Calculation Agent shall
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take no account of the financial condition of (a) BNPP B.V. which shall be presumed to be able to perform fully its
obligations in respect of the Secured Securities or, (b) the Guarantor which shall be presumed to be able to perform fully
its obligations in respect of the Guarantee. Unless the applicable Final Terms specify that there will be no adjustments
to the amount of Collateral Assets or that there are no Collateral Valuation Dates, in the event that on a Collateral
Valuation Date there is a difference between the Collateral Value and the applicable Securities Value, BNPP B.V. will
procure that further assets are delivered to the Collateral Account (or substitute existing Collateral Assets with Collateral
Assets with a greater value) if the value of the Collateral Assets is less than the Securities Value prior to such adjustment
or will be entitled to remove Collateral Assets from the Collateral Account if the Collateral Value is in excess of the
Securities Value prior to such adjustment. Following such adjustment to the Collateral Assets in respect of any Collateral
Valuation Date, the Collateral Value is expected to be equal to the Securities Value.

Adjustments to Collateral Pool where the Collateral Asset is a cash deposit

Where the Collateral Asset is a cash deposit, on each Collateral Valuation Date (if any) the Collateral Calculation Agent
will determine only the Securities Value. When determining the Securities Value on the basis of the marked to market
value of the Secured Securities (or part of such marked to market value), the Collateral Calculation Agent shall take no
account of the financial condition of (a) BNPP B.V. which shall be presumed to be able to perform fully its obligations
in respect of the Secured Securities or (b) the Guarantor which shall be presumed to be able to perform fully its obligations
in respect of the Guarantee. Unless the applicable Final Terms specify that there will be no adjustments to the amount of
Collateral Assets or that there are no Collateral Valuation Dates, in the event that on a Collateral Valuation Date there is
a difference between the amount of cash standing to the credit of the Collateral Account (the "Deposit Amount") and the
applicable Securities Value, BNPP B.V. will procure that further cash is deposited in the Collateral Account if the Deposit
Amount is below the Securities Value prior to such adjustment or will be entitled to withdraw cash from the Collateral
Account if the Deposit Amount is in excess of the Securities Value prior to such adjustment. Following such adjustment
in respect of Collateral Assets on any Collateral Valuation Date, the Deposit Amount is expected to be equal to the
Securities Value.

Delivery of Collateral Assets

In the event that BNPP B.V. is required to deliver or deposit additional Collateral Assets or alternative Collateral Assets
in the Collateral Account, BNPP B.V. shall do so as soon as practicable following the relevant Collateral Valuation Date.

Calculations

The Collateral Agent will not be required to calculate or check the valuation of the relevant Secured Securities or the
Collateral Assets prior to the enforcement of the Security Agreements. In connection with the distribution of the
realisation proceeds from the Collateral Assets, the Collateral Agent may be required to determine the Security
Termination Amount due in respect of each Secured Security and the Final Security Value in respect of such Secured
Security. The Collateral Agent will determine the Final Security Value of a Secured Security on the basis of information
obtained from the Collateral Calculation Agent.

The Final Terms applicable to a series of Secured Securities may specify that there are no Collateral Valuation Dates and
that there will be no Collateral Calculation Agent in which case the Collateral Assets in a Collateral Pool will not be
subject to adjustment as described above following their initial deposit in or delivery to the relevant Collateral Account.

No collateralisation in respect of Secured Securities held by BNPP B.V. or any of its Affiliates

There will be no collateralisation in respect of any Secured Securities beneficially owned by BNPP B.V. or any of its
Affiliates. During the term of the relevant Secured Securities, where BNPP B.V. or any of its Affiliates is the beneficial
owner of Secured Securities, it will not provide or hold any Collateral Assets in respect of such Secured Securities.
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Following an Enforcement Event, BNPP B.V. or the Affiliate of BNPP B.V. that holds the Secured Securities will
renounce and waive all rights (including as to payment) in respect of such Secured Securities and shall submit such
Secured Securities for cancellation free of payment.

Substitutions

In the period between Collateral Valuation Dates, BNPP B.V. may withdraw Collateral Assets from any Collateral
Account but only if it replaces them with alternative Collateral Assets which have at least the same marked to market
value (as of the previous Collateral Valuation Date) as those being replaced (where MTM Collateralisation or Partial
MTM Collateralisation is applicable or Nominal Substitution is not specified as being applicable in the applicable Final
Terms) or, where Collateral Assets have been provided in an amount equal to the nominal value of the relevant Secured
Securities, the same nominal amount as those being replaced (where Nominal Value Collateralisation or Partial Nominal
Value Collateralisation is applicable and where Nominal Substitution is specified as being applicable in the applicable
Final Terms or where there are no Collateral Valuation Dates).

Events of Default

The terms of the Secured Securities will contain events of default including non-payment or failure to deliver the
Entitlement which is not remedied within 30 days after the relevant due date, non-performance or non-observance of the
Issuer's or Guarantor's obligations in respect of the Secured Securities where such default is not remedied within 45 days
after notice of such default has been given to the Principal Paying Agent by any Holder and the insolvency or winding up
of the Issuer or Guarantor.

Enforcement

Upon receipt of a notice from a Holder that an Event of Default has occurred (a "Default Notification"), BNPP B.V. may
deliver a notice to the Collateral Agent and the relevant Holder stating that, in its reasonable belief, the relevant Event of
Default has not occurred (such a notice, an "Event Dispute Notice"). If the Collateral Agent does not receive an Event
Dispute Notice at or prior to the end of the Dispute Period, the Collateral Agent will deliver a notice to, among others,
BNPP B.V. and the Collateral Custodian specifying that a Default Notification has been delivered, that no Event Dispute
Notice has been received from BNPP B.V. within the Dispute Period with respect to such Default Notification and that,
as aresult, the Secured Securities are immediately due and payable (an "Enforcement Notice"). The Holders will receive
a copy of such Enforcement Notice. Following delivery of an Enforcement Notice, the Collateral Agent will enforce the
Security Agreement(s) in accordance with the terms thereof and will liquidate or realise the Collateral Assets in all the
Collateral Pools, or appoint an agent to do so on its behalf, save where Physical Delivery of Collateral is specified as
applicable to a series of Secured Securities, in which case the portion of the Collateral Assets held in respect of series of
Secured Securities secured by the relevant Collateral Pool which are subject to Collateral Cash Settlement (if any) only
will be liquidated. In accordance with the terms of the Secured Securities, the Collateral Agent will distribute the proceeds
of such liquidation or realisation of a Collateral Pool to the Holders of the Secured Securities secured by such Collateral
Pool where such Secured Securities are subject to Collateral Cash Settlement or, where Physical Delivery of Collateral is
specified as applicable, arrange for delivery of the Collateral Assets in the relevant Collateral Pool or the portion of the
Collateral Assets held in respect of series of Secured Securities which are subject to Physical Delivery of Collateral
(where the Collateral Pool secures series of Secured Securities to which both Collateral Cash Settlement and Physical
Delivery of Collateral applies) to the relevant Holders, in each case after payment of any costs and fees incurred in
connection with the enforcement of the Security Agreement and, where applicable, after payment of any other amount
which is payable in priority thereto in accordance with the applicable Priority of Payments set out in the applicable Final
Terms or, as applicable, the applicable Collateral Security Conditions. The Collateral Assets in one Collateral Pool and
the proceeds of enforcement from that Collateral Pool (if any) will not be available to satisfy amounts due in respect of
any Secured Securities which are not secured by that Collateral Pool.

148



SECURITY AND COLLATERAL IN RESPECT OF SECURED SECURITIES

Collateral Asset Linked Securities

Where the relevant Secured Securities are Collateral Asset Linked Securities, the paragraphs entitled "Adjustments to
Collateral Pool where the Collateral Assets are securities" and "Adjustments to Collateral Pool where the Collateral Asset
is a cash deposit" above will not apply.

Collateralisation — Collateral Asset Linked Securities

In respect of the aggregate Nominal Amount of any Secured Securities held by parties other than BNPP B.V. or any of
its Affiliates (such Secured Securities, the "Placed Secured Securities") which are secured by the relevant Collateral
Pool, Nominal Value Collateralisation will apply (the "Nominal Value Collateralisation Element").

In addition, BNPP B.V. will enter into an option with an affiliate of BNP Paribas to hedge its obligations to pay Scheduled
Underlying Reference Linked Payments in respect of the Securities (the "Option"). The Issuer will hold in the Collateral
Account sufficient MTM Adjustable Assets (not including, for the avoidance of doubt, the Reference Collateral Assets
that are held in the Collateral Account to collateralise the aggregate Nominal Amount of the Placed Secured Securities)
to collateralise the marked-to-market value of the portion of the Option that relates to the Placed Secured Securities (the
"MTM Collateralisation Element").

In respect of (i) the aggregate Nominal Amount of the Secured Securities that are held by BNPP B.V. or any of its
Affiliates and (ii) the portion of the Option that relate to Securities held by BNPP B.V. or any of its Affiliates, BNPP
B.V. will hold no Collateral Assets. Following an Enforcement Event, BNPP B.V. or the Affiliate of BNPP B.V. that
holds the Secured Securities shall renounce and waive all rights (including as to payment) in respect of such Securities
and shall submit such Secured Securities for cancellation free of payment.

In respect of the Nominal Value Collateralisation Element, BNPP B.V. will transfer into the relevant Collateral Account
on the date specified in the Final Terms (the "Initial Posting Date") and hold in such account on any day thereafter, an
aggregate nominal amount of the Reference Collateral Assets, at least equal to the aggregate Nominal Amount of the
Placed Secured Securities which are secured by the relevant Collateral Pool on such date. Where BNPP B.V. or any of
its Affiliates acquires Secured Securities after the Initial Posting Date, BNPP B.V. will be entitled to withdraw an
aggregate nominal amount of Reference Collateral Assets equal to the aggregate Nominal Amount of the Secured
Securities so acquired, provided that BNPP B.V. shall always hold in the Collateral Account an aggregate nominal amount
of the Reference Collateral Assets at least equal to, at any time, the aggregate Nominal Amount of the Placed Secured
Securities.

In respect of the MTM Collateralisation Element, BNPP B.V. will transfer MTM Adjustable Assets to and from the
Collateral Account (based on the valuation provided by the Collateral Calculation Agent in respect of the immediately
preceding Collateral Valuation Date) so that it will hold in respect of the relevant Collateral Pool (excluding, for the
avoidance of doubt, any Reference Collateral Assets that are held in the Collateral Account to collateralise the aggregate
Nominal Amount of the Placed Secured Securities) with an aggregate marked-to-market value (as determined by the
Collateral Calculation Agent) and which will take into account the relevant Haircut (if a Haircut is specified as applicable
in the applicable Final Terms) at least equal to the Securities Value.

Enforcement

Following the occurrence of an Event of Default, a Holder, or the Distributor acting on the instructions of a Holder, may
provide a Default Notification. If the Collateral Agent does not receive an Event Dispute Notice from BNPP B.V. at or
prior to the end of the Dispute Period, it shall deliver an Enforcement Notice to each of BNPP B.V., the Principal Paying
Agent and the Collateral Custodian whereupon the Secured Securities shall become immediately due and payable at their
Security Termination Amount (which will be equal to the marked to market value of the Option), and BNPP B.V. shall
be obliged to deliver the Entitlement (which will consist of a pro rata share of the Reference Collateral Assets held by
BNPP B.V. in respect of the relevant series of Collateral Asset Linked Securities) in respect of the Secured Securities on
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the relevant Collateral Delivery Date without further action or formalities and the Security Interest granted under the
Pledge Agreement shall become enforceable (as set out in the Pledge Agreement).

Collateral Asset Default

BNPP B.V. shall redeem the Secured Securities as soon as reasonably practicable after the occurrence of the Collateral
Asset Default by (a) delivering the Reference Collateral Assets in the relevant Collateral Pool to the Holders of the
Secured Securities secured by such Reference Collateral Assets and (b) payment to the Holders of Secured Securities of
an amount in the Settlement Currency equal to the pro rata share applicable to each relevant Placed Secured Security of
the marked to market value, on the Collateral Asset Default Determination Date, of the portion of the Option which relates
to the Placed Secured Securities, as determined by the Calculation Agent.

Acquisition of Collateral Assets

BNPP B.V. may acquire the Collateral Assets in a number of ways including by entering into repurchase agreements or
swap agreements or any other agreements with BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C., BNP Paribas or any other Affiliate of the
Issuer or such other entities as it deems appropriate from time to time.

Swap Agreement

In connection with one or more series of Secured Securities, BNPP B.V. may enter into a swap agreement with a
counterparty which may be BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C., BNP Paribas or any other Affiliate of BNPP B.V. or such
other entities as it deems appropriate from time to time (the "Swap Counterparty") evidenced by a 1992 ISDA Master
Agreement and Schedule or a 2002 ISDA Master Agreement and Schedule thereto together with the confirmation entered
into by BNPP B.V. and the Swap Counterparty in respect of the relevant series of Secured Securities (a "Swap
Agreement").

The purpose of the Swap Agreement is to allow BNPP B.V. to perform its scheduled obligations under the relevant
Secured Securities. The Swap Agreement may provide that BNPP B.V. will pay to the Swap Counterparty the proceeds
of issue of the Secured Securities which are to be secured by the Collateral Pool. Over the term of the relevant Secured
Securities, upon scheduled settlement or redemption of the Secured Securities and, upon the early redemption of the
Secured Securities other than following an Event of Default, the Swap Counterparty will make payments or delivery of
assets to BNPP B.V. which correspond to those which BNPP B.V. is scheduled to make under the relevant Secured
Securities. The Swap Agreement may be supplemented by a credit support document (a " Credit Support Document").

Credit Support Document

Under the terms of the Credit Support Document, until the redemption or exercise of the relevant Secured Securities the
Swap Counterparty shall deliver to BNPP B.V., the initial Collateral Assets in an amount determined by the relevant
Securities Value of a series and from time to time, as applicable additional Collateral Assets on the basis of the Securities
Value and Collateral Value. BNPP B.V. shall re-deliver Collateral Assets or assets equivalent thereto to the Swap
Counterparty, if applicable, on the basis of the Securities Value and Collateral Value. The Credit Support Document may
include provisions governing the calculation of the Securities Value and the Collateral Value in respect of the relevant
Secured Securities. The Swap Counterparty may at its sole discretion substitute the Collateral Assets for other Eligible
Collateral. BNPP B.V. may appoint one or more agents to perform custodial and administrative functions relating to its
obligations under the Credit Support Document.

Repurchase Agreement

In connection with one or more series of Secured Securities, BNPP B.V. may enter into a repurchase agreement (a
"Repurchase Agreement") with a counterparty which may be BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C., BNP Paribas or any other
Affiliate of BNPP B.V. (the "Repo Counterparty"). The Repurchase Agreement may be substantially in the form of a
2000 TBMA/ISMA Global Master Repurchase Agreement, a "Convention Cadre FBF aux opérations de pensions
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livrées", each as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, or any other agreement having a similar
effect. Pursuant to the Repurchase Agreement, BNPP B.V. may enter into a series of repurchase transactions (each a
"Transaction") with the Repo Counterparty in respect of Collateral Assets. Under each such Transaction, the Repo
Counterparty will be the seller of Collateral Assets and BNPP B.V. will be the buyer.

Under a Repurchase Agreement entered into in respect of a series of Secured Securities, on the initial purchase date and
each subsequent purchase date BNPP B.V. will purchase from the Repo Counterparty Collateral Assets with a market
value equal to the outstanding aggregate nominal value of the relevant Secured Securities (or part of such nominal value
if Partial Nominal Value Collateralisation is applicable). On each repurchase date under such Repurchase Agreement,
the Repo Counterparty will repurchase securities equivalent to the Collateral Assets sold by it in relation to such Collateral
Pool on the previous purchase date for a repurchase price at least equal to the purchase price for that Transaction.

Margin maintenance

The market value of the Collateral Assets which are the subject of the current Transaction under each Repurchase
Agreement will be determined on each Collateral Valuation Date. The Repurchase Agreement will provide that the Repo
Counterparty will transfer further Collateral Assets and, as applicable, BNPP B.V. shall re-deliver Collateral Assets to
the Repo Counterparty on the basis of the applicable Securities Value and the Collateral Value. The Repo Counterparty
may at its sole discretion substitute the Collateral Assets for other Eligible Collateral.
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SECURITY AND COLLATERAL IN RESPECT OF SECURED SECURITIES WHICH ARE NOMINAL
VALUE REPACK SECURITIES

The following shall apply to Secured Securities only which are Nominal Value Repack Securities and shall not apply to
Secured Securities to which either of Part A or B of Annex 13 (Additional Terms and Conditions for Secured Securities)
are applicable.

General
References herein to "Issuer" means BNPP B.V. only.

Only BNPP B.V. may issue Secured Securities, which are Nominal Value Repack Securities. In order to secure its
obligations in respect of such Secured Securities, BNPP B.V. will enter into in respect of English Law Securities, security
trust terms governed by English law (the "Security Trust Deed Terms") with The Law Debenture Trust Corporation
p.Lc. (the "Security Trustee").

In respect of each series of Secured Securities BNPP B.V. will enter into one or more pledge agreements with the Security
Trustee (in respect of English Law Securities) or with the entity specified as the French collateral security agent in the
Final Terms (the "French Collateral Security Agent") (in respect of French Law Securities) which will, unless otherwise
specified in the applicable Final Terms, be governed by Luxembourg law (each a "Pledge Agreement"). Under the
Pledge Agreement, BNPP B.V. will grant first ranking security over securities held in securities accounts, or cash accounts
(each a "Collateral Account") held by BNPP B.V. with BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch (which,
from and including the date on which the intragroup merger with BNPP takes effect (being 1 October 2022 or such other
date notified to Noteholders in accordance with the Conditions), will be substituted with BNP Paribas, Succursale de
Luxembourg) or such other custodian as is specified for the relevant Collateral Pool in the applicable Final Terms (each
a "Collateral Custodian") in favour of the Security Trustee (in respect of English Law Securities) or the French Collateral
Security Agent (in respect of French Law Securities) for itself, the relevant Holders and other Secured Parties (including
the Swap Counterparty). In addition, the Issuer will:

(a) in respect of English Law Securities, grant security in favour of the Security Trustee (for itself and for and on
behalf of the other Secured Parties) over its rights against the Swap Counterparty and any other Related
Agreement Counterparty pursuant to a security trust deed (which will incorporate the Security Trust Deed
Terms) governed by English law (the "Security Trust Deed" and, together with the Pledge Agreement and any
other security agreement entered into by the Issuer relating to the relevant series of Secured Securities, each an
"Security Agreement"); or

(a) in respect of French Law Securities, grant security in favour of the French Collateral Security Agent (for itself
and the other Secured Parties) over its rights against the Swap Counterparty and any other Related Agreement
Counterparty pursuant to a French collateral security agency and pledge agreement governed by French law (the
"French Collateral Security Agency and Pledge Agreement" and, together with the Pledge Agreement and
any other security agreement entered into by the Issuer relating to the relevant series of Secured Securities, each
an "Security Agreement").

Save where the applicable Final Terms specify that there are no Reference Collateral Assets, in each Collateral Account,
BNPP B.V. will hold securities which, upon delivery to the relevant Collateral Account, are Eligible Collateral (the
"Reference Collateral Assets") in an amount at least equal to the nominal value of such Secured Securities or the
equivalent of such nominal value in the Reference Collateral Currency (as at the relevant Trade Date) or part of the
nominal value of such Secured Securities ("Partial Nominal Value Collateralisation") or, where the Issuer acquires the
Reference Collateral Assets pursuant to a Repurchase Agreement, with a marked to market value equal to the Purchase
Price. If Partial Nominal Value Collateralisation is applicable to a series of Secured Securities, this will be specified in
the applicable Final Terms. The Issuer may acquire one or more type of Reference Collateral Asset with an aggregate
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nominal amount greater than the aggregate Nominal Amount of such series of Secured Securities (such Secured
Securities, "Leveraged Nominal Value Repack Securities"). Multiple series of Secured Securities may be secured by
the Collateral Assets held in a single Collateral Account (each a "Collateral Pool") if so specified in the relevant Final
Terms provided that the Reference Collateral Assets specified as relating to a specific series of Secured Securities shall
not be available (whether by delivery thereof or payment of the realisation proceeds) to meet claims of any secured party
in respect of any other series of Secured Securities.

No collateralisation in respect of Secured Securities held by BNPP B.V. or any of its Affiliates

Where Group Collateralisation is specified to be not applicable, there will be no collateralisation in respect of any Secured
Securities beneficially owned by BNPP B.V. or any of its Affiliates. During the term of the relevant Secured Securities,
where BNPP B.V. or any of its Affiliates is the beneficial owner of Secured Securities, it will not provide or hold any
Reference Collateral Assets in respect of such Secured Securities.

Where Group Collateralisation is specified to be not applicable, following an Enforcement Event or an Early Redemption
Event, BNPP B.V. or the Affiliate of BNPP B.V. that holds the Secured Securities will renounce and waive all rights
(including as to payment) in respect of such Secured Securities and shall submit such Secured Securities for cancellation
free of payment.

Events of Default

The terms of the Secured Securities will contain events of default including non-payment or failure to deliver the
Entitlement which is not remedied within 30 days after the relevant due date, non-performance or non-observance of the
Issuer's or Guarantor's obligations in respect of the Secured Securities where such default is not remedied within 45 days
after notice of such default has been given to the Principal Paying Agent by any Holder or a Related Agreement terminates
early where the Issuer is the defaulting party and the insolvency or winding up of the Issuer or Guarantor.

Enforcement

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Security Trustee (in respect of English Law Securities) or the French
Collateral Security Agent (in respect of French Law Securities) at its discretion may, and if so requested in writing by the
Holders of at least one-fifth in number of the outstanding Secured Securities, or if so directed by an Extraordinary
Resolution (in respect of English Law Securities) or a General Meeting (in respect of French Law Securities) of such
Holders, shall (subject in each case to being indemnified and/or secured and/or prefunded to its satisfaction) deliver a
notice (an "Acceleration Notice") to the Issuer, the Principal Paying Agent, the Collateral Custodian, the Swap
Counterparty (if any) and Repo Counterparty (if any) that each relevant series of Secured Securities secured by the
Collateral Pool which is the subject of the Acceleration Notice shall forthwith become immediately due and payable at
their Security Termination Amount (save where Physical Delivery of Collateral is applicable in which case the
Entitlement in respect of each such Secured Security shall be delivered on the relevant Collateral Delivery Date). The
Holders will receive a copy of such Acceleration Notice.

Following delivery of an Acceleration Notice, the Security Trustee (in respect of English Law Securities) or the French
Collateral Security Agency and Pledge Agreement (in respect of French Law Securities)at its discretion may, and if so
requested in writing by the Holders of at least one-fifth in number of the outstanding Secured Securities, or if so directed
by an Extraordinary Resolution (in respect of English Law Securities) or a General Meeting (in respect of French Law
Securities) of such Holders, shall (subject in each case to being indemnified and/or secured and/or prefunded to its
satisfaction) enforce the Security Agreement(s) in accordance with the terms thereof and will liquidate or realise the
Collateral Assets in the relevant Collateral Pools, or appoint an agent to do so on its behalf. Where Physical Delivery of
Collateral is specified as applicable to a series of Secured Securities, only the portion of the Collateral Assets which are
not Reference Collateral Assets held in respect of series of Secured Securities secured by the relevant Collateral Pool will
be liquidated (if any).
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In accordance with the terms of the Secured Securities, the Security Trustee (in respect of English Law Securities) or the
French Collateral Security Agency and Pledge Agreement (in respect of French Law Securities) will:

@) distribute the proceeds of such liquidation or realisation of a Collateral Pool to the Holders of the Secured
Securities secured by such Collateral Pool; or

(i1) where Physical Delivery of Collateral is specified as applicable, arrange for delivery of the Collateral Assets in
the relevant Collateral Pool to the relevant Holders,

in each case after payment of any costs and fees incurred in connection with the enforcement of the Security Agreements
and after payment of any other amount which is payable in priority thereto in accordance with the applicable Priority of
Payments specified in the applicable Final Terms. The Reference Collateral Assets in one Collateral Pool and the
proceeds of enforcement from that Collateral Pool (if any) will only be available to satisfy amounts due in respect of the
Secured Securities to which such Reference Collateral Assets relate and they will not be available to satisfy amounts due
to other series of Secured Securities in respect of which they are not specified as Reference Collateral Assets or which
are not secured by that Collateral Pool.

Description of Early Redemption Amount

The manner in which the amount due to Holders on an early redemption of the Nominal Value Repack Securities is
determined may depend on the event that has triggered an early redemption of the Nominal Value Repack Securities and
the early redemption method specified in the applicable Final Terms. Nominal Value Repack Securities will be redeemed
at an amount calculated by reference to:

(b) (unless otherwise specified or if Standard Early Redemption Amount is specified in the applicable Final Terms)
to the proceeds received from the sale or redemption of the Reference Collateral Assets (or the sale of BNPP
B.V.'s rights to receive equivalent assets to the Reference Collateral Assets under the Collateral Exchange
Agreement, where applicable) plus or minus any payments to be made under the Swap Agreement, Collateral
Exchange Agreement (if any) and the Repurchase Agreement (if any) and less any costs incurred by BNPP B.V.
and any agent appointed by it in the sale of the Reference Collateral Assets (or, where applicable, its rights to
receive equivalent assets to the Reference Collateral Assets under the Collateral Exchange Agreement);

(© (if Secured Security Market Value is specified in the applicable Final Terms), the fair market value of the
Securities;
(d (if Secured Security Highest Value is specified in the applicable Final Terms) the greater of the fair market value

of the Securities and the Protected Amount specified in the Final Terms; or

(e) (if Secured Security Monetisation Option is specified in the applicable Final Terms and Holders do not elect to
receive the fair market value of the Securities) the present value of the Protected Amount specified in the Final
Terms, the market value of the embedded derivative, a hypothetical interest rate that might be achieved on an
alternative debt instrument with the same tenor as the Securities and the remaining time to the scheduled
Redemption Date (the "Secured Security Monetisation Amount"),

each an "Early Redemption Amount".

The fair market value of the Securities for the purposes of calculating the Secured Security Market Value or the Secured
Security Hightest Value will be calculated by reference to the proceeds received from the sale or redemption of the
Reference Collateral Assets (or the sale of BNPP B.V.'s rights to receive equivalent assets to the Reference Collateral
Assets under the Collateral Exchange Agreement, where applicable) plus or minus any payments to be made under the
Swap Agreement, Collateral Exchange Agreement (if any) and the Repurchase Agreement (if any).
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If the Nominal Value Repack Securities are early redeemed in part, the amount calculated as payable on such early

redemption will take into account that only a portion of the outstanding Nominal Value Repack Securities are being early
redeemed.

Acquisition of Reference Collateral Assets

BNPP B.V. may acquire the Reference Collateral Assets in a number of ways including by entering into repurchase
agreements or swap agreements or any other agreements with BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C., BNP Paribas or any other
Affiliate of the Issuer or such other entities as it deems appropriate from time to time. See "Description of the Charged
Assets" below for a description of the different arrangements the Issuer may enter into and associated cashflows.
Payments received in respect of Reference Collateral Assets and to be made between the Issuer and any Related
Agreement Counterparty will be dealt with in the manner set out in the relevant Related Agreement and/or may be the
subject of a netting arrangement between, inter alios, the Issuer, the relevant Related Agreement Counterparties, the
Principal Paying Agent and the Collateral Custodian.
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The below description relates to Secured Securities which are Nominal Value Repack Securities to which Part C or Part D
of Annex 13 (Additional Terms and Conditions for Secured Securities) applies.

The Issuer will meet its obligations to pay the relevant amounts it is due to pay in respect of the Secured Securities using
the payments it receives from the obligors under the Charged Assets specified in the Final Terms for the relevant series
of Secured Securities. The Issuer will also grant security over the Charged Assets in the manner set out in the Collateral
Security Conditions.

The specific obligors under the Charged Assets will be specified in the applicable Final Terms however such obligors
will be one or more corporate, bank or other financial institution, government, governmental agency, trust, fund,
municipal entity, sovereign or supranational entity provided that such obligors have securities already admitted to trading
on a regulated or equivalent market or the obligations are guaranteed by an entity admitted to trading on a regulated or
equivalent market. Where the Reference Collateral Assets are equity securities and/or debt securities specified as
"Reference Collateral Assets" in the applicable Final Terms, such securities shall be traded on a regulated or equivalent
market.
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PART II - DESCRIPTION OF THE SWAP AGREEMENT

The following description of the Swap Agreement which the Issuer may enter into for each series of Secured Securities
should be read in conjunction with the Final Terms for such series of Secured Securities, the applicable Charged Asset
Structure and the relevant Credit Support Structure(s) (if any) and together this description, and the applicable Charged
Asset Structure, Credit Support Structure(s) (if any) and such Final Terms consists of a summary of certain provisions of
such Swap Agreement which is qualified in its entirety by reference to the detailed provisions of such Swap Agreement
for each specific series of Secured Securities. The following summary does not purport to be complete, and prospective
investors must refer to the applicable Final Terms and the relevant Swap Agreement for detailed information regarding
the relevant Swap Agreement.

Payments under the Swap Agreement

If so specified in the applicable Final Terms, one of BNP Paribas and BNP Paribas Arbitrage SNC may enter into one or
more swap transactions in its capacity as swap counterparty (the "Swap Counterparty") with BNPP B.V. as Issuer
pursuant to the terms of a 2002 ISDA Master Agreement and a Schedule thereto (the "Master Agreement") and
confirmation in respect of the relevant transaction (each such agreement, a "Swap Agreement").

Each Swap Agreement will be entered into in order to allow the Issuer to exchange certain cashflows received by, or to
the order of, the Issuer in respect of the issue of the relevant Secured Securities, the Relevant Collateral Assets, any
Repurchase Agreement and/or the proceeds of the issue of the relevant series of Secured Securities in order to hedge the
Issuer's obligations under the Secured Securities for that series. In addition, the Issuer may enter into a credit derivative
transaction with the Swap Counterparty where the Secured Securities are Credit Nominal Value Repack Securities.

The payments due to be made by the Issuer and the Swap Counterparty in respect of a Swap Agreement are described in
Description of the Charged Assets - Part V - Charged Asset Structures and the applicable Charged Asset Structure will
be specified in the Final Terms for a particular series.

Termination of Swap Agreement

The Swap Agreement will terminate on the final date on which a payment may be due thereunder (the "Scheduled Swap
Termination Date") unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms thereof provided that if Suspension of
Payments is applicable to a series, if the Scheduled Swap Termination Date falls during the Suspension Period, it shall
be postponed to the date falling two Business Days following the final Business Day of the Suspension Period or such
earlier date on which the Issuer makes the final payments due on the Secured Securities.

Early Termination

Termination of any Swap Agreement prior to the Scheduled Swap Termination Date may occur in certain circumstances,
including, without limitation:

(a) payment defaults by the Issuer or the Swap Counterparty under such Swap Agreement;

b) bankruptcy events relating to the Issuer or the Swap Counterparty;

(c) payment defaults by the Issuer or the Repo Counterparty under the Repurchase Agreement (where applicable);
(d payment or delivery defaults by the Issuer or the Collateral Exchange Counterparty under the Collateral

Exchange Agreement (where applicable);

(e) repurchase of all relevant Secured Securities by the Issuer;
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®) the early redemption or an event of default of the series of Secured Securities in respect of which the Swap
Agreement has been entered into; and

(2) tax events relating to the Issuer or the relevant Swap Counterparty.

On an early termination of any Swap Agreement, an amount may be payable either to or by the Issuer in accordance with
the terms of the relevant Swap Agreement. Such termination payment, unless otherwise set out in the relevant Swap
Agreement, will be an amount payable equal to (a) the sum of (i) the close out amount and (ii) the Unpaid Amounts owing
to the non-defaulting (or non-affected) party less (b) the Unpaid Amounts owing to the defaulting (or affected) party. If
the amount is positive, the defaulting (or affected) party will pay it to the non-defaulting (or non-affected) party; if it is
negative, the non-defaulting (or non-affected) party will pay the absolute value of that amount to the defaulting (or
affected) party. In circumstances where both parties are affected parties, both parties will determine their close out
amounts and the amount referred to in (a)(i) will be one half of the difference between the higher and lower of the close
out amounts calculated.

In summary, the close out amount is the amount of losses or costs (expressed as a positive number) incurred or the gains
(expressed as a negative number) realised by the non-defaulting (or non-affected) party in replacing, or in providing for
the non-defaulting (or non-affected) party the economic equivalent of the material terms of the terminated transaction and
the option rights of the parties in respect of the relevant terminated transaction, ignoring for this purpose any Unpaid
Amounts, as determined by the non-defaulting (or non-affected) party in good faith, in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Master Agreement.

"Unpaid Amounts" as used in the above paragraph means, with respect to the date on which the Swap Agreement is
terminated early (the "Early Termination Date"), the aggregate of (a) the amounts that become payable under the
terminated transactions (or would have become payable but for the condition precedent contained in the Swap Agreement
not being satisfied or the application of provisions relating to deferral of payments to any party) and which remain unpaid
as at such Early Termination Date, (b) in respect of each terminated transaction which was required to be settled by
delivery (or would have been settled by delivery but for the condition precedent contained in the Swap Agreement not
being satisfied or the application of provisions relating to deferral of deliveries) which was not so settled, an amount equal
to the fair market value of that which was required to be delivered and (c) if the Early Termination Date results from an
event of default, a credit event upon merger event or an additional termination event, any termination payment due prior
to such Early Termination Date which remains unpaid as of such Early Termination Date, in each case together with any
amount of interest accrued in accordance with the terms of the Swap Agreement.

Upon an early termination of a Swap Agreement, there is no assurance that any termination payment payable by the Swap
Counterparty to the Issuer will be sufficient to allow the Issuer to pay any amounts that would otherwise have been due
in respect of the Secured Securities.

The early termination of the Swap Agreement will, if Related Agreement Termination Event is specified to be an Early
Redemption Event, constitute an Early Redemption Event in respect of the Secured Securities. The Issuer will not be
required to pay a termination payment to the Swap Counterparty greater than the sale proceeds from the Reference
Collateral Assets for the relevant series which are sold following the occurrence of a relevant Early Redemption Event.

Swap adjustment

Where one of Secured Security Market Value or Secured Security Highest Value is specified as applicable as the Early
Redemption Amount applicable to the Secured Securities in respect of one or more Early Redemption Events and such
an Early Redemption Event occurs or another event occurs which results in the Secured Security Market Value or Secured
Security Highest Value being payable in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Secured Securities, the Swap
Agreement will terminate and the amount payable as the termination payment in respect of the Swap Agreement will be
equal to the Adjusted Early Termination Amount.
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Where Secured Security Monetisation Option is specified as applicable in respect of the Secured Securities in respect of
one or more Early Redemption Events and such an Early Redemption Event occurs or another event occurs which results
in the Secured Security Monetisation Option being applicable in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Securities (a "Monetisation Effective Event"), the Swap Agreement will be split into two transactions with one
transaction (the "Terminating Transaction") having a notional amount equal to the Terminating Swap Notional Amount
(in respect of which the Adjusted Early Termination Amount will be payable) and the other transaction (the "Surviving
Transaction") will have a notional amount equal to the Swap Notional Amount less the Terminating Swap Notional
Amount. The Surviving Transaction will also be deemed to be automatically adjusted so that where the Swap
Counterparty may have an obligation to pay one or more amounts which are linked to the performance of an Underlying
Reference or amounts equal to the interest amounts payable on the Secured Securities, such payment obligation shall be
amended so that an amount shall be due from the Swap Counterparty equal to the aggregate Secured Security Monetisation
Amount payable by the Issuer in respect of the relevant Secured Securities (and the calculation agent under the Swap
Agreement may make any other necessary adjustments to the Swap Agreement it deems necessary as a consequence of
the Monetisation Effective Event) and the Issuer may be obliged to pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty equal to the
amount of the Charged Asset Proceeds which are not used to pay the aggregate Secured Security Market Value of the
Secured Securities in respect of which the holders thereof have elected to receive the Secured Security Market Value
rather than the Secured Security Monetisation Amount.

Where:

"Adjusted Early Termination Amount" means an amount equal to the amount of losses (expressed as a positive
number) incurred or the gains (expressed as a negative number) realised by the Swap Counterparty in replacing, or in
providing for the Swap Counterparty the economic equivalent of the material terms of the terminated transaction and the
option rights of the parties in respect of the relevant terminated transaction provided that no account will be taken of
funding costs or any loss or cost incurred in connection with the determining party terminating, liquidating or re-
establishing any hedge related to the terminated transaction or any gain resulting therefrom. Where the Adjusted Early
Termination Amount is a positive figure, an amount equal to such amount will be payable by the Issuer to the Swap
Counterparty and where the Adjusted Early Termination Amount is a negative figure, an amount equal to the absolute
value of such amount will be payable by the Swap Counterparty to the Issuer; and

"Terminating Swap Notional Amount" means the proportion of the notional amount of the Swap Agreement
immediately prior to a Monetisation Effective Event (the "Swap Notional Amount") equal to the proportion that the
aggregate Nominal Amount of the Secured Securities in respect of which the holders elect to receive the Secured Security
Market Value of such Securities bears to the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the Secured Securities.

Collateralisation

The Swap Counterparty may be required to provide collateralisation in respect of its obligations under the relevant Swap
Agreement. Collateralisation may be provided: (a) under a 1995 ISDA Credit Support Annex (Transfer — English law)
(a "Credit Support Annex"); or (b) a 1995 ISDA Credit Support Deed (Security Interest — English law) (a "Credit
Support Deed").

The amount of any collateralisation and the circumstances in which it is payable or deliverable will be set out in the Credit
Support Structure specified as being applicable in the applicable Final Terms. The custodian of Swap Counterparty
Collateral posted under a Credit Support Annex or Credit Support Deed will be the Collateral Custodian. Any Swap
Counterparty Collateral posted pursuant to a Credit Support Annex and/or any rights of the Issuer under any Credit
Support Deed will be secured by a pledge on such Swap Counterparty Collateral or an assignment of such rights in favour
of the Security Trustee (in respect of English Law Securities) or the French Collateral Security Agency and Pledge
Agreement (in respect of French Law Securities) for itself and for on and on behalf of the relevant Secured Parties.

Under the Credit Support Deed or Credit Support Annex, the Swap Counterparty is entitled to substitute Swap
Counterparty Collateral with the consent of the Issuer provided any replacement Swap Counterparty Collateral has a
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market value (as determined by the Credit Support Valuation Agent under the Credit Support Deed or Credit Support
Annex, as the case may be) at least equal to the value of the Swap Counterparty Collateral which has been substituted
and meets any other criteria specified in the Credit Support Deed or the Credit Support Annex, as applicable. The Security
Trustee (in respect of English Law Securities) or the French Collateral Security Agency and Pledge Agreement (in respect
of French Law Securities) is not responsible for monitoring the market value of, or verifying the eligibility of, the Swap
Counterparty Collateral or any replacement Swap Counterparty Collateral, and is entitled to rely on certificates of the
Credit Support Valuation Agent or Swap Counterparty without further investigation or enquiry.

If a Credit Support Deed is entered into, under such Credit Support Deed the Swap Counterparty will post Swap
Counterparty Collateral in respect of its obligations under the Swap Agreement and grant English law governed security
over such Swap Counterparty Collateral in favour of the Issuer. The amount of credit support to be provided by the Swap
Counterparty under a Credit Support Annex or Credit Support Deed will be adjusted on the Swap Agreement Valuation
Dates (as defined below) specified in the applicable Final Terms in the manner set out in the applicable Credit Support
Structure. Subject to the provisions of the Credit Support Annex or Credit Support Deed, the Issuer will pay all cash,
securities or other property it receives in respect of the Swap Counterparty Collateral to the Swap Counterparty. On any
Business Day, the Swap Counterparty, pursuant to the terms of the Credit Support Deed or Credit Support Annex, may
give notice to the Issuer that it wishes to transfer new Swap Counterparty Collateral to the Issuer in exchange for some
or all of the Swap Counterparty Collateral held by, or previously transferred to, the Issuer. On the Business Day
immediately following such request (provided that where consent is required from the Issuer, such consent is given), the
Issuer will be obliged to transfer collateral (the "Exchanged Securities") of the same type, nominal value and amount as
those requested by the Swap Counterparty against receipt from the Swap Counterparty of new Swap Counterparty
Collateral with a market value (as of the date of such transfer) as close as practicable to, but in any event not less than, as
determined by the Credit Support Valuation Agent, the market value (on the previous valuation date under the Swap
Agreement) of the Exchanged Securities.

"MtM Value" means, with respect to a Swap Agreement Valuation Date under the Credit Support Deed or Credit Support
Annex, an amount determined by the Credit Support Valuation Agent in its sole discretion as the amount which would
be payable by the Swap Counterparty in respect of the early termination of the Swap Agreement on such Swap Agreement
Valuation Date or, as the case may be, where Credit Support Structure 3 is applicable and Issuer may be obliged to provide
Issuer Posted Collateral, the amount which would be payable to the Swap Counterparty in respect of the early termination
of the Swap Agreement on such Swap Agreement Valuation Date.

For the avoidance of doubt, if Credit Support Structure 3 is applicable, the Issuer may also be required to provide
collateralisation in respect of its obligations under the relevant Swap Agreement pursuant to any Credit Support Annex
or Credit Support Deed entered into with the Swap Counterparty so that either the Issuer or the Swap Counterparty or
both of such parties may be required to provide collateralisation for their respective obligations under the relevant Swap
Agreement.

Where Credit Support Structure 3 is applicable the amount of any collateralisation by the Issuer will be set out in the
applicable Final Terms provided that the collateral to be posted by the Issuer will be the Reference Collateral Assets in
respect of the relevant Securities to which the Swap Agreement relates (the "Issuer Posted Collateral") and provided
further that the Issuer shall not be required to post a principal amount of collateral greater than the principal amount of
Reference Collateral Assets acquired by the Issuer in respect of the relevant series of Secured Securities to which the
Swap Agreement relates or, at the relevant time, then held by the Issuer.

Prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default, where the Issuer is required to deliver Issuer Posted Collateral to the Swap
Counterparty under a Credit Support Annex or Credit Support Deed, the security granted over the relevant Collateral
Assets in favour of the Security Trustee (in respect of English Law Securities) or the French Collateral Security Agency
and Pledge Agreement (in respect of French Law Securities) will automatically be released without requiring the consent
of the Security Trustee (in respect of English Law Securities) or the French Collateral Security Agency and Pledge
Agreement (in respect of French Law Securities). Where the Swap Counterparty is obliged under the terms of the Credit

160



DESCRIPTION OF THE CHARGED ASSETS PART II - DESCRIPTION OF THE SWAP AGREEMENT

Support Annex or Credit Support Deed to pay or deliver securities (which will be equivalent to those securities originally
posted by the Issuer) ("Equivalent Issuer Posted Collateral") by way of a return amount, such securities will become
subject to the security granted in favour of the Security Trustee (in respect of English Law Securities) or the French
Collateral Security Agency and Pledge Agreement (in respect of French Law Securities) by the Issuer in respect of the
relevant Collateral Pool.

If a Credit Support Deed is entered into, under such Credit Support Deed the Issuer will post Issuer Posted Collateral for
its obligations under the Swap Agreement and grant English law governed security over such Issuer Posted Collateral in
favour of the Swap Counterparty. If a Credit Support Annex is entered into, under such Credit Support Annex the Issuer
will post Issuer Posted Collateral for its obligations under the Swap Agreement and will do so by transferring title to such
Issuer Posted Collateral under the terms of the Credit Support Annex.

The amount of credit support to be provided by the Issuer under a Credit Support Annex or Credit Support Deed will be
adjusted on the Swap Agreement Valuation Dates (as defined below) specified in the applicable Final Terms in the manner
set out in the applicable Credit Support Structure. Subject to the provisions of the Credit Support Deed or the Credit
Support Annex, as the case may be, the Swap Counterparty will pay all cash, securities or other property it receives in
respect of the Issuer Posted Collateral to the Issuer.

Taxation

Imposition of withholding taxes on payments made under a Swap Agreement may lead to the early termination of the
relevant Swap Agreement.
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The following description of the Repurchase Agreement should be read in conjunction with the Final Terms for the
relevant series of Secured Securities and the applicable Charged Asset Structure and Credit Support Structure(s),
together this description and the applicable Charged Asset Structure, Credit Support Structure(s) and such Final Terms
consists of a summary of certain provisions of the Repurchase Agreement which is qualified by reference to the detailed
provisions of the Repurchase Agreement for each specific series of Secured Securities. The following summary, in
conjunction with the summary in the applicable Final Terms, does not purport to be complete, and prospective investors
must refer to the relevant Repurchase Agreement for detailed information regarding the Repurchase Agreement.

Repurchase Agreement

If so specified in the Final Terms, BNP Paribas (the "Repo Counterparty") and the Issuer will enter into one or more
master repurchase agreements, in each case substantially in the form of (i) a 2000 TBMA/ISMA Global Master
Repurchase Agreement, (ii) an FBF Master Agreement for Purchase Transactions (Convention Cadre FBF relative aux
opérations de pensions livrées) or (iii) a similar master agreement for repurchase transactions (each as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time and each a "Master Repurchase Agreement"). Pursuant to the
Master Repurchase Agreement the Issuer may enter into one or a series of repurchase transactions (each a "Repo
Transaction") for each series of Secured Securities (together, for each series of Secured Securities, a "Repurchase
Agreement") with the Repo Counterparty in respect of the securities or other assets specified in the applicable Final
Terms (the "Repo Collateral Securities"). Under each such Repo Transaction, the Repo Counterparty will be the seller
of Repo Collateral Securities which will constitute the Reference Collateral Assets for the relevant series and the Issuer
will be the buyer. The Issuer will grant security over its rights under the Repurchase Agreement and over the Reference
Collateral Assets purchased thereunder in favour of the Security Trustee for itself and as security trustee for the Secured
Parties (for the relevant series of Secured Securities which are English Law Securities) or of the French Collateral Security
Agent for itself and as agent for the Secured Parties (for the relevant series of Secured Securities which are French Law
Securities).

Under the Repurchase Agreement, on the Initial Posting Date specified in the applicable Final Terms for the relevant
series of Secured Securities, the Issuer will purchase from the Repo Counterparty the Repo Collateral Securities specified
in the applicable Final Terms for a consideration and with a market value equal to the amount set out in the applicable
Final Terms.

The first Repo Transaction will commence on the Initial Posting Date and end on the first repurchase date (the "First
Repurchase Date") applicable to the Repo Transaction following the Initial Posting Date. Each subsequent Repo
Transaction (if any) will commence on a purchase date (in each case, together with the Initial Posting Date, a "Purchase
Date") which will usually be the same date as the immediately preceding repurchase date and end on the next following
Repo Date (in each case, together with the first Repo Date, a "Repurchase Date") with the last such Repo Transaction
terminating on or shortly before the Redemption Date (the "Final Repo Date"). On each Repurchase Date for each series
of Secured Securities, the Repo Counterparty will repurchase securities equivalent to the Repo Collateral Securities sold
by it in relation to such series of Secured Securities on the previous Purchase Date for a consideration equal to the purchase
price for that Repo Transaction as specified in the applicable Final Terms together with a price differential (the "Price
Differential") determined in accordance with the terms of the Repurchase Agreement (together, in each case, the
"Repurchase Price"). Subsequent Transactions need not relate to the same portfolio of Reference Collateral Assets, but
will have the same purchase price (in each case, the "Purchase Price"), subject to adjustment if the Securities are
purchased by the Issuer or further Tranches of Securities are issued by the Issuer.

Purchase of Securities
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Where further Tranches of Secured Securities are issued and the Issuer purchases additional Repo Collateral Securities
from the Repo Counterparty under the Repurchase Agreement (which for the avoidance of doubt will be repurchased by
the Repo Counterparty on the same Repo Date as the Repo Collateral Securities purchased by the Issuer on the
immediately preceding Repo Date) or where the Issuer purchases Secured Securities and sells Repo Collateral Securities
to the Repo Counterparty in order to fund such purchase, a fee in addition to the relevant Purchase Price or Repurchase
Price (as applicable) may be payable by the Issuer to the Repo Counterparty or by the Repo Counterparty to the Issuer
depending on prevailing market conditions. Where the Issuer purchases Securities, a Repurchase Date shall occur with
respect to the proportion of the Repurchase Agreement equal to the Nominal Amount of Notes being purchased (the
"Purchased Proportion") and accrued Price Differential will be reflected in the Repurchase Price paid by the Repo
Counterparty to the Issuer in respect of the Purchased Proportion.

Capitalised terms used in this "Description of the Repurchase Agreement" and not defined herein shall have the meanings
given to them in the Final Terms for the relevant series of Secured Securities or the applicable Charged Asset Structure.

Early termination and cancellation

Any Repurchase Agreement for a series of Secured Securities may be subject to early termination in certain
circumstances, including without limitation:

(a) payment defaults and/or failure to deliver securities by the Issuer or the Repo Counterparty under such
Repurchase Agreement;

(b) payment defaults by the Issuer or the Swap Counterparty under the Swap Agreement (where applicable);

() bankruptcy events relating to the Issuer or the relevant Repo Counterparty;

(d) repurchase of all relevant Secured Securities by the Issuer;

(e) the early redemption or an event of default of the series of Securities in respect of which the Repurchase

Agreement has been entered into; and
® tax events relating to the Issuer or the relevant Repo Counterparty.

Upon early termination of the Repurchase Agreement, a termination payment may be due between the parties in
accordance with the terms of the relevant Repurchase Agreement.

Further Securities

If the Issuer issues further Secured Securities of a series pursuant to Condition 16 of the Notes the Issuer may purchase
from the Repo Counterparty Reference Collateral Assets for a consideration of, and with a market value equal to, the
aggregate issue proceeds of such further Securities (or such proportion as is specified where an amount less than the full
proceeds of the issue of such further Securities is used to purchase Reference Collateral Assets) each as set out in the
applicable Final Terms. Following such issue, the Repurchase Price for the then current Repo Transaction shall be
increased by such nominal amount (or such proportion of such nominal amount) and the Purchase Price for all subsequent
Transactions shall then be increased by an amount equal to such nominal amount (or such proportion of such nominal
amount).

Substitution of Reference Collateral Assets

For each series of Secured Securities, the Repurchase Agreement will permit the Repo Counterparty to deliver to the
Issuer new Repo Collateral Securities in substitution or exchange for existing Repo Collateral Securities relating to a
series of Secured Securities, subject to the relevant Repurchase Agreement, provided that such substitution or exchange
does not result in the Issuer becoming subject to a Net Exposure under the current Transaction for that series of Secured
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Securities. The Security Trustee (in respect of English Law Securities) or the French Collateral Security Agency and

Pledge Agreement (in respect of French Law Securities) is not responsible for monitoring or verifying the eligibility or
the market value of the Repo Collateral Securities at any time.
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The following description of the Collateral Exchange Agreement should be read in conjunction with the Final Terms for
the relevant series of Secured Securities and the applicable Charged Asset Structure and Credit Support Structure(s),
together this description and the applicable Charged Asset Structure, Credit Support Structure(s) and such Final Terms
consists of a summary of certain provisions of the Collateral Exchange Agreement which is qualified by reference to the
detailed provisions of the Collateral Exchange Agreement for each specific series of Secured Securities. The following
summary, in conjunction with the summary in the applicable Final Terms, does not purport to be complete, and
prospective investors must refer to the relevant Collateral Exchange Agreement for detailed information regarding the
Collateral Exchange Agreement.

Collateral Exchange Agreement

If so specified in the Final Terms, BNP Paribas (the "Collateral Exchange Counterparty") and the Issuer will enter into
one or more collateral exchange agreements, in each case substantially in the form of (i) a 2000 ISLA Global Master
Securities Lending Agreement and schedule (as amended) or (ii) a 2010 ISLA Global Master Securities Lending
Agreement and schedule (as amended) or (iii) another form of agreement relating to the exchange of securities (for each
series, a "Collateral Exchange Agreement"). The Issuer will grant security over its rights under the Collateral Exchange
Agreement and over the Replacement Collateral Assets (if any) it receives thereunder in favour of the Security Trustee
for itself and as security trustee for the relevant Secured Parties (for the relevant series of Secured Securities which are
English Law Securities) or of the French Collateral Security Agent for itself and as agent for the Secured Parties (for the
relevant series of Secured Securities which are French Law Securities). The Collateral Exchange Agreement in respect
of any series of Nominal Value Repack Securities will be entered into on or around the Issue Date of the relevant series
of Nominal Value Repack Securities.

Collateral Exchange Agreement — Two Way Transfer

Where "Collateral Exchange Agreement — Two Way Transfer" is applicable pursuant to the Collateral Exchange
Agreement the Collateral Exchange Counterparty may, at its option, enter into one or more transactions (each an
"Exchange Transaction") with the Issuer in respect of the relevant Reference Collateral Assets. Under such Exchange
Transactions, the Issuer will transfer to the Collateral Exchange Counterparty all or part of the Reference Collateral Assets
(the "Received Collateral") and the Collateral Exchange Counterparty will transfer Replacement Collateral Assets to the
Issuer. Subject to the circumstances in which the Collateral Exchange Agreement will terminate early (as described
below), the Exchange Transactions shall terminate on the maturity date of the Reference Collateral Assets (or on any
earlier date as specified by the Collateral Exchange Counterparty) and the Collateral Exchange Counterparty will transfer
securities equivalent to the Received Collateral which it received to the Issuer on such date and the Issuer will transfer
securities equivalent to the Replacement Collateral Assets which it received.

The Collateral Exchange Counterparty may be required under the Collateral Exchange Agreement to pay the Issuer a fee
in connection with entering into the Collateral Exchange Agreement and will be required to transfer collateral to the Issuer
against transfer of the relevant Reference Collateral Assets or part thereof by the Issuer under the Collateral Exchange
Agreement, as set out in Collateral Exchange Structurel.

Under the Collateral Exchange Agreement, the Collateral Exchange Counterparty will pay to the Issuer amounts equal to
the amounts that would have been received by the Issuer under the Received Collateral if it had not transferred such
Received Collateral to the Collateral Exchange Counterparty and the Issuer will pay to the Collateral Exchange
Counterparty (which shall be net of deductions or withholding for tax, where so specified in the applicable Final Terms)
amounts equal to the amounts that would have been received by the Collateral Exchange Counterparty under the relevant
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Replacement Collateral Assets if it had not transferred such Replacement Collateral Assets to the Collateral Exchange
Counterparty.

Collateral Exchange Agreement — One Way Transfer Securities Lending

Where Collateral Exchange Agreement — One Way Transfer Securities Lending is applicable pursuant to the Collateral
Exchange Agreement the Collateral Exchange Counterparty may, at its option, enter into one or more transaction (each
an "Exchange Transaction") with the Issuer in respect of the relevant Reference Collateral Assets. Under such Exchange
Transactions, the Issuer will transfer to the Collateral Exchange Counterparty all or part of the Reference Collateral Assets
(the "Received Collateral"). Subject to the circumstances in which the Collateral Exchange Agreement will terminate
early (as described below), the Exchange Transactions shall terminate on the maturity date of the Reference Collateral
Assets (or on any earlier date as specified by the Collateral Exchange Counterparty) and the Collateral Exchange
Counterparty will transfer securities equivalent to the Received Collateral which it received to the Issuer on such date.

The Collateral Exchange Counterparty may be required under the Collateral Exchange Agreement to pay the Issuer a fee
in connection with entering into the Collateral Exchange Agreement.

Under the Collateral Exchange Agreement, the Collateral Exchange Counterparty will pay to the Issuer amounts equal to
the amounts that would have been received by the Issuer under the Received Collateral if it had not transferred such
Received Collateral to the Collateral Exchange Counterparty.

Collateral Exchange Agreement — Triparty Transfer

Where Collateral Exchange Agreement — Triparty Transfer is applicable, in addition to, and in connection with, the
Collateral Exchange Agreement, the Collateral Exchange Counterparty and the Issuer (or an agent on behalf of the Issuer)
will enter into a triparty securities lending service agreement with Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. (in such capacity, the
"Triparty Services Agent") (the "Triparty Agreement") on the basis of a Securities Lending Service Agreement
comprised of the Securities Lending Service Agreement Terms and Conditions dated March 2017 (as such terms and
conditions are amended, supplemented, replaced or otherwise modified from time to time) and the Securities Lending
Service Agreement — Operating Procedures dated April 2017 (as such operating procedures are amended, supplemented,
replaced or otherwise modified from time to time) in standard form as published by the Triparty Services Agent together
with annexes thereto pursuant to which the Triparty Services Agent will determine the market value of the Reference
Collateral Assets and Replacement Collateral Assets and administer the Replacement Collateral Assets. The Collateral
Exchange Counterparty and the Issuer may at any time at the request of the Collateral Exchange Counterparty terminate
the Triparty Agreement and/or enter into alternative triparty agreements. Pursuant to the Collateral Exchange Agreement
the Collateral Exchange Counterparty may, at its option, enter into one or more transactions (each an "Exchange
Transaction") with the Issuer in respect of the relevant Reference Collateral Assets. Under such Exchange Transactions,
the Issuer will transfer to the Collateral Exchange Counterparty all or part of the Reference Collateral Assets (the
"Received Collateral") and Replacement Collateral Assets will be transferred to the Issuer. Transfers of Replacement
Collateral Assets will be made and administered by the Triparty Services Agent on behalf of the parties under the
Collateral Exchange Agreement in the same way as if Collateral Exchange Agreement — Two Way Transfer is applicable.
For so long as the Collateral Exchange Agreement is subject to the Triparty Agreement the Reference Collateral Assets
and the Replacement Collateral Assets must be subject to clearing through Euroclear and/or such other clearing system
as may be required for the purposes of the Triparty Agreement; and for so long as the Collateral Exchange Agreement is
subject to a Triparty Agreement, are securities which are eligible for use under the Triparty Agreement as set out in the
Securities Lending Service Agreement — Operating Procedures dated April 2017 (as such operating procedures are
amended, supplemented, replaced or otherwise modified from time to time). In connection with the Triparty Agreement,
the Issuer (or an agent of the Issuer) may enter into Belgian law governed security documentation with the applicable
Security Trustee (in respect of English Law Securities) or the applicable French Collateral Security Agent (in respect of
French Law Securities) or, where applicable, an entity acting as the representative of the applicable Security Trustee (in
respect of English Law Securities) or the French Collateral Security Agent (in respect of French Law Securities).
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If at any time the Triparty Services Agent is unable to perform its role under the Triparty Agreement, the Collateral
Exchange Counterparty and the Issuer shall use commercially reasonable endeavours to enter into a triparty securities
lending service agreement with an entity of equivalent standing to the Triparty Services Agent. If, having used
commercially reasonable endeavours such an agreement is not entered into, the Collateral Exchange Counterparty and
the Issuer shall make such amendments to the Collateral Exchange Agreement as are necessary to reflect a bilateral
arrangement between the Issuer and the Collateral Exchange Counterparty with substantially similar economic terms.
For the avoidance of doubt, the Collateral Exchange Agreement will not terminate solely as a result of the termination of
the Triparty Agreement and no Early Redemption Event will occur in respect thereof.

Termination

The Collateral Exchange Agreement includes events of default such as bankruptcy of the Issuer or the Collateral Exchange
Counterparty and failure to make payments or deliveries thereunder. The Collateral Exchange Agreement will terminate
automatically upon the occurrence of any such event of default. Additionally, the Collateral Exchange Agreement will
terminate automatically upon the termination of the Swap Agreement relating to the relevant series of Secured Securities
in accordance with the terms thereof. The Collateral Exchange Counterparty may terminate the Collateral Exchange
Agreement upon giving notice to the Issuer in accordance with the provisions of the Collateral Exchange Agreement. The
Issuer will not be entitled to terminate the Collateral Exchange Agreement before the maturity date of the Reference
Collateral Assets, except following the occurrence of an event of default (as set out in the Collateral Exchange Agreement)
with respect to the Collateral Exchange Counterparty. The Collateral Exchange Agreement may also terminate
automatically in other circumstances pursuant to the terms of the Collateral Exchange Agreement.

Upon the early termination of the Collateral Exchange Agreement at the option of the Collateral Exchange Counterparty,
the Collateral Exchange Counterparty will transfer equivalent securities in respect of the Received Collateral to the Issuer
in accordance with the provisions of the Collateral Exchange Agreement and, save where Collateral Exchange One Way
Transfer Securities lending is applicable, the Issuer will transfer equivalent securities in respect of the Replacement
Collateral Assets to the Collateral Exchange Counterparty.

Where Group Collateralisation is specified to be not applicable in the applicable Final Terms to a series of Secured
Securities in respect of which a Collateral Exchange Agreement has been entered into, an Exchange Transaction may
terminate in whole or part early where the number of Placed Secured Securities is reduced. In such circumstances, the
Collateral Exchange Counterparty will transfer equivalent securities in accordance with the provisions of the Collateral
Exchange Agreement in respect of a proportion of the Received Collateral to the Issuer equivalent to the proportional
reduction in the aggregate Nominal Amount of the Placed Secured Securities and, save where Collateral Exchange One
Way Transfer Securities Lending is applicable, the Issuer will transfer equivalent securities in respect of an equivalent
proportion of the Replacement Collateral Assets to the Collateral Exchange Counterparty in accordance with the
provisions of the Collateral Exchange Agreement.

Upon the early termination of the Collateral Exchange Agreement where Collateral Physical Settlement is applicable in
respect of an Early Redemption Event and no Related Agreement Counterparty Default has occurred, the Collateral
Exchange Counterparty will use commercially reasonable efforts to transfer equivalent securities in respect of the
Received Collateral to the Issuer in accordance with the provisions of the Collateral Exchange Agreement and, save where
Collateral Exchange One Way Transfer Securities Lending is applicable, the Issuer will transfer equivalent securities in
respect of the Replacement Collateral Assets to the Collateral Exchange Counterparty. Where the Collateral Exchange
Counterparty is unable (after using commercially reasonable efforts) to transfer equivalent securities in respect of all or
part of the Received Collateral to the Issuer in accordance with the provisions of the Collateral Exchange Agreement
(such securities which are not transferred being "Undelivered Equivalent Securities"), the Collateral Exchange
Counterparty will pay an amount equal to the fair market value (as determined by the Collateral Exchange Counterparty)
of the relevant Undelivered Equivalent Securities to the Issuer in lieu of such delivery.
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Upon the early termination of the Collateral Exchange Agreement upon the occurrence of an event of default thereunder
in respect of the Issuer or the Collateral Exchange Counterparty or the early termination of the Swap Agreement due to
an event of default thereunder in respect of the Issuer or the Swap Counterparty or the occurrence of an Event of Default
in respect of the Secured Securities, there will be no further exchange of securities and instead a termination payment will
be calculated in accordance with the terms of the Collateral Exchange Agreement which will be calculated by reference
to the market value of the Received Collateral and the Replacement Collateral Assets (if any) including any further
Replacement Collateral Assets which have been transferred to the Issuer as credit support by the Collateral Exchange
Counterparty.

Upon the early termination of the Collateral Exchange Agreement due to the occurrence of an Early Redemption Event,
(other than in the circumstances set out immediately above or where Collateral Physical Settlement is applicable in respect
of an Early Redemption event and no Related Agreement Counterparty Default has occurred) the Issuer will sell its rights
under the Collateral Exchange Agreement to receive equivalent securities in respect of the Received Collateral from the
Collateral Exchange Counterparty and upon effecting such sale, save where Collateral Exchange One Way Transfer
Securities Lending is applicable, the Issuer will transfer equivalent securities in respect of the Replacement Collateral
Assets to the Collateral Exchange Counterparty.
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CHARGED ASSET STRUCTURES

PART V — DESCRIPTION OF CHARGED ASSET STRUCTURES

One of the following descriptions of the Charged Asset Structures will apply to the Secured Securities where Part C or
Part D of Annex 13(Additional Terms and Conditions for Secured Securities) is specified in the applicable Final Terms.

The applicable Final Terms will specify the applicable Charged Asset Structure which applies provided that references
to "Automatic Early Redemption Amount”, "Automatic Early Redemption" and "or where Automatic Early Redemption
is applicable"”, "Automatic Early Redemption Event (where applicable)" and associated references shall be ignored for
the purposes of construing the Charged Asset Structures where Automatic Early Redemption does not apply to the
relevant Secured Securities.

CHARGED ASSET STRUCTURE 1

Transaction Structure Diagram: The diagram below is intended to provide an overview of the structure of the
transaction that is the subject of Charged Asset Structure 1. Prospective investors should also review the detailed
information set out elsewhere in this Base Prospectus for a description of the transaction structure and relevant cashflows

prior to making any investment decision.
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Key to Diagram
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(b) On Initial Posting Date

(c) On Scheduled Final Bond Payment Date

(d) On Final Payment Date

(e) Following a request from the Collateral Exchange Counterparty
(f) On Scheduled Exchange End Date
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DESCRIPTION OF THE CHARGED ASSET STRUCTURES PART V — DESCRIPTION OF CHARGED

ASSET STRUCTURES

CHARGED ASSET STRUCTURE 1A - ZERO COUPON BOND AND SWAP AGREEMENT
General

On or before the Issue Date, the Issuer will enter into the Swap Agreement with the Swap Counterparty. On the
Initial Reference Collateral Assets Purchase Date(s), the Issuer will purchase the Reference Collateral Assets.

For further details relating to the Swap Agreement, please see "Description of the Charged Assets — Part I —
Description of the Swap Agreement".

Payments under the Swap Agreement

On or around the Issue Date, the Issuer will pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty which is equal to the net
issue proceeds of the relevant series of Secured Securities and, on or before the Initial Reference Collateral
Assets Purchase Date, the Swap Counterparty will pay one or more amounts to the Issuer in the relevant
Reference Collateral Currency or Reference Collateral Currencies (where applicable) which is equal to the
Reference Collateral Purchase Price of each of the Reference Collateral Issues comprised in the Reference
Collateral Assets.

Where an Interim Payment Amount is payable in respect of the Secured Securities, the Swap Counterparty will
pay an amount to the Issuer which will be equal to such Interim Payment Amount on or before the date on which
such payment is due to be made by the Issuer provided that no Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has
occurred.

Where RCA specified as applicable Final Terms:

(a) On or around any RCA Maturity Call Option Date which relates to a redemption of the Reference
Collateral Assets in part but not whole, the Issuer will pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty in the
Reference Collateral Currency equal to the redemption proceeds due to be received by the Issuer in
connection with such RCA Maturity Call Option Event provided that no Call Event (where applicable),
Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has occurred; and

(b) On the earlier of (i) the Scheduled Final Bond Payment Date(s) and (ii) the Final RCA Maturity Call
Option Date, the Issuer will pay to the Swap Counterparty an amount (if any) in the relevant Reference
Collateral Currency equal to the Scheduled Final Bond Payment due to be received by the Issuer
provided that no Call Event (where applicable), Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has
occurred.

Where RCA Maturitiy Call is not specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms on the Scheduled Final
Bond Payment Date(s), the relevant RCA Issuer will pay to the Issuer the relevant Scheduled Final Bond
Payment and, on or around such date, the Issuer will be obliged to pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty in
the Reference Collateral Currency equal to the relevant Scheduled Final Bond Payment due to be received by
the Issuer provided that no Call Event (where applicable) Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has
occurred.

On or prior to the Final Payment Date, the Swap Counterparty will pay an amount to the Issuer which will be
equal to the aggregate of the Final Payment Amounts that the Issuer is scheduled to pay in respect of the Secured
Securities then outstanding, provided that no Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has occurred.
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The notional amount of the Swap Agreement and the aggregate nominal amount of the Reference Collateral
Assets will be reduced to take account of any purchase and cancellation of Secured Securities by the Issuer so
that the notional amount of the Swap Agreement will be equal to the Aggregate Issue Amount of the Secured
Securities left outstanding immediately following any such repurchase and the RCA Nominal Amount will be
reduced in the same proportion as the Aggregate Issue Amount of the Secured Securities is reduced in connection
with any purchase and cancellation of Secured Securities.

Payments under the Swap Agreement will only be made on Swap Business Days.
If so specified in the applicable Final Terms, a Credit Support Structure may apply to the Secured Securities.
Payments with respect to the Reference Collateral Assets

On the Initial Reference Collateral Assets Purchase Date, the Issuer will use the amount(s) received from the
Swap Counterparty under the Swap Agreement on or before such date to purchase the Reference Collateral
Assets.

Where RCA Maturity Call is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms:

(a) On each RCA Maturity Call Option Date which is not the Final RCA Maturity Call Option Date, the
RCA TIssuer will pay an amount of principal in respect of the nominal amount of the Reference Collateral
Assets held by the Issuer at such time which are being redeemed and the RCA Nominal Amount will
be reduced by the nominal amount of the Reference Collateral Assets held by the Issuer which are
redeemed.

(b) On the earlier of (i) the Scheduled Final Bond Payment Date(s) and (ii) the Final RCA Maturity Call
Option Date, the RCA Issuer will pay to the Issuer an amount (if any) in the relevant Reference
Collateral Currency equal to the Scheduled Final Bond Payment provided that no Call Event (where
applicable), Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has occurred.

Where RCA Maturity Call is not specified as applicable on the relevant Scheduled Final Bond Payment Date(s),
the relevant RCA Issuer will pay to the Issuer the relevant Scheduled Final Bond Payment and, on or around
such date, the Issuer will be obliged to pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty in the Reference Collateral
Currency equal to the relevant Scheduled Final Bond Payment due to be received by the Issuer provided that no
Call Event (where applicable), Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has occurred.

Arrangements upon which payments to investors are dependent

The Issuer is dependent on receiving payments (if any) when due from the Swap Counterparty pursuant to the
Swap Agreement in the manner described in paragraph 2 above in order to pay:

(a) any Interim Payment Amount in respect of each outstanding Security; and/or
(b) the Final Payment Amount on the Final Payment Date in respect of each outstanding Security.

CHARGED ASSET STRUCTURE 1B - ZERO COUPON BOND AND SWAP AGREEMENT
SECURITIES ARE BEING ISSUED WHICH ARE FUNGIBLE WITH EXISTING SECURITIES

General

On the Original Issue Date, the Issuer entered into the Swap Agreement with the Swap Counterparty. On the
Initial Reference Collateral Assets Purchase Date(s) in respect of the Applicable Tranche, the Issuer will
purchase Reference Collateral Assets in a nominal amount equal to Additional Reference Collateral Amount
(the "Additional Reference Collateral Assets").
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1.2 For further details relating to the Swap Agreement, please see "Description of the Charged Assets — Part I —
Description of the Swap Agreement".
2. Payments under the Swap Agreement
2.1 On or around the Issue Date, the Issuer will pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty which is equal to the net

issue proceeds of the Applicable Tranche and, on or before the Initial Reference Collateral Assets Purchase Date
for the Applicable Tranche, the Swap Counterparty will pay one or more amounts to the Issuer in the relevant
Reference Collateral Currency which is equal to the Reference Collateral Purchase Price of each of the Reference
Collateral Issues comprised in the Additional Reference Collateral Assets.

2.2 Where an Interim Payment Amount is payable in respect of the Secured Securities, the Swap Counterparty will
pay an amount to the Issuer which will be equal to such Interim Payment Amount on or before the date on which
such payment is due to be made by the Issuer provided that no Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has
occurred.

2.3 Where RCA Maturity Call is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms:

(a) on or around any RCA Maturity Call Option Date which relates to a redemption of the Reference
Collateral Assets in part but not whole, the Issuer will pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty in the
Reference Collateral Currency equal to the redemption proceeds due to be received by the Issuer in
connection with such RCA Maturity Call Option Event provided that no Call Event (where applicable),
Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has occurred; and

(b) on the earlier of (i) the Scheduled Final Bond Payment Date(s) and (ii) the Final RCA Maturity Call
Option Date, the Issuer will pay to the Swap Counterparty an amount (if any) in the relevant Reference
Collateral Currency equal to the Scheduled Final Bond Payment due to be received by the Issuer
provided that no Call Event (where applicable), Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has
occurred.

2.4 Where RCA Maturity Call is not specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, on the Scheduled Final
Bond Payment Date(s), the relevant RCA Issuer will pay to the Issuer the relevant Scheduled Final Bond
Payment and, on or around such date, the Issuer will be obliged to pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty in
the Reference Collateral Currency equal to the relevant Scheduled Final Bond Payment due to be received by
the Issuer provided that no Call Event (where applicable), Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has
occurred.

2.5 On or prior to the Final Payment Date, the Swap Counterparty will pay an amount to the Issuer which will be
equal to the aggregate of the Final Payment Amounts that the Issuer is scheduled to pay in respect of the Secured
Securities then outstanding, provided that no Call Event (where applicable), Early Redemption Event or Event
of Default has occurred.

2.6 The notional amount of the Swap Agreement and the aggregate nominal amount of the Reference Collateral
Assets will be reduced to take account of any purchase and cancellation of Secured Securities by the Issuer so
that the notional amount of the Swap Agreement will be equal to the Aggregate Issue Amount of the Secured
Securities left outstanding immediately following any such repurchase and RCA Nominal Amount will be
reduced in the same proportion as the Aggregate Issue Amount of the Secured Securities is reduced in connection
with any purchase and cancellation of Secured Securities.

2.7 Payments under the Swap Agreement will only be made on Swap Business Days.

2.8 If so specified in the applicable Final Terms, a Credit Support Structure may apply to the Secured Securities.
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Payments with respect to the Reference Collateral Assets

On or around the Initial Reference Collateral Assets Purchase Date for the Applicable Tranche, the Issuer will
use the amount received from the Swap Counterparty under the Swap Agreement to purchase the relevant
Additional Reference Collateral Assets.

Where RCA Maturity Call is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms:

(a) on each RCA Maturity Call Option Date which is not the Final RCA Maturity Call Option Date, the
RCA Issuer will pay an amount of principal in respect of the nominal amount of the Reference Collateral
Assets held by the Issuer at such time which are being and the RCA Nominal Amount will be reduced
by the nominal amount of the Reference Collateral Assets held by the Issuer which are redeemed; and

(b) on the earlier of (i) the Scheduled Final Bond Payment Date(s) and (ii) the Final RCA Maturity Call
Option Date, the RCA Issuer will pay to the Issuer an amount (if any) in the relevant Reference
Collateral Currency equal to the Scheduled Final Bond Payment provided that no Call Event (where
applicable), Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has occurred.

Where RCA Maturity Call is not specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, on the relevant Scheduled
Final Bond Payment Date(s), the relevant RCA Issuer will pay to the Issuer the relevant Scheduled Final Bond
Payment and, on or around such date, the Issuer will be obliged to pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty in
the Reference Collateral Currency equal to the relevant Scheduled Final Bond Payment due to be received by
the Issuer provided that no Call Event (where applicable), Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has
occurred.

Arrangements upon which payments to investors are dependent

The Issuer is dependent on receiving payments (if any) when due from the Swap Counterparty pursuant to the
Swap Agreement in the manner described in paragraph 2 above in order to pay:

(a) any Interim Payment Amount in respect of each outstanding Security; and/or
(b) the Final Payment Amount on the Final Payment Date in respect of each outstanding Security.

CHARGED ASSET STRUCTURE 1C - ZERO COUPON BOND AND SWAP AGREEMENT AND
COLLATERAL EXCHANGE STRUCTURE

The terms of Charged Asset Structure 1A will apply and in addition a Collateral Exchange Structure will apply
as specified in the Final Terms. For further details relating to the Collateral Exchange Agreement and Collateral
Exchange Structures, please see "Description of the Charged Assets — Part IV — Description of the Collateral
Exchange Agreement" and "Description of the Charged Assets — Part VI — Description of the Collateral
Exchange Structures".

CHARGED ASSET STRUCTURE 1D - ZERO COUPON BOND AND SWAP AGREEMENT -
SECURITIES ARE BEING ISSUED WHICH ARE FUNGIBLE WITH EXISTING SECURITIES AND
COLLATERAL EXCHANGE STRUCTURE

The terns of Charged Asset Structure 1B will apply and in addition a Collateral Exchange Structure will apply
as specified in the Final Terms. For further details relating to the Collateral Exchange Agreement and Collateral
Exchange Structures, please see "Description of the Charged Assets — Part IV — Description of the Collateral
Exchange Agreement" and "Description of the Charged Assets — Part VI — Description of the Collateral
Exchange Structures".
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CHARGED ASSET STRUCTURE 2

Transaction Structure Diagram: The diagram below is intended to provide an overview of the structure of the
transaction that is the subject of Charged Asset Structure 2. Prospective investors should also review the detailed
information set out elsewhere in this Base Prospectus for a description of the transaction structure and relevant cashflows
prior to making any investment decision.

Specified Reference Collateral Assets
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Key to Diagram

(a) On Issue Date

(b) On Initial Posting Date

(c) On Reference Collateral Interest Payment Date(s)

(d) On Interim Payment Date(s)

(e) On Scheduled Final Bond Payment Date

(f) On Final Payment Date

(2) Following a request from the Collateral Exchange Counterparty
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‘ (h) On Scheduled Exchange End Date
1. CHARGED ASSET STRUCTURE 2A - INTEREST BEARING REFERENCE COLLATERAL ASSETS
AND SWAP AGREEMENT
1. General
1.1 On or before the Issue Date, the Issuer will enter into the Swap Agreement with the Swap Counterparty. On the

Initial Reference Collateral Assets Purchase Date(s), the Issuer will purchase the Reference Collateral Assets.

1.2 For further details relating to the Swap Agreement, please see "Description of the Charged Assets — Part I —
Description of the Swap Agreement".

2. Payments under the Swap Agreement

2.1 On or around the Issue Date, the Issuer will pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty which is equal to the net
issue proceeds of the relevant series of Secured Securities and, on or before the Initial Reference Collateral
Assets Purchase Date, the Swap Counterparty will pay one or more amounts to the Issuer in the relevant
Reference Collateral Currency or Reference Collateral Currencies (where applicable) which is equal to the
Reference Collateral Purchase Price of each of the Reference Collateral Issues comprised in the Reference
Collateral Assets.

2.2 Where Recovery Access is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms on or around each Reference
Collateral Interest Payment Date the Issuer will be obliged to pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty in the
Reference Collateral Currency equal to the scheduled Reference Collateral Coupon Amount (if any) due to be
paid on such Reference Collateral Interest Payment Date (if any) provided that no Early Redemption Event or
Event of Default has occurred.

2.3 Where Recovery Access is not specified as applicable in the Final Terms, on or around each Reference Collateral
Interest Payment Date, the Issuer will pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty in the Reference Collateral
Currency equal to the Reference Collateral Coupon Amount received by the Issuer on the Reference Collateral
Interest Payment Date provided that no Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has occurred.

2.4 If an Interim Payment Amount is payable in respect of the Secured Securities, the Swap Counterparty will pay
an amount to the Issuer which will be equal to such Interim Payment Amount on or before the date on which
such payment is due to be made by the Issuer provided that no Call Event (where applicable), Early Redemption
Event or Event of Default has occurred.

2.5 Where RCA Maturity Call is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms:

(a) on or around any RCA Maturity Call Option Date which relates to a redemption of the Reference
Collateral Assets in part but not whole, the Issuer will pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty in the
Reference Collateral Currency equal to the redemption proceeds due to be received by the Issuer in
connection with such RCA Maturity Call Option Event provided that no Call Event (where applicable),
Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has occurred.

() On the earlier of (i) the Scheduled Final Bond Payment Date(s) and (ii) the Final RCA Maturity Call
Option Date, the Issuer will pay to the Swap Counterparty an amount (if any) in the relevant Reference
Collateral Currency equal to the Scheduled Final Bond Payment due to be received by the Issuer
provided that no Call Event (where applicable), Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has
occurred.
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2.6 Where RCA Maturity Call is not specified as applicable Final Terms, on the Scheduled Final Bond Payment

Date(s), the RCA Issuer will pay to the Issuer the Scheduled Final Bond Payment and, on or around such date,

the Issuer will pay to the Swap Counterparty an amount (if any) in the relevant Reference Collateral Currency

equal to the Scheduled Final Bond Payment due to be received by the Issuer provided that no Call Event (where
applicable), Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has occurred.

2.7 On or prior to the Final Payment Date, the Swap Counterparty will pay an amount to the Issuer which will be
equal to the aggregate of the Final Payment Amounts that the Issuer is scheduled to pay in respect of the Secured
Securities then outstanding, provided that no Call Event (where applicable), Early Redemption Event or Event
of Default has occurred.

2.8 The notional amount of the Swap Agreement and the aggregate nominal amount of the Reference Collateral
Assets will be reduced to take account of any purchase and cancellation of Secured Securities by the Issuer so
that the notional amount of the Swap Agreement will be equal to the Aggregate Issue Amount of the Secured
Securities left outstanding immediately following any such repurchase and RCA Nominal Amount will be
reduced in the same proportion as the Aggregate Issue Amount of the Secured Securities is reduced in connection
with any purchase and cancellation of Secured Securities. .

2.9 Payments under the Swap Agreement will only be made on Swap Business Days.
2.10 If so specified in the applicable Final Terms, a Credit Support Structure may apply to the Secured Securities.
3. Payments under the Reference Collateral Assets

3.1 On the Initial Reference Collateral Assets Purchase Date, the Issuer will use the amount received from the Swap
Counterparty under the Swap Agreement to purchase the Reference Collateral Assets.

32 On each Reference Collateral Interest Payment Date, the relevant RCA Issuer will pay an amount of interest to
the Issuer in respect of the nominal amount of the relevant Reference Collateral Assets held by the Issuer at such
time. 3.2 Where RCAA Maturity Call is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms:

(a) on each RCA Maturity Call Option Date which is not the Final RCA Maturity Call Option Date, the
RCA Issuer will pay an amount of principal and accrued interest thereon in respect of the nominal
amount of the Reference Collateral Assets held by the Issuer at such time which are being and the RCA
Nominal Amount will be reduced by the nominal amount of the Reference Collateral Assets held by
the Issuer which are redeemed; and

(b) on the earlier of (i) the Scheduled Final Bond Payment Date(s) and (ii) the Final RCA Maturity Call
Option Date, the RCA Issuer will pay to the Issuer an amount (if any) in the relevant Reference
Collateral Currency equal to the Scheduled Final Bond Payment provided that no Call Event (where
applicable), Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has occurred.

3.3 Where Maturity Call is not specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, on the relevant Scheduled Final
Bond Payment Date(s), the relevant RCA Issuer will pay to the Issuer the relevant Scheduled Final Bond
Payment and, on or around such date, the Issuer will be obliged to pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty in
the Reference Collateral Currency equal to the relevant Scheduled Final Bond Payment due to be received by
the Issuer provided that no Call Event (where applicable), Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has
occurred.

2. CHARGED ASSET STRUCTURE 2B - INTEREST BEARING REFERENCE COLLATERAL ASSETS
AND SWAP AGREEMENT- SECURITIES ARE BEING ISSUED WHICH ARE FUNGIBLE WITH
EXISTING SECURITIES
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DESCRIPTION OF THE CHARGED ASSET STRUCTURES PART V — DESCRIPTION OF CHARGED

ASSET STRUCTURES
General

On the Original Issue Date, the Issuer entered into the Swap Agreement with the Swap Counterparty. On the
Initial Reference Collateral Assets Purchase Date(s) in respect of the Applicable Tranche, the Issuer will
purchase Reference Collateral Assets in a nominal amount equal to Additional Reference Collateral Amount
(the "Additional Reference Collateral Assets").

For further details relating to the Swap Agreement, please see "Description of the Charged Assets — Part I —
Description of the Swap Agreement".

Payments under the Swap Agreement

On or around the Issue Date, the Issuer will pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty which is equal to the net
issue proceeds of the Applicable Tranche and, on or before the Initial Reference Collateral Assets Purchase Date
for the Applicable Tranche, the Swap Counterparty will pay one or more amounts to the Issuer in the relevant
Reference Collateral Currency which is equal to the Reference Collateral Purchase Price of each of the Reference
Collateral Issues comprised in the Additional Reference Collateral Assets.

Where Recovery Access is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, on, or around, each Reference
Collateral Interest Payment Date the Issuer will be obliged to pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty in the
Reference Collateral Currency equal to the scheduled Reference Collateral Coupon Amount (if any) due to be
paid on such Reference Collateral Interest Payment Date (if any) provided that no Early Redemption Event or
Event of Default has occurred.

Where Recovery Access is not specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, on or around, each
Reference Collateral Interest Payment Date, the Issuer will pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty in the
Reference Collateral Currency equal to the Reference Collateral Coupon Amount received by the Issuer on the
Reference Collateral Interest Payment Date provided that no Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has
occurred.

If an Interim Payment Amount is payable in respect of the Secured Securities, the Swap Counterparty will pay
an amount to the Issuer which will be equal to such Interim Payment Amount on or before the date on which
such payment is due to be made by the Issuer provided that no Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has
occurred.

Where RCA Maturity Call is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms:

(a) on or around any RCA Maturity Call Option Date which relates to a redemption of the Reference
Collateral Assets in part but not whole, the Issuer will pay an amount to the Swap Counterparty in the
Reference Collateral Currency equal to the redemption proceeds due to be received by the Issuer in
connection with such RCA Maturity Call Option Event provided that no Call Event (where applicable),
Early Redemption Event or Event of Default has occurred; and
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